
1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Council Meeting 
 

Council Offices 
White Cliffs Business Park 

Dover 
 
 

Wednesday, 29 November 2023 
 
 
 

Summons and Agenda 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Nadeem Aziz 
 Chief Executive 

 
 

Public Document Pack



2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 

 
 Democratic Services 

White Cliffs Business Park 
 
Dover 
Kent  CT16 3PJ 
 
Telephone: (01304) 821199 
Website: www.dover.gov.uk 
e-mail: democraticservices 
 @dover.gov.uk 

 
 
 

21 November 2023 
 
 
 
To the Members of the Council,  
 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the COUNCIL to be held in the Council 
Chamber at these Offices on Wednesday 29 November 2023 at 6.00 pm for the transaction 
of the business set out in the Agenda.    
 
 
 
 
 
Chief Executive  
 
Members of the Council: 
 
G Cowan (Chairman) 
D G Cronk (Vice-Chairman) 
J S Back 
T J Bartlett 
M Bates 
D G Beaney 
S H Beer 
E A Biggs 
S B Blair 
P M Brivio 
D R Friend 
 

M F Hibbert 
S Hill 
N S Kenton 
R M Knight 
J P Loffman 
S M S Mamjan 
S C Manion 
K Mills 
M W Moorhouse 
D P Murphy 
M J Nee 
 

D J Parks 
M P Porter 
J L Pout 
O C de R Richardson 
M W Rose 
C A Vinson 
H M Williams 
C F Woodgate 
L M Wright 
C D Zosseder 
 
 

 
AGENDA 
  
1    APOLOGIES  (Page 6) 

 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

  
2    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  (Page 7) 

 
 To receive any declarations of interest from Members in respect of business to be 

transacted on the agenda.  
  

3    ANNOUNCEMENTS  (Page 8) 
 

 To receive any announcements from the Chairman of the Council, the Leader of the 



4 

Council, Members of the Cabinet or the Head of Paid Service. 
  

4    APPOINTMENT OF AN EAST KENT JOINT INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION 
PANEL  (Pages 9 - 16) 
 

 To consider the attached report of the Head of Corporate Services and Democracy. 
  

5    POLLING DISTRICT REVIEW  (Pages 17 - 109) 
 

 To consider the attached report of the Electoral Services Manager. 
  

6    CORPORATE PLAN  (Pages 110 - 126) 
 

 To consider the attached report of the Chief Executive. 
  

7    URGENT BUSINESS TIME  (Page 127) 
 

 To consider any other items deemed by the Chairman of the Council to be urgent in 
accordance with the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

 
Access to Meetings and Information 
 
 Members of the public are welcome to attend meetings of the Council, its 

Committees and Sub-Committees.  You may remain present throughout them except 
during the consideration of exempt or confidential information. 

 
 All meetings are held at the Council Offices, Whitfield unless otherwise indicated on 

the front page of the agenda.  There is step free access via the Council Chamber 
entrance and an accessible toilet is available in the foyer.  In addition, there is a PA 
system and hearing loop within the Council Chamber. 

 
 In order to facilitate the broadcast of meetings there have been cameras set up in the 

Council Chamber that communicate with Microsoft Teams Live. This enables 
meetings held in the Council Chamber to be broadcast for public viewing through the 
Council’s website.  
 

 The meetings in which these cameras will be used include meetings of: (a) Council; 
(b) Cabinet; (c) Dover Joint Transportation Advisory Board; (d) General Purposes 
Committee; (e) Electoral Matters Committee; (f) Governance Committee; (g) Planning 
Committee; (h) General Purposes Committee and (i) Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. Only agenda items open to the press and public to view will be 
broadcast. 
 

 These recordings will be retained for 30 days from the date of the meeting. The 
recordings will be uploaded to YouTube as soon as practicable after the day of the 
meeting. In normal circumstances this would be within 2 working days of the meeting. 
However, there may be circumstances where it will take longer. The recordings can 
be viewed on the Council’s YouTube Channel - Council meetings - YouTube 
(@doverdc) 

 
 The broadcasts and recordings are the copyright of the Council and may not be 

copied, displayed or published to the public, adapted or dealt with in any other way 
restricted by the Copyright, Designs and Patents Act 1988. 
 

https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PLjCIS-fRB2ARPws4_Jb_pBL0xvkE5fC6Y


5 

 The Council will not make available copies of the recordings either in whole or in part 
other than in compliance with a legal requirement arising under The Freedom of 
Information Act 2000, UK GDPR, The Data Protection Act 2018 or some other 
enactment, rule of law or direction of a court or tribunal which is binding on it. 
 

 Agenda papers are published five clear working days before the meeting.  
Alternatively, a limited supply of agendas will be available at the meeting, free of 
charge, and all agendas, reports and minutes can be viewed and downloaded from 
our website www.dover.gov.uk.  Minutes will be published on our website as soon as 
practicably possible after each meeting.  All agenda papers and minutes are 
available for public inspection for a period of six years from the date of the meeting.   

 
 Members of the Committee may receive confidential information relating to personal 

data as part of an item of an exempt or confidential business on the agenda. It is 
each Member’s responsibility to ensure that this information is handled securely and 
confidentially as required under data protection legislation. This information must only 
be retained for as long as necessary and when no longer required disposed of via a 
shredder or the Council’s secure disposal arrangements.  

 
 For further information about how this information should be processed, please view 

the Council’s Data Protection Policy and Appropriate Policy Document at 
www.dover.gov.uk/Corporate-Information/PDF/Data-Protection-Policy.pdf   

 
 If you require any further information about the contents of this agenda or your right 

to gain access to information held by the Council please contact Democratic 
Services, democraticservices@dover.gov.uk, telephone: (01304) 872304 or email: 
democraticservices@dover.gov.uk for details. 

 
Large print copies of this agenda can be supplied on request. 
 

http://www.dover.gov.uk/Corporate-Information/PDF/Data-Protection-Policy.pdf


APOLOGIES 

 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

6

Agenda Item No 1



Declarations of Interest 
 
 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 

Where a Member has a new or registered DPI in a matter under consideration they must 

disclose that they have an interest and, unless the Monitoring Officer has agreed in advance 

that the DPI is a 'Sensitive Interest', explain the nature of that interest at the meeting. The 

Member must withdraw from the meeting at the commencement of the consideration of any 

matter in which they have declared a DPI and must not participate in any discussion of, or 

vote taken on, the matter unless they have been granted a dispensation permitting them to 

do so. If during the consideration of any item a Member becomes aware that they have a 

DPI in the matter they should declare the interest immediately and, subject to any 

dispensations, withdraw from the meeting. 

Other Significant Interest (OSI) 

Where a Member is declaring an OSI they must also disclose the interest and explain the 

nature of the interest at the meeting. The Member must withdraw from the meeting at the 

commencement of the consideration of any matter in which they have declared a OSI and 

must not participate in any discussion of, or vote taken on, the matter unless they have been 

granted a dispensation to do so or the meeting is one at which members of the public are 

permitted to speak for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving 

evidence relating to the matter. In the latter case, the Member may only participate on the 

same basis as a member of the public and cannot participate in any discussion of, or vote 

taken on, the matter and must withdraw from the meeting in accordance with the Council's 

procedure rules. 

Voluntary Announcement of Other Interests (VAOI) 

Where a Member does not have either a DPI or OSI but is of the opinion that for 

transparency reasons alone s/he should make an announcement in respect of a matter 

under consideration, they can make a VAOI. A Member declaring a VAOI may still remain at 

the meeting and vote on the matter under consideration. 

Note to the Code:  

Situations in which a Member may wish to make a VAOI include membership of outside 

bodies that have made representations on agenda items; where a Member knows a person 

involved, but does not have a close association with that person; or where an item would 

affect the well-being of a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc. but not his/her 

financial position. It should be emphasised that an effect on the financial position of a 

Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc OR an application made by a Member, 

relative, close associate, employer, etc would both probably constitute either an OSI or in 

some cases a DPI. 

7

Agenda Item No 2



ANNOUNCEMENTS 

To receive any announcements from the Chairman of the Council, the Leader of the Council, 
Members of the Cabinet or the Head of Paid Service. 
 

8

Agenda Item No 3



 

Dover District Council 

Subject: APPOINTMENT OF AN EAST KENT JOINT INDEPENDENT 
REMUNERATION PANEL 

Meeting and Date: EXTRAORDINARY COUNCIL – 29 NOVEMBER 2023 

Report of: HEAD OF CORPORATE SERVICES AND DEMOCRACY 

Classification: UNRESTRICTED 

Purpose of the report: To appoint an Independent Remuneration Panel as required under 
the Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 
2003 (as amended). 

Recommendation: (a) That Dover District Council’s continued participation in the East 
Kent Joint Independent Remuneration Panel be confirmed until 
30 November 2027. 

(b) That Mr A Goodall be appointed as one of the two Dover District 
Council appointed representatives to the East Kent Joint 
Independent Remuneration Panel for a four-year term 
commencing 1 December 2023. 

(c) That the Head of Corporate Services and Democracy be 
authorised to take all necessary steps to advertise and shortlist 
candidates for the vacancy for the second Dover appointee.  

(d) That a panel comprised of the Chairman of the Governance 
Committee, the Head of Corporate Services and Democracy (or 
a nominated member of the Democratic Services team) and the 
Monitoring Officer be requested to shortlist and interview 
applicants for the vacancies and make recommendations for the 
appointment of an applicant to the Council meeting on 31 
January 2024. 

(e) That the Head of Corporate Services and Democracy be 
authorised to agree the arrangements for the administrative 
support of the East Kent Joint Independent Remuneration 
Panel.  

 
1. Summary 
1.1 The Council is required to appoint an Independent Remuneration Panel under the 

Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 for the purpose 
of making recommendations to the Council in respect of its Members’ Allowances 
Scheme.  

2. Introduction and Background 
2.1 Since 2002 the Council has operated a Joint Independent Remuneration Panel with 

neighbouring authorities. While the initial Joint Independent Remuneration Panel was 
with Thanet District Council this was expanded in 2007 to become the first East Kent 
Joint Independent Remuneration Panel (EKJIRP) with Dover District Council, (the 
then) Shepway District Council and Thanet District Council. Shepway District Council 
withdrew the following year to be replaced by Canterbury City Council. The current 
Panel was formed in 2008 and consists of 5 members appointed jointly by Canterbury 
City Council (1 member), Dover District Council (2 members) and Thanet District 

9

Agenda Item No 4



 

 

Council (2 members). The term of office of the current Panel members expires on 30 
November 2023. 

2.2 Following the May 2023 elections, consultation was undertaken with each of the 
partner authorities in the East Kent Joint Independent Remuneration Panel about 
continuing with the arrangements for a shared Panel and this report seeks to confirm 
the Council’s continuing participation.  
Panel Arrangements 

2.3 The key responsibilities of the Panel as set out in the Regulations are to make 
recommendations as to the responsibilities or duties in respect of which the following 
allowances should be made available and the amount of allowance:  

• Basic Allowance; 
• Special Responsibility Allowances; 
• Member Travel and Subsistence allowances;  
• Dependent Carers Allowances; and 
• Index linking arrangements for allowances. 

 
2.4 The Council has a duty to have regard to the recommendations of the Panel when 

making a decision in respect of any of the allowances set out above but does not have 
to adopt the recommendations of the Panel.  

2.5 In addition, the Panel also makes recommendations to Town and Parish Council’s in 
respect of the level of Parish Basic Allowance and Parish Chairman’s allowance.  

2.6 The Regulations require that the Panel be composed of "at least three members none 
of whom… is also a member of an authority in respect of which it makes 
recommendations… or… is disqualified from being or becoming a member of an 
authority". This means that the members of the Panel may not be a member of the 
three district/city councils or any of the towns/parish councils in their administrative 
areas.  

2.7 It is proposed that the Panel membership be reappointed on the current five member 
basis as follows: 

• 1 member appointed by Canterbury City Council 
• 2 members appointed by Dover District Council 
• 2 members appointed by Thanet District Council 

 
2.8 The quorum for the Panel is 3 members.  
2.9 The proposed term length of the members of the Panel is for four years, running from 

1 December 2023 until 30 November 2027. The Panel will be responsible for 
appointing its own Chairman from amongst the membership on an annual basis. 

2.10 Dover District Council currently has one serving appointee (Mr A Goodall) on the Panel 
and one vacancy following the resignation of its second appointee. The vacancy was 
reported to Council on 1 March 2023 where it was agreed to leave the vacancy unfilled 
until the expiry of the Panel’s term on 30 November 2023.  

2.11 It is proposed to reappoint Mr A Goodall, a former Independent Member of the DDC 
Standards Committee, to the Panel for a further term on the basis of the experience 
he has accumulated in his time as a member of the Panel and his knowledge of the 
three authorities allowance schemes. In respect of the second appointment, it is 
proposed to advertise to fill the position. 

2.12 The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 make 
provision for the members of the Panel to be paid an allowance and expenses for 
carrying out the Panel’s functions at a level the authorities determine.  

10



 

 

2.13 The current allowance arrangements for the members of the East Kent Joint 
Independent Remuneration Panel were set in 2007. Each Panel member receives an 
allowance of £300 per annum plus an attendance fee of £75 per meeting. A further 
allowance of £250 per annum is paid to the Panel’s Chairman. The costs of the Panel 
members’ allowances are split equally between the partner authorities. On average 
the Panel meets two or three times a year, though this number increases when 
conducting the four-yearly parish review. 

2.14 It is not proposed to change the allowance arrangements for the members of the Panel 
for the duration of the term of office running until 30 November 2027. 

2.15 The Central administrative support for the Panel is currently provided by Dover District 
Council’s Democratic Services team and it is proposed that this will continue. However, 
it is recommended that the Head of Corporate Services and Democracy be given 
delegated authority to agree the final administrative arrangements. 

3. Identification of Options 
3.1 Option 1: To confirm the Council’s continued participation in the East Kent Joint 

Independent Remuneration Panel with Canterbury City Council and Thanet District 
Council. 

3.2 Option 2: To form an Independent Remuneration Panel for Dover District Council only.  
3.3 Option 3: To instruct the Head of Corporate Services and Democracy to investigate 

alternative arrangements for an Independent Remuneration Panel, accepting that the 
authority will have no Panel in place until such alternative arrangements are approved.  

4. Evaluation of Options 
4.1 Option 1 is the preferred choice. It continues the existing arrangements that have 

worked successfully since 2008 and bring resilience to the Panel through the pooling 
of resources and the resultant economies of scale through shared costs. 

4.2 At the time of writing this report, Canterbury City Council has already confirmed its 
continued membership of the Panel. 

4.3 Options 2 and 3 are not recommended as they would take longer to implement and 
would lose the benefits gained through the sharing a Panel.  

5. Resource Implications 

5.1 The proposal set out in Option 1 has no additional resource implications. However, if 
the Council were to choose Options 2 or 3 the resource implications would need to be 
reassessed as part of a further report.  
 

5.2 The administration of the Panel generates a small income for Dover District Council 
through an agreed administrative fee charged to Canterbury City Council and Thanet 
District Council. All costs incurred by the Panel are split three ways amongst the 
partner authorities.   

6. Corporate Implications 
6.1 Comment from the Director of Finance (linked to the MTFP): Accountancy has been 

consulted on the report and have no further comments to add. (SK) 
6.2 Comment from the Solicitor to the Council: The Solicitor to the Council has been 

consulted in the preparation of this report and has no further comments to make. 
6.3 Comment from the Equalities Officer: This report seeking confirmation of the Council’s 

continued participation in the East Kent Joint Independent Remuneration Panel with 
Canterbury City Council and Thanet District Council, does not specifically highlight any 

11



 

 

equality implications. However, in discharging their duties members are required to 
comply with the public sector equality duty as set out in Section 149 of the Equality Act 
2010 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/section/149 (KM)    
 

7. Appendices 
Appendix 1 –  Terms of Reference of the East Kent Joint Independent Remuneration 

Panel 
 

8. Background Papers 
None. 

 
Contact Officer: Rebecca Brough, Head of Corporate Services and Democracy, 

rebecca.brough@dover.gov.uk  

12

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/section/149
mailto:rebecca.brough@dover.gov.uk


CCGEN\JIRP – TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSTITUTION OF THE EAST KENT JOINT INDEPENDENT 
REMUNERATION PANELS 

 
 
Canterbury City Council, Dover District Council and Thanet District Council (the 'partner 
authorities') have established a Joint District Independent Remuneration Panel and a Joint 
Parish Independent Remuneration Panel to make recommendations on remuneration levels 
for District and Town/Parish Councillors. 
 
1. Terms of Reference 
 

(a) The Terms of Reference of the Panels shall be: 
 

(i) to make recommendations to each District and Town/Parish authority 
as to the amount of basic allowance which should be payable to its 
elected and co-opted members; 

 
(ii) to make recommendations to each District and Town/Parish authority 

about the roles and responsibilities for which a special allowance 
should be payable and as to the amount of each such allowance; 

 
(iii) to make recommendations as to whether each District and 

Town/Parish  authority's allowances scheme should include an 
allowance in respect of the expenses of arranging for the care of 
children and dependants and if it does make such a recommendation, 
the amount of this allowance and the means by which it is determined; 

 
(iv) to make recommendations to each District and Town/Parish authority 

about a members' pension scheme; 
 

(v) to make recommendations to each District and Town/Parish authority 
as to the amount of travel and subsistence allowance payable to 
elected and co-opted members. 

 
2. Recommendations of the Panel 
 

(a) In making its recommendations, the Panels be asked to include guidance on 
what is to be encompassed by the allowance and it will have regard to the 
following principles: 

 
(i) the Panels shall make separate recommendations to each authority if 

it is deemed appropriate; 
 
(ii) recommendations should conform with existing legislation (and 

anticipate likely future legislation so far as possible); 

13



CCGEN\JIRP – TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 2 

 
(iii) recognition of the principle that the work of a Councillor is undertaken 

for the sake of public service and not for personal gain; 
 
(iv) recognition that the demands placed upon Councillors by their 

differing roles and responsibilities within the Council 
 

(v) the need to fairly and equitably compensate Councillors so far as the 
Panels thinks appropriate for the time and effort devoted to their work 
as a member of the Council and/or the time and effort which they can 
reasonably be expected to devote; 

 
(vi) that individual Councillors should not be disadvantaged by virtue of 

the ward or party (if any) which they represent, or the geographic 
spread within the District of the places where Council business is 
conducted; 

 
(vii) an allowance scheme should be transparent, economic, efficient and 

effective to administer and easy to explain, understand and justify to 
the local communities within the District. 

 
3. Panel Membership and Appointment 
 

(a) The membership of the District Independent Remuneration Panel and the 
Parish Independent Remuneration Panel shall be the same. 

 
(b) Each partner authority shall appoint up to two representatives to serve on the 

panels. 
 
(c) The members of the Panels should receive the following allowances, to be 

reviewed every four years: 
 
   Chairman:  Supplement of £250 per annum 
   Panel Member: £300 per annum 
   Meeting Fee:  £75 per meeting 
 

(d) Wherever possible, the members of the Panels shall be treated as separate 
and independent consultants who are responsible for their own tax, National 
Insurance, etc. 

 
(e) The respective partner authorities should carry out recruitment of the 

members of the panels. Recruitment should be by either public advertisement 
or direct approach to appropriate individuals or business/community/voluntary 
sector organisations that command local respect and public confidence and 
would be able to nominate persons who should have the necessary skills, 
integrity, independence and who are recognisable members of the local 
business and voluntary/community sectors within their respective areas. 

 
(f) A person specification shall be drawn up and agreed to ensure that 

candidates who are appointed: 
 

(i) Are able to demonstrate a high degree of personal integrity; 
 

14



CCGEN\JIRP – TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 3 

(ii) Are not members of any local authority and are not disqualified from 
being or becoming a member of a local authority; 

 
(iii) Have, if possible, the appropriate level of skill, knowledge and 

understanding of setting remunerations; 
 

(iv) Have the necessary time and commitment for the role; 
 

(v) Will disclose the extent of their connections to a political party and 
whether these are such as to risk the effective discharge of the panel's 
functions were the candidate to be appointed. 

 
(c) Terms of appointment shall include a provision for removal from office in 

circumstances where: 
 
  (i) the member of the Panel is disqualified from being a member of an 

authority or guilty of any conduct which brings the office into disrepute 
eg being found guilty of a criminal offence, an act of dishonesty or 
other serious misconduct; 

 
(ii) the member of the Panel is guilty of lack of diligence or incompetence; 
 
(iii) the member becomes an elected or co-opted member [or an 

employee] of a local authority;  
 

(vi) a member of the Panel shall only be removed from office by the 
appointing partner authority, except at the expiration of a member of 
the Panels term of office.  

 
4. Panel Operating Rules 

 
(a) The Panel's Term of Office shall commence from 1 December 2015. 
 
(b) The Panel shall: 

 
(i) appoint its own Chairman at the first meeting of each municipal year; 

 
(ii) require a quorum of three at all meetings;  

 
(iii) Meet a minimum of once per municipal year, with additional meetings 

convened at the request of any partner authority; 
 

(iv) otherwise devise its own rules for the conduct of meetings providing 
that such are consistent with legislative requirements and good 
governance practice. 

 
5. Responsibilities of the Partner Authorities 
 

(a) The partner authorities in the Panel shall: 
 

(i) Share equally the cost of the above allowances and expenses of the 
panel. 

 
(ii) Appoint Dover District Council to provide the administrative support of 

the Panel at a cost of £1,200 per partner authority per annum. 

15



CCGEN\JIRP – TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 4 

 
(iii) In the event that a partner authority wishes to change the 

administrative support arrangements for the Panel, notice must be 
given in writing no later than three months before the end of the 
financial year, to take effect from the start of the next financial year.  

 
(iv) Dover District Council, or the member authority providing 

administrative support if different, will produce the final report in 
conjunction with the Chairman of the Panel setting out the 
recommendations to the member authorities.  

 
6. Termination of Participation in the East Kent Joint IRP by a member authority 

 
In the event that a partner authority wishes to end its participation in the Panel, notice 
must be given in writing no later than three months before the end of the financial 
year, to take effect from the start of the next financial year.  

 
 

 
 
 
 

16



Dover District Council 

Subject: STATUTORY REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS 

Meeting and Date: Electoral Matters Committee – 20 November 2023 
Council – 29 November 2023 

Report of: Electoral Services Manager 

Decision Type: Non-Executive 

Classification: Unrestricted 

Purpose of the report: The Council started its statutory review of Polling Districts, Places 
and Stations on 02 October 2023. This report covers the 
recommendations in relation to the responses received during the 
consultation and seeks agreement to amend the current scheme 
to one of the options listed. 

Recommendation: Electoral Matters Committee: 

(a) To consider the proposed Polling District, Polling Places 
and Polling Stations Scheme and make recommendations 
to Council. 

Council: 

(a) To approve the recommended proposals for the Polling 
District, Polling Places and Polling Stations Scheme 

 

1. Summary 

1.1 Under the Representation of the People Act 1983, the Council has a duty to divide its 
area into polling districts and to designate a polling place for each district. The 
Electoral Administration Act 2006 requires the Council to undertake and complete a 
review of Polling Districts and Places between 1 October 2023 and 31 January 2025 
(inclusive).   

1.2 The current polling place scheme is not recommended by the Electoral Commission, 
so we are seeking to delegate the power to designate polling places to the relevant 
(Acting) Returning Officer / Returning Officer in the case of polling stations needing to 
be changed.  

1.3 The Electoral Matters Committee considered the existing scheme and determined 
whether any changes should be proposed prior to consulting on the scheme.  

1.4 Following the consultation process, the Electoral Matters Committee will consider the 
relevant responses received and make recommendations to Council.  

1.5 Council will determine the Polling District Scheme to be used for Parliamentary and 
Local Government Elections and Referenda. The Electoral Registration Officer will 
make any changes agreed and publish the register on 1 December 2023 reflecting 
the changes.  

 

17

Agenda Item No 5



2. Introduction and Background 
 

Designating Polling Districts 
 
2.1  A Polling District is the geographical sub-division of an electoral area, eg UK 

Parliamentary constituency, a ward or an electoral division. 
 
2.2 The Council is responsible for dividing its area into polling districts for UK 

Parliamentary elections and for keeping the polling districts under review. Please 
note that ward boundaries cannot be altered as part of this review, only Polling 
Districts. 

 
2.3 Although there is no requirement to sub-divide local government electoral wards into 

polling districts, it is recognised good practice to do so.  When doing so, every effort 
must be made to ensure that the polling district scheme for Local Government 
elections mirrors as closely as possible that agreed for Parliamentary elections. 

 
2.4 When designating polling districts, the Council must seek to ensure that all the 

electors in the Constituency have such reasonable facilities for voting as are 
practicable in the circumstances. 

 
2.5  In addition, and unless there are special circumstances that lead the Council to 

determine otherwise, each parish must be in a separate polling district. 
 
2.6 The proposed Polling Districts Scheme follows the already established polling district 

boundaries with the exception of the polling district in Aylesham.  A copy of the 
proposed Polling Districts Scheme including the estimated Electorate figures and 
local and Parliamentary turn out are attached at Appendix 1 together with the maps 
depicting the proposed polling district boundary changes at Appendix 2 and the 
maps of the existing polling districts at Appendix 3.  

 
 Polling Place 
 
2.7  A polling place is the building or area in which polling stations will be selected by the 

(Acting) Returning Officer. A polling place within a polling district should be 
designated so that it is obvious when an elector arrives at the polling place address 
where the polling station is located. 

 
2.8 There must be a designated polling place in every polling district, unless special 

circumstances make it desirable to designate an area either wholly or partly outside 
of the polling district. 

 
2.9 The polling places must be kept under review. 
 
2.10  The current Scheme designates the polling place as follows:-  
 
 Each Polling District to be designated as the polling place.  Where no suitable Polling 

Station is available the Returning Officer be authorised to designate an adjoining 
Polling District for that polling place.  

 
2.11  The Electoral Commission do not recommend a whole polling district is designated 

as a polling place as this does not indicate the location of the polling station. In 
certain situations, it might not be practicable to await formal approval from the 
Electoral Matters Committee and Full Council in order to designate a new polling 

18



place – for example, where a building becomes unavailable during the run up to an 
election or during the election planning phase. 

 
  For a practical solution, we recommend the power to designate polling places in 

accordance with section 18 and 18B of the Representation of the People Act 1983 is 
delegated to the relevant (Acting) Returning Officer (ARO) / Returning Officer (RO). 
This will enable the ARO / RO to find an alternative polling station and designate a 
new polling place at the same time, speeding up the process and allowing the 
election planning to continue unimpeded.  

 
  
 Polling Stations 
  
2.12 A Polling Station is the room or building where the process of voting takes place and 

must be located within the polling place designated for the polling district.  The 
function of appointing polling stations is the responsibility of the (Acting) Returning 
Officer for Parliamentary elections and the Returning Officer for local government 
elections. 

 
3.  Consultation 
 
3.1 Representations have been invited on the Polling District Scheme and current polling 

places / stations. The consultation was included on the Council website, sent out via 
Keep Me Posted, and posters sent to the town and parish clerks for display on their 
noticeboards.  

 
3.2 In addition to consulting elected representatives, the Acting Returning Officers for the 

current Parliamentary Constituencies of Dover and of South Thanet, the Acting 
Returning Officer’s for the new Dover and Deal Constituency and the new Herne Bay 
and Sandwich Constituency, local disability groups and local political parties were 
also consulted.  

 
3.3  Appendix 4 shows the responses relevant to the consultation. The only issues to 

come to light from the responses were the positioning of the polling stations for 
Buckland (South) (representation 16), Sandwich (North) (representations 9,13 & 36) 
and Middle Deal (Park) (representation 19), which are the responsibility of the 
(Acting) Returning Officer and not the Council. The ARO response to those 
representations is included in Appendix 4. There was a request to make Sandwich 
one ward and one polling station instead of two (representation 36), but this review 
cannot alter town or parish boundaries and one polling station would not be possible 
under the current maximum figures to attend a polling station to vote as 
recommended by the Electoral Commission.  

 
3.4  There were no negative responses to the original proposals put forward in Appendix 

1 and 2. The final summary of proposed changes can be found at Appendix 5. 
 
4  Identification of Options 

4.1 Option 1:  
(a)  That the current scheme be amended to incorporate all the recommendations 

of the (Acting) Returning Officer (ARO) for the Dover / Dover and Deal 
Parliamentary Constituency (as per the summary at Appendix 5). 

 

19



 (b) That the power to designate polling places is delegated to the relevant ARO / 
RO. This will enable the ARO / RO to find an alternative polling station and 
designate a new polling place at the same time, speeding up the process and 
allowing the election planning to continue unimpeded. 

 
 (c) The Parliamentary Polling Districts and Polling Places be designated as the 

Polling Districts and Polling Places for Local Government Elections. 
 
 Option 1 is the recommended option. 

 

4.2  Option 2:  
(a)  To amend the current scheme in some way to be determined by the 

Committee / Council. 
 
 (b) That the power to designate polling places is delegated to the relevant ARO / 

RO. This will enable the ARO / RO to find an alternative polling station and 
designate a new polling place at the same time, speeding up the process and 
allowing the election planning to continue unimpeded. 

 
 (c) The Parliamentary Polling Districts and Polling Places be designated as the 

Polling Districts and Polling Places for Local Government Elections. 
 

4. Evaluation of Options 

(a) Option 1 is the recommended option as both statutory and non-statutory 
consultees have had the opportunity to comment on the proposals.   

(b) Option 2 is not recommended as any changes proposed would not have been 
included in the consultation process and therefore would have prevented the 
statutory and non-statutory consultees from commenting on the changes. 

5. Resource Implications 
There are no financial implications in designating the Polling Districts however the 
cost of elections will be affected by the number of Polling Stations used.  

6. Appendices 

Appendix 1 – The Current and Proposed Polling District Scheme with the estimated 
Parliamentary electorate and local and Parliamentary turn-out figures. 

Appendix 2 – Maps of the proposed changes to polling district boundaries. 

Appendix 3 – Maps of the existing polling district boundaries.  

Appendix 4 – Responses received to the consultation. 

Appendix 5 – Summary of Proposed Changes 

7. Background Papers 
Representation of the People Act 1983 

20



Electoral Administration Act 2006. 
 Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places (Parliamentary Elections) Regulations 

2006. 
 The Electoral Registration and Administration Act 2013  

 

Contact Officer:  Tracy Gibbs – Electoral Services Manager 

21



Electoral Commission guidance states there should be no 
more than 2,250 electors allocated to vote at each polling 

station

Current 
Constituency District Ward Parish/Parish Ward

Polling 
District 
Letters

Polling District Name(s) Polling Place / Polling Station used at last election    (May 
2023)

Postal 
Voters

Polling 
Station 
Voters

Dover Alkham & Capel-le-Ferne Alkham Parish PAK Alkham Alkham Village Hall, Hogbrook Hill, Alkham, Dover 107 480 587 58% 28%
Dover Alkham & Capel-le-Ferne Capel-le-Ferne Parish PCF Capel-le-Ferne Capel-Le-Ferne Village Hall (Small Hall), Lancaster Avenue, Capel-

Le-Ferne, Folkestone, 331 1,329 1,660 55% 18%

Dover Alkham & Capel-le-Ferne Hougham Without Parish PHM Hougham Hougham Village Hall, West Hougham, Dover 67 313 380 61% 20%
Aylesham Baptist Free Church, Dorman Avenue South, Aylesham

210 1,943 2,153 51% 20%

St Finbarr`s Church, Market Place, Aylesham, Kent 272 1,879 2,151 52% 21%
Dover Aylesham, Eythorne & Shepherdswell Eythorne Parish/Eythorne Ward / Barfestone 

Ward
PEX1,PEX2 Eythorne, Barfrestone Eythorne Baptist Church Hall, Chapel Hill, Eythorne, Dover, Kent

251 1,000 1,251 55% 20%

Dover Aylesham, Eythorne & Shepherdswell Eythorne Parish/ Elvington Ward PEX3 Elvington Elvington Community Centre, St John`s Road, Elvington, Dover, 
Kent 113 548 661 40% 18%

Dover Aylesham, Eythorne & Shepherdswell Nonington Parish PNN Nonington Nonington Village Hall, Easole Street, Nonington, Dover 87 569 656 53% 24%
Dover Aylesham, Eythorne & Shepherdswell Shepherdswell with Coldred Parish/ 

Shepherdswell Ward / Coldred Ward
PSL1,PSL2 Shepherdswell, Coldred Shepherdswell Village Hall, Coxhill, Shepherdswell

307 1,195 1,502 58% 24%

Dover Buckland Dover Town/Buckland Ward BC1 Buckland (North) Buckland Community Centre, Roosevelt Road, Dover 338 2,075 2,413 41% 12%
Dover Buckland Dover Town/Buckland Ward BC2 Buckland (South) The Phoenix Railway Social Club, Crabble Road, Dover 518 2,132 2,650 45% 11%
Dover Dover Downs & River Denton with Wootton Parish PDD Denton Denton Village Hall, The Street, Denton 16 134 150 65% 32%
Dover Dover Downs & River Denton with Wootton Parish PDW Wootton Wootton Village Hall, Wootton Lane, Wootton 10 140 150 66% 44%
Dover Dover Downs & River Lydden Parish PLN Lydden Lydden Village Hall, 83 Canterbury Road, Lydden, Dover 96 500 596 64% 31%

River Village Hall, Common Lane, River, Dover, Kent 330 1,285 1,615 57% 25%
River Village Hall, Common Lane, River, Dover, Kent 296 1,077 1,373 54% 22%

Dover Dover Downs & River Temple Ewell Parish PTE Temple Ewell Temple Ewell Village Hall, 187 London Road, Temple Ewell, Dover
248 1,122 1,370 58% 23%

Dover Eastry Rural Eastry Parish PEA Eastry Eastry Village Hall, High Street, Eastry, Sandwich, Kent 291 1,595 1,886 58% 25%
Dover Eastry Rural Northbourne Parish PNR Northbourne Northbourne Parish Hall, The Drove, Northbourne 93 470 563 60% 31%
Dover Eastry Rural Sholden Parish/ Sholden Ward PSHE Eastry Rural (Sholden) Scout H.Q., The Street, Sholden, Deal 118 684 802 61% 30%
Dover Eastry Rural Sutton Parish PSU Sutton Sutton Parish Community Centre, Downs Road, East Studdal, 

Dover 105 503 608 60% 26%

Dover Eastry Rural Tilmanstone Parish PTI Tilmanstone Tilmanstone Village Hall, Chapel Road, Tilmanstone, Deal 49 232 281 62% 38%

South Thanet Eastry Rural Worth Parish/Village Ward TWR1 Eastry Rural (Worth Village) Worth Parish Hall, The Street, Worth, Deal 90 564 654 Data not held by 
DDC 29%

Dover Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-
Cliffe

Great Mongeham  Parish PGM Great Mongeham Great Mongeham Parish Hall, 170 Mongeham Road, Deal
100 475 575 59% 28%

Dover Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-
Cliffe

Guston Parish PGS Guston Burgoyne Heights Community Centre, Burgoyne Heights, Guston, 
Dover 113 518 631 53% 22%

Dover Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-
Cliffe

Langdon Parish PLG East Langdon East Langdon Parish Hall, The Street, East Langdon, Dover
96 380 476 58% 25%

Dover Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-
Cliffe

Ringwould with Kingsdown Parish PRG Ringwould Ringwould Village Hall, Dover Road, Ringwould, Deal
63 261 324 57% 23%

Dover Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-
Cliffe

Ringwould with Kingsdown Parish PRK Kingsdown Kingsdown & Ringwould CE School, Glen Road, Kingsdown, Deal
312 985 1,297 58% 32%

Dover Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-
Cliffe

Ripple Parish PRP Ripple Ripple Village Hall, Sutton Road, Ripple, Deal
41 255 296 60% 23%

Dover Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-
Cliffe

St Margaret's-at-Cliffe Parish PSM St Margaret's-at-Cliffe St Margaret`s-At-Cliffe Village Hall, Reach Road, St Margaret`s -At- 
Cliffe 480 1,640 2,120 58% 25%

St Martin`s Church Hall, Church Road, Dover 286 1,221 1,507 50% 19%
St Martin`s Church Hall, Church Road, Dover 243 1,153 1,396 51% 21%

Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places (Parliamentary Elections) Regulations 2006

Eligible Electorate 
Breakdown Polling Station                                       

%  turnout  
parliamentary  
Dec 2019

Polling Station  
%  turnout        
local elections 
May 2023

Total eligible 
electorate

Current Polling District / Polling Place Scheme

PAY Aylesham

BME Maxton & Elms Vale

PRV River

Aylesham ParishAylesham, Eythorne & ShepherdswellDover

Dover Dover Downs & River River Parish

Dover Maxton & Elms Vale Dover Town /Maxton and Elms Vale Ward

22



Electoral Commission guidance states there should be no 
more than 2,250 electors allocated to vote at each polling 

station

Current 
Constituency District Ward Parish/Parish Ward

Polling 
District 
Letters

Polling District Name(s) Polling Place / Polling Station used at last election    (May 
2023)

Postal 
Voters

Polling 
Station 
Voters

Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places (Parliamentary Elections) Regulations 2006

Eligible Electorate 
Breakdown Polling Station                                       

%  turnout  
parliamentary  
Dec 2019

Polling Station  
%  turnout        
local elections 
May 2023

Total eligible 
electorate

Current Polling District / Polling Place Scheme

Dover Middle Deal Deal Town/Middle Deal Ward AMD1 Middle Deal (Manor) Deal Christian Fellowship Hall, Sutherland Road, Deal 412 1,652 2,064 54% 28%
Dover Middle Deal Deal Town/Middle Deal Ward AMD2 Middle Deal (Park) Linwood Youth Centre, Victoria Park, Park Avenue, Deal 229 1,265 1,494 50% 20%
Dover Middle Deal Deal Town/Middle Deal Ward AMD3 Middle Deal (Upper) Warden House School, Birdwood Avenue, Deal 221 1,075 1,296 51% 21%
Dover Middle Deal Sholden Parish/Hyton Ward PSHM Middle Deal (Hyton) Warden House School, Birdwood Avenue, Deal 118 554 672 52% 14%
Dover Mill Hill Deal Town/Mill Hill Ward AMH1 Mill Hill (South) Deal Pentecostal Church, 69 Mill Hill, Deal, Kent 334 1,880 2,214 50% 21%
Dover Mill Hill Deal Town/Mill Hill Ward AMH2 Mill Hill (North) The Godric Centre, Rear of St John`s R C Church, St Richard`s 

Road, Deal 272 1,134 1,406 53% 25%

Dover Mill Hill Deal Town/Mill Hill Ward AMH3 Mill Hill (West) The Sports Centre, Off Cavell Square, Deal 443 1,741 2,184 45% 19%
Dover North Deal Deal Town/North Deal Ward / Sholden Parish/ 

Tenants Hill Ward
AN1,PSHN North Deal (Sandown), North Deal 

(Tenants Hill)
The Golf Road Centre, 28 Golf Road, Deal, Kent 300 1,677 1,977 52% 25%

Dover North Deal Deal Town/North Deal Ward AN2 North Deal (St Andrews) Cleary Hall, Landmark Centre, 129 High Street, Deal 372 1,360 1,732 56% 29%
Dover North Deal Deal Town/North Deal Ward AN3 North Deal (Victoria) Salvation Army Hall, 56 West Street, Deal, Kent 210 934 1,144 54% 27%
Dover North Deal Walmer Parish/Gladstone Ward AW4N North Deal (Gladstone) Walmer Sea Scout Hall, Marine Road, Walmer, Deal, Kent 146 611 757 54% 29%
Dover St Radigund's Dover Town/St Radigund's Ward BR1 St Radigund's (West) St Radigunds Community Centre, Poulton Close, Dover, Kent 185 1,443 1,628 31% 11%
Dover St Radigund's Dover Town/St Radigund's Ward BR2 St Radigund's (East) ACF Hall, London Road, Dover, Kent 261 1,248 1,509 39% 10%
Dover St Radigund's Dover Town/St Radigund's Ward BR3 St Radigund's (Town) Dover Baptist Church Hall, 27-32 Maison Dieu Road, Dover 170 948 1,118 46% 18%
Dover Tower Hamlets Dover Town/Tower Hamlets Ward BTH1 Tower Hamlets (West) One Church, Noah`s Ark Road, Dover, Kent 125 974 1,099 42% 15%
Dover Tower Hamlets Dover Town/Tower Hamlets Ward BTH2 Tower Hamlets (East) Curzon Hall, Curzon Road, Dover 217 1,338 1,555 44% 13%
Dover Town & Castle Dover Town/Town and Castle Ward BT1 Town & Castle (Priory) Clarendon and Westbury Community Centre, Belgrave Road, 

Dover 291 1,895 2,186 44% 15%

Dover Town & Castle DoverTown /Town and Castle Ward BT2 Town & Castle (Castle) St Mary`s Parish Centre, Dieu Stone Lane, Dover 323 1,369 1,692 45% 19%
Dover Town & Castle Dover Town/Town and Castle Ward BT3 Town & Castle (Aycliffe) Aycliffe Community Primary School, St Davids Avenue, Aycliffe, 

Dover, Kent 131 732 863 48% 15%

Dover Town & Castle Dover Town/Town and Castle Ward BT4 Town & Castle (Redoubt) Dover Unitarian Church Hall, Adrian Street, Dover, Kent 82 441 523 38% 14%
Dover Walmer Walmer Parish/Upper Walmer Ward AW1 Walmer (Upper Walmer) Walmer Chapel (Rear Hall), 30 Station Road, Walmer, Deal 445 1,690 2,135 57% 27%
Dover Walmer Walmer Parish/Wellington Ward AW2 Walmer (Wellington) Walmer Parish Hall, Dover Road, Walmer, Deal 451 1,854 2,305 57% 26%
Dover Walmer Walmer Parish/St Saviour's Ward AW3 Walmer (St Saviour's) St Saviour`s Church, The Strand, Walmer, Deal 235 997 1,232 58% 33%
Dover Whitfield Dover Town/Buckland Ward BCW1 Whitfield (Rokesley) Dover Christ Church Academy, Melbourne Avenue, Whitfield, 

Dover, Kent 77 355 432 32% 6%

Whitfield Village Hall, Sandwich Road, Whitfield, Dover 436 1,567 2,003 53% 18%
Whitfield Village Hall, Sandwich Road, Whitfield, Dover 356 1,494 1,850 56% 18%

Dover Whitfield Whitfield Parish PWH2 Whitfield (South) Dover Christ Church Academy, Melbourne Avenue, Whitfield, 
Dover, Kent 138 705 843 43% 11%

South Thanet Little Stour & Ashstone Ash Parish TAS Ash Ash Village Hall - Main Hall, Queens Road, Ash, Canterbury 374 2,220 2,594 Data not held by 
DDC 21%

South Thanet Little Stour & Ashstone Goodnestone Parish TGD Goodnestone Goodnestone Village Hall, The Street, Goodnestone, Canterbury 45 264 309 Data not held by 
DDC 32%

South Thanet Little Stour & Ashstone Preston Parish TPR Preston Preston Village Hall, Mill Lane, Preston, Canterbury 105 621 726 Data not held by 
DDC 24%

South Thanet Little Stour & Ashstone Staple Parish TSP Staple Staple Village Hall, Mill Road, Staple, Canterbury 69 384 453 Data not held by 
DDC 34%

South Thanet Little Stour & Ashstone Stourmouth Parish TST Stourmouth The Rising Sun Inn, The Street, East Stourmouth 23 204 227 Data not held by 
DDC 31%

South Thanet Little Stour & Ashstone Wingham Parish TWG Wingham Wingham Village Hall, School Lane, Wingham, Canterbury 221 1,155 1,376 Data not held by 
DDC 26%

PWH1 Whitfield (North)Dover Whitfield Whitfield Parish

23



Electoral Commission guidance states there should be no 
more than 2,250 electors allocated to vote at each polling 

station

Current 
Constituency District Ward Parish/Parish Ward

Polling 
District 
Letters

Polling District Name(s) Polling Place / Polling Station used at last election    (May 
2023)

Postal 
Voters

Polling 
Station 
Voters

Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places (Parliamentary Elections) Regulations 2006

Eligible Electorate 
Breakdown Polling Station                                       

%  turnout  
parliamentary  
Dec 2019

Polling Station  
%  turnout        
local elections 
May 2023

Total eligible 
electorate

Current Polling District / Polling Place Scheme

South Thanet Sandwich Sandwich Town/Sandwich North Ward / Worth 
Parish/Sandwich Bay Ward

TSA,TWR2 Sandwich (North), Sandwich 
(Sandwich Bay)

Sandwich United Reformed Church, 12 Cattle Market, Sandwich, 
Kent 424 1,753 2,177 Data not held by 

DDC 30%

South Thanet Sandwich Sandwich Town/Sandwich South Ward TSB Sandwich (South) The Jubilee Centre, Jubilee Road, Sandwich 316 1,700 2,016 Data not held by 
DDC 22%

South Thanet Sandwich Woodnesborough Parish TWN Woodnesborough Woodnesborough Village Hall, Elmwood Park, Woodnesborough, 
Sandwich, Kent 132 876 1,008 Data not held by 

DDC 28%

24



Electoral Commission guidance states there should be no more 
than 2,250 electors allocated to vote at each polling station

Current 
Constituency

Future 
Constituency District Ward Parish/Parish Ward

Polling 
District 
Letters 

(Current)

Polling 
District 
Letters 

(Amended)

Polling District Name(s) 
(New)

Polling Place / Polling Station used at last election    (May 
2023)

Postal 
Voters

Polling 
Station 
Voters

Total 
eligible 

electorate

Dover Dover & Deal Alkham & Capel-le-Ferne Alkham Parish PAK PAK Alkham Alkham Village Hall, Hogbrook Hill, Alkham, Dover
107 480 587

Dover Dover & Deal Alkham & Capel-le-Ferne Capel-le-Ferne Parish PCF PCF Capel-le-Ferne Capel-Le-Ferne Village Hall (Small Hall), Lancaster Avenue, 
Capel-Le-Ferne, Folkestone, Kent 331 1,329 1,660

Dover Dover & Deal Alkham & Capel-le-Ferne Hougham Without Parish PHM PHM Hougham Hougham Village Hall, West Hougham, Dover
67 313 380

PAY1 Aylesham (West) Aylesham Baptist Free Church, Dorman Avenue South, Aylesham 
(electorate numbers are likely to change once split finalised) 210 1,943 2,153

PAY2 Aylesham (East) St Finbarr`s Church, Market Place, Aylesham, Kent (electorate 
numbers are likely to change once split finalised) 272 1,879 2,151

Dover Dover & Deal Aylesham, Eythorne & Shepherdswell Eythorne Parish/Eythorne Ward / Barfestone 
Ward

PEX1, PEX2 PEX1,PEX2 Eythorne, Barfrestone Eythorne Baptist Church Hall, Chapel Hill, Eythorne, Dover, Kent
251 1,000 1,251

Dover Dover & Deal Aylesham, Eythorne & Shepherdswell Eythorne Parish/ Elvington Ward PEX3 PEX3 Elvington Elvington Community Centre, St John`s Road, Elvington, Dover, 
Kent 113 548 661

Dover Dover & Deal Aylesham, Eythorne & Shepherdswell Nonington Parish PNN PNN Nonington Nonington Village Hall, Easole Street, Nonington, Dover
87 569 656

Dover Dover & Deal Aylesham, Eythorne & Shepherdswell Shepherdswell with Coldred 
Parish/Shepherdswell Ward / Coldred Ward

PSL1, PSL2 PSL1,PSL2 Shepherdswell, Coldred Shepherdswell Village Hall, Coxhill, Shepherdswell
307 1,195 1,502

Dover Dover & Deal Buckland Dover Town/Buckland Ward BC1 BC1 Buckland (North) Buckland Community Centre, Roosevelt Road, Dover
338 2,075 2,413

Dover Dover & Deal Buckland Dover Town/Buckland Ward BC2 BC2 Buckland (South) The Phoenix Railway Social Club, Crabble Road, Dover
518 2,132 2,650

Dover Dover & Deal Dover Downs & River Denton with Wootton Parish PDD PDD Denton Denton Village Hall, The Street, Denton
16 134 150

Dover Dover & Deal Dover Downs & River Denton with Wootton Parish PDW PDW Wootton Wootton Village Hall, Wootton Lane, Wootton
10 140 150

Dover Dover & Deal Dover Downs & River Lydden Parish PLN PLN Lydden Lydden Village Hall, 83 Canterbury Road, Lydden, Dover
96 500 596

River Village Hall, Common Lane, River, Dover, Kent
330 1,285 1,615

River Village Hall, Common Lane, River, Dover, Kent
296 1,077 1,373

Dover Dover & Deal Dover Downs & River Temple Ewell Parish PTE PTE Temple Ewell Temple Ewell Village Hall, 187 London Road, Temple Ewell, 
Dover 248 1,122 1,370

Dover Dover & Deal Eastry Rural Eastry Parish PEA PEA Eastry Eastry Village Hall, High Street, Eastry, Sandwich, Kent
291 1,595 1,886

Dover Dover & Deal Eastry Rural Northbourne Parish PNR PNR Northbourne Northbourne Parish Hall, The Drove, Northbourne
93 470 563

Dover Dover & Deal Eastry Rural Sholden Parish/ Sholden Ward PSHE PSHE Eastry Rural (Sholden) Scout H.Q., The Street, Sholden, Deal
118 684 802

Dover Dover & Deal Eastry Rural Sutton Parish PSU PSU Sutton Sutton Parish Community Centre, Downs Road, East Studdal, 
Dover 105 503 608

Dover Dover & Deal Eastry Rural Tilmanstone Parish PTI PTI Tilmanstone Tilmanstone Village Hall, Chapel Road, Tilmanstone, Deal
49 232 281

South Thanet Dover & Deal Eastry Rural Worth Parish/Village Ward TWR1 PWR Eastry Rural (Worth Village) Worth Parish Hall, The Street, Worth, Deal
90 564 654

Dover Dover & Deal Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-Cliffe Great Mongeham  Parish PGM PGM Great Mongeham Great Mongeham Parish Hall, 170 Mongeham Road, Deal
100 475 575

Dover Dover & Deal Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-Cliffe Guston Parish PGS PGS Guston Burgoyne Heights Community Centre, Burgoyne Heights, Guston, 
Dover 113 518 631

Dover Dover & Deal Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-Cliffe Langdon Parish PLG PLG East Langdon East Langdon Parish Hall, The Street, East Langdon, Dover
96 380 476

Dover

Dover

Eligible Electorate 
BreakdownProposed Polling District / Polling Places Scheme Changes marked in red

Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places (Parliamentary Elections) Regulations 2006

PAY

PRV PRV

Dover & Deal Aylesham, Eythorne & Shepherdswell Aylesham Parish

Dover & Deal Dover Downs & River River Parish River

25



Electoral Commission guidance states there should be no more 
than 2,250 electors allocated to vote at each polling station

Current 
Constituency

Future 
Constituency District Ward Parish/Parish Ward

Polling 
District 
Letters 

(Current)

Polling 
District 
Letters 

(Amended)

Polling District Name(s) 
(New)

Polling Place / Polling Station used at last election    (May 
2023)

Postal 
Voters

Polling 
Station 
Voters

Total 
eligible 

electorate

Eligible Electorate 
BreakdownProposed Polling District / Polling Places Scheme Changes marked in red

Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places (Parliamentary Elections) Regulations 2006

Dover Dover & Deal Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-Cliffe Ringwould with Kingsdown Parish PRG PRG Ringwould Ringwould Village Hall, Dover Road, Ringwould, Deal
63 261 324

Dover Dover & Deal Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-Cliffe Ringwould with Kingsdown Parish PRK PRK Kingsdown Kingsdown & Ringwould CE School, Glen Road, Kingsdown, Deal
312 985 1,297

Dover Dover & Deal Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-Cliffe Ripple Parish PRP PRP Ripple Ripple Village Hall, Sutton Road, Ripple, Deal
41 255 296

Dover Dover & Deal Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-Cliffe St Margaret's-at-Cliffe Parish PSM PSM St Margaret's-at-Cliffe St Margaret`s-At-Cliffe Village Hall, Reach Road, St Margaret`s -At- 
Cliffe 480 1,640 2,120

St Martin`s Church Hall, Church Road, Dover
286 1,221 1,507

St Martin`s Church Hall, Church Road, Dover
243 1,153 1,396

Dover Dover & Deal Middle Deal Deal Town/Middle Deal Ward AMD1 AMD1 Middle Deal (Manor) Deal Christian Fellowship Hall, Sutherland Road, Deal
412 1,652 2,064

Dover Dover & Deal Middle Deal Deal Town/Middle Deal Ward AMD2 AMD2 Middle Deal (Park) Linwood Youth Centre, Victoria Park, Park Avenue, Deal
229 1,265 1,494

Dover Dover & Deal Middle Deal Deal Town/Middle Deal Ward AMD3 AMD3 Middle Deal (Upper) Warden House School, Birdwood Avenue, Deal
221 1,075 1,296

Dover Dover & Deal Middle Deal Sholden Parish/Hyton Ward PSHM PSHM Middle Deal (Hyton) Warden House School, Birdwood Avenue, Deal
118 554 672

Dover Dover & Deal Mill Hill Deal Town/Mill Hill Ward AMH1 AMH1 Mill Hill (South) Deal Pentecostal Church, 69 Mill Hill, Deal, Kent
334 1,880 2,214

Dover Dover & Deal Mill Hill Deal Town/Mill Hill Ward AMH2 AMH2 Mill Hill (North) The Godric Centre, Rear of St John`s R C Church, St Richard`s 
Road, Deal 272 1,134 1,406

Dover Dover & Deal Mill Hill Deal Town/Mill Hill Ward AMH3 AMH3 Mill Hill (West) The Sports Centre, Off Cavell Square, Deal
443 1,741 2,184

Dover Dover & Deal North Deal Deal Town/North Deal Ward / Sholden 
Parish/ Tenants Hill Ward

AN1,PSHN AN1,PSHN North Deal (Sandown), 
North Deal (Tenants Hill)

The Golf Road Centre, 28 Golf Road, Deal, Kent
300 1,677 1,977

Dover Dover & Deal North Deal Deal Town/North Deal Ward AN2 AN2 North Deal (St Andrews) Cleary Hall, Landmark Centre, 129 High Street, Deal
372 1,360 1,732

Dover Dover & Deal North Deal Deal Town/North Deal Ward AN3 AN3 North Deal (Victoria) Salvation Army Hall, 56 West Street, Deal, Kent
210 934 1,144

Dover Dover & Deal North Deal Walmer Parish/Gladstone Ward AW4N AW4N North Deal (Gladstone) Walmer Sea Scout Hall, Marine Road, Walmer, Deal, Kent
146 611 757

Dover Dover & Deal St Radigund's Dover Town/St Radigund's Ward BR1 BR1 St Radigund's (West) St Radigunds Community Centre, Poulton Close, Dover, Kent
185 1,443 1,628

Dover Dover & Deal St Radigund's Dover Town/St Radigund's Ward BR2 BR2 St Radigund's (East) ACF Hall, London Road, Dover, Kent
261 1,248 1,509

Dover Dover & Deal St Radigund's Dover Town/St Radigund's Ward BR3 BR3 St Radigund's (Town) Dover Baptist Church Hall, 27-32 Maison Dieu Road, Dover
170 948 1,118

Dover Dover & Deal Tower Hamlets Dover Town/Tower Hamlets Ward BTH1 BTH1 Tower Hamlets (West) One Church, Noah`s Ark Road, Dover, Kent
125 974 1,099

Dover Dover & Deal Tower Hamlets Dover Town/Tower Hamlets Ward BTH2 BTH2 Tower Hamlets (East) Curzon Hall, Curzon Road, Dover
217 1,338 1,555

Dover Dover & Deal Town & Castle Dover Town/Town and Castle Ward BT1 BT1 Town & Castle (Priory) Clarendon and Westbury Community Centre, Belgrave Road, 
Dover 291 1,895 2,186

Dover Dover & Deal Town & Castle DoverTown /Town and Castle Ward BT2 BT2 Town & Castle (Castle) St Mary`s Parish Centre, Dieu Stone Lane, Dover
323 1,369 1,692

Dover Dover & Deal Town & Castle Dover Town/Town and Castle Ward BT3 BT3 Town & Castle (Aycliffe) Aycliffe Community Primary School, St Davids Avenue, Aycliffe, 
Dover 131 732 863

Dover Dover & Deal Town & Castle Dover Town/Town and Castle Ward BT4 BT4 Town & Castle (Redoubt) Dover Unitarian Church Hall, Adrian Street, Dover, Kent
82 441 523

Dover BME BMEDover & Deal Maxton & Elms Vale Dover Town /Maxton and Elms Vale Ward Maxton & Elms Vale

26



Electoral Commission guidance states there should be no more 
than 2,250 electors allocated to vote at each polling station

Current 
Constituency

Future 
Constituency District Ward Parish/Parish Ward

Polling 
District 
Letters 

(Current)

Polling 
District 
Letters 

(Amended)

Polling District Name(s) 
(New)

Polling Place / Polling Station used at last election    (May 
2023)

Postal 
Voters

Polling 
Station 
Voters

Total 
eligible 

electorate

Eligible Electorate 
BreakdownProposed Polling District / Polling Places Scheme Changes marked in red

Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places (Parliamentary Elections) Regulations 2006

Dover Dover & Deal Walmer Walmer Parish/Upper Walmer Ward AW1 AW1 Walmer (Upper Walmer) Walmer Chapel (Rear Hall), 30 Station Road, Walmer, Deal
445 1,690 2,135

Dover Dover & Deal Walmer Walmer Parish/Wellington Ward AW2 AW2 Walmer (Wellington) Walmer Parish Hall, Dover Road, Walmer, Deal
451 1,854 2,305

Dover Dover & Deal Walmer Walmer Parish/St Saviour's Ward AW3 AW3 Walmer (St Saviour's) St Saviour`s Church, The Strand, Walmer, Deal
235 997 1,232

Dover Dover & Deal Whitfield Dover Town/Buckland Ward BCW1 BCW1 Whitfield (Rokesley) Dover Christ Church Academy, Melbourne Avenue, Whitfield, 
Dover, Kent 77 355 432

Whitfield Village Hall, Sandwich Road, Whitfield, Dover
436 1,567 2,003

Whitfield Village Hall, Sandwich Road, Whitfield, Dover
356 1,494 1,850

Dover Dover & Deal Whitfield Whitfield Parish PWH2 PWH2 Whitfield (South) Dover Christ Church Academy, Melbourne Avenue, Whitfield, 
Dover, Kent 138 705 843

Ash Village Hall - Main Hall, Queens Road, Ash, Canterbury
1,110

Ash Village Hall - Main Hall, Queens Road, Ash, Canterbury  
(polling station figures are estimates of the split) 1,110

South Thanet Herne Bay & 
Sandwich

Little Stour & Ashstone Goodnestone Parish TGD XGD Goodnestone Goodnestone Village Hall, The Street, Goodnestone, Canterbury
45 264 309

South Thanet Herne Bay & 
Sandwich

Little Stour & Ashstone Preston Parish TPR XPR Preston Preston Village Hall, Mill Lane, Preston, Canterbury
105 621 726

South Thanet Herne Bay & 
Sandwich

Little Stour & Ashstone Staple Parish TSP XSP Staple Staple Village Hall, Mill Road, Staple, Canterbury
69 384 453

South Thanet Herne Bay & 
Sandwich

Little Stour & Ashstone Stourmouth Parish TST XST Stourmouth The Rising Sun Inn, The Street, East Stourmouth
23 204 227

South Thanet Herne Bay & 
Sandwich

Little Stour & Ashstone Wingham Parish TWG XWG Wingham Wingham Village Hall, School Lane, Wingham, Canterbury
221 1,155 1,376

South Thanet Herne Bay & 
Sandwich

Sandwich Sandwich Town/Sandwich North Ward / 
Worth Parish/Sandwich Bay Ward

TSA,TWR2 XSA,XWR Sandwich (North), Sandwich 
(Sandwich Bay)

Sandwich United Reformed Church, 12 Cattle Market, Sandwich, 
Kent 424 1,753 2,177

South Thanet Herne Bay & 
Sandwich

Sandwich Sandwich Town/Sandwich South Ward TSB XSB Sandwich (South) The Jubilee Centre, Jubilee Road, Sandwich
316 1,700 2,016

South Thanet Herne Bay & 
Sandwich

Sandwich Woodnesborough Parish TWN XWN Woodnesborough Woodnesborough Village Hall, Elmwood Park, Woodnesborough
132 876 1,008

Dover

South Thanet TAS XAS 374 2,594

PWH1 PWH1

AshAsh ParishHerne Bay & 
Sandwich Little Stour & Ashstone

Dover & Deal Whitfield Whitfield Parish Whitfield (North)

27



Dover District Council 

Polling District and Polling Places 

Review 2023 

Proposed Changes to Polling District Boundaries 

Page 1
28



Table of Contents 
All existing Polling District Boundaries remain unchanged except for the 

following proposed changes: 

PAY1 and 
PAY2 

Aylesham, West; and 
Aylesham, East 

3 

PAY1 and 
PAY2 

Aylesham, West; and 
Aylesham, East – 
Further Detail 

4 

Page 2
29



Page 3

30



Existing Polling District Boundary (PAY)

Proposed split, creating PAY1 and PAY2

Page 4

31

Glenn.Burdett
Rectangle

Glenn.Burdett_1
Rectangle



Dover District Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Polling District and Polling Places 
Review 2023 

 
Existing Polling District Boundaries 

 
 
 

Page 1
32



Table of Contents 

AMD1 Middle Deal, Manor 3 

AMD2 Middle Deal, Park 4 

AMD3 Middle Deal, Upper 5 

AMH1 Mill Hill, South 6 

AMH2 Mill Hill, North 7 

AMH3 Mill Hill, West 8 

AN1 North Deal, Sandown 9 

AN2 North Deal, St Andrew`s 10 

AN3 North Deal, Victoria 11 

AW1 Walmer, Upper Walmer 12 

AW2 Walmer, Wellington 13 

AW3 Walmer, St Saviour`s 14 

AW4N North Deal, Gladstone 15 

BC1 Buckland, North 16 

BC2 Buckland, South 17 

BCW1 Whitfield Rokesley 18 

BME Maxton and Elms Vale 19 

BR1 St Radigund`s, West 20 

BR2 St Radigund`s, East 21 

BR3 St Radigund`s, Town 22 

BT1 Town and Castle, Priory 23 

BT2 Town and Castle, Castle 24 

BT3 Town and Castle, Aycliffe 25 

BT4 Town and Castle, Redoubt 26 

BTH1 & 
BTH2 

Tower Hamlets, West & 
East 

27 

PAK Alkham 28 

PAY Aylesham 29 

PCF Capel-Le-Ferne 30 

PDD Denton 31 

PDW Wootton 32 

PEA Eastry 33 

PEX1,2 & 
3 

Eythorne, Barfrestone & 
Elvington 

34 

PGM Great Mongeham 35 

PGS Guston 36 

PHM Hougham Without 37 

PLG Langdon 38 

PLN Lydden 39 

PNN Nonington 40 

PNR Northbourne 41 

PRG Ringwould 42 

PRK Kingsdown 43 

PRP Ripple 44 

PRV River 45 

PSHE Eastry Rural, Sholden 46 

PSHM Middle Deal, Hyton 47 

PSHN North Deal, Tenants Hill 48 

PSL1&2 Shepherdswell and Coldred 49 

PSM St Margaret`s-At-Cliffe 50 

PSU Sutton 51 

PTE Temple Ewell 52 

PTI Tilmanstone 53 

PWH1 Whitfield, North 54 

PWH2 Whitfield, South 55 

TAS Ash 56 

TGD Goodnestone 57 

TPR Preston 58 

TSA Sandwich, North 59 

TSB Sandwich, South 60 

TSP Staple 61 

TST Stourmouth 62 

TWG Wingham 63 

TWN Woodnesborough 64 

TWR1 Eastry Rural, Worth Village 65 

TWR2 Sandwich, Sandwich Bay 66 

Page 2
33



Community 34

1

36

25a

Dra
in

2

25b

10to12

21

1889

27
23

7

Centre

FB

4

32

62

14

Drain

Arsenal

20

25

Terrace

17a

24

1.9m

2

24

4

Sandown

55

38

17

3314

1a

10

G
O

LF R
O

A
D

109

G
arage

37

43

17

27

5

86

62

1

3.8m

115

19

7

113

15

WEST LEA

11

19
11

32

19a

30

53

27

63

49

1.1m

60

7

ENFIELD ROAD

35
a

106

12

The Old Timberyard Terrace

57

110

49

61

3

72

76

84a

47

GRAYLEN CLOSE

LEA

31

26

77

1

Drain

21

48

Drai
n

OUTDOWNS

20

Drain

1.2m

Dr
ain

2

Drai
n

4

35

CD

D
rain

Drain

7

Dr
ain

Dr
ain

70

40

1.7m

LOWER MILL LANE

31

23

13

6.0m

1.3m

Drain

Drain

10
6

Penfield Sewer

51

7.0m

1.3m

43

LB

86

Station

White Lodge

Pine

10
0

48

LI
ST

ER
 C

LO
SE

32

1

2

Court

HYTON DRIVE

18

Dr
ai

n

13

23

3

60

98

11
0

10
2

6to16

35

111

17

131

CORNFIELD ROW

Lodge

50

13

BIRDWOOD AVENUE

3

25

49

20

33

29

4

21

45

5.2m

12

30

1

7.5m

73

344

18

10

76

1 to 11

99

House

66

23

22

2

61

96

80

SWIFT

210

57

CRESCENT

2

62

13
 to

 18

50 to 60

43

51

6

Nursery
Childrens

44

312

349

74

1

4

16

2

DELANE ROAD

216

20

16

13 to 18

27

74

91

El Sub

31

1

65

M
O

U
N

TS C
LO

SE

67

GRANTHAM AVENUE

34

27

212

13

343

55

11

302

11

Def

1

23

8

Stuart

ABBEY CLOSE

6

29

9

Dr
ain

1 t
o 6

31

Edinburgh House

SHERON CLOSE

Dra
in

10

18

14

13

Drain

Dra
in

Tudor H
ouse

7

7

46

64

39

Holme

16

0.9m

6

15

2

The

Pond

W
indsor House

12

1

1

Cornwall House

1a

FB

Court

Dr
ai

n

55
63

The Old Cottage

1

The Mews

CD

1.0m

Walnut

H
O

PE
 R

O
A

D

32

Lancaster House

3

1

Drain

21

66

33

DIANA GARDENS

15

Rush

31

Stretton

Wellesley

43

9a

6

6

1

26

23

73

61

9a

10

80

1

23

41

STANHOPE ROAD

El Sub Sta

Dr
ai

n

35

22

13

1a

Dr
ai

n

the Retired

1

Sorting Office

House

3

16 to 20

4.7m

17a

1a

7

5

71

5

87
a

1

QUEEN STREET

GODWYN ROAD

8

41

10

6

10

1

Cottage

14

26

VER
N

O
N

 PLA
C

E

63
75

PARK STREET

196

7

16
5

21

4

65

6

41 to 52

LB

17
1

15
7

69a

3

14

2

DRIVE

9

41

124

2

5

B
ETH

A
N

Y C
LO

SE

12

3

81

Shingle

3.9m

2

5

16

11

13

17 1

Brewood

52

Prospect

2.7m

10

3

4

7

106

12

29

3

1

7

Park Side

69

SO
UBERG

 CLO
SE 64

29

3.2m

57

3

1

2.9m

9

6

Deal Bowling

2

11

W
AL

CH
ER

EN

2.8m

14

MIDDLE DEAL

19

Hall

House

13

5a

11

5.6m

5 
to

 8

25

1

Services

Fellowship

14

HAROLD ROAD

9

4.0m

VLISSINGEN

3

47 to 51

10

53

14

Dane

77

4

11

83

4

K
IN

G
 ED

W
A

R
D

 R
O

A
D

50

Lio
n

6a

48

12a

Deal

95

2

87

7

2

2

7

2

4

85a

16

Drain

ASTOR DRIVE

Cou
rt

3

23a

54

97

23

4.2m

11

TCB

Club

El Sub Sta

26

23b

10

63

133a

Allotment Gardens

School

1

117

65

46

Secondary

79a

2

14

The Garth

BEECHWOOD COURT

53

1

1

4.6m

72

33

1

LB

4

2

5.2m

3822

25

FB

24

43

Alm
sh

ouse
s

23

8

71

28

82

1

70

C
 Tk

74

64

THE GROVE

101

33

89

COWPER ROAD

34

32

32

11

LO
NDON R

OAD

7

31

2

5

16

29

16

9

50

19

5

13

12

86

36

4a

14

139

38

Fire

5.5m

THE GROVE

119

18

2

145

4083

SUTHERLAND ROAD

37

79

117

107

12
4

96

1

FS

74

111

16

114

15

129

2

51

121

1

85

6.1m

32

98

9

13a

41

20

143

1

4

59

9

12
0

26

41a

22

1310
0

LB

236

21
0a

88

3

6.1m

26

2

44

12
6

12

Station

23

11
2

MID
DLE

 D
EA

L R
OAD

5.7m

32

3

39

29

13
2

125

276

30a

11
8

1

LB

2a

38

116

1

War Meml

88

Hyto
n C

ou
rt

10

2

6

135

13

277

32a

GRANGE ROAD

15

109

1

8

3

12
8

BIRDWOOD AVENUE

10

Posts

18

12

9

3a

21
2

11
2

42

31

DOLA

176

7 to 12

BELV
EDERE G

ARDENS

5

195

2W
ALK

27

16

93

11

8

18

49

34

21
0b

1

15
6

14
4

41

282

46

24
a

27

10

17

6.3m

24

14
2

6.3m

18
8

18
4

20

13

14

5

24

7

5.7m

7

Cou
rt 

Lo
dg

e

6.8m

CLAREMONT ROAD

1

113

Ambulance

46

26

7

MIDDLE DEAL ROAD

137

14

El

ORCHARD AVENUE

Marb
ali

ng

16
0

42

CHURCH PA
TH

22

27a

11

15
2

15

WAY

19
2

9

26

228

22

FENTON

2

20
2

14

15

12

1

HUNTERS

TIMPERLEY CLOSE

AVENUE

30

6

17
2

23

15 8

29

254

7

19
8

215

FO
ST

ER

11

38

14
2a

LB

10

41

1

11

4

WILLIAM PITT AVENUE

FS

8

El Sub Sta

87

229

13

1

BOWLING GREEN LANE

12
0

1

15

Victoria Hospital

6

8

58

59

14

44

9

11
2

Play Area

9

21

9a

64

4

6.9m

19

54

43

Sub Sta

9

Sutto
n Row

16

30

Park Lea

76

37

6

PARK AVENUE

14

Recreation Ground

6.6m

1

Garage

74

6.7m

3

1

14
2

13

1

91

El Sub Sta

47

22
6

23

61

14

37

15
4

6.2m

1

36

26

46

28

66

4

49

40

16
2

2

1

106

33

60

33

12

7

6.5m

55

11

62

29

3

13
2

Cou
rt 

Lo
dg

e

PARK AVENUE

33

16a

6

17

13

Court

27

17

30

12

26

MILL
ROAD

2

23

13

27

15

21

1

33

74

37

2

7

58a

81

HYTON DRIVE

6.7m

9

72

2

8

11

11
4

14
6

1a

13

13

51
145

CHURCH MEADOW
S

31

57

2

PARK AVENUE

96

85

72

45

41

40

28

22

70

3

CHURCH LANE

36

FLETCHERS W
AY

10
3

5.8m

31

Leisure Centre

26

8

29

16

39

51

50

21

14

El Sub Sta

HANCOCKS FIELD

2

62

29

FOX ROAD

Car Park

17

Presbytery

GARDEN CLOSE

35

6

140

CR

33

El Sub Sta

86

1

Posts

N
O

R
TH

C
O

TE R
O

A
D

Und

71

20

57

1

58

LB

74a

TCBs

38

79

17a

11

15

29

19

75

43

6.5m

91

51 to 61

38

16

103

QUEEN STREET

5.5m

81

59

100

Mews

1

48

2

Allotment Gardens

39

4

3.0m

Catholic Church

9

115

72

1

PC

28

59

37

51

1

9

Douglas

6.3m

40 to 44

5.2m

7

10a

6

16

3

32

C
R

Bowling Green

9

30

40

Mews

30
a

39

31

44

BLENHEIM
 RO

AD

52
CR

5.9m

4.8m

FB

96

Gymnastic Club

7.0m

72a

7.2m

9.0m

58

of St Thomas

22

Telephone

Wellington Court

Tennis Courts

BLE
NHEI

M R
OAD

Exchange

1

28

61

12

18

20

87

49

1

11

14

45

94

1

30

PH

54

9

10

14

44

2

11

16

5

HOMEFIELD

36

W
ar

d 
B

dy

43

2

37

15

CP

18

4.9m

16

9

TCB

M
P 

91

1

76

73

41

10

2

Victoria Park

7

3.5m

El Sub Sta

6.2m

6.0m

ROMAN

45

Mast (Telecommunication)

78

65

20

7

11

1

46

M
P 90.75

1

Neville

7

SP

Mews

CR

18

1

Garage

38

22

GRANVILLE STREET

6

89

65

83

Lodge

1 to 32

36

85

Allotment

4.3m

12

68

Q
UEENS M

EW
S

42

2

LONDON ROAD

Shelters

Track

2

CLOSE

10

22c

45

El Sub Sta

126

TCB

54

27

14

DARRACOTT

2

34

155

68

5.2m

GG

34

42a

22b

118

1

20

24

87

87

PH

Shelter

5.4m

39

2

C
LO

SE

60

MIDDLE DEAL ROAD

23

52

82

34

44

5.6m

Sports Courts

26

39

M
P 90.5

4

6

26

53

Play Area

1

81

85

2

PATRICKS

37

5

YO
U

N
G

 C
LO

SE

PH

23

58

1

1

12

12

24

ST DAVID'S ROAD

48

ROAD

31

249

7

9

62

3.3m

53

11

4

LB

LB

41

El Sub Sta

SP

1

1

9

38

55

LC

28

19

Sunnyside Bungalow

128

9

Ho
m

ef
ie

ld
 R

ow

5

5

AVENUE

50

3

88

ST

149

16

87

M
useum

W
ard Bdy

47

LONDON

CENTURY WALK

11
6

67

1

62

28

52

14

5

41

30

1

Car Park

31

15

4a

Drai
n

14

54

53

2.1m

14

32

20

68

Anchor51

3

21

39

W
ard Bdy

46

2

60

BR
ID

G
ES

ID
E

MP 90

2

4

42

Drain

52

Dr
ain

15

33

CLOSE

21

ST GEORGE'S ROAD

4

32

Hall

10

2.2m

48

25

18

Sunnyside Cotts

1

W
ard Bdy

6

45

8

45

4.7m

CR

44

13

4

10

31

67

Drai
n

13

94

51

2.
8m

36
 to

 3
8

Car Park

Drain
42

3a

MATTHEWS CLOSE

14

92

1.9m

34

1

31

49

98

11

23

66

42

FW

66

ALBERT RO
AD

104

FW

Drai
n

17

32

10
69

Dr
ai

n

24

49

Drain

5

32

14

FB

The Bungalow

56

Drain

TCB

6

60

NORTHWALL ROAD

37

W
EST STR

EET

H
IG

H
 STR

EET

Drain

8

3a

61

16

2

7

26

27

4.2m

3b

4.0m

29b

510

7

1

5

1

24

34

38

28a

Dra
in

13

38

SOUTHWALL ROAD

CO
LLEG

E RO
AD

31

FB

60

49

2a

4.9m

LC

30

3.4m

Def

90

CD

120

5

32

1.3m

1

1
112

1

42

Dra
in

6

3 to 8

3.6m

4

85

102

5

21

2

Pond

54

CD

188

Drain

G
arage

12
7

Drain

CD

20
1

Drain

El Sub Sta

Dr
ain

122

Drai
n

1

22

Lawn

93

84

36

MP 89.75

31
a

10

5

19

Sandown School

1

96

19

Drain

Prospect

17
to

20

54

GRIFFIN STREET

10

2

16

5

11

13to16

1.6m

27

Place

2.5m

North Deal Playing Field

2.7m

Drain

Sandown

75

79

14

The

14
4

160

25

PH

2.8m

12

Def

47

7 to 16

20

17

1

St Andrew's

45

2

103

6

10

94

Drain

10

21

22

6

4

19

29

11

House

Cottages

21

Drain

PH

2

8

Ivy Place

30

55

3.3m

Signal Post

Sub

11

4

18

199a

15

21

2.4m

Battersea Cottage

34

14a

154
164

15
 to

 2
0

Hall

14
0

4.9m

31

1

20

42

18

W
ES

TE
RN

 R
OA

D

33

ALFRED SQUARE

Waste Recycling Centre

1 
to

 1
0

14
2

SL

LB

2

2

AV
EN

UE

164

18a

2

2

El

92a

4

13

NELSO
N STREET

111

FW

4

Works

2

ARK LANEPpg Sta

Nursery

158

Vet Surg

13

Sandown

3

17a

11

67

14

4.4m

17

4

Trinity

Forge View

53
3.3m

43

80

7

11

W
esley Hall

12
8

77

102

48

Car Park

47

PETER STREET

7

60

1 
to

 6

50

RO
BERT STREET

El Sub Sta

30

Basketball Court

12

W
es

te
rn

 H
ou

se

2.4m

20

5

24 Church

10

Sta

9a

28

2.5m

4.5m

30

El Sub Sta

Dr
ai

n

5

58

Gerald Palmby Court

65

1

28

CLARENCE PLACE

29

28

2.6m

84

13
5

32a

1

SP

13

26

22

33

35

25

92

36

31a

90

17

24

25

46

44

TH
E

2

18

Merchant

21

1

Merchant

31

15
4

LANGTON

2

1

104a

15

47

MP 90.25

MILLER CLOSE

7

71

25

12

8

Nelson

2

1

31

39

113

4.1m

1

7

1

24

17

28

17

50

47

109

18

99

12

Chalet

36

53

1

29

1

81

WATER STREET

(Telecommunication)

13
8

23

39

66

WEST STREET

G
O

LF R
O

A
D

12

COURTENAY ROAD

Le

18

3

14

25

W
ard Bdy

87

63

17

8

12

58

11

104

NORTH

33
a

21

UNION ROAD

85

69

14

1 
to

 7

44

4

57 9to12

33

1

7

1

67

NORTHWALL ROAD

7

3

Play Area

158

Court

59

1

35

6

170

FR
IE

ND
S 

CL
O

SE

11
 to

 1
5

33

32

118

Boat House Cottage

Drain

9

19

35

9

31

4

110

88

NORTHWALL MEWS

18

104b

Builders

2

CO
LLEG

E RO
AD

56

Sydcot H
ouse

18

22

17
7

7

152a

45

Cottage

2

40

7

14

1

144a

Sydcot Lodge

1

89

89

74

7

43

144

8

LIN
K

S R
O

A
D The Firs

Bede

10

8

1

1

69

6

ROAD

2

18

31a

SA
N

D
O

W
N

 R
O

A
D

1

63

8

39

13

16

12
5

77
a

CR

Pow
der

El

15

12

28

75

Sub Sta

38

5

Deal Town Dike

69

3.7m

9

2

Stone

18
3

52

16
9

18

B
EC

K
ET

 C
LO

SE

81

3

77

12

5

3.0m

87

12
7

58

27

47

Drai
n

54

50

8

100

6

17
9

Deal Tow
n Dike

69

80

12
1

21

2.7m

152

15

1

148

1

PA
VILI

ON

3

23

21

3.5m

Dunstan

CLOSE

GOLF ROAD

Sandown Farm

3.2m

4

16

50

99

22

93

2

74

9

2

1

152

134

1

8

2

1

122

46

90

62

8

Drain

32

38

3.9m

16

1

2.7m G
EO

R
G

E STR
EET

25

78

15
7

79

Court

49

Lloyd

35

110

5

19
9

BRITANNIA ROAD

15

3.2m
CANNON STREET

LB

33

SYDCOT DRIVE

71

SYDENHAM ROAD

2

6

6

146

10

Court

68

1

14
9

182

1

14

112

LANFRANC

14
7

31

11
5

43

98

4

1

120

4.1m

13

1

8

17

7a

Court

18

6

1

3.1m

Norman Tailyour

BEACONSFIELD ROAD

28

39

21

2.7m

8

Old Coach

12

27

16

11

ATHELSTAN PLACE

55

65

19

55

1

4

70

13

206

Shelter

4

26

51

SANDO
W

N RO
AD

13

116

11
5

116

4.2m

CANNON STREET

HAROLD ROAD

Braunton

102

160

64

Centre for

19
3

10

132

89

ST GEORGE'S ROAD

4

7

52

2

114

83

86

89a

55

Deal

23
65

81

38

4.0m

Gas Holder

1 to 12

to

13
7

Ho
us

e

32

GILFORD ROAD

1

Vicarage

PH

1

TCBs

13
1

El Sub Sta

13a

NEW STREET

20
9

Orc
ha

rd

Groyne

19

57

Shingle

2

HOPE ROAD

176

2

71

24

12

Track

CD

67

TCB

92

5

1.7m

9

31

6

136

LB

17

16
9

36

ETHELBERT ROAD

86

22

69

Shingle

83

19

9

44

10
5

18

20
5

7

5

59

40

Landmark

ETHELBERT ROAD

19
9

PH

122

SP

48

64

1

22

2

20

55

14

74

42

Groyne

29

22

20
3

18

23

59

19

28

10

De
f

LB

3.2m

21
3

House

22

77

47

90

21
5

55

69

8

6

3

22

2

2

Shingle

Sub Sta

42

Astor

Pumping

46

9 
to

 2
0

13
4

108

Station

1

42

Electricity

The Old Cottage

33

18
7

Tank (cov)

31a

Sub

41

Theatre

205

23

18

W
es

le
ya

n

The M
arina

Distribution Site

Pond

El

66

Court

Shingle

11

49
 to

 5
1

Sub Sta

11b

Play Area

21 to 30

4.1m

Dr
ain

Drain

12

10

Links Court

Shingle

10

77

Shingle

75
Tank

GODWYN ROAD

TRAVERS ROAD

19

CD

8a

43

Club

Ward Bdy

Groyne

2

20
8

53

64 to 66

El

NO
RT

HW
AL

L

9

Def

17

Groyne

1

George Alley

22

84

94

Golf

2

57

13
5

23

73

40

5

16

22

27

16

20a

14

26

182

72

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

78

31 to 40

Ward Bdy

Kent Museum of th
e Moving Image

2

Centre

2

Groyne

55

Sta

48

18

1

Def

79

24

21

9

8a

12

Centre

12

4.0m

6

8a

Path

184

CO
UR

T

8

SO
U

TH
 W

A
LL

49a

44

8

8

W
ard Bdy

11

LB

Centre

53a

42

Tr
ac

k

9

20

Dea
l B

us
ine

ss
 Park

5

82

88

70

8
3a

2.0m

Shelter

35

Beachlands Court

3

15

90c

Post
2

6

Inform
ation

24

11a

18

Drain

Mulberry Court

Deal Mental

42

Dr
ain

2

4

W
ar

d B
dy

5

71

18a

Ward Bdy

1

45

8

37

24

6

85

62

9

Goodwin

46

58

29

1b

48

78

3

7

Court

4

4

7

73

(Hall)

19
3

68

104

11

60

1

Lodge

Court

Mariner's
View

12

27

1 to 44

Nursery

7

9

COURT MARSH ROAD

5 to 8

20

20

12

80

Church Lane

QU
IN

N 
CL

OS
E

3

Drain

Court

1

25

3

Linwood Te
rra

ce

16

6

4

17

20

1

23

66

Enterprise

53

THE DROVEWAY

14

6

10

30

Childrens

2 to 4

LY
DD

EN
 C

LO
SE

44

64

2

7 t
o 1

2

41

ANCHOR LANE

11

158

25

57a

1

68

58

6

202

Police

2

15

Church Path

44

69

SOUTHWALL ROAD

5

20

8

17

Business

Car Park

38

47

18

Blinkbox

44

200

39

12

32 to 36

W
YSE C

LO
SE

Ocean

THE DRIVE

9 to 12

35

21

1

67

Factory

PO
PL

AR
 D

RI
VE

Drain

14

Factory

Church Path

Deal

2

Station

CO
UR

T 
CL

OSE

13

13

39

16

Path

(Station)

7

ESS

Issues

1a

West Lea

18

13

Terrace

Sandfield Farm

El

39

Mews

1

5

Row

War

32

13

23

26

Church House

Sta

59

172

4

El Sub Sta

87
b

8

W
AL

LE
RS

 R
OA

D

1

Buckthorn

27

Deal

Factory

25

24

14

THE FAIRWAY

14

Meml

29

15

Complex

El S
ub Sta

South

Dra
in

21

Sub

Industrial Estate

29a

Rooms

Close
Chu

rc
h P

ath

Health Centre

21
 to

 2
4

34

Miniature Rifle Range

Grace W
alk

22

1 to 6

2

to

Health

Northcote

82

Southwall

Centre

Goodwin

El Sub Sta

1 
to

 1
0

(Club)

COURT M
ARSH

 R
OAD

35

29

2

Tar Path

Shelter

1 to 6

1

1 to 24

1 t
o 8

Dr
ai

n

40

17

30

Tr
ac

k

M
AR

SH
 L

AN
E

House

1.3m

1 to 4

37

Allotment Gardens

18

57

127

37

1 t
o 8

El

Sub

121

North

1

37

Saxons C
lose

28

31

5

51
53

Club

Play Area

1

1

6

DIANA GARDENS

57

1 
to

 5

56

Sta

MID
DLE D

EAL R
OAD

111

1.6m

Pe
nf

iel
d 

Se
we

r

57

21

12

11

TCB

1

70

1

1

12

Allotment Gardens

C
LO

SE

116

12

4

25

W
ES

TE
RH

OU
T 

CL
OS

E

21

34

2

1

Christian

1 
to

 5
0

9a

4b

41

3a

Kenyor

21

24

28

15

47

20

THE GROVE

Station

86

10
4

5.8m

19

10

133

50

10
0

1

Pendana

30

16
6

1

47

40

25

48

2

2

1

14

3.3m

2

8

2

27

CHURCH PATH

101

46

17
8

217

15
0

37

43

31

7

COURT

1

6

86

CH
UR

CH
 L

AN
E

2.4m
62

21

143

34

GLA
DST

ONE 
ROAD

Tennis

EMPORIA CLOSE

7

16

33

4

1

14

71

101

58

17

Gas
Gov

23

Victoria

Victoria

Gardens

34

WELLINGTON ROAD

70

38

23

56

8

1

1

BEECHWOOD AVENUE

66

of Canterbury

Tower

47

PH

20

161

7

8

89

5

8

67

1to
4

5

66

31

63

ST
 A

ND
RE

W
'S

 R
O

AD

57

1

11

56

ST
 P

AT
RI

CK
'S

 R
O

AD

17

23

3

27

11

El Sub Sta

3

39

Hall

40

18

12
6

Linden

20

5.3m

15

6

Kennels Farm

Deal Town Dike

26b

24
86

Def

Def

Mew
s

8

3

198

The Courtyard

10

17b

Place

5to8

Cottage

Woodbine
Cottage

23

135

133

PRINCES STREET

32b

27

9

24

32

87

1

19

70

1

4.0m

DUKE STREET

60

61

Church

3

45c

45b

Mast

22

40

2

Dr
ai

n

30

84

79

Builders

CLOSE

15
11

17

79

2.9m

26

4

4

37

66

10
9

3.0m

150

45

2

13
7

12
5

5

50

Sta

2

2

72

87

16

TCB

204

HIG
H STREET

El Sub

1

3.0m

1a

2

BRIDGE ROAD

2.9m

19

29

8

Surgery

96

St George's Church

87

45

Def

4

3.9m

3.0m

45

46

32

18

Drain

111

Path

242

Path (um)

El

Sluice

Tourist

1

16
4

Nursery

22a

W
ard Bdy

22

106

33

72

19
1

18
9

156

5

8

7

40

60

11

186

A
LFR

ED
 R

O
W

1 to 41

4

2

DEAL

MILL ROAD

6

33

Minters In
dustria

l E
state

Drain

Dea
l a

nd W
alm

er 
Clin

ic

29

162

Tr
ac

k

30

33

Sta

El Sub Sta

SB

Grace W
alk

Sutto
n

1

1 to 8

AMD1 - Middle
Deal, Manor

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: AMD1- Middle Deal, Manor Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

        0        0.1   0.2  0.3   0.4
KilometersPage 3

34



68

19.2m

PW

1a

FR
EEMEN'S W

AY

52

15

13.6m

1

9

68

17

111

15.8m

1

1to6

MILL H
ILL

27

12

20

11to14

7

Garage42

43

101

1

29

85

5

5

El Sub Sta

19

MILL HILL COURT

10.4m

1b

34

44

73

34

62

79

Allotment Gardens

105

W
INCHESTER M

EW
S

56

8

91

58

Church of England

53

54

32

33

50

Pond

50

6

67

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

2

38

14

97

46

39

48

45

26

51

7.0m

85

CR

83

14

El Sub Sta

74

7to10

COWDRAY ROAD

35

46

3

25

47a

COWDRAY SQUARE

115

DRUM M
AJO

R D
RIVE

6 to 11

Shelter

84

Sub

44

33

North Barrack

1

TE
LE

GRAPH
 R

OAD

43

6 to 11

73

2

1

47

7.0m

75

13

Deal Parochial

Stones

27

45

13

60

7.9m

32

56

6.7m

1

2

72

FS

31

LB

52

12 to 17

64

39

65

24

99

DR
EW

 L
AN

E

Primary School

St
on

e

CO
VE

NT
RY

 G
AR

DE
NS

El

Allotment Gardens

22

1

105

49 70

7

40

90

Sta

95

3

82

3

7.6m

Co
ve

nt
ry

 C
ou

rt

1 to 5

20

87

61

House

74

65

83

Stone

Stone

9

12
0

GLA
DS

TO
NE

 R
OAD

FINCH MEWS

48

59

105

13

11

BAMFORD WAY

36

5.9m

7 
to

 1
2

76

4

2

10
4

1 to 6

17
16

SP

WOODSTOCK ROAD

6.0m

15

134

11
8b

2

11
8

Victoria Park

Bur
ial

 G
ro

un
d

122

5.9m

24 to 29

M
AX

W
EL

L 
PL

AC
E

99

13

1

2

23

18

CORNW
ALL ROAD

1

67

10 to 15

24

12 to 17

21

21

111

MILL

1Stone

29

4

16
0

20

16
8

11

89

95

Stone

127

13

12

19
4

155

38

TUDOR MEWS

3

5

2

23
0

24 to 29

141

11

19

5

5

5.7m

21
6

18 to 23

204

6.4m

Cemetery

TCB

1

19
2

33

43

115

49

17
4

34

Deal

MILL
 R

OAD

SC
HOLA

RS 
CLO

SE

6.4m

12

JA
MES H

ALL
 G

ARDENS

2

1

1

HAMILTON ROAD

6.4m

FW

10

14
41

Und

CP

101

21

1

5

15

67

ST
O

CK
DA

LE
 G

AR
DE

NS

8

6.6m

FREEMEN'S WAY

2

7.0m

11

14
4

Skateboard Park

11

13
4

7.3m

52

61

96

14

14

7.6m

28

12
0

Sunny Terrace

HAMILTON ROAD

213

77

52

96

MILL
 R

OAD

25
 to

 3
0

13
2

185

MP

47

70

26

12

1

1 to 6

29
4

Ward Bdy

45
 to

 49

29

12
a

Ward Bdy

84

82

FF

Mews

1

NORTH BARRACKS

82
17

Brunswick

75

72

Surgery

7.2m

11
0

74

5.7m

122

63

HAMILTON ROAD

95

59

6

30
6

84

11
a

132

1

El Sub Sta

189

CR

ST J
AMES C

LO
SE

1 to
 6

Sh
an

no
n 

Br
ee

ze

26

18

11

15

42

16

FW

Stone

47

3

24

89

5

13
4

119

4

38

53

35

32

BRUCE

GLADSTONE ROAD

23

109

15

1

28
4

MILL
DALE

 C
LO

SE

14

5

11

39 to 42

GILH
AM G

ROVE

7

43

26
2

12

106

19

1

8

2

94

3

1

1 
to

 4

7

243

40

9

CLO
SE

1

34
4

3

8.1m

13

Lamorna

1

18

102

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

Terrace

29

32
6

49

33
4

167

239

25

Pandora

191

4

23

Meadow

34 30
 to

 35

5

31

99

73

217

233

Pond

34a

38

2

42

65

16

11

Castle

8.3m

Cottage

27

77

241

Muskoka

19

210

53

LTwr

Ashley

2

120

9

LB

4

LTwr

Stand

17
 to

 2
0

Gable Ends

21

Brickfield Cottages

18
8

6.2m

L Twr

7.3m

22

L Twr

El Sub Sta

DO
W

EL
L

ROAD

LEAS ROAD

23

24

Ward Bdy

1

MANOR AVENUE

8

The Brambles

91.5

Brooklyn

CHARLES

57

2

42

235

29

171

39

7

1

1

El Sub Sta

The Limes

Green Gates

6

49

Grove Lodge

ST LEONARD'S ROAD

14

80

19

37

64

65

219

31
8

Leyswood

Pine Cottage

Manor Lodge

Acorn Lodge

3a

1

1

46

Kelowna

Martella

6

Maycroft

7

Wychwood

Ol
d 

Gy
m

na
si

um

62

Ra
m

se
y H

ou
se

Be
rri

es

Football Ground

10

14

3

11

11

237

9

17

249

CAVALRY COURT

Wrenmar

51

Mou
nt

ba
tte

n 
Ho

us
e

Place

14

14
8

19

6.5m

29

HA
RV

EY
 A

VE
NU

E

9

6.7m

18

23

HARVEY AVENUE

Ca
na

da
 M

ew
s

9a

6.4m

Und

7

LOWER WALMER

DRILL
 C

OURT

31

23

Stone

FS

ST
 L

EO
NA

RD
'S

 R
OAD

13

LOWER MILL LANE

7to12

HA
LL

ID
AY

 D
RI

VE

25

Bramhall

43

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

15
2

15

6.0m

19

12

11

MANOR AVENUE

Argyll

42

51

26

25
0

Court

64

30

1to6

6

302

ARDENT AVENUE

1

90

Court

40

Services

35

19

Cottage

15
0

70

Stone

6.3m

47 to 51

203

17
0

80

(Deal Town FC)

4

ST
OCKDALE

 G
ARDEN

S

6.4m

MEW
S

AR
DE

NT
 A

VE
NU

E

87
95

5

1

32

31

4

GLA
DST

ONE 
ROAD

6.2m

16

27
4

3

LOWER

37

8

1

93

30

50

Stone

LB

11

10
0

St
on

e

12
2

39

23

18

LI
ST

ER
 C

LO
SE

10

All Angels Church

41

227

3

65

15
6

131

St
on

e

Stone

40

14
6

10
2

BEECHWOOD COURT

233a

Court

32

13 to 18

72

1 t
o 6

54

Def

Stuart

Stone

1

White Lodge

19

9

2

El Sub Sta

9

PW

5.2m

1

Hall

7

School

Fellowship

11
0

79a

61

23

10

Lodge

11

1

10
6

83

28

48

LB

87

193

14

22

16

23

109

11

14

53

97

210

13

23

16

11
8a

83

Club

7.0m

Brewood

12a

3

Pine

1

13

Allotment Gardens

3

2

Court

LO
NDON R

OAD

Park Side

12

19

53

Cou
rt 57

38

House

14

33

Deal Bowling

12
4

23

1

2

2

MIDDLE DEAL
16

63

79

24

5.6m

77

SHERON CLOSE

46

1

25

15

82

16

2

2

24
 to

 29

4.0m

Deal

1

98

85

34

77

85a

38

20

41

76

29

9

Alm
sh

ouse
s

Lio
n

4

23a

12

1

13

70

4.2m

3

2

12
6

22

Fire

32

32

ASTOR DRIVE
21

0a

11
8

23b

31

7.9m

44

TCB40

88

117

5.7m

26

32a

117

116

1

86

1

276

Posts

14

5.5m

22

114

3a

101

8

119

1

7.9m

7

6.1m

83

176

5

74

2

107

139

27

THE GROVE

143

15

49

145

32

10
 to

 15

12
0

BIRDWOOD AVENUE

129

282

96

12

5

10
0

121

111

DOLA

17

1

50

12

32

2 24

1

36

39

8

59

5

LB

THE GROVE

30a

41a

14
4

Cou
rt 

Lo
dg

e

26

2a

6.3m236

46

Station

2

Hyto
n C

ou
rt

ORCHARD AVENUE

6.3m

51

27

3

23

9

27a

6.8m

1

1

MIDDLE DEAL ROAD

9

29

18

26

10

Marb
ali

ng

20
2

21
2

125

6.1m

17
2

42

7

LB

MID
DLE

 D
EA

L R
OAD

W
ALK

FO
ST

ER

11

34

116

10

War Meml

8

FENTON

46

6

10

11

13

TIMPERLEY CLOSE

GRANGE ROAD

9

8

8

3

12
8

20

31

6

11
2

7 to 12

215

7
5

21

9a

BELV
EDERE G

ARDENS

93

113

1

7

Sub Sta

11

1

WILLIAM PITT AVENUE

137

LTwr

1

15
6

El Sub Sta

19
2

6

18
4

12
0

14

36

74

27

44

16

12

30

11
2

14

33

64

14
2

254

21
0b

Charnwood

CLAREMONT ROAD

24
a

14

7

18
8

1

14

13

54

19
8

7

13

36

33

CHURCH PA
TH

22

3

56

6.7m

5.7m

14
2a

15

122

The Trees

11

WAY

26

2

41

13

Heritage

PARK AVENUE

WILTON CLOSE

HUNTERS

228

24

16
0

Banbury

12

4

12

15

128

26

Park Lea

6

Leisure Centre

1

LB

Th
e

15

18

2

FS

14

1

7

1

15
4

59

38

43

61

229

30

Garage

76

15

23

1

HA
LL

ID
AY

 D
RI

VE

74

AVENUE

C
R

36

JUBILEE DRIVE

37

72

Victoria Hospital

Mews

29

46

6.2m

52

13

1

87

6.9m

49

PH

Gymnastic Club

7

2

BOWLING GREEN LANE

Shelvey

40

6.5m

8

58

Sutto
n Row

118

PARK AVENUE

10
3

Betty

9

37

SP

51

61

5.7m

6.6m

8

62

120

87

PARK AVENUE

RAVENSCOURT ROAD

Presbytery

14
2

13
2

1

30

6.7m

N
O

R
TH

C
O

TE R
O

A
D

14

LB

1

El Sub Sta

4

19

Court

94

2

6.2m

41

16

33

Club

PH

66

Car Park

QUEEN STREET

55

14

106

MILL
 R

OAD

6

Cou
rt 

Lo
dg

e

48

5

123

17

1

9

2

26

TCB

14
2

37

20

45

10

23

40 to 44

9

6.0m

TCBs

15

Bowling Green

45

2

20

29

7

31

1

1

Neville

51 to 61

38

9

MILESTONE ROAD

Middleton

26

59

CR

Mews

11
4

Q
UEENS M

EW
S

39

7.2m

3.0m

Und
1

PC

115

2

37

145

48

Douglas

74a

51

189

TCB

72

2

15

7

MS

2

70

BLENHEIM
 RO

AD

6.5m

186

3

19

96

1

20

155

40

of St Thomas

13
3

Catholic Church

Greenwood

5.9m

WALMER

14a

118

28

205

M
P 

91
.2

5

7.0m

54

Shelter

CANADA ROAD

Telephone

59

21

CR

16

25

43

Exchange

Stones

5.2m

14

M
P 

91

Ward Bdy

98

9

49

30
a

20
8

Victoria Park

44

45

17

49

CR

6.2m

Tr
ac

k

76

Cottages

FB

72a

65

3

2

7

33

9.0m

36

M
P 90.75

57

Memorial

Mews

Wellington Court

1

Tennis Courts

50

38

100
W

indsor House

ALLENBY AVENUE

4.3m

28

4

BLE
NHEI

M R
OAD

10

1

37

Shelters

1

78

9

18
8

18

190

42

CLOSE

40

11

2

29

33

43

126

7
62

37

DARRACOTT

31

16

23

53

4.9m

Garden

3

73

41

PH

14

3.5m

8

14

45

78

36

SYCAMORE DRIVE

Track

10

133a

38

1

46

30

4

2 to 4

25

64

Secondary

6

94

Church Path

5

9

The Garth

52

22

3 
4

LB

32 to 36

4.6m

Ocean

Allotment

27

4

16

75a

11

LONDON ROAD

El S
ub Sta

19

35

25

54

101

15

89

5.2m

Grace W
alk

71

42

6

1

9

COWPER ROAD

6
80

5.4m

66

Sports Courts

to

1

28

87

Play Area

2

14

76

130

56

2

55

13
4

159

6

Shelter

ROAD

9

26

10

9

82

7.5m

4a

13

21
5

73

170

8

90

31a

The Officer's

9

Deal

MEW
S

11

Stables

13

Hillside

TR
AF

AL
GA

R 
DR

IV
E

90

7

80

Sports Pavilion

71

El Sub Sta

41 19
43

Trinity Court

Shelter

Tr
ee

to
ps

39

Northcote

36

15

16

Post

El Sub Sta

67

9

18

1 to 8

1a

43

64

35

Tar Path

12

2

93

8

49a

8

48

24

6

10
2

58

91

Deal Mental

1 t
o 8

18

4

Health Centre

1

27

55
War Memorial

SUTHERLAND ROAD

21

Sports Court

FS

7.3m

88

13

Academy

13a

51

37

Linwood Te
rra

ce

2

88

47

7.0m

6

11
2

16

5a

13
2

12

29

19

39

38

36

20a

(Station)

135

68

7.3m

Terrace

86

109

El Sub Sta

Mews

10
8

10

1 to 4

Carter Court

14

5 to 8

80

42

1 to 3

1 to 6

45

Row

195

3

62

25

4

23

6

223

17

Goodwin

THE DRIVE

76

57

172

187

14

Chu
rc

h P
ath

LB

(Club)

El Sub Sta

205

6

57

10

1

15

35

MANOR ROAD

117

269

85

259

18

9

41

79

24

Ambulance

3b

El

11

15
2

LB

22

1

LTwr

23

1

L Twr

58

43

9

16

14

3

Clevelands

1

22
6

15
4

30

28

35

16
2

Gaunt's

12

24
4

11

The

33

27

Tayclif

2

Victoria

21

8

2

Be
rry

51

Co
tta

ge

22

1

36

20

5.8m

6.7m

29

39

Court

Stone

13
1

14
3

18

CR

16

1to6

El Sub Sta

61

1t
o6

57

4.8m

12

W
ar

d 
B

dy

11

CP

21

76

66

El Sub Sta

SHEFFIELD GARDENS

11

5.8m

SP

Stone

Garage

71

GRANVILLE STREET

89

36

2

St Michael and

14

183

34

Allotment Gardens

127

PH

5.6m

121

53

5

1

6

48

53

41

161

1

Christian

128

1 
to

 5
0

5

9a

149

4b

LONDON

41

3a

Kenyor

21

24

28

15

20

THE GROVE

Station

86

10
4

5.8m

19

10

133

50

10
0

1

Pendana

30

16
6

1

47

40

25

LB

48

2

CHATER COURT

2

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

1

88

60

14

92

3.3m

8

2

66

8

2

3

27

10

6

10
0

CHURCH PATH

7

78

101

46

66

17
8

12

217

78

15
0

1

37

4

43

53

64

31

47

39

7

El Sub Sta

COURT

6

49

Rooms

Health Centre

CH
UR

CH
 L

AN
E

5

Sports Pavilion

El Sub Sta

21

143

1 to 6

Tennis

49

53

1 t
o 8

23

Victoria

Victoria

Gardens

70

38

56

8

1

1

BEECHWOOD AVENUE

66

of Canterbury

Tower

47

PH

20

164

15

161

8.0m

180

242

Path

1

16
4

Nursery

5

69

54

53
51

41

58

14

17

25

33

5

5

40

60

(C
hi

ld
re

ns
 N

ur
se

ry
)

MILL ROAD

1 t
o 4

3

18

TR
AF

AL
GA

R 
DR

IV
E

Dea
l a

nd W
alm

er 
Clin

ic

FW

El Sub Sta

Elizabeth

12a

Grace W
alk

Sutto
n

1

AMD2 -
Middle

Deal, Park

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: AMD2- Middle Deal, Park Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.1 0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.40.05
KilometersPage 4

35



BRENCHLEY AVENUE

83

2

(Saint Mary's Convent)

36

57

82

1

41

Crystals

LB

43

24.4m

44

95

WILSON AVENUE

10

13
2

RECTORY ROAD

4

1

55

11

11
4

W
ILSON AVE

Beech Court

31

118

7

5

12
8

3

26

21

CLOSE

El

37

Sub Sta

GLACK
ROAD

69

20

37

27

25.4m

126

Beech Court
Rockets

14

32

107

Hall

31

CLARKE'S CLOSE

109

22

Tigh na Gwyth

73

25

19

The Bungalow

19

LITTLE AVENUE

14

1

FAIRFIELD

25.2m

13

25

12

Nurseries

9

16

Sub Sta

4

5

The Peacock

11

House

House

49

49

MARSH LANE

12

Sub

Ken
t

13

22

1

Tennis Court

LANE

Sta

12a

THE GLADE

El

Sholden Farm

Flintstones

37

El Sub Sta

New
house

20

32

Naivasha

Bungalo
w

75

13

81

Guide Post and Letter Box

6.9m

Churchfield Farm

THE STREET

Turnhouse

4.3m

2

16

1

79

St Nicholas's

83

23

27

Star
t

4

11

Church
fie

ld

Lodge

19a

Cotta
ges

Church

22

Def

37

23.4m

FARM LANE

56

6

101a

CR

7

Fres
h

30

1

46

2

11
6

Graveyard

42

392
59

60

19b

FIVEWAYS RISE

The Barn

A 258

1

18

38
4

16.5m

40

7

35

CAVELL SQUARE

16.0m

34

33

23.9m

GG

VICARAGE

79

101b

54

77

MARY ROAD

3

53

8

95

GATE

107

30

28

25

23.1m

39

61

10.4m

21

Cornerways

CLOSE

2

75

80

CAVELL S
QUARE

34

49

Ward Bdy

59

21.8m

47

44

22

TO
RM

OR
E 

M
EW

S

El Sub Sta

78

4

CAVELL SQUARE

21
6

50

1

77

27

22.4m

1

WILSON AVENUE

Sholden Hall

PATTERSON

10

19.9m

TUDOR MEWS

101

1b

48

41

513

6

1a

10

15

29
4

TOLL
109

204

15

67

24

UPPER DEAL

Brunswick

MILL H
ILL

63

CAVELL SQUARE

63

1

10

64

155

30
6

2

MILL

CR

MEW
S

1

5

MILL
 R

OAD

9

FW

20

79

45
 to

 49

65

DAVIS AVENUE

85

75

17

23

23

14.5m

6

41

34

RECTORY ROAD

72

2

8

1

34

PATTERSON CLOSE

2

67

12

ST J
AMES C

LO
SE

11

SC
HOLA

RS 
CLO

SE

5

22

FR
EDERIC

K R
OAD

Sh
an

no
n 

Br
ee

ze

6.6m

223

28
4

23
0

37

AD
DE

LA
M C

LO
SE

26
2

13
4187

3

16

205

7.6m

1

21

8

52

6

Terrace

11

19

6

20

10

Cemetery

27

49

1

185

13

191

127

Deal

5

55

34a

9

1

15

51

12

64

12

46

30

Sunny Terrace

14

12
a

76

119

Ward Bdy

132

80

59

213

FF

25

Castle

10
4

BRUCE

Mews

167

19

ADDELAM

1

48

11
0

Surgery

34

PI
LO

TS
 A

VE
NU

E
49

GILH
AM G

ROVE

51

58

66

1

90

122

61

HAMILTON ROAD

35

65

40

2

6

ROAD

15

5

18

85

El Sub Sta

1

39 to 42

189

YEW TREE CLOSE

33
4

35

17

El Sub Sta

106

1 to
 6

1

65

11

1

4

35

94

26

24

LANCELOT CLOSE

120

MANOR ROAD

9

50

The Rectory

58

11

117

10

8.1m

99

76

1

75

269

Lamorna

38

DAVIS AVENUE

25

85

5

75

259

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

71

8.3m

33

9

17
 to

 2
0

24

32
6

74

79

DAVIS AVENUE

7.3m

2

56

3b

4

25

23

42

59

Gable Ends

11

23

23

235

3

11
a

72

79

55

73

LB

25

2

71

LTwr

38

39

18

37

Cottage

109

22

80

ADDELAM ROAD

53

24

L Twr

The Coach House

47

5

31
8

LTwr

Brooklyn

5

43

1

45

6.2m

12

171

31

LEAS ROAD

7

134

The Limes

1 
to

 4

14

Clevelands

32

34
4

249

102

30

MANOR AVENUE

29

63

MILL
DALE

 C
LO

SE

Pandora

ST LEONARD'S ROAD

9a

35

7

34

CHARLES

11

219

31

8

Gaunt's

233

39

3a

MANOR CLOSE

31

243

ST
 L

EO
NA

RD
'S

 R
OAD

11

59

3

24
4

Bramhall

241

4

13

42

Green Gates

19

The

9

29

1

Pond

14

Tayclif

Brickfield Cottages

167

45

MANOR AVENUE

The

Leyswood

Ward Bdy

TRINITY PLACE

Meadow

11

25
0

Acorn Lodge

8

3

L Twr

43

War

The Barn

1

217

2

295

88

87

The Brambles

30

42

13

15.1m

PH

CLO
SE

42

27

311

Church

10
7

Court

1

1

Muskoka

267

269

78

239

Grove Lodge

Mausoleum

Cottage

64

Ashley

171

8

Manor Lodge

30
 to

 35

248

(Deal Town FC)

1to2

Kelowna

92

3

288

LB

1

CR

314

Pond

347

99

10.8m

1

Hall

16

86

4

WARDEN HOUSE MEWS

14

300a

19

16

Cherry

322

LTwr

295a

12

12.2m

7a

10
2

98

9.6m

2

Stand

10
5

5

297

CORNFIELD ROW

37

L Twr

HAYW
ARD CLO

SE

MANOR ROAD

25
6

34

49

ROAD

28

Maycroft

1

325

St Leonard's

243

31

285

353

5.2m

57

51

Meml

66

62

LONDON ROAD

7

96
a

23

53

4

4

43

3

6

CRESCENT

COURT
80

48

Club

9.3m

Nursery

293

19

HYTON DRIVE

Graveyard

Play Area

23

4

LONDON ROAD

Pine Cottage

HO
M

ES
TE

AD

35

1

25

BIRDWOOD AVENUE

20

13 to 18

32

96

29

25
4

Martella

1
1

294

1

90

6

23

51

Wychwood

1 t
o 6

Warden House Primary School

Court

86

76

DIANA GARDENS

32

Football Ground

25

22

18

13

1

60

57

210

46

45

6to16

275

111

44

6

1 to 11

1 
to

 5

50

339

34

13

56

301

461

33

1

57

Sta

12

139

7.5m

329

MID
DLE D

EAL R
OAD

55

51

344

145

10

111

237

1

House

74

220
2

Lancaster House

29

80

LB

2

66

5.8m

65

10
9

26

13
 to

 18

2

74

43

DIANA GARDENS

Station

6

20

133

343

41

3

16

312

50

Wrenmar

1

27

1

55

30

GAUNT'S C
LOSE

GRANTHAM AVENUE

10

DELANE ROAD

1

16
6

302

Hinton

7

12
6

Stuart

Fig Tree House

8

32

1

9

29

16

10

8

11
8

47

1

7

31

40

11
0

9

13

114

212

32a

25

Lodge

31

38

6

Posts

48

20

2

12
4

5

30

3a

SHERON CLOSE

73

2

143

11

15

176

99

Tudor H
ouse

1

1

4

16

SWIFT

14

27

27

22

10
0

9

3.3m

50 to 60

49

21
0a

14
2

282

44

30a

Childrens

18
8

17

26

5.7m

2

2a

13

24

216

276

Hyto
n C

ou
rt

8

5

El Sub

5.7m

1

116

272

67

Cou
rt 

Lo
dg

e

26

1

GRANGE ROAD

2

27

13

46

12
8

16
0

CHURCH PATH

18

ORCHARD AVENUE

11
2

11

26

15

27a

101

21
2

BELV
EDERE G

ARDENS

15

Edinburgh House

9

W
ALK

46

16

BIRDWOOD AVENUE

AVENUE

13

20
2

34

17
8

29

21
0b

64

46

217

2

17
2

24
a

12

87

346

FO
ST

ER

10

12

7

10

BOWLING GREEN LANE

DOLA

15
0

20

23
4

11

1

2

8

7

8

8

7

9

37

113

6

14
4

21

43

9a

137

22

19

31

Sub Sta

19
2

32

6.3m

7

30

14

59

COURT

WAY

6

30

6.3m

1

66

228

254

74

6.8m

6

19
8

62

12

41a

MIDDLE DEAL ROAD

23

86

Marb
ali

ng

236

CH
UR

CH
 L

AN
E

6

3

2.4m

42

2

62

14
2a

2

17

11

23

6

143

13

FENTON

HYTON DRIVE

41

EMPORIA CLOSE

PARK AVENUE

7

29

TIMPERLEY CLOSE

14
6

4

7

14

125

8

CHURCH MEADOW
S

LB

38

215

FOX ROAD

1

War Meml

85

16

229

11

35

13

14

28

Victoria Hospital

1

33

33

3

Play Area

26

WILLIAM PITT AVENUE

1

4

7 to 12

6.9m

50

4

El Sub Sta

43

93

11

Sutto
n Row

76

91

1

37

64

HANCOCKS FIELD

Recreation Ground

15
6

6.6m

14

5.5m

17

71

14
2

18
4

Allotment Gardens

13

379

1

101

14

14

72

12

36

13

58

CLAREMONT ROAD

17

1

1

10

27

91

14

4

Gas

35
4

1

47

CHURCH PA
TH

37

2

Gov

36
6

61

15

58a

33

TCB

Stone

4

26

2

55

MS

8

44

6

40

5

13

37
8

60

186

LB

Cou
rt 

Lo
dg

e

29

20

57

HUNTERS

155

17

16a

1

164

41

Greenwood

15

26

11.0m

15

1

CHURCH LANE

LB

145

161

45

118

6

31

FS

8.0m

72

16

13

Shelter

LONDON ROAD

65

70

180

15

El Sub Sta

MILESTONE ROAD

43

25

7

59

85

Ward Bdy

7.2m

8

CR

9

12

4

2

37

89

6.5m

Track

81

32

189

YO
U

N
G

 C
LO

SE

26

35

GARDEN CLOSE

9

Nursi
ng Home

2

11

5

140

33238

1

8

36

Posts

367

SOUTHWALL ROAD

81

1

12

222

71

67

20

38

319

1a

232

ALLENBY AVENUE

43

377

31

15

10

81

317

224

45

9

2

2

2

Path

3

240

1

1

HOMEFIELD

13
4

242

Shelter

7

FLETCHERS W
AY

18

9

Shelter

Bowling Green

ROMAN

8

20
8

2

6

7

El

Cottages

18

83

Tanks

39

32

Def

68

6

42

21

6.1m

Play Area

36
2

100

130

29

342

365

Path

51

3

86

138

130

23

369

16
4

58

190

159

71

ROAD

Sub Sta

142

17a

7.5m

Ward Bdy

93

Sports Club

Playing Field

170

36

91

377

205

6

PH

42

62

5

62

47

SYCAMORE DRIVE

Pond

4

140

38

4

18
8

9

129

128

39

60

CLOSE

135

Ho
m

ef
ie

ld
 R

ow

Play Area

141

4

12

126

310

AVENUE

9

TRAVERS ROAD

131

9

DARRACOTT

89

16

1

Ward Bdy

22

Nursery

GG

9

32

Childrens

Def

72

2

6

18

87

16

137

8

64

208

W
YSE C

LO
SE

C
LO

SE

136

20

7

42

21

82

5

350

20a

11

Issues

18

6

48

Path (um)

41

10

8

2

24

68

1

6

1 to 3

2

4.0m

4

8

13

23
4

11

Hillside

46

2

Row

Trinity Court

40

El Sub Sta

198

66

33

El Sub Sta

3

10

Bettshanger

Post

Church
 Path

6

75

Def

(Hall)

Ward Bdy

1 t
o 8

20

77

64 to 66

101

Dea
l a

nd W
alm

er 
Clin

ic

17

1

2

87

7 t
o 1

2

FW

16

12

12

90

25

Tree Yard

49a

86

84

312

Church Path

Sta

73

2.0m

12

Church
 Path

Grace W
alk

17

355a

37

Sutto
n

8

SOUTHWALL ROAD

24

44

75a

70

The

Deal Mental

58

Chartwell

2

El S
ub Sta

69

BOWSER

El

Old Apple

71

34

12

86

68

War Memorial

CO
UR

T 
CL

OSE

Grace W
alk

30

7

39

57a

Church Lane

172

15

1

Nursery

14

El

Chu
rc

h P
ath

LB

Shelter

51

Sub

71

48

13
65

2

3

18

Ward Bdy

38
9

390

15

60

103

8

6

72

TORM
ORE PARK

30

1

75

85

89

5

11

210

4

365

27
4

50

12
2

227

Stone233a

19

PW

2

TRINITY PLACE

9.5m

1

43

4

4

77

14

29

26

2a

24
 to

 29

76

1

7.9m

116

22

7.9m

10
 to

 15

21

7

1

1

LTwr

36

12

33

Charnwood

14

36

56

The Trees

Heritage

11

Anchorage

328

111

42

7

319

220

Banbury

17

271

302

292

300

273

TCB

LB

3

21

18

66

96

62

349

20

74

M
O

U
N

TS C
LO

SE

11

ABBEY CLOSE

31

14

7

15

W
indsor House

Cornwall House

63

133a

13a

13
2

38

135

195

18

41

24

Ambulance

El

15
2

22

1

23

1

58

9

16

14

3

1

22
6

15
4

28

16
2

12

11

33

27

2

21

2

51

96

22

36

57

79

75

103

100

4

59

6.3m

39

4.8m22

11

44

15.9m

330

161

1

128

5
149

LONDON

14

3

60

52

4

10

2.5m

21023
6

Path

Ward Bdy

8

88

92

139

43

12

10

20

14

13

18

23

El Sub Sta

27

14

Dra
in

7b

Health Centre

Sports Pavilion

1 to 6

1 t
o 8

AMD3 - Middle
Deal, Upper

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: AMD3 - Middle Deal, Upper Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.1 0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.40.05
KilometersPage 5

36



29

GOODWIN CLOSE

13

14

16

24

6

19

159

1

7

46

49

4

145

30

1

1

38

3

23.6m

28

34

96

38

24

31.4m

15
6

31

11

15

41
 to

 48

155

57

13
0

19

50

12
3

33

49

49

RE
DS

UL
L

1

2

3

1

30

28

ROAD

LEIVERS

4

39

13

43

84

9

15

9

14
2

48

MARY ROAD

23

12
4

11
9

8

34

37

2

1

157

12
5

10

St Richard's

26

19

1

Church

23

3

20

34.2m

33

31.6m

72

5

23

LB

22

35

31

33.8m

8

Sub Sta

21

22.3m

107

1

47

1

11
2

25

2

95

12
2

DOUGLAS ROAD

CAVELL S
QUARE

10
5

9

24

2

7

El

3

22

7

Shelter

30

CAVELL SQUARE

23.4m

82

165

95

7

41

39

29

22.4m

YE
W

 T
REE

 M
EW

S

61

11
6

50

TO
RM

OR
E 

M
EW

S

15

1b

59

4

127

9

34

10119

27

85

111

6

W
INCHESTER M

EW
S

MILL HILL COURT

LE
ANDER C

LO
SE

10

129a

UPPER DEAL

MILL
 H

ILL

7
4

97

33

75

The Mill Inn

129

72

21

DAVIS AVENUE

9

10

1

12

76

1to6

48

10
0

39

7

11to14

1a

50

68

17

18.4m

15

19

1

1

2

2

2

44

(PH)

5

38

LB

43

57

54

133

19.2m

2

46

53

76

29

79

50

1

28

48

83

PW

65

14

88

23

68

1

El Sub Sta

24

81

62

FR
EEMEN'S W

AY

17

10.4m24

80

9

18

101

52

56

22

1

3

21.3m

11
0

1

34

91

58

10
7

1

27

4

5

Shelter

THORNBRIDGE ROAD

23.5m

33

COWDRAY ROAD

Garage

11

23.6m

ARTH
UR R

OAD

13.6m

14

9

1

19.6m

COWDRAY SQUARE

37

9

1
39

73

67

44

83

51

9

5

87

11
9

74

45

and Social Institute

BEAUCHAMP AVENUE

18

84

13

Play Area

9

34

TCB

9

MILL HILL

38

8

5

COWDRAY SQUARE

5

15.8m

1

14

34

23

39

4a

22

50

SELWAY COURT

6

18

4

69

83

MILL H
ILL

115

CELTIC ROAD

20

51

33

FR
EDERIC

K R
OAD

69

48

36

54

16

19

Deal Welfare Club

36

42

Bronze Age Settlement

29

1

Allotment Gardens

25

29

El Sub Sta

QUERN ROAD

57

17

64

Pullman

15

19

69

11

101

257

17

Cricket Ground

10

3

6

ST RICHARD'S ROAD

25.5m

68

22

24.6m

BEVAN CLOSE

15

MP 92

79

66

42

22

1

74

House

60

24.2m

House

72

CELTIC ROAD

21.5m

31

FB

CLIF
FO

RD
16

30

26
9

17

51

CO
UR

T 
RO

AD

7

Eastlea

95

61

(site of)

28

28.8m

SL

14

12

6

LA
-T

EN
E

92

70

5

2

13

Shelter

52

1

1

28.5m

74a

CR

2

LB

El Sub Sta

CLIFFORD GARDENS

23.5m

10a

MP 91.75

TE
LE

GRAPH
 R

OAD

6

18a

99

24
3

14

30.1m

7

Brambles

LB

1

24
5

71

18

LB

8

War
d B

dy

THORNBRIDGE ROAD

39

31

CR

33

CR

47

El

1

52

16

11
5

TE
LE

GRAPH
 R

OAD

65

The Gables

70

25

11

13

2

55

76

Sub
Sta

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

1

1

85

Allotment Gardens

1a

97

HA
VE

LO
CK

 R
OAD

10.4m

75

112 24

53

97

7.6m

14

9.8m

7.9m

11

47

DO
W

NS
 R

OAD

52

73

9

10

43

11

15
1

14

8

Chapman House

9.4m

13
1

39

51

8.8m

13

27

45

105

8

PALMERSTON AVENUE

17
5

110

106

49

53

122

FORELANDS SQUARE

64

61

18
9

149

7

CURZON CLOSE

2

18

65

98

Edgar

10
9

90

95

House

1

6

49

12.3m

75

100

13
7

7

24

56

85

KEN
NED

Y 
DRIV

E

2

The Courtyard

9

126

5.9m

138

14.6m

59

4

1

Solomon

TE
LE

GRAPH R
OAD

1

1

MILL

Stone

20
7

84

SOMERSET ROAD

House

123

20

House

MILL
 R

OAD

TUDOR MEWS

89

21

12

7

19
4

141

2

20
3

111

20a

1

FORELANDS SQUARE

67

204

11

135

44

5

Charles

Lambert House

115

36

31

23
0

20
9

9.4m

5.7m

20b

11

3

17

16

11

3

32

3

29

21
3

22

1

111

10

2

111

1b

99

23
10

9

26

MEW
S

82

FAIRVIEW GARDENS

1

127

41

15

7

38

8

2

155

3

1

37

5

22

10
a

6

30

19
2

23

2

60

CR
O

SS
 R

O
AD

LY
DI

A 
RO

AD

21

33

12

21
6

30

1

41

2

21a

1

17
4

16

34

23

36

21

30

4

20

21

15

34.9m

36

52

33

21

93

14

28

38

3

80

24

30

56
a

W
ALMER

87

17

12

88

22

Reservoir

13

12

1

44

5

32.9m

13

4

40

THE CONIFERS

44

Stone

24

14

7

36

4

17

20

6

17a

75

W
AY

WALMER GARDENS

50

24

20

25

34.1m

Water Tower

66

Nursery

32

TCB

18

FS

3

88

1

10

15

67

26

SALISBURY ROAD

29

1

25

22
3a

43

45

18
9

20
3

21

16
5

Dossett Court

KE
NN

ET
T 

DR
IV

E

5

19a

218

47

22

18

4

162

37

65

to

(covered)

CH
UR

CH
IL

L

15

25 to 32

19

23
10

9

6

77

1

107

26

LYD
IA R

O
A

D

1a

214

HILLCREST GARDENS

9

54

35

3

184

28.9m

30.2m

5

150

Eastside House

2

1

1

40

44

23

Walmer Science College

13

17
7

90

67

69

53

26

2

36

14

20

2

2

DO
W

NS
 R

OAD

28
a

213

26

CP

Sta

OWEN SQUARE

El

MP

Play Area

Sub

19
9

Li
ttl

e B
re

ez
y

57

1

22
3

81

11

ESS

51

12
0

11

29

SALIS
BURY R

OAD

77

14

19
1

57

MILL
 R

OAD

54

43

18
3

84

42

OW
EN

 S
QUARE

70

15
5

12

67

82

13

59

45
 to

 49

6.4m

11
0

210a

210

1b

18

57

HAMILTON ROAD

1

46

34

27

73

7

84

6.6m

46

17417
9

13
4

2

189

41

24

M
ER

YL
 G

A
R

D
EN

S

7.6m

19
5

17

1 to
 6

18
7

19

40

52

37

7.3m

FW

2

1

7.3m

5

185

ST J
AMES C

LO
SE

10
8

Sh
an

no
n 

Br
ee

ze

DORSET G
ARDENS

80

12

26223

13.8m

El Sub Sta

12
a37

96

76

11

210

Ward Bdy

187

44
a

28

25

44

16

59

71

6

HAMILTON ROAD

Mews

LB

Cemetery

17
3

55

13
2

24

48

205

Deal

64

25

26

90

4

6

1

34

29
4

76

10

23

HAMILTON ROAD

82

SC
HOLA

RS 
CLO

SE

80

1

10

55

Brunswick

37

Und

10
4

ROAD

127

15

7.2m

101

67

15

The Coach House

2

YEW TREE CLOSE

63

34

12

ST
O

CK
DA

LE
 G

AR
DE

NS

45

7.3m

11

30
6

49

30

14
4

15

LANCELOT CLOSE

31

CR

66

25

89

ADDELAM

FW

134

58

53

14

35

63

51

75

Sunny Terrace

28
4

15

65

96

75

11

26
2

39 to 42

61

23

47

33

MANOR CLOSE

3

10641

2

Ward Bdy

74

59

94

FF

56

1

9

42

8

59

85

1

8.1m

Terrace

11
a

1

Lamorna

Surgery

35

2

49

18

45

122

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

1

22

191

ADDELAM ROAD

11

32
6

6

35

AD
DE

LA
M C

LO
SE

5

8

34a

43

El Sub Sta

19

47

2

27

46

MANOR ROAD

17

5

CLO
SE

65

132

1

24 25

32

Castle

117

239

13

50

269

23

30
 to

 35

19

MILL
DALE

 C
LO

SE

119

85

Pond

7

PI
LO

TS
 A

VE
NU

E

259

1

8

73

16

243

9

2

58

LTwr

BRUCE

79

5

Cottage

3

Stand

65

1

3b

DAVIS AVENUE

53

L Twr

13

5

GILH
AM G

ROVE

11

42

LTwr

29

ROAD

1

6.2m

1

79

40

3

57

LEAS ROAD

El Sub Sta

167

18

1

25

7

LB

Meadow

MANOR AVENUE

33
4

120

6

38

42

CHARLES

LTwr

4

The Rectory

19

109

L Twr

10

Pine Cottage

39

Muskoka

5

99

76

12

Green Gates

DAVIS AVENUE

38

Ashley

1 
to

 4

43

17
 to

 2
0

Wychwood

8.3m

Leyswood

LB

7.3m

Football Ground

2

34
4

Clevelands

Acorn Lodge

10.8m

23Gable Ends

1

102

30

3

35

War

300a

72

Pandora

235

339 12

Gaunt's

295

39

71

34

5

80

24
4

13

233

MANOR ROAD

301

31
8

24

311

11

1

329

1

Tayclif

Mausoleum

Ward Bdy

241

171

8

7

10
9

88

9

248

The Limes

74

Brickfield Cottages

66

PH

14

92

ST LEONARD'S ROAD

20

TRINITY PLACE

4

Church

249

3a

Wrenmar

80

L Twr

29

171

4

The

Hall

GAUNT'S C
LOSE

The Brambles

1to2

Graveyard

14

Hinton

9a

The Barn

42

288

96

Cherry

Fig Tree House

1

87

31

347

Track

31

15.1m

64

ST
 L

EO
NA

RD
'S

 R
OAD

19

Kelowna

19

Bramhall

12.2m

1

Tr
ac

k

10
7

44

49

78

Cottages

101

CR

76

317

MANOR AVENUE

El Sub Sta

137

86

25
0

42

3

Path (um)

41

112

100

7

31

4

30

16

57

Path

99

7a

37

4

6

10
5

98

40

Court

25
6

46

51

10

HAYW
ARD CLO

SE

50

62

87

325

Maycroft

(Deal Town FC)

5

14 to 22

62

353

69

56

23

1

4

42

LONDON ROAD

40

98

3

1

COURT

23

82
54

295a

8

293

140

78

21

2

2

20

39

206

53

90

49

25
4

297

136

29

312

294

32

319

55

8

34

23

Shelter

48

St Leonard's

38

96

75a

El

129

Meml

86

Sub Sta

70

64

38

Club

96
a

35

53

80

SYCAMORE DRIVE

Ga
rd

en
 M

ew
s

ST RICHARD'S ROAD

36

142

35

10

71

3

128

39

82
51

23

35

135

HO
M

ES
TE

AD

36

1 to 18

16

130

26

41

25

Sports Court

114

17

30

15

Sub Sta

32

35

94

58

67

90

Academy

27

Station

141
138

39

52

14

25

Pumping

110

19

16

131

Well Heads

11

Shelter

18

40

310

34

17

5a

Hillside

24

92

25

El Sub Sta

89

30

1

77

(C
hi

ld
re

ns
 N

ur
se

ry
)

Buil
de

rs 
Merc

ha
nts

9

33

47

Kirk
 G

ar
de

ns

12

13

64

28

108

36

1 t
o 4

48

Trinity Court

39

3

28

108

18c

204

Church
 Path

51

76

37

18

12

93

45

33

FW

1 to 8

19

72

55

86

1 t
o 8

13
6

46

6

Ya
rd

91

14

22

9

200

12

73

El Sub Sta

34

4

Tr
ee

to
ps

1a

Goodwin

El Sub Sta

1 to 8

Sports Pavilion

21

39

1 t
o 2

0

1 to 3

War Memorial

32

15

WATER TOWER PLACE

1 to 10

36

13

AV
EN

UE

El

14
6

1 t
o 6

60

93

Church

11
3

8

6

TORM
ORE PARK

1
5

105

7to10

DRUM M
AJO

R D
RIVE

HALS
TA

TT
 R

OAD

70

1

117

2

COWDRAY SQUARE

23.6m

24

602

6

1

2

32

27

64

FORELANDS SQUARE

26

18a

16

131

10

20

71

43

Pavilion

68

91

62

76

SY
DNEY

 R
OAD

GARDENS

2

58

War
d B

dy

95

Courtyard
38

17

19

86

16

TCB

6

49

JA
MES H

ALL
 G

ARDENS

8.5m

41

50

85

FREEMEN'S WAY

14

Pittock House

So
m

er
se

t C
ou

rt

Forelands House

21
1

18

210

4 18
8

El Sub Sta

35

10
9a

32
.8

m

El Sub Sta

48

4

11

HI
LL

CR
ES

T 
GAR

DE
NS

11

17a

ASTRID ROAD

1

54
a

51

9

35

1

14

Childrens

225

The Downs Church of England Primary School

28

Moreton Court

16
9

AV
EN

UE

DO
W

NS
 R

OAD

198

Ward Bdy

91.529

65

ST
OCKDALE

 G
ARDEN

S

32

27
4

50

12
2

227

Stone233a

Def

19

PW

2

TRINITY PLACE

9.5m

1

43

4

4

77

14

29

26

2a

24
 to

 29

76

1

7.9m

116

22

7.9m

10
 to

 15

21
7

1

1

LTwr

36

12

Charnwood

14

36

56

The Trees

Anchorage

111

7

319

Banbury

17

292

300

TCB

LB

202

88

60

92

50

66

25

3

50

43

52

10

6

52

37

78

139

66

12

7b

36

5

5

14

3

1 to 26

Sports Pavilion

AMH1 - Mill
Hill, South

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: AMH1 - Mill Hill, South Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.1 0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.40.05
KilometersPage 6

37



School
Ripplevale

Coldblow Farm

Cottage

21
5

Ripplebank House

28.6m

162

Cottage

Sub Sta

Sycamore

82

El

1

10

Tra
ck

36

Ripple Vale

44

202

2

11

Coldblow Farm

WILSON AVENUE

St Mary's Catholic

3

(Saint Mary's Convent)

ED &
 W

ard
 B

dy

83

150

CH

43

27
5

Und

57

LB

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

Ppg Sta

24.4m

Def

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

W
ILSON AVE

250a

Path (u
m)

252

Easterleigh

13.4m

26

April

23
1

Path
 (u

m)

Health Centre

26
1

220

69

12.7m

218

2

23
1a

232

FW

Cottage

23
5

250

Ripple View

CH

27
3

Whitebeam

260

ED & W
ard

 Bdy

ST RICHARD'S ROAD

22
3

1

21
9

27
3a

5

256a

Path (um)

25
5

Horseshoe

CR

238

222

122

24.8m

1

Mews

26
3

258

410

Dairy

31
7

CR

4

AVENUE

4

15
0

31a

30

1

Cottages

GLACK ROAD

31

17

354

44
1

15
2

18
0

1a

395a

67

Crystals

53

398

42

159

141

12

ST G
R

EG
O

RY'S C
LO

SE

2

13
2

14

118

28

30022.8m

7

ST FRANCIS

21.2m

28

70

37

15

RECTORY ROAD

2

15
6

134

17

1

ST RICHARD'S ROAD

126

170

M
ARTIN'S

51

15

ST AUGUSTINE'S ROAD

129

31
3

366

ROAD

9

298

109

136

120

Beech Court

164

11
4

8

31

11

CARTER

7

2

22

395

54

151

El

9

15
8

40
7

30

18

19

12
8

1

24

55

47

16

ST

22

1

15
4

147

50

CLOSE

294

119

36

Def

7

344

29
404

LITTLE AVENUE

MONGEHAM ROAD

148

41
3

40

12

ST EDMUND'S

392

5.5m

431

5

141

Path (um)

36

14

10

Ronaldene

15

127

419

40
9

142

Primary School

BB

Garage

125

149

Mongeham View

46 BRENCHLEY AVENUE

Tra
ck

111

145

6.0m

15

41

House

Sub Sta

27

ROAD

ED & Ward Bdy

167

60

95

CP

25.4m

107

BS

25

Beech Court

LB

378

Boundary Stone

28

113

16.9m

Def

ED & W
ard Bdy

Ellandune

16.2m

ST RICHARD'S ROAD

Tk F

15.1m

37

152

8

Path (um)

6.4m

The Dairy

Homedale

177

25

Parish Hall

14.6m

157

177a

41
3

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

FF

BS

Path (um
)

42
5 Def

179

446

447

31

Path (um)

30

181

1

Def

CL
OS

E

Great Mongeham

42
1

Belle Vue

LB

De
f

BB

Stone

KINGSLAND GARDENS

11

24

84

6

20

40
3

14

30

2

Farm

1

7

49

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

28

39
3

Church Farm

41
 to

 48

2

DOWNLANDS

St Richards Road

Cold Blow

1

6

122

MP 
92

.75

15.5m

13

38

Little Coogee

ST MARGARETS DRIVE

49

1

(Hall)

7

30

16
8

13

Presbytery

BS

2

29

23.6m

CP

Catholic Church

17

The Godric Centre

159

31

11

14

42
1a

14

46

19

50

15

38
5

3

2

1

ST RICHARD'S ROAD

31.4m

6

ROAD

the Evangelist

39
7

137

39

12
5

ELLENS ROAD

39
5

155

38

4

43

134

TH
O

M
PS

O
N

84
25

1

24

33

48

37
1

24
1

MARY ROAD

23

15

9

8

7

34

22
9

34.2m

11
9

12
3

St Richard's

28

CH

0.91m RH

10

5

Crossing

318

Sub Sta

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

31.6m

ED
 &

 W
ar

d 
Bd

y

31

28

1

Works

1

of St John

22.3m

21

26

9

16

95

22

8

12
4

4

101a

20

30.0m

21

47

96

2

25

2

57

33.8m

24

12
2

60

Church

7

49

23.9m

101b

21

3

1

82

Sports Ground

95

72

30

29

61

10

2

Track

39

MARLBOROUGH R
OAD

80

23

9

LB

21.8m

YE
W

 T
REE

 M
EW

S

49

2

157

146

19

4

35

1

59

22

59

The Firs

33

20

27

TO
RM

OR
E 

M
EW

S

CAVELL SQUARE

50

23

77

19.9m

54

127

27.4m

1

107

MILL HILL COURT

GATE 41

13

1

75

4

15

23.1m

109

10
5

47

9

67

39

78

10
0

CAVELL SQUARE

129a

CAVELL S
QUARE

77

El

17

9

97

Shelter

10

2

44

101

21

48

54

CAVELL SQUARE

23.4m

85

22.4m

68

50

7

31

LE
ANDER C

LO
SE

WILSON AVENUE

1a

(PH)

14

1b

Rockets

11
6

MILL
 H

ILL

19.2m

El Sub Sta

19

21

33

1

15

PW

80

W
INCHESTER M

EW
S

DAVIS AVENUE

18

1

49

FR
EEMEN'S W

AY

3

76

11
0

52

LB

10

39

1

19

40

133

7

91

44

28

The Mill Inn

34

23.5m

57

Shelter

68

1

79

13.6m

53

11 50

17

8

79

1

9

111

9

2

1

83

73

87

38

27

13

5

46

23

224

Garage
129

MILL HILL

24

9

48

256

18

15.8m

1

10

1

12

18

11
9

21.3m

81

38

CLARKE'S CLOSE

18

9

39

24

MILL H
ILL

1

7

5

22

22

20

4

18.4m

34

83

COWDRAY ROAD

42

5

2

50

El Sub Sta

COWDRAY SQUARE

43

23.6m

54

157

69

19

1

44

29

19.6m

Deal Welfare Club

Pullman

39

45

17

65

Allotment Gardens

11

Play Area

51

10

10.4m

6

25.5m

5

and Social Institute

BEVAN CLOSE

101

3

MP 92

42

TCB

4a

22

34

21.5m

74

412

14

31

51

10
7

26
9

THORNBRIDGE ROAD

6

95

FB

48

51

ARTH
UR R

OAD

14

19

CELTIC ROAD

(site of)

37

13

17

29

LA
-T

EN
E

16

9

1

2829

Shelter

BEAUCHAMP AVENUE

CLIFFORD GARDENS

25

92

257

23.5m

24
3

15

34

28.5m

8

LB

101

14

49

ST RICHARD'S ROAD

1

War
d B

dy

3

24
5

15

4

CR

22

1

33

THORNBRIDGE ROAD

66

72

16

36

Chapel

60

16

11

36

26.5m

QUERN ROAD

Eastlea

15

CLIF
FO

RD

84

11

17

SL

7

33

2

24.6m

43

12

28.8m

44

House

16

GARDENS

70

17

BELMONT

House

The Bungalow

NE
VI

LL

CL
OS

E

13

47

30

23

19

61

Sub Sta

52

12

6

16

20

21

52

23

The Firs

25

1

22.1m

51

1

74a

41

16

Millstone

STATION ROAD

3

El Sub Sta

22

15

27

TE
LE

GRAPH
 R

OAD

33

20b

111

80

JO
HN

 T
AP

PI
NG

30.1m

42

21a

32

87

71

1

5

9

12

25.2m

31

LB

37

36

10

32.9m

82

23

41

52

111

52

20a

4

41

67

3

WALMER GARDENS

33

2

11

17

22 36

2

16.1m

1

66

60

11

7

34.1m

21

39
7

7

12

17

17a

21

4

8

1

3

17

25

12

18

43

12

22

44

3

29

12

Stone

6

25

27

75

29
9

10

HILLCREST GARDENS

20

20

KE
NN

ET
T 

DR
IV

E

5

5

26

33

TCB

30

18

13.9m

15

23

1

38

(covered)

10
a

26

90

30

CR
O

SS
 R

O
AD

36

15

43

10
9

Dossett Court

30

88

2

107

22

4

34

14

1

65

2
9

4

THE CONIFERS

24

26

26

30.2m

93

390

14

28.9m

1

Play Area

20

13

W
ALMER

40

67

57

13

53

36

22

24

Walmer Court

28
a

24

22a

66

57

20

5

32

6

12

10

44

10
1

4

89

17

113

Old Church

45

50

117

Walmer Court

2a

2

Water Tower

CO
UR

T 
RO

AD

15

21

15

87

Walmer Court

FS

19a

18

Lodge

Lych Gate

CHURCH

El

to

CR

103

17

24

3

19

CR
O

SS
 R

O
AD

25

33

1

LYD
IA R

O
A

D

10

1

72

47

44

St
at

io
n 

Co
tta

ge
s

115

14

El

52

Centre

83

88

56

1

23.8m

LB

41

95

12

M
EN

ZI
ES

 A
VE

NU
E

ROAD

82

5
20

13

53

47
52

10

6

STATION ROAD

12
a

76

77

2

96

99a

MP 92.5

Eastside House

29

1

15

1

110

49

18

49

Surgery

35

42

65

13

25

7

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

24.0m

20.1m

112

122

Allotment Gardens

114

109

10

6

ST J
AMES C

LO
SE

90

3a

El Sub Sta

86

61

20

5

17

6

76

Court

34a

65

Sh
an

no
n 

Br
ee

ze

10

ESS

29

107

46

24

1

16
0

CO
UR

T 
RO

AD

20.1m

132

ELLENS

50

114a

127

Castle

43

37

19

1

15

81

C
O

LD
B

LO
W

5

16

12

81

PI
LO

TS
 A

VE
NU

E

El Sub Sta

DAVIS AVENUE

30

58

7a

Riding

42

25

65

12
a

17.4m

3

ADDELAM

6

5

25

ST
AT

IO
N 

DR
IV

E

55

1

Ward Bdy

38

51

CR

El Sub Sta

59

109

1

64

Mews

FW

61

120

2

5

48

65

The Rectory

90

12

23

10

76

ROAD

1 
to

 4

80

76

YEW TREE CLOSE

85

10
4

41

34
4

11

35

LANCELOT CLOSE

67

DAVIS AVENUE

102

1

58

34

ELIZABETH

Pandora

2

17
 to

 2
0

35

75

49

34

22

27

75

MANOR ROAD

66

117

35

11

269

33

AD
DE

LA
M C

LO
SE

241

15

23

9

85

74

Brickfield Cottages

8

259

106

56

TRINITY PLACE

385

9

59

71

19

94

64

79

11
a

The

27

9

80

8.1m

13

3b

18

Lamorna

119

1

11

ADDELAM ROAD

BRUCE

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

7

79

1

14

47

32
6

32

GILH
AM G

ROVE

LB

249

5

25

Path

29

32 23

1

73

MILL
DALE

 C
LO

SE

Path

9a

40

2

7

Broadfields

18

Cottage

31

8

Sub Sta

33
4

53

Path (um)

31

243

4

Sports Club

Bowling Green

3

99

ED & Ward Bdy

28
7

38

7

8.3m

20

Play Area

2

Path (um)

27
7

Gable Ends

286

72

128

Path (um)

Path

1

32

39

Cottages

2a

30

3a

135

Trystar

Path

4

85a

2

87a

Scrap Yard

12

ED & Ward Bdy

41

2

5

19

Hillside

10

Su
bw

ay

39
9

44
42

76

77

27
7a

26

54

137

153 155

Solar Panels

41

140

27

1

34

39

52

100

49

0.
91

m
 F

F

143

89

32

47

37

Shelter

28

117

129

12

40

El

11

4538

37

62

4a

19

57

51

86

ST RICHARD'S ROAD

Cambrian

36

36

ED & Ward Bdy

14 to 22

18

46

31

14

40

8

14

41

23

8

12

58

32

78

23

5

141

34

131

6

136

Chartwell

25

12

35

Kirk
 G

ar
de

ns

4

Old Apple

130

4a

57

21

13
138

(PH)

32

155a

25

18

75a

16

18

2

86

BB

86

8

Sports Pavilion

7

55

35

2

Path (um)

29

24

38

Ga
rd

en
 M

ew
s

Def

30

Three

Gas Gov

64

10

33

18

Hillcrest

142

48

1

FW

93

23

WATER TOWER PLACE
Tree Yard

91

16

13

35

12

21

13

As
hw

el
l

24

145

1

8a

Pond

82

RI
PP

LE
 W

AY

Ya
rd

Sewage Pumping Station

2a
 to

 2
f

150

61

20

CR

4

MILLERS ROAD

15

4

8

20

Station

6

Pond

1 to 5

M
IL

LE
RS

 R
O

AD

39

25

2

20

ED & Ward Bdy

16

Horse Shoes

Elmo's

1

3

10

El Sub Sta

JU
TE

 FI
ELD

S

32

W
alm

er
 (S

ta
tio

n)

7

35.2m

Clifford Park

6

24

34

42

17

Trinity Court

11

1 
to

 8

El Sub Sta

DO
VE

R 
RO

AD

14
9

39

42
3

48

Stone

10

13

El Sub Sta

19

145

2

37

108

13
6

22

ELLENS ROAD

39

14.5m

15

36

AV
EN

UE

14
6

60

53

93

Church51

11
3

2

103

8

6

72

TORM
ORE PARK

30

1

75

85

89

5

11

105

7to10

DRUM M
AJO

R D
RIVE

HALS
TA

TT
 R

OAD

70

1

117

2

COWDRAY SQUARE

23.6m

24

Track

Church

602

TB

6

15
4

1

ELLEN'S HILL

2

32

10

27

64

FORELANDS SQUARE

26

18a

16

131

10

20

71

43

Pavilion

68

91

62

76

SY
DNEY

 R
OAD

GARDENS

2

58

FREEMEN'S WAY

26

8

64

27

43
7

C
O

LD
B

LO
W

17

Play Area

23

35

10
9a

GOODWIN CLOSE

32
.8

m

1

El Sub Sta

1

48

34

4

15
6

11

13
0

HI
LL

CR
ES

T 
GAR

DE
NS

11

17a

RE
DS

UL
L

ASTRID ROAD

1

54
a

LEIVERS

51

14
2

9

37

35

19

1

33

14

Sub Sta

STR
EET

27

of St Mary

225

62

42

65

70

122

32
MAY

ER
S 

RO
AD

27

30

19

11
2

PW

DOUGLAS ROAD

2

7

TRINITY PLACE

165

11

1

50

43

101

6

4

4

77

14

29

26

2a

24
 to

 29

76

1

TOLL

7.9m

116

22

UPPER DEAL

7.9m

64

10
 to

 15

21

1

7

1

79

1

72

1to6

11to14

27
9

1

30a

5

Path (um
)

2

28
1

76

85

1

88

8

62

40
1

88

56

60

58

33

14

67

92

83

74

84

66

9

25

COWDRAY SQUARE

50

23

43

SELWAY COURT

69

52

115

10

FR
EDERIC

K R
OAD

6

Bronze Age Settlement

139

57

10
a

64

10

69

Cricket Ground

36

68

5

79

14

24.2m

CELTIC ROAD

7

CO
UR

T 
RO

AD

3

12

A to
 D

2

14

56

(Caravan Site)

36

22

54

19

El

The Lodge

10

29 2

23

FAIRVIEW GARDENS

38

1

30

LY
DI

A 
RO

AD

41

23
21

34.9m

28

56
a

Reservoir 40

36

W
AY

Sub Sta

(remains of)

77

RE
AD

IN
G

 C
LO

SE

27.8m

10

2

17

20

63

58

Malmedy

44

1

40

SY
DN

EY
 R

OA
D

26

83a

108

4a

69

11

25

71

24

4

23

55

37

The Coach House

45

31

134

63

11

MANOR CLOSE

59

42

1

45

11

43

2

CLO
SE

1

239

30
 to

 35

Pond

16

Maple Cottage

Path (um)

Bettshanger

87

Willowdene

13

11

30

1

101

42

31

87

56 82

21

90

8

80

39

36

San
 Ja

n J
oh

Path (um
)

55

Pumping

Well Heads

Path (um)

Tra
ck

40

12

MONGEH
AM W

AY

1

21

30

1a to 1e

Buil
de

rs 
Merc

ha
nts

Flodden Road (Path)

AMH2 - Mill
Hill, North

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: AMH2 - Mill Hill, North Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.15 0 0.15 0.3 0.45 0.60.07
KilometersPage 7

38



Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: AMH3 - Mill Hill, West
Dover District Council
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
Dover
CT16 3PJ

AMH3 - Mill
Hill, West

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.15 0 0.15 0.3 0.45 0.60.07
Kilometers

Page 8

39



34

25a

36

1

Community

23

19
a

25b

21

89

27

18

10to12

Centre

Arsenal

20

2

17a

4

14
7

5

32

Terrace

91

2

Sandown

3

4

6

24

10

27

25

33

1a

62

38

17

18

1.9m

G
arage

27
24

109

33

62

55

19

20

5

G
O

LF R
O

A
D

3.8m

20

11

14

86

113

11

11

53

5

49

30

43

115

7

44

32

ENFIELD ROAD

12

7

15

84a

12

110

The Old Timberyard Terrace 19

19a

21

3

Dr
ain

Sandfield Farm

61

63

72

40

1

THE FAIRWAY

106

35
a

31

76

Sorting Office

Dra
in

48

82

49

GRAYLEN CLOSE

18

PH

10

6

77

LEA

1

47

3

65

Drai
n

Drain

74 to 78

73

40

12

Drain

6.4m

OUTDOWNS

69

2

1

80

4

BEACH STREET

69

4

Leisure Centre

79

STANHOPE ROAD

18

30

75

10

4

62

1

4

56

MARKET

67

52

63

21

52

13

the Retired

17
1

1a

11

Beacon

Shingle

1a

Royal

Groyne

9

71

Groyne

1

61

Shingle

1

15
7

3

5

70

Beacon

64

Shingle

10

1

5

Shingle

Shingle

8

13

VER
N

O
N

 PLA
C

E

124

Shingle

2.7m

16
5

Groyne

1

196

LB

106

2

12

DRIVE9

GODWYN ROAD

Shingle

Allotment Gardens

6

B
ETH

A
N

Y C
LO

SE

10

9

C
LO

SE

19

3

3

5

26

116

W
AL

CH
ER

EN

11

5 
to

 8

House

2

7

12

HAROLD ROAD

52

17

9

1

4
3

41 to 52

29

4

Dane

25

10

4

14

SO
UBERG

 CLO
SE

1

K
IN

G
 ED

W
A

R
D

 R
O

A
D

W
ES

TE
RH

OU
T 

CL
OS

E

12

6a

12

3.2m

2.9m

62

21

7

7

4

6

2

14

9

29

16

54

34

2.8m

AVENUE

11

4

5a

1

CENTURY WALK

1

2

81

12

GG

11

52

1

1

YO
U

N
G

 C
LO

SE

10

87

15

4a

7

6

65

9

82

29

2

Anchor

85

HOMEFIELD

11

12

CLOSE

89

112

El Sub Sta

7

5

2

LC

48

3

Track

8

38

Mast (Telecommunication)

67

W
ard Bdy

50

1to
4

1

7

24

5

1

1

13

47

2

66

51

1

62

23

31

18

39

MATTHEWS CLOSE

54

30

63

83

PH

34

22c

14

2.1m

ST
 A

ND
RE

W
'S

 R
O

AD

2

68

1

9

27

53

11

Drain

ST DAVID'S ROAD

45

56

5

ST GEORGE'S ROAD

20

34

68

24

ST
 P

AT
RI

CK
'S

 R
O

AD

16

45

26

Sunnyside Cotts

22b

17

4

5

PATRICKS

31

ST

23

39

3

5

66

38

11

12

15

2.
8m

El Sub Sta

31

M
P 90.5

14

10
6

49

39

11

21

1

32

90

LB

Hall

14

2

37

32

40

55

W
EST STR

EET

Hall

61

6

18

4.7m

Dra
in

4.2m

12
6

31

FB

M
useum

85

7

24

Def

CD

Linden

28

CD

38

9

Car Park

Drai
n

3.3m

Car Park

1.3m

5.3m

Drai
n

1

SOUTHWALL ROAD

MP 89.75

32

4.9m

Drain

2

CD

6

Drain

5

Dra
in

42

1Kennels Farm

NORTHWALL ROAD

27

21

88

Deal Town Dike

Drain

2.2m

2.7m

Drain

26b

Drain

W
ard Bdy

47

22

24

CR

120a

86

Drai
n

31
a

Drain

26

1

3 to 8

Drain

20

94

102

29b

87

23

Car Park

10

Pond

11
6

1.6m

BREWER

Drain

73

Pelican

Dr
ain

1

104

8

41

OAK STREET

Dr
ai

n

Drain

28a

1

3

31

31

11
3a

93

99

New

FB

93

198

LC

5

The

1

6

51

Place

199a

Royal Hotel

Lodge

68abc
72a

W
ard Bdy

Ivy Place

16

The O
ld

PH

68

Globe Cottage

MP 90

3

120

199a

15
7

10

85

Dr
ain

18
2

House

77

GOLDEN STREET

112

32

154

14
7

12a

H
IG

H
 STR

EET

25

9

2

11

6

160

1

6

150

3

7a

1

Maritime

1b

10

1

29

126

Shelter

17

12
9

7

100

188

94

Sub Sta

11

18

1
20

1
2

2

3a

18
1

1a

1

20
1

The Courtyard

2a

9

164

SILVER STREET

9

14
to

21

1c

70a

17

18
5

12

13

21

ALFRED SQUARE

4.7m

19
9

6.7m

7

92

1

2

1

14

42

5

1c

98

18
3

11
9

4 6.5m

19

Cottages

Prince W
illiam

 Court

4

10

3a

1

GRIFFIN STREET

11
7

8

3b

8

33

15

17b

1

Sub

13

19
3

6.5m

1a

130

Place

2.4m

CO
LLEG

E RO
AD

14
3

Nursery

Hall

5to8

30

LB

4

16

2

Cottage

18a67

6

2

6.1m

158

Woodbine

G
arage

134

17

17a

El Sub Sta

El

Cottage

LB

43

15

14

27

23

17

Ppg Sta

36

102

Forge View

12
1

135

Sandown

1 
to

 6

12
3

19

11

1

14a

Prospect

Place

54

Sandown

5

14
4

75

25

2.8m

37

12

1

7 to 16

1

103

St Andrew's

WEST LEA

4

6

27

21

19

60

55

2

3

1

5

57

6

M
ID

D
LE STR

EET

26

12
7

133

BULW
ARK RO

AD

122

20

PRINCES STREET

Lawn

Sandown School

4

47

3.3m

32b

17
to

20

30

RO
BERT STREET

34

13to16

27

12

14
0

18

80

20

North Deal Playing Field

35

9

24

18

Battersea Cottage

4.5m

14

24

77

2.5m

70

2

7

32

Gerald Palmby Court

160

29

4.9m

87

Church

NELSO
N STREET

45

1

22

W
ES

TE
RN

 R
OA

D

30

2

10

25

19

1

6

13

21

31

1 
to

 1
0

70

13

11

47

3

164

1

32a

Station

PH

39

Trinity

13

26

2

W
esley Hall 28

4.0m

Works

36

60

87
a

24

4.4m

99

DUKE STREET

Basketball Court

69a

2

3.3m

29

(Telecommunication)

7

9a

2

12

60

48

Dr
ai

n

W
ard Bdy

50

71

28

61

2.4m

30

12

5

Church

10

5

3

El Sub Sta

92

69

15

45c

28

CLARENCE PLACE

46

67

33

45b

1

Merchant

35

44

Mast

14a

35

Drain

1

104a

22

90

4

Nelson

7

18

104b

1

113

1

31

15
4

Sydcot H
ouse

7

17

MP 90.25

25

14
2

7

12

47

31

8

14

66

81

1

40

24

39

14

AV
EN

UE

50

74

109

58

COURTENAY ROAD

7

2

53

36

UNION ROAD

1

14

Dr
ai

n

87

111

13
8

9to12

LIN
K

S R
O

A
D

30

3

104

WEST STREET

ARK LANE

84

44

8

Play Area

18

6

Vet Surg

79

1

FR
IE

ND
S 

CL
O

SE

21

2

7

11

7

9

13

63

3

Builders

53

El

6

158

NORTH

CLOSE

NORTHWALL MEWS

32

12
8

Sub Sta

170

57

15

56

19

18
3

118

11

PETER STREET

NORTHWALL ROAD

9

45

3

31

El Sub Sta

88

2

1

59

17

152a

18

5

Groyne

69

2

144a

33

28

79

39

12
7

89

57

Builders

2.9m

65

Pow
der

100

144

8

26

Cottage

84

12

M
ean Low

 W
ater

10

Bede

4

17
9

SP

9

12
1

SA
N

D
O

W
N

 R
O

A
D

1

4

18

25
Sydcot Lodge

12
5

31a

152

37

12

17

44

HENGIST ROAD

66

27

Merchant

ROAD

1

77
a

Court

38

8

LANGTON8

69

6

Dunstan

2

10
9

52

2.7m

3.0m

11

15

16
9

77

PA
VILI

ON

Shingle

150

Club

5

Shelter

CLOSE

5

57

45

50

B
EC

K
ET

 C
LO

SE

47

58

22

16

2

50

69

2

80

8

93

13
7MILLER CLOSE

Drai
n

1

148

15

2

12
5

2

9

62

21

20

23

5

1

Groyne

81

21

16

6.7m

79

134

90

50

11
9

GOLF ROAD

18

27

122

16
7

THE M
ARINA

99

Beacon

3.2m

Drain

Shelter

Sta

74

1

Shingle

7

2

72

4

15
7

G
O

LF R
O

A
D

2

71

Mary Hougham Almshouses

5.6m

7

Court

12

152

1

72

6a

1

Groyne

87

8

25

4.1m

6

1

7

2.7m

3a

11

6.7m

Groyne

5

Lloyd

16

85

1

3

12

4

17
9

TCB

15

1

9

2

19
9

204

FARRIER STREET

CANNON STREET

1

HIG
H STREET

LB

B
EA

C
H

 STR
EET

Boat House Cottage

El Sub

9

20
5

SYDENHAM ROAD

14
5

110

32

Groyne

1

12

12

CO
LLEG

E RO
AD

G
EO

R
G

E STR
EET

14

38

12

17
7

1

EXCHANGE STREET

Shingle

14

70

16
5

7

49

31

59

206

1

164

Groyne

Court

NORTH STREET

1

The Firs

35

116

3.0m

14
9

5

1

HAROLD ROAD

1

1a

Shingle

5

17

15

22

Groyne

ALBION

98

2

1

33

2

110

6.4m

19
3

18

13
3

6

BRIDGE ROAD

Groyne

68

Shingle

19

Shingle

106

1

1

93

SYDCOT DRIVE

54

19

Cannery

Marina

116

16

Shingle

6

Shelter

86

Centre for

75

Shingle

14
7

1 to 12

6.2m

SANDO
W

N RO
AD

12

Shingle

ST GEORGE'S ROAD

74

26

STREET

58

7t
o1

3

8

77

382.9m

Shingle

Club

3.7m
112

96

89a

160

13

11
5

80
2a

81

1

13
1

136

120

St George's Church

GRIFFIN STREET

3.0m

PH

Pine Cottage

St G
eorge's

66a

8a

87

Deal

7

60

17
1

4

66

CHAPEL STREET

Shingle

5.1m

6

Shingle

to

Surgery

132

1

40

Car Park

10
5

114

3.5m

4

66

1 to 4

Ho
us

e

ROW

83

4.0m

TCBs

3.2m

Def

65

Shingle

16

10

16a

Groyne

Shingle

Beacon

86

4

Parish H
all

6.0m

19

Shingle

Shingle

13

8

4.7m

4

VLISSINGEN

3.9m

Vicarage

11

13
7

2

6

3.0m

1

14

4

ROAD

12

14

5

13
1

45

1

TCB

Groyne

82

Groyne

19

46

2

Court

Shingle

9

2.9m

3.9m

36

3.1m

Shingle

ETHELBERT ROAD

6

78

44

35

39

74

Shingle

14
9

40

8

32

6

122

20
5

2

36

37

20
3

18

4.0m

De
f

ETHELBERT ROAD

Shingle

50

5.3m

1

REDHOUSE WALL

BRITANNIA ROAD

22

LB

13

2

14

Drain

Shingle

23

G
O

LF RO
AD

33

5.5m

48

CANUTE

83

Sub

LB

5

18

Barns Close

20

Drain

70

2

2.7m

Beacon

Groyne

Court

10

75

ATHELSTAN PLACE

22

Shingle

21 to 30

10
7

21
5

77

55

19

Groyne

Shingle

Links Court

16b

Groyne

Play Area

36

Groyne

Shingle

Tank

9 
to

 2
0

11
5

Drain

1

5 to 15

SM

138

102

3.4m

19

Drain

ROAD

55

89

42

11

FB

Drain

COPPIN STREET

23

Sub Sta

B Slope

Path (um)

Shingle

10
1

3.6m

El

Pumping

73

C
oppin C

ottage

El

M
ean Low W

ater

Sub Sta

Station

Sluice

5

87

27
3

12

21
3

Tourist

Groyne

Tank (cov)

SA
N

D
O

W
N

 R
O

A
D

1 to 4

22
3

Shingle

22a

2

182

Drain

7

24
7

21

45

Shingle

W
ard Bdy

2

Drain

8

61

8

23
1

42

53

6 8

1

12

79

Electricity

FF

84

106

53

Shingle

Distribution Site

22

57

19
1

Shingle

17
3 

17
5

11a

55

73

Shingle

Dr
ain

(Hall)

18
9

38

2

Shingle

10

156

Mariner's

136

NO
RT

HW
AL

L

7

22

2 4

184

22

12

Court

20a

49

8a

32

186

3

Coastguard

79

7

A
LFR

ED
 R

O
W

1

94

8

SOUTHWALL ROAD

Lodge

6

5
38

42

22

Drain

Little Acre

Minters In
dustria

l E
state

5

Drain

71

1

72

48

Shingle

M
ean High W

ater

Groyne

Shingle

18
9

Pa
th

THE DROVEWAY

CANUTE ROAD

67

162

30

Centre

50

Deal

20
9

Tr
ac

k

4

2

18

13

Groyne

30

View

57a

Centre

7

Groyne

CO
UR

T

Nursery

Business

33

20

13

Shingle

Blinkbox

COURT MARSH ROAD

68

Lookout

51

1

1QU
IN

N 
CL

OS
E

1 3

El Sub Sta

Track

26

PO
PL

AR
 D

RI
VE

Enterprise

11

92

87
b

SB

48

LY
DD

EN
 C

LO
SE

Station

B Slope

Factory

19
3

O
dd Fellow

s Alley

18

41

1a

Meml

51

104

Landmark

Arms

Police

Sub

War

M
ean High W

ater

Car Park

Castle Walk

4.2m

18
7

Close

52

Sta

35

Childrens

Goodwin

26

77

Factory

W
AL

LE
RS

 R
OA

D

Five Step Alley

64

1 to 8

5 7

7

Factory

2

COURT M
ARSH

 R
OAD

PH

2

25

1

The

2

8

16

18
7

2

23

18

ESS

11b

N
orth Prom

enade

PH

Portobello Court

Church House

64 to 66

60

18

Shingle

N
or

th
 P

ro
m

en
ad

e

George Alley

21
 to

 2
4

8

1 
to

 1
0

1

Alley

16

24

Buckthorn

29

12

29a

Kent Museum of th
e Moving Image

17

1

Drai
n

1

South

Miniature Rifle Range

35

110

9

W
ood Yard

3

Custom House Lane

Centre

15
5

60

108a

Dea
l B

us
ine

ss
 Park

2

C
anute W

alk

11

2.0m

Shingle

52

90c

47

7

14
9a

4

5

11

Shingle

Shingle

3

1

8

Groyne

67

83

HORSA ROAD

85

12

1b

14

6.6m

2

2

Court

71

PC

81

49

11

STREET

Court

42

4

2

1 to 44

69

49

20

37

3

2

64The Old Cottage

24

W
es

le
ya

n

13

77

GODWYN ROAD

17

Groyne

60

Groyne

SANDOWN CLOSE

40
26

140

42

31 to 40

54

32

84
96

Def

Drain

Drain

Signal Post

21

15
 to

 2
0

Waste Recycling Centre

SL

Store

15
2

92a

70c

Orion Cottage

3

138

108

CAPSTAN

19
7

DOLPHIN STREET

1t
o6

155

7

Car Park

6

19

17

W
es

te
rn

 H
ou

se

Sta

Sta

58

9

2.6m

REDHOUSE WALL

13

Beacon

31a

57

TH
E

Groyne

31

26
9

23
3

15

Shingle

12

14

8a

44

53a

4.1m

82

19
5a

19
5

17

Drain

Chalet

Dr
ain

WATER STREET

18a

Goodwin

23

Le

17

33
a

1 
to

 7

33

Court

11
 to

 1
5

35

18

22

40

89

43

8

63

CR

28

Deal Town Dike

Stone
81

87

54

Deal Tow
n Dike

1

3

Sandown Farm

2

1

1

46

38

25

3

8

146

Shingle

10

182

158

Shingle

202

LANFRANC

200

4

Drain

West Lea

THE M
ARINA

Old

32

15

21

34

2

8

Southwall

29

12
1

Dr
ai

n

6

Tr
ac

k

27

37

11
a

18

65

37

13

El

DIBDIN ROAD

North

1

26

Kings

CANNON STREET

19

10

Saxons C
lose

52

5 to 11

32

81

5

Gas Holder

157

10

El

PH

PH

3

6

NEW STREET

1

9

176

5.
3m

6

The Old

16
9

3.7m

69

5.9m

Shingle

Groyne

10
5

59

25

19
9

4a

21

Astor

108

72

9

63

KING STREET

M
ID

D
LE STR

EET

Theatre

96

11

12
7

The M
arina

Shingle

4.1m

11

Shingle

CD

2

El

1

Golf

13
5

16

38

Drain

Redhouse Wall Farm

Und

FB

Shingle

48

14

78

Groyne

105a

2

Tr
ac

k

Path (um)

Inform
ation

24

46

7

14

8

6

44

5

Place

14

Complex

Industrial Estate

22

17

St George's Passage

1 to 4

Custom House Lane

AN1 - North
Deal, Sandown

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: AN1 - North Deal, Sandown Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.1 0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.40.05
KilometersPage 9

40



Community

25b 25a

36

1

23

34

19
a

Centre

10to12

18

27

20

89
7

21

32

4

6

14

24

17

Terrace
Arsenal

17a

3

4

5

1

25

24

1a

2

30

5

WEST LEA

1.9m

27

33

Sandown

14

ENFIELD ROAD

27

G
O

LF R
O

A
D

G
arage

43

86

7

GRAYLEN CLOSE

60

10

11

77

19

15

19

OUTDOWNS

17

57

4

63

20

19a

49

62

35
a

26

Leisure Centre

3.8m

18

12

LEA

53

BULW
ARK RO

AD

10

11

1

31

47

69

32

20

48

18

73

7

52

The Old Timberyard Terrace

35

80

1

6

3

21

70

13

STANHOPE ROAD

74 to 78

21

1

40

31

6.4m

1

Sorting Office

10

Station
17

1

75

10

4

Shingle

the
Retired

PH

2

3

15
7

87
a

Royal

12

65

16
5

69

71

Shingle

5

BEACH STREET

69a

MARKET

LB

52

61

2

79

124

2.7m

DRIVE

Beacon

4

Shingle

106

81

9

Shingle

67

8

72

B
ETH

A
N

Y C
LO

SE

3

64

1a

196

5

Shingle7

House

3

1

HAROLD ROAD

6

Groyne

SO
UBERG

 CLO
SE

17

9

10

7

4

Groyne

2.9m

12

1

6a

14

7

12

3.2m

11

Dane

29

1

16

Mast (Telecommunication)

K
IN

G
ED

W
A

R
D

 R
O

A
D

24

11

50

VLISSINGEN

CENTURY WALK

2

27

47

91

39

14

39

PH

2

CLOSE

M
P 90.5

26

7

48

62

ST DAVID'S ROAD

Drain

2

PATRICKS

30

1

ST

14

37

14

12

LC

13

15

24

49

31

53

1

51

14

9

49

3.3m

68

MATTHEWS CLOSE

1

LB

66

1

2

34

10
6

M
useum

5

24

9

32

28

2.1m

2

88

13

OAK STREET

5

Car Park

Hall

2

87

60

16

32

4.7m

5

11
6

42

ST GEORGE'S ROAD

31

21

38

93

31

84

4

Car Park

49

9

93

2.2m

96

2.
8m

Lodge

70a

6

90

1

Store

11

The O
ld

92

72a

6

68abc

15

W
EST STR

EET

2

98

120

61

68

112
92a

Globe Cottage

10

85

3a

77

70c

18
2

H
IG

H
 STR

EET

120a

4.2m

9

3b

Orion Cottage

14
7

94

1

1

7

3

1b

Maritime

38

CO
LLEG

E RO
AD

11

138
126

30

7

4.9m

108

6.1m

10

2

12
9

New

134

CAPSTAN

2a

3

LB

73

19
7

188

The

1c

27

1

DOLPHIN STREET

120
1

Royal Hotel

4.7m

12
1

99
1t

o6

1

17

SILVER STREET

155

PH

5

1

Sub Sta

18
5

3

Place

85
18

3

2

7

7

Ivy Place

1

Prince W
illiam

 Court

House

20
1

5

199a

Car Park

5

8

19

9

12a

154

6

15

6

GRIFFIN STREET

160

M
ID

D
LE STR

EET

19

12

13

17

19
3

12
7

21

130

14
3

W
es

te
rn

 H
ou

se

6

16

1

6

7a

122

Sta

4

12
3

1

58

Lawn

29

1c

14a

2

Sandown School

2.6m

11

Cottages

13

G
arage

Place

17
to

20

31a

8

Sandown

18
1

El Sub Sta

Shelter

13to16

TH
E

14
4

Sub

15

North Deal Playing Field

2.8m

164

100

2.4m

31

36

14

17

1

15

7 to 16

Hall

19

160

6.7m

12

42

2

45

6.5m

1a

4.1m

158

St Andrew's

10

1

1

6

ALFRED SQUARE

6

17a

17

33

Prospect

11

19

2

14

Chalet

WATER STREET

4

Forge View

23

2

4

PH

54

1a

5

11
7

Le

LB

75

3.3m

18a

6.5m

25

30

17

11

18

El

Nursery

12

33
a

Ppg Sta

1

67

47

15

1 
to

 7

Battersea Cottage

Sandown

17

103

RO
BERT STREET

14a

4.9m

33

80

43

W
ES

TE
RN

 R
OA

D

12

77

102

4

Court

1 
to

 1
0

24

31

1 
to

 6

7

164

2.5m

11
 to

 1
5

14
2

Church

21

30

13

Gerald Palmby Court

35

30

AV
EN

UE

55

20

29

Works

18

1

111

4

13

22

4.4m

32a

25

22

34

3.3m

21

ARK LANE

26

4.5m

40

47

7

14
0

36

89

Vet Surg 39

5

18

48

43

24

11

28

CLARENCE PLACE

50

2

8

2

53

NELSO
N STREET

99

12
8

1

63

2.4m

2

PETER STREET

2

13

29

35

10

El Sub Sta

28

3

El Sub Sta

90

71

81

Trinity

(Telecommunication)

28

18

28

Nelson

W
esley Hall

33

87

15
4

12

25

65

Deal Tow
n Dike

67

113

84

60

31

44

1

25

Drain

24

Basketball Court

17

17

1

3

109

4

9a

12

Merchant

53

Sandown Farm

1

104b

66

28

2

1

LANGTON

Sydcot H
ouse

5

14

MILLER CLOSE

13
8

92

8

46

2

Merchant
58

WEST STREET

1

1

UNION ROAD

7

18

1

36

14

63

104a

NORTH

1

9to12

7

18

14

46

Play Area

3

74

1

57

7

Beacon

7

38

8

NORTHWALL ROAD

9

LIN
K

S R
O

A
D

47

1

NORTHWALL MEWS

59

21

25

6

81

G
O

LF R
O

A
D

56

7

33

8

2

39

25

3

Builders

45

146

69

COURTENAY ROAD

6

Cottage

Shingle

11

13

87

Sydcot Lodge

39

ROAD

Pow
der

32

12

El

19

182

9

9

Sub Sta

85

8

88

18
Shingle

18
3

104

18

12

4

LANFRANC

15

27

2

3

4

8
5

Groyne

89

THE M
ARINA

B
EC

K
ET

 C
LO

SE

1

12
7

144

Drai
n

44

6

100

8

2.7m

10

21

1

1

PA
VILI

ON

M
ean Low

 W
ater

SA
N

D
O

W
N

 R
O

A
D

6

7

CLOSE

12
5

21

Boat House Cottage

44

158

90

17
9

16

38

110

170

27

1

12
1

2 118

93

CO
LLEG

E RO
AD

ALBION

16
9

15231

17
7

9

110

11
a

Shingle

1

2

Groyne

7

SYDCOT DRIVE

65

5

Dunstan

13

1

11

134
152a

47

Club

The Firs

DIBDIN ROAD

50

50

144a

80

22

2

15

1

122

6

23

26

Drain

1

62

CANNON STREET

57

GOLF ROAD

10

14
7

16

5

Shingle

79

Shingle

8

2

99

27
1

52

15
7

Bede

18

74

3.2m

Court

Court

32

1

Mary Hougham Almshouses

3.1m

Groyne

1

7

81

16

152

39

71

5

31a

Gas Holder

75

1

6.2m

157

1

2

3.7m

2.7m

15

B
EA

C
H

 STR
EET

HENGIST ROAD

13
1

4.1m

10

14
5

ATHELSTAN PLACE

CANNON STREET

77
a

3.0m

6.7m

32

El

55

SYDENHAM ROAD

8a

1

PH

G
EO

R
G

E STR
EET

69

1

17
1

17
9

36

PH

9

52

4

14

3

EXCHANGE STREET

FARRIER STREET

77

6

51

14

9

49

Shelter

6

1

35

12

4.2m

31

NEW STREET

58

3.5m

15

1

26

12

1

69

ROW

33

5

6

70

8

3.2m

9

206

17

148

64

68

176

10

20

1

Groyne

7

5.
3m

106

6.7m

13
3

6.0m

116

11
9

PH

54

6

19

8

16
7

The Old

Shingle

HAROLD ROAD

16
9

Shelter

Shingle

11

2

3.7m

12

19

22

4

4

23

69

7t
o1

3

Shelter

5.6m

PH

5

5.9m

38
SANDO

W
N RO

AD

6a

18

Groyne

112

Shingle

Shingle

26

1 8

11
5

3.9m

120

12

Marina

78

1

1

Groyne

14
9

Pine Cottage

110

86

8

2.7m

10
5

37

15
5

59

1 to 12

60

Club

Shingle

Lloyd

108a

25

136

160

5.1m

12

BRITANNIA ROAD

2

4a PH

21

19
9

11

132

Astor

Shingle

2a

66a

108

Shingle

114

LB

5.5m

72

16

47

1 to 4

GRIFFIN STREET

20
5

9

LB

86

14
9a

4.0m

Groyne

7

2

19

38

63

11

16a

10

Shingle

KING STREET

4.7m

Shingle

Shingle

10
7

Parish H
all

59

M
ID

D
LE STR

EET

16b

6

Court

13

3

Shingle

Theatre

14

14
9

11
5

Vicarage

Groyne

40

96

1

98

82

4

102
HORSA ROAD

11

6.4m

83

89

12

8

65

12
7

Groyne

8

COPPIN STREET

Groyne

6.6m

93

10
1

42

53

Shingle

2

105a

116

C
oppin C

ottage

17
3 

17
5

84

71

13
7

2

Centre
for

87

10

57
81

ST GEORGE'S ROAD

Tr
ac

k

STREET

Lookout

ROAD

22

Inform
ation

2

Track

77

STREET

13
1

20a
24

92

89a

19

184

4

79

18

7

81

9

49

8

Landmark

6

14

2

7

52

5

Lodge

CHAPEL STREET

77

88

69

48

Drain

to

5 7

THE DROVEWAY

18
9

2

Car Park

1

20

Ho
us

e

18
7

50

5.3m

5

3

TCBs

Business

11b

4

LB

64 Place

55

The Old Cottage

83

George Alley

Sub Sta

View

Complex

W
es

le
ya

n

Kent Museum of th
e Moving Image

5

Blinkbox

22

COURT MARSH ROAD

1

14

70

182

1

M
ean Low

 W
ater

QU
IN

N 
CL

OS
E

9

8a

8a

2

Station

Enterprise
Centre

St George's Passage

44

Coastguard

LY
DD

EN
 C

LO
SE

1a

53a

1 to 4

94

41

12

82

War

22

Police

90c

19
5a

53

Sta

Centre

Car Park

7

19
5

11a

Shingle

18

35

Mariner's

5

Centre

N
orth Prom

enade

18a

Factory

Shingle

20

1

Goodwin

3

51

60

ESS

1 3

38

3

83

Shingle

11

67

Church House

21
 to

 2
4

10

19
3

85

Deal

N
or

th
 P

ro
m

en
ad

e

1

104

1b

158

87
b

Alley

27

2

18
7

202

Buckthorn

The

200

Meml

Court

8

PC

Drain

Sub

M
ean Low

 W
ater

South

Portobello Court

Old

Court

M
ean H

igh W
ater

32

18

Shingle

34

Close

2

1 to 44

8

33

Goodwin

Five Step Alley

24

29

12
1

20

29

37

29a

37

17

Miniature Rifle Range

El

M
ean H

igh W
ater

North

44

35

Kings

12

19

THE FAIRWAY

W
ood Yard

82

5 to 11

1

40

2

4

30

56

11

1

12

21

34

66

31

63

ST
 A

ND
RE

W
'S

 R
O

AD

1

11

ST
 P

AT
RI

CK
'S

 R
O

AD

17

23

3

11

El Sub Sta

39

Hall

40

18

12
6

Linden

5.3m

20

Car Park

BREWER

Pelican8

3

11
3a

198

199a

16

3

15
7

GOLDEN STREET

2

150

18

The Courtyard

14
to

21

13

19
9

14

11
9

10

17b

Place

5to8

Cottage

Woodbine
Cottage

23

135

133

PRINCES STREET

32b

27

9

24

32

87

1

19

70

1

4.0m

DUKE STREET

60

61

Church

3

45c

45b

Mast

2

Dr
ai

n

30

79

Builders

CLOSE

15
11

17

79

2.9m

26

4

4

37

66

Court

10
9

3.0m

150

45

2

13
7

12
5

5

50

THE M
ARINA

Sta

2

2

12

72

87

7

3a

16

TCB

204

HIG
H STREET

El Sub

12

1

16
5

164

NORTH STREET

3.0m

1a

Groyne

2

BRIDGE ROAD

1

Cannery

74

58

2.9m

96

80

St George's Church

St G
eorge's

87

66

Surgery

10
5

66

Path (um)

El

Tourist

22a

6 8

106

19
1

18
9

156

2 4

186

A
LFR

ED
 R

O
W

6

M
ean High W

ater

Shingle

162

30

33

68

El Sub Sta

SB

Shingle

O
dd Fellow

s Alley

Arms

AN2 - North
Deal,

St Andrew's

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: AN2 - North Deal, St Andrew's Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.1 0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.40.05
KilometersPage 10

41



61a

61

24

62

(Mus)

The Mews

132

7

The Regent

5

3

Chapel

Statue

39

33

H
IG

H
 STR

EET

(Club)

Holme

10

Stretton

Old

H
IG

H
 STR

EET

The

DEAL CASTLE ROAD

11

8

Rush

1a

The Queens

4

9a

10

31

1

1

Court

6

3.1m

1

PR
IN

C
E 

O
F 

W
A

LE
S 

TE
R

R
A

C
E

6.2m

21

H
O

PE
 R

O
A

D

1

25

5

Tower
9a

Leisure Centre

2

18

28

57
23

31

18

CLANWILLIAM ROAD

Walnut

The Old Cottage

3

26

10

4
10

Wellesley

8

Q
uinton

26

VIC
TO

R
IA R

O
A

D

RANELAGH ROAD

1

32

6

15

3

13

14

40

SONDES ROAD

12

Library

Hughenden

47

1

10

73

69

1 24

1

Deal Promenade Pier

Time Ball

Shelter

17a

21

69

6

21

80
10

87
a

18

STANHOPE ROAD

4

62

74 to 78

35

14

El Sub Sta

4.7m

35

South Parade

6.4m

BEACH STREET

9a
SOUTH STREET

52

13

79

34
18a

56

12

the Retired

13

22

69a

22

6

16 to 20

4

25

Mews

6 to 10

51
 to

 5
5

Bank

Royal

6.4m

7

71

Hotel

7

1
11

43

15a

4.7m

12

House

2

67

61

5

QUEEN STREET

57

21
a

14

48

1

6

2.7m

PH

32

59

41

63

Shelvey

Quarterdeck

11

Eastwell

PARK AVENUE

21

TCB

2

SP

75
61

50

118

81

8

1 
to

 5
0

Coach

19

23

72

RAVENSCOURT ROAD

Betty

24

3

Park Side

2

13
330

TH
E STR

A
N

D106

122

May Lodge

5.7m

58

72
a

13

1

Court

30
a

30

120

34

1

Court

Club

23

72

CR

GLA
DST

ONE 
ROAD

Car Park

51 to 61

74
72a

CR

Mews

6

Tennis

13
1

72

Wellington Court

1

Und

3.0m

2

BLE
NHEI

M R
OAD

13

3

PC

74a

14
3

1

2

Victoria

15

18

18

Victoria

40

Douglas

6.5m

W
ar

d 
B

dy

11

Gardens

10
3

16

1

CP

43

34

51

30

Catholic Church

37

76
WELLINGTON ROAD

BLENHEIM
 RO

AD

4.9m

28

70

El Sub Sta

96

20

62

73

5.2m

of St Thomas

TCBs

38

45

11

Presbytery

9

29

14

23

N
O

R
TH

C
O

TE R
O

A
D

46
44

SP

38

54

LB

56

FB

Garage

7

59

22

19

9.0m

8

16

16

GRANVILLE STREET

39

Tennis Courts

M
P 

91

115

89

Allotment

1

28

QUEEN STREET

Victoria Park

51

36

1

LONDON ROAD

7

6.2m

2

1

48

3

65

BEECHWOOD AVENUE

9

10

9

37

54

14

16

40 to 44

66

41

5.2m

34

Bowling Green

3.5m

of Canterbury

1

20

PH

31

78

Tower

5.6m

M
P 90.75

Mast (Telecommunication)

5.4m

Sorting Office

El Sub Sta

47

53

38

CR

Mews

40

38
PH

Sports Courts

4.3m

42a

5.9m

66

24

Lodge

Shelters

Play Area

5

7.0m

31

2

CENTURY WALK

63

27

50

Telephone

1

ST
 A

ND
RE

W
'S

 R
O

AD

52

47

Exchange

34

48

Anchor

49

26

ST DAVID'S ROAD

62

SP

53

46

1

26

30

41

ST

11

CLOSE

53

PATRICKS

36
 to

 3
8

56

5

1

14

68

12

1

ST
 P

AT
RI

CK
'S

 R
O

AD

14

BR
ID

G
ES

ID
E

49

45

31

12

17

23

Sunnyside Cotts

30

15

34

LB

49

39

3

Hall

44

M
useum

9

13

2

18

M
P 90.5

5

42

2813

4.7m

37

16

66

Car Park

1

11

31

5

10
6

32
24

El Sub Sta

32

38

60

21

Car Park

Hall

TCB

49

2.2m

9

5

40

OAK STREET

Lodge

90

6

42

3.3m

18

The O
ld

93

72a

6

54

1

93

68

85

84

Sunnyside Bungalow

96

94

Linden

112

1

10

5

10

73

4.9m

20

88

Store

99

3.6m

77

15

5.3m

68abc

22

11
6

21

2

20

SD

C
R

41

7a

H
IG

H
 STR

EET

92a

House

10

12a

70c

2

7

31

Car Park

9

4.9m

FW

6.0m

9

Def

Stone

17

Deal Castle

Def

GILFORD ROAD

70a

22

6

2

69
73

El Sub Sta

92

LB

9

4

FS

98

STANLEY ROAD

24

7

FW

15

28

Mew
s

Orc
ha

rd

14

FW

46

3.9m

2

BEACONSFIELD ROAD

19

24

Vi
ct

or
ia

 P
ar

ad
e

1

16

The Bungalow

29

29

6.3m

20

21
55

10

FB

9

M
A

R
IN

E 
R

O
A

D

59

Old Coach

2

House

11

74

B
EA

C
H

 STR
EET

6.1m

5

55

1

TCB
4

4

2

20

13

2

Hall

33

43

20a

Shelter

11

6
17

19

BROAD STREET

13

House

13

1 to 52

11

44

11

8

M
ID

D
LE STR

EET

Cottage

41

PH

67

12

21

1

5

66a

Cottage

Surgery

PARK STREET

86

B
EA

C
H

 STR
EET

34b

4.7m

PH
Shelter

PH

34c

65

LB

2

96

1

Shelter

St George's Church

30

Braunton

6

1a

6

28

Four Walls

Hotel

16a

22

3.9m

21

60

116

14

Astor

12

16

114

Centre for

1

108

71

8

72

53

1 to 4

ST GEORGE'S ROAD

81

9

9

4.0m

STREET

St G
eorge's

84

10

2

77

16a

87

57

47

1

15

Parish H
all

66

Hotel

69

18

18

45

89a

20

Church

1

63

10

3

81

Norman Tailyour

Vicarage

Nursing Home

KING STREET

12

Deal

13a

8a

64

MARKET

57

35 13

11 to 14

18

The Old Cottage

2

7

1

9
Prospect

49
 to

 5
1

27

2

8

5 to 8

66

M
ID

D
LE STR

EET

11

FW

6.1m

14

10

Theatre

Station

49

8a

2

Club

39

Car Park

53a

LB

55
Yard

(Station)

82
8

3a

79

52

50

Car Park

1a

Tourist

21

Beachlands Court

16

1

Inform
ation

Mulberry Court

1 to 10

16b

26

45

12

ESS

CHAPEL STREET

88

20

W
ar

d B
dy

War

37

to

8

25

24

M
ean H

igh W
ater

14

10

Car Park

23

7

Police

73

Shingle

17

8

8

Car Park

Old

53

11
5

2a

Black Horse Alley

106

16

33

(Club)

Primrose Alley

64

102

4

Factory

5

57

40

89

H
ealth C

entre

46

ESS

South Court

LB

1 to 4

10
1

47

North Black Horse

55

PH

DEAL

39

Short Street

Terrace

21

87

MILL ROAD

9 to 12

3

29

Place

5 to 11

Mews

92

Community

26

Rooms

1 to 11

Meml

68

22

28

77

N
or

th
Pr

om
en

ad
e

SB

14

42

90

128

Health

Shingle

41

4

29

Centre

M
ean Low

 W
ater

19

Leisure Centre

32 to 36

36

Ocean

O
dd Fellow

s Alley

PC

St George's Passage

67

Downs Cottage

Cockle Swamp Alley

Deal

1

10a

House

87
b

Meml

C
R

Custom House Lane

Alley

Mews

43

George Alley

to

Kent Museum of th
e Moving Image

52

83

Five Step Alley

Gymnastic Club

85

58

25

61

87

1

94

PH

1b

14

5

2

PC

M
ean Low

 W
ater

2

South Court

C
ro

w
n 

C
ou

rt

TCB

10

Primrose Hill

6.0m

20

Neville

1 to 32

Q
UEENS M

EW
S

2

LC

W
ard Bdy

1

1

54

2.1m

2

ST GEORGE'S ROAD

4

2.
8m

W
EST STR

EET
61

7

38

4.9m

New
The

Royal Hotel

PH

85

FS

20

2

10

13

HOPE ROAD

4

24

5.0m

48

7

PH

5

Court

6

6.3
m

8

5.3m

83

5

70

22

3.2m

The Fisherm
ans C

ottage

17

94

23

19

Deal Castle

Centre

8

15

6

48

104

16

66

ANCHOR LANE

The

11
59

Deal

17

Miniature Rifle Range

Northcote

M
ean H

igh W
ater

Und

W
ood Yard

Custom House Lane

1 to 24

AN3 - North
Deal, Victoria

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: AN3 - North Deal, Victoria Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.05 0 0.05 0.1 0.15 0.20.03
KilometersPage 11

42



BS

CR

Path (um)

Pleiades

BS

Flint

Filling Station

FF

CP

ED & Ward Bdy

24

Def

CP

35

30

Path (um)

38

Un
d

11

THISTLEDOWN

12
14

16

BS

El Sub Sta

42
1a

The Briars

Windrush

Kn
ig

ht
s 

Bo
tto

m

31

28

39

HA
W

KS
DO

W
N

Irrawaddy

The

The Ridgeway

1

Ripple Mill

Forelands

29.1m

1

Mountfitchet

Basset House

Beechwood

Glencorrie

4

(disused)

Whitstone

2

HAW
KSDOW

N

Mill

The Firs

HAWKSDOWN

464

6

4

38
5

458

DO
VE

R 
RO

AD

THE MALTINGS

47.9m

CL
OS

E

Courtney

Stone

12

LB

39
7

19

Reservoir

Elmo's

1

HAWKSDOWNKINGSLAND GARDENS

447

49.7m

42
1

Green Shutters

39
5

45
9

1

38

Ellandune

32.8m

Lime Tree Lodge

El Sub Sta

8

Crostover

20

Green Beeches

Leyswood

Sancreed

8

25

TH
O

M
PS

O
N

7

Alderden

Nibthwaite

Donington

41
3

40
3

Und

1

14

Huntly

42
5

3

17

Episode

366

Peak House

2

35.2m

W
HI

TE
 A

CR
E 

DR
IV

E

6

446

Rays Hill

2

22

Sandettie

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

Ridings

Denne House

39
3

Osborne House

Abbeyfield House

Thornfield

2

DO
VE

R 
RO

AD

13

34

The

14

Ashdon

7

42
3

Meadow House

Queendown

A 
25

8

Cottage

1

Tanglewood

HA
W

KS
DO

W
N

DOWNLANDS

1

Carinya

16

Hawksend

13

37
1

De
f

Pantile

B
LA

K
E 

C
LO

SE

Stone

Bonadventure

2

1

12

Belle Vue

7

10

350

2

1

Stone

2

12

14

13

6

Wingfield

36
3

24

ED & Ward Bdy

36
5

18

356

1

1

Ha
wk

sd
ow

n

30.8m

BLAKE

ST MARGARETS DRIVE

20

21

31.1m

1 to 7

BA
DG

ER
S 

RI
SE

Tall

5

24.8m

20.5m

5

1

House

Th
e 

Fi
rs

Lodge

GRAMSTimbers

Avalon

Suria

13

Path (um
)

31

17

Holmeswood

Heatherstone House

LB

32

Stone

Stone

HAWKSDOWN

Watchbell
CLOSE

ROAD

House

Stone

Hawkshill House

82

Crossing

Guildford

The Lair

28

ConifersCold Blow

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

Hawkshill

7

28.9m

1

3

Hawkshill Down

Farm

Tr
ac

k

Path (um)

BS

Glenview

De
f

ED
 &

 W
ar

d 
Bd

y

9

Path (um)

FF

CF

Touchwood

Path (um)

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

21.3m

Track

Pine Timbers

Welford Cottage

Sand

Def

El Sub Sta

12.8m

Tr
ac

k

El Sub Sta

18.8m

14.7m

33.3m

Cedar Rise

Stone

H
aw

ks H
ill

Wood End

6

Kestrels

G
LE

N 
RO

AD

Ra
ys

 B
ot

to
m

Darrington

Larkenshaw

8

The Stables

Stone

Farsyde House

27.0m

Stone

St Richard's

10.8m

White Strake

Trevarrick

War Memorial

Spindrift

HAWKSDOWN

Sub Sta

Foxtrot

22.9m

HA
W

KS
DO

W
N 

RO
AD

Anchors

Glen Lodge
Bradfield

Hawkshill Common

Balaton

LI
VE

R
PO

O
L 

R
O

A
D

1

Seaways

Arosa

Ra
ys

 B
ot

to
m

95

86

Dean House

14

36.8m

South Meadow

19

Newlands

HAWKSHILL ROAD

15

Northgate

25.8m

17

Works

30.7m

6

4

1to5

The Lodge

96

Calluna

Hilbre

FS

12
5

10

12
3

25.5m

1

Hawks Hill Cottage

23

3

27.8m

42

34.2m

157

84

159

28

The Coach House

LI
VE

RP
O

O
L

5

1

31.4m

2

31.6m

Stones

South

2

10
5

155

33.8m

Church

15

14
6

38

39

11
9

21

3

39

72

9

93

18

4

El

22

35

7

83

9

54

45

21.5m

33

Church

82

51

1

LB

36

51

26
9

66

48

29

19

95

39

Stone

29

11
3

14

14

MARLBOROUGH R
OAD

36

13

6

2

Pullman

9

33

QUERN ROAD

1

CELTIC ROAD

10

11

17

CLIFFORD GARDENS

16

6

24.6m

16

24
3

MP 92

32

4.0m

29

BEVAN CLOSE

25

FORELANDS SQUARE

LB

257

68

74

22

Stone

ST RICHARD'S ROAD

War
d B

dy

31

15

FB

15

House

CR

51

17

10

House

29

1

(site of)

28

20

30

64

72

24

92

R
O

A
D

2.1m

16

14

71

Th
e B

un
ga

lo
w

28.5m

Eastlea

3.0m

13
7

43

61

9

SL

126

1

20

LA
-T

EN
E

6

18
a

1

101

Shelter

W
EL

LE
SL

EY
AV

EN
UE

23.5m

3

Stone

11
5

21

14

22

52

112

10

24
5

66

20
3

74a

15
1

9.8m

THORNBRIDGE ROAD

60

Pavilion

3

El Sub Sta

8

16

8.8m

CLIF
FO

RD

68

1

TE
LE

GRAPH
 R

OAD

KEN
NED

Y 
DRIV

E

11

30.1m

7

PALMERSTON AVENUE

71

28.8m

7

14.6m

91

31

The Courtyard

35
9

70

62

1

122

15

76

Almshouse

10a

14

SY
DNEY

 R
OAD

Chapel

13
1

8

26.5m

138

Ch
ur

ch
 o

f t
he

32
5

149

12

58

337

7

37

GARDENS

12

11

2

26.2m

9

19

43

12

10

15

2

GARDENS

33

13

58

31
29

FORELANDS SQUARE

NE
VI

LL

16

BELMONT

6

66

330

20
9

18
9

7

GRAM'S ROAD

7

1

18

28.0m

21
3

2

1

8

231

55

31
3a

23

Cottage

Sa
cr

ed
 H

ea
rt

14

24

4

LB

12

349

Forelands House

20

27

15a

43

27.7m

338

5

41

297

Coach House

21
1

8

52

Sub Sta

23

32
7

22

23.0m

35
5

18

52

Dove

347

332

33
5

St Clare

31
5

3

9a

17

30
1

20b

CL
OS

E

3

12

26

326

32

19

b25

29
3

21

9

Garage

352

30
9

32
7

1

The Old

82

16

8

1

16

1

The Firs

41

46

27

15

64

28
7

2

3

80

27

28
9

22.1m

336

22

d

49

111

32
9

87

51

60

29
5

Tudor Lodge

Millstone

12

20

12

1

STATION ROAD

1

32.9m

27

33

1

37

33

334

35
7

4

42

Lodge

WALMER GARDENS

e

23

30

Sh
el

te
r

38

34.1m

5

17

33

36

JO
HN

 T
AP

PI
NG

23

30

2

21a

10

3

14

10

88

21

36

25

10

24

21

52

29
1

KE
NN

ET
T 

DR
IV

E

3

12

4

13

THE CONIFERS

13

35

24

5

14

10
9a

346

6

20

17

44

18

340

32
.8

m

21

24

1

Stone

(covered)

28
1

El Sub Sta

21

66

7

15

20a

48

75

10
9

17a

20

10

4

67

25

23

107

TCB

45

11

11

18

21

1

9

HI
LL

CR
ES

T 
GAR

DE
NS

36

29

Pl
ea

sa
nt

26

19a

30.2m

11

6

2

11

to

43

1

17a

19

HILLCREST GARDENS

67

ST CLARE ROAD

ASTRID ROAD

LYD
IA R

O
A

D

36

17

Dossett Court

1

5

Sh
en

ley

28
a

3

22

54
a

24

34

23

22

65

38

51

78

90

36

10

26

9

7.0m

21.6m

2

35

Croft

41

2

28.9m

RO
SELANDS

26

1

26

Play Area

ST MILDREDS COURT

15

3

40

14

57

15

3

21

Redcote

53

Stones

LB

10
a

The Rectory

The Hollies

1 to 7

19

21.4m

4

CR
O

SS
 R

O
AD

WALMER CASTLE ROAD

30

4

23

El

21

234

34

26

1

Amberley

28

4

24

11

Russ-Leigh

5

Stone

THE SHRUBBERY

223

80

93

29 1

11

246

30

236

W
ALMER

21

FS

Overglen

59

3

72

22

Bracklyn

61

29

LAWN ROAD

5

6

Chelidon

St Mary's

TH
E 

SH
RUBBER

Y

32

2

16

73

44

44

14

2

One

WALK

17

9

7

13a

Stone

CHANNEL LEA

23

50

DOVER ROAD

8

276

32

The

Cloisters

Water Tower

24

22.9m

80
a

40

12

26

21

ST M
ARY'S ROAD

15

37

Orc
hi

d

FS

2

Trewinnard

43

211

Snatchwood

Clare Court Lodge

18

4

19

8

St Anselms

7

17.2m

9.8m

Stone

8

78a

Annesy

46

18

12

6

16

1

GREENACRE DRIVE

38
a

3

Co
tta

ge

GR
EE

N 
LA

NE

11

Whiteville

13

Merlin's

5

The

274

65

El Sub Sta

71

Mistral

14

Woodhelven

Stone

24.6m

20

272

Stone

El

Sub Sta

69

Oakleigh

Church

28

117

Gen
er

al'
s

12

70

1

215

Stones

Sub Sta

42

13

1

12

2

14

15

Chapter

The C
hurch

 of J
es

us C
hris

t

5a

6

27
7

1

18

32

Stone

264

16

20

26b

32

of L
att

er-
Day

 Sain
ts

10

Pentlands

30

15

Mea
do

w

19

10
1

Leelands House Stone

Glen

16

Walmer Court

Post

Sub Sta

15

22.0m

25

LB

Walmer Court

7

1

2

32

24

Bailands

54

Wingrove Mews

15

Eastside House

290

22a

POETS

1

49

64

STR
EET

School

12

20

El

CLOSE

1

89

Mews House

ALBANY CLOSE

CHURCH STREET

32

17

27
3

18
9

20

8

26

4

2

Old Church

16
5

Pasture

Lodge

5

G
O

TH
IC

4.7m

113

65

103

47

2a

GREE
NACRE 

DRIV
E

1

4

11

Walmer Science College

9

5

27
5

30

20

25 to 32

1

10

2

38

GREEN LANE

Ashton

CO
UR

T 
RO

AD

1

16

14

1

Old

13

2

Ile
x

El

42

1

27

35

The Old Vicarage

4

Li
ttl

e B
re

ez
y

1

87

57

67

Walmer Court

12

51

23.9m

45

Lych Gate

11

17
7

12

Court

73

22.4m

CHURCH

20

Little Gothic

1 
to

 6

BA
LF

OUR
 R

OAD

17

Sta

CR

of St Mary

Sub

25

22
3

CR
O

SS
 R

O
AD

220

Childrens

34

ESS

72

19
1

225

41

18

Centre

Ja
sm

in
e

18
7

57

196

The Downs Church of England Primary School

5

LB

LB

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

OW
EN

 S
QUARE

18
3

19
3

8

ROAD

SALIS
BURY R

OAD

28

67

53

17 to 24

Moreton Court

El

109

54

13

16
9

210

76

61

7.2m

24

210a

46

15

15
5

9 to 16

35

33

18

17
9

59

AV
EN

UE

15

2

27

20.1m

Court

DO
W

NS
 R

OAD

8b

19
5

198

46

LB

28

1b

30

62

107

44

24

40

42

52

34

19

20.1m

5

4.6m

65

23.8m

7

DORSET G
ARDENS

114a

47

43

70

174

13.8m

82

C
O

LD
B

LO
W

47

27

122

210

6

22

El Sub Sta

18

228

96

32

44

14

29

17a

MAY
ER

S 
RO

AD

17
3

M
ER

YL
 G

A
R

D
EN

S

88

18

8a

1

40

27

M
EN

ZI
ES

 A
VE

NU
E

13

10

St
at

io
n 

Co
tta

ge
s

Riding

El Sub Sta

30

112

44
a

YORK AND

114

8

9

56

Pond

90

3

ST
AT

IO
N 

DR
IV

E

148

13

10

Church

95

Court
Mother

12
a

DO
VE

R 
RO

AD

9a

115

20

52

Po
nd

1

12

Lodge

STATION ROAD

83

Dorset

1a

58

SALISBURY ROAD

MP 92.5

Sub
El

55

41

48

110

20
3

3.0m

3.4m

5

5

6.1m

42

16

37

W
AR

DE
N

25

LO
RD

6.7m

52

13a

23

LI
VE

RP
OO

L 
RO

AD

Allotment Gardens

23

77

Sta

3

1a

3a

Court

6

3

99a

13

19a

8

1

13

Queen

33

K
N

O
LL

 P
LA

C
E

21

150

2

22

17

Path (um)

20

62

188

44

56

AV
EN

UE

Play Area

El Sub Sta

26

1a

3.4m

Tamarisk

4.3m

3.7m

GRANVILLE ROAD

14

154

DO
W

NS
 R

OAD

5

57

9

3

KELVEDON ROAD

4

18

Rab
an

d

1b

6.4m

194

13
1

208

2

2

142

D Fn

2

OWEN SQUARE

1

31

39
9

12
1

32

Posts

19
9

11

7

41

11
1

14

16

10

27

34

Tennis Courts

10

86

Marke Wood Recreation Ground

6.3m

2

27

25

76

46

11

17
a

1

35

17

29

15

21

30a

Claytons Hill

6.7m

CO
UR

T 
RO

AD

44

Deal House

Path (um)

55

13

15

ELLENS

3

41

Path (um)

Path (um)

Claytons Hill

43

4

53

2a

Path (um)

81

32

1

6

6.8m

85a

Path

81

Langton

Greensleeves

2.4m

El Sub Sta

10

House

7a

53

120

21

2a

85

Path (um
)

12

20

El Sub Sta

Saltwood

29

31
3

Meadowside

LB

3.4m

55

Path (um)

14

Broadfields

9

GRANVILLE ROAD

Path (um)

16

42

Parkview

Sh
elt

er
s

3.7m

40
1

5

Shaftesbury

32
1

The Gallery

32
3

51

The Odyssey

39

ED & Ward Bdy

15a

Path (um
)

202

0.
91

m
 F

F

49

35

ED & Ward Bdy

32

22

32

1

Centre

D
or

se
t C

ou
rt

50

26

48

Education

5

27

17

Su
bw

ay

23

22

3a

47

1

17

54

18
20

4a

28

15

19

21

2

As
hw

el
l

39

38

Walmer

47

7

Club

28

8a

36

17

WARWICK ROAD

61

5

ST RICHARD'S ROAD

36

4

HERSCHELL ROAD EAST

4

24

31
1

Station

20

13

28 26

35

37

BB

19

130

Kirk
 G

ar
de

ns

19

33

6.8m

20

57

45

19

3

114

16

2

11

41

57

36

25

34

7

1

55

46

23

3a

Pa
th

 (u
m)

ARCHERY SQUARE

24

6

32

30

50

Maritime

63

30

33

12

12

17

Path (um
)

18

48

18

Walmer

21

13

Clifford Park

8

Path

7

34

24

43

Pa
th

8

458a

12

Sports Pavilion

87a

Sewage Ppg Sta

38

204

5

42

PH

Coggers

12

72

18

52

21

Pond

4

200

39

14

14

20

Path
 (u

m)

8

16

16

39

52

6

13

WATER TOWER PLACE

Court

44

M
IL

LE
RS

 R
O

AD

13

37

Ripple Mill

44

18

2

9

10
a

Cottages

9

13

5

10

1

3

16

Cottage

5

1 to 10

South

Ya
rd

11

RI
PP

LE
 W

AY

4

14

El Sub Sta

2a
 to

 2
f

10

c

7

20

1 to 5

3

Cottage

51

Sports Pavilion

A to
 D

W
alm

er
 (S

ta
tio

n)

15

10

6

Stone

23

20

Gas Gov

1

6

Hawksdown

DO
VE

R 
RO

AD

48

25

(Caravan Site)

34

1 t
o 6

36

48.2m

14 to 22

15

40

22

Farm

RIPPLE ROAD

Church Path

18

Sports Pavilion

Windmill

Walmer Court

206

11

8

El Sub Sta

King Charles Court

42

10

9

48

Lodge

54

4a

NE
W

LA
ND

S 
DR

IV
E

23

43

Ga
rd

en
 M

ew
s

30.3m

10

11

12

Bishops Tachbrook

24

Gillows

7

Farmhouse

4

a

31.7m

MILLERS ROAD

12

Penbury

43
7

C
O

LD
B

LO
W

1 to 6

Play Area

Cottages

BS

Und

43.1m

364

16

362

370

12

Alderden

Broad Oak
9.2m

25

29

Woodlea

Co
tta

ge
s

Greenways

30

Boundary

CR

16.2m

Broomfield

Small Downs

Def

1

15
6

7

165

11

14

Bronze Age Settlement 57

64

69

2.4m

18b

2

21

Cricket Ground

68

79

24.2m

CELTIC ROAD

CO
UR

T 
RO

AD
12

2

11

7

2

2

20
7

9

19

2

28
3

El

56

The Lodge

DO
VE

R 
RO

AD

10

7

PH

36
1 8

2

29 2

23

FAIRVIEW GARDENS

38

1

30

LY
DI

A 
RO

AD

41

23
21

34.9m

28

56
a

Reservoir 40

36

W
AY

Cedar Court

262

13

Earlsmead House

20

1

1

23

Trinity Homes

12

268

16

238

42

28

15

38

27.8m

10.9m

17

29

1

10

282

17

El Sub Sta

10

Sub Sta

(remains of)

Foxes Leigh

26a

17

77

RE
AD

IN
G

 C
LO

SE

House

House

27.8m

10

2

17

20

Wigmore

63

House

Nursery

67

22
3a

1 to 8

Windsor
218

162

CH
UR

CH
IL

L

77

214

224

18

184

2

13

58

Malmedy

44

1

40

SY
DN

EY
 R

OA
D

26

83a

108

4a

69

11

19

7

1

10

7

WALMER

7.4m

Hall

5

6.3m

W
IL

LI
NG

DO
N 

PL
AC

E

15

6.7m

6.7m

31

9

SD

Path (um)

Vikings

Social

87

Willowdene

30

1

31

20

50

45

2

15

8

70

San
 Ja

n J
oh

55

Pumping

Well Heads

Track

12

3

MONGEH
AM W

AY

24

2

1

8

North

30

1a to 1e

PC

Buil
de

rs 
Merc

ha
nts

40

AW1 - Walmer,
Upper Walmer

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: AW1 - Walmer, Upper Walmer Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.1 0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.40.05
KilometersPage 12

43



Filling Station

5.7m

Boscobel

Flint

30

Lodge
Weavers

BS

Path (um)

Pleiades

14

Un
d

24

BS
Def

ED & Ward Bdy

35

42
1a

Kn
ig

ht
s 

Bo
tto

m

28

16

21

THISTLEDOWN

HA
W

KS
DO

W
N

The Ridgeway

1

El Sub Sta

31

5

Forelands

Basset House

39

Glencorrie

Irrawaddy

8

4

Beechwood

4

29.1m

HAWKSDOWN

48.2m

CL
OS

E

Whitstone

HAW
KSDOW

N

Kn
ig

ht
s 

Hi
ll

458

10

Stone

38
5

6

NE
W

LA
ND

S 
DR

IV
E

47.9m

LB

39
7

1

30.3m

39
5

THE MALTINGS

KINGSLAND GARDENS

Reservoir

42
1

32.8m

Bishops Tachbrook

19

1

49.7m

Crostover

8

45
9

447

Gillows

8

Sancreed

20

40
3

38

25

TH
O

M
PS

O
N

7

Lime Tree Lodge

1

Nibthwaite

Knights 
Botto

m

17

4

Huntly

6

41
3

31.7m

Leyswood

2

Episode

39
3

42
5

12

Rays Hill

Alderden

Ridings

34

Peak House

43
7

The

Und

2

Meadow House

446

Play Area

Ashdon

5.2m

Denne House

Cottage

Carinya

12

Cottages

12
0

14

2

Nido

CLIFFE RO
AD

Und

82

37
1

Red Cottage

12

13

43.1m

1

Airlie

2

Bonadventure

House

House

7

15.1m

2

24

House

12

350

House

Ps

BLAKE

6

18

Lodge

3

1

BA
DG

ER
S 

RI
SE

Failte

Ha
wk

sd
ow

n

366

Aquilegia

ST MARGARETS DRIVE

Hartfield

Tall

W
HI

TE
 A

CR
E 

DR
IV

E

20.5m

Channel

5

11
6

GRAMS

1

22

1

House

Sundow
n

LB

Timbers

Avalon

11
4

Abbeyfield House

32

Willersley

14

13

11
8

Stone

CLOSE

36
5

16

Queendown

Highfield

House

82

Windy

21

16

Salhouse

The

24.8m

28

B
LA

K
E 

C
LO

SE

Fa
yn

igh
ts

364

38.6m

1

Suria

BALMORAL

16

14

Rose

17

ROAD

362

Karravas

Watchbell

17

Conifers

15

370

C
LI

M

The Lair

Farm

12

May
fie

ld

7

54

Path (um)

8

Spin
dr

ift

Alderden

38.7m

Lorne House

Track

Pooh

7

Broad Oak

LB

GLEN ROAD

Tr
ac

k

58

41.3m

9.2m

RO
AD

Stone

Cott
ag

e

Cliffs

25

ROAD

Wind
ward

G
LE

N 
RO

AD

Retr
ea

t

68

29

O
ve

rd
en

e

34.3m

28

Braeside

Woodlea

Corner

70

Milner

Co
tta

ge
s

Darrington

Eas
tco

te

Path (u
m)

Cari
nya

LB

Stone

5

Hawkshill Down

Greenways

Rosedale

Wingfield

56

2

30

ED & Ward Bdy

Corner

HAWKSDOWN

Tr
ac

k

CH

BS

10

26

Bradfield

31.1m

FF

CF

6

El

Hardicot
LB

ED
 &

 W
ar

d 
Bd

y

Aran
den

e

Wav
erl

ey

Th
e 

Fi
rs

37

21.3m

Chalet

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

Sundown

Path (um
)

46

46

12.8m

Heatherstone House

49a

51

H
aw

ks H
ill

41

Three

HAWKSDOWN

Path (um)

Carne

Ra
ys

 B
ot

to
m

El Sub Sta

Cottage

Def

Hawkshill House

Majuli

27.0m

Cedar Rise

CLAREMONT

41

The

Spindrift

84

Farsyde House

DOWN

33.3m

Tremont

Anchors

Trevarrick

Breeze

63

5.4m

36.8m

36

Yarnacott

22.9m

Path (um
)

103

23

10
4

Wood End

35.7m

6

44

10

Larkenshaw

5.6m

Glendale

16

7

HAWKSHILL ROAD

5.6m

Seaways

BALMORAL ROAD

28.9m

Balaton

Lodge

Mill

CLAREMONT

Def

25.8m

Chevin

26

C
L

Glenview

Boundary

Downs

47

Dean House

27

C
H

Touchwood

Crinkle Cott

South Meadow

27

Sand

75

CR

10.8m

Beech Tree Cottage

LB

5.3m

Waterfront

41a

33

Calluna

28.3m

C
R

Seascape

5.2m

107

1to5

White

The

38

12
4

Ventura

Upgreen

11

El

67

12

92

Channel

Furzebrook

16.2m

Sandbanks

Windrush

18.8m

54

Foxtrot

21

FS

5.9m

5.5m

151

Hawkshill Common

27.8m

88

51

24

111

10

Ra
ys

 B
ot

to
m

Barnacle

Broomfield

K
IN

G
SD

O
W

N
 R

O
A

D

1

Posts

Cadmus

Couch Cobbledown

COURTLANDS

13.9m

Small Downs

Posts

1

90

Moorlands

12

21.8m

W
ELLIN

G
TO

N
 PA

R
A

D
E

Und

7

Beth
an

y L
od

ge

Serendipity

17.1m

18.4m

Tuggers

Lyckan

101

Def

50

85

7

Lodge

37

29

BEACH MEWS

43

House

Horses

29

82

33

K
IN

G
SD

O
W

N
 R

O
A

D

72

97

65

12
6

DAVIS AVENUE

5

10.4m

10
2

Sea

68

76

El Sub Sta

101

Sands View

(PH)

Rosemary

34

Lomea

39

Hillrise

19.2m

10
7

43

19

Vevey

THORNBRIDGE ROAD

PW

86

44

FR
EEMEN'S W

AY

Seafields

57

94

53

Sea

52

17.7m

79

1a

91

83

15

23.5m

34

23

1

MILL HILL COURT

13.6m

8

4

9

1

87

1to6

9

13

4

11to14

MILL HILL

1

21.3m

17

33

15.8m

5

68

36

17

54

2

18

COWDRAY ROAD

9

50

76

MILL H
ILL

1

COWDRAY SQUARE

14

20

27

44

88

Garage

El Sub Sta

17

45

42

62

9

24.6m

80

Play Area

56

El Sub Sta

1

3

4.0m

5

19

58

11
9

68

4a

33

Stone

51

Church of England

Shelter

14

5

Pond

48

11

25.5m

67

34

38

19

42

1

83

50

El

29

73

Post

74

69

14

Car Park

Car Park

84

46

Deal Welfare Club

3.0m

9

LI
VE

RP
O

O
L

38

House

Allotment Gardens

Stone

39

COWDRAY SQUARE

House

10

Stones

6

23

30

BEVAN CLOSE

8

83

47

22

SELWAY COURT

61

54

Denmor

15

1

69

6

Walmer Castle

51

31

52

HERSCHELL SQUARE

115

66

Sub Sta

74a

51

Stone

48

(site of)

El Sub Sta

2

19

Stone

64

Bronze Age Settlement

TE
LE

GRAPH
 R

OAD

HERSCHELL SQUARE

Deal Parochial

4

2.1m

57

30.1m

28

37

3364

35

16

69

25

71

Th
e B

un
ga

lo
w

29

21.5m

FB

257

31

11

30

26
9

2.4m

ST RICHARD'S ROAD

CR

46

28a

95

2.1m

15

9

52

56

14

18b

1

28b

25

FS

13

7.0m

Pullman

32

72

45

1

Sub

11

LA
-T

EN
E

16

6

2

Shelter

CLIFFORD GARDENS

1a

Eastlea

MP 92

23.5m

6.7m

24
3

SL

53

74

14LB

2

5

47

FB

24
5

War
d B

dy

1

21

CR

43

THORNBRIDGE ROAD

17

6

Cricket Ground

1

16

13

68

28

The Gables

18

11

92

13
1

79

55

47

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

28.5m

27

24.2m

85

65

97

2

8

CELTIC ROAD

13

24

11

16

MP 91.75

14

44

CO
UR

T 
RO

AD

14

1

39

W
EL

LE
SL

EY
 A

VE
NU

E

45

12

10.4m

1

73

106

33

2

39

97

149

8

110

11
5

52

LB

51

Edgar

122

2

15
1

99

53

Brambles

CURZON CLOSE
12.3m

8

26

Allotment Gardens

64

10
9

9

LB

112

98

105

TE
LE

GRAPH R
OAD

El

49

9.8m

6

House

95

70

9

85

13
7

100

12

HERSCHELL ROAD WEST

Sta

138

126

KEN
NED

Y 
DRIV

E

8.8m

14.6m 1

Solomon

PALMERSTON AVENUE

HA
VE

LO
CK

 R
OAD

111

123

1

49

84

FORELANDS SQUARE
SOMERSET ROAD

21

House

7.6m

135

90

20
3

12

7

DO
W

NS
 R

OAD

Lambert House

Charles

12

7

2

11

31

26.2m

FORELANDS SQUARE

The Courtyard

9.4m

44

9.4m

16

15

GARDENS

3

20
9

61

14

1

21
3

66 NE
VI

LL

26.5m
31

3a

7

1b

7

7

32
5

LB

2

35
9

8

1

58

2

27.7m

Almshouse

Cottage

Sa
cr

ed
 H

ea
rt

37

338

32
7

11

Chapel

349

Coach House

65

43

332

43

52

17

Ch
ur

ch
 o

f t
he

BELMONT

House

8

23.0m

CL
OS

E

GRAM'S ROAD

75

337

347

35
5

2

19

15

56

25

23

33
5

Garage

33

16

12

59

29

The Old

The Firs

30
1

20

330

20
7

336

1

12

41

28.0m

51
9

28
7

55

22

352

Millstone

19

3

4

St Clare

1

27

2

20b

27

23

28
3

5

27

35
7

El
Sub Sta

28
9

Lodge

56

Dove

21

49

Sh
el

te
r

The Lodge

3

12

29
5

JO
HN

 T
AP

PI
NG

DO
VE

R 
RO

AD

326

13

21a

10

21

7

36

13

1

PH

26

36
1

3

21

8

17

32.9m

21

Dossett Court

1

2

19a

23

7

2

Pl
ea

sa
nt

to

25

23

29

2

19

26

HILLCREST GARDENS

ST CLARE ROAD

36

1 to 7

5

Sh
en

ley

15

4

21.6m

30

24

1

90

9

38

41

5

2

15

7.0m

36

1

21

RO
SELANDS

34

FS

The Rectory

3

LAWN ROAD

78

WALMER CASTLE ROAD

LB

40

Redcote

32

Croft

26

21.4m

36

4

2

ST MILDREDS COURT

23

28

3

Amberley

CHANNEL LEA

El

The Hollies

Stone

THE SHRUBBERY

Cedar Court

21

24

11

40

246

262

223

11

Overglen

Orc
hi

d

59

13

236

80

3

211

72

Earlsmead House

St Mary's

30

44

29

St Anselms

61

20

7

73

Chelidon

2

DOVER ROAD

13a

1

46

16

WALK

The

32

38
a

One

1

23

12

22.9m

Stone

Merlin's

23

15

276

ST M
ARY'S ROAD

Cloisters
71

Trinity Homes

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

Stone

Snatchwood

12

Church

80
a

43

7

464

268

Stones

21

16

8

16

13

14

18

Trewinnard

Courtney

238

Mistral

Co
tta

ge

1

19

42

Elmo's

272

of L
att

er-
Day

 Sain
ts

274

78a

28

Leelands House

26

GREENACRE DRIVE 14

28

15

Bailands

2

Sub Sta

22a

42

38

Whiteville

4

Gen
er

al'
s

64

27.8m

Chapter

8

El Sub Sta

215

12

10.9m

32

12

20

2

89

17

26b

El

GR
EE

N 
LA

NE

10
1

29

The

27
3

1

6

Walmer Court

1

24.6m

Old Church

15

10

117

264

12

G
O

TH
IC

LB

282

20

Sub Sta

27
7

24

1

17

15

15

16

5

El Sub Sta

El

16

10

Walmer Court

ALBANY CLOSE

2

10

18

19

Wingrove Mews

20

Post

20

30

Lodge

Sub Sta

Ashton

Mews House

25

22.0m

(remains of)

103

13

8

2

32

9

Foxes Leigh

1

54

Pasture

26a

1

15

Walmer Court

Eastside House

1

111

113

49

17

CHURCH

1

School

El

2a

77

18
9

Sta

CLOSE

Li
ttl

e B
re

ez
y

11

Sub

16
5

RE
AD

IN
G

 C
LO

SE

32

27
5

51

22
3

11

5

26

CO
UR

T 
RO

AD

Court

ESS

65

House

1 
to

 6

47

Ja
sm

in
e

Walmer Science College

87

House

19
1

4

20

LB

27.8m

Lych Gate

25 to 32

38

SALIS
BURY R

OAD

10

196

22.4m

Path (um)

1

54

14

2

18
3

17

Ile
x

15
5

42

25

The Briars

17

34

35

67

59

18

20

57

57

Wigmore

1

210

45

OW
EN

 S
QUARE

1b

17
7

63

73

46

17 to 24

34

20

House

BA
LF

OUR
 R

OAD

17
9

7

13

Nursery

220

15

174

210a

19
5

LB

228

41

67

44

18

M
ER

YL
 G

A
R

D
EN

S

18
7

27

22
3a

40

46

El Sub Sta

24

44
a

20.1m

19

1 to 8

CP

DORSET G
ARDENS

67

Court

13

13.8m

11

10

Windsor

61

210

44

ST J
AMES C

LO
SE

El Sub Sta

218

7.3m

83

17
3 162

ST
AT

IO
N 

DR
IV

E

2

1

16

CH
UR

CH
IL

L

77

FW

7.0m

St
at

io
n 

Co
tta

ge
s

77

7.0m

7.3m

56

214

Cemetery

LB

224

Deal

The

6

34

HAMILTON ROAD

26

18

Mountfitchet

10

10

FW

184

25

106

2

127

13

3a

15

119

Und

Malmedy

1117

15

14

Mill

8b

269

4

2

Ward Bdy

30

DO
VE

R 
RO

AD

7.3m

FF

2

Church

1

15

9a

26

5

122

83a

Lodge

Mother

12

3.4m

52

6

132

HAWKSDOWN

4a

El

13

Castle

26

6.1m

19

W
AR

DE
N

MP

LI
VE

RP
OO

L 
RO

AD

10

109120

7
1

LO
RD

1

37

5

Sta

29

1

Green Beeches

31

Court

11

17

19a

102

19

Donington

4.3m

Queen

9

Brickfield Cottages 24

154

13

8

22

The Lodge

4

KELVEDON ROAD

4.6m

21

43

2

194

56

23

C
LO

SE

62

14

D Fn

28

134

25

K
IN

G
SD

O
W

N
 R

O
A

D

14

32

2

Sandettie

AV
EN

UE

27

Victoria

20

HANOVER

11

1a

9

8

19

GRANVILLE ROAD

32

1b

8

7

5

2
20

18

1

Be
rry

18

1

2.1m

Thornfield

10

17a

Co
tta

ge

13
1

11

3.4m

31

8a

7

1

2

16

Posts

10

20

8

3.7m

Be
rri

es

2

6.3m

57

7

W
alm

er G
reen

148

6.4m

Car Park

13

5

19
 to

 21

142

DO
VE

R 
RO

AD

32

14

12
1

3

Cottage

38

12

10

11
1

11

8

14

1a

Beach Court

Mews

Tennis Courts

1

H
ou

se

7

1

Marke Wood Recreation Ground

14

Yard

WALMER

14

8

1

14

4

7.4m

27

4

9

HA
W

KS
DO

W
N

2

Hall

6

HARVEY AVENUE

1

6

MEW
S

11

9

1

17

ALEXANDRA ROAD

9a

Ol
d 

Gy
m

na
si

um

27

LB

Cambridge

5

4a

3

25

Ra
m

se
y H

ou
se

6.4m

6.3m

17

35

27

1

1

W
IL

LI
NG

DO
N 

PL
AC

E

DOWNLANDS

Mou
nt

ba
tte

n 
Ho

us
e

32

2

21

11

5

20

Hawksend

Ca
st

all
a C

ot
ta

ge
s

2

Place

1

44

11

6.7m

6.1m

5

25

1

3

Pump

21

20

6.7m

LOWER WALMER

34

Stone

Wolfe Court

23

19

22

5

46

6.7m

35

12

6.5m

12

2

6.4m

Shelter

1

6.6m

15

HA
RV

EY
 A

VE
NU

E

TH
E 

ST
R

A
N

D

17

55

25

23

3 
2

5.8m

16

41

7

4

Stone

ARCHERY SQUARE

Fn

29

1

36

St Michael and

Stone

15

16

6.4m

60

11

4

6.7m

6.7m

El Sub Sta

1

CAVALRY COURT

20

6.7m

2

120

3

4

31

14

CAMBRIDGE ROAD

6

40

25

6.5m

31

16
a

5

2.1m

9

DE
VO

N 
AV

EN
UE

1b

27

1

D
rain

2

2

1a

818

Fishermans

6

St
on

e

Gr
an

vi
lle

 H
ou

se

1
9

19

All Angels Church

6.8m

35

9
4a

5.9m

14

FS

19

1

8

22

Claytons Hill

1

Ca
na

da
 M

ew
s

Pantile

2.4m

6.6m

24

El

46

Path

Shingle

JARVIST

6.1m

2

21

HA
LL

ID
AY

 D
RI

VE

The

El Sub Sta

15

17

Path (um)

3.4m

Shingle

2

PLACE

Kings Court

15

37

GRANVILLE ROAD

Path (um)

42

30

1

1 
to

 5

6.1m

10

10

31

1 
to

 1
2 

14
 to

 2
0

DO
VE

R 
RO

AD

KING STREET

8

5

26

6.7m

GR
OV

E 
RO

AD

39

1

69

Meml

4

48

4

Bollard

PH

The Coach House

12

Sub Sta

Stone

1

Parkview

Und

31
3

3.7m

SD
Stone

Claytons Hill

Pond

14

19

FB

32

ED & Ward Bdy

LB

32
3

10

42

Langton

6

Old

6.5m

House

The Odyssey

54

40

32
1

Stone

0.
91

m
 F

F

5

Path (um
)

Stone

Path (um
)

4

Shelter

Saltwood

140

Path (um)

Shelter

10

Sh
elt

er
s

D
or

se
t C

ou
rt

39

Track

Hillside

49

19
a

Tennis Centre

Old Vicarage

32

Centre

33

Vikings

48

Education

Post

Walmer

The Gallery

Whitecliffe

22

Lifeboat Station

Club

Social

129

7

Tr
ac

k

20

Cottages

54

71

21

31
1

El Sub Sta

35

Willowdene

19

47

Tamarisk

35

128

38

36
3

12

130

135

2

17

53

1

114

26

7

15

39
9

1

36

36

41

5

3
2

2

108

94

51

67

42

41

27

3

31

4

138

52 58

20

6

37

19

141

47

6

4

40

14

9

20

8

18

19

8

10
 1

1

37

46

110

56

WILKINSON DRIVE

25

131

3

62

50

18

33

11

23

11

45

92

19
25

15

34

98

4

3

8

24

7

39

28 26

13

30

41

82

28

Kirk
 G

ar
de

ns

5333

2

5

24

Stillwater

27

21

9

46

19

6

1 t
o 4

48

6

45

15

53

3

7

4

55

29

8

55

57

14

96

12

38

2

9

70

16

7

204

12

80

to

64

73

6

72

39

2b

142

2a

21

36

200

Maritime

1a

23

4

34

Path (um)

16

San
 Ja

n J
oh

26

8

3a

17

18

Beacontree

3

6

15

FW

63

55

30.8m

35

Sewage Ppg Sta

458a

18

As
hw

el
l

65

White

Driftwood

1 to 7

6

Coggers

8a

63

Maxton

M
IL

LE
RS

 R
O

AD

The Well House

Well Heads

12

NO
 NAM

E LANE

2

Def

Rose

Track

21

BOUNDARY ROAD

CH

30

4

11

12

Octobers

61

Rotherw
ood

3

22

4

El Sub Sta

WATER TOWER PLACE

Pond

MONGEH
AM W

AY

11

3

13

W
alm

er
 (S

ta
tio

n)

39

BB

40

20

24

28

29

29

14

33
34

2

36

3

16

9

6

1

13

34

12

23

18

42

15

24

15

8

15
17

North

5

13

14

14

30

Cottage

Farm

4 to 5

35

Path
 (u

m)

4

1a to 1e

Walmer Court

3

5

Court

5

11

South

PC

1 t
o 8

Lodge

El Sub Sta

c

RI
PP

LE
 W

AY

M
ean H

igh W
ater

1

Sports Pavilion

2a
 to

 2
f

1 to 10

1 to 3

Sh
in

gl
e

1 t
o 2

0

20

Sh
in

gl
e

1 to 8

Shingle

M
ean H

igh W
ater

Court

Shingle

15

16

Guilford

Shingle

20

M
ean High W

ater

32

1 to 5

(Path)

Shingle

Shingle

El

4

M
ean Low

 W
ater

W
ellington Parade

W
ellington Parade

M
ean Low

 W
ater

12

Shingle

1 to 10

M
ean Low

 W
ater

Shingle

(Path)

W
ell

in
gt

on
 C

ou
rt

40

Shingle

31

Shingle

13

Hawksdown

Stone

25

ROAD

1 t
o 6

9

Guildford

Cottage

Walmer

Church Path

Clifford Park

Seagull

Sports Pavilion

Sunmead

24

Sports Pavilion

61

Coolro
em

ore

OSBORNE R
OAD

PC

18c

28

Groynes

Spr
ing

 H
ou

se

Groynes

Shingle

1 to 8

Hawkshill

1 
to

 6

CF

Welford Cottage

W
ellington Parade

14.7m

80

K
IN

G
SD

O
W

N
 R

O
A

D

Kestrels

White Strake

HA
W

KS
DO

W
N 

RO
AD

LI
VE

R
PO

O
L 

R
O

A
D

157

Himara

86

Newlands

W
renw

ood

House

Penmore

30.7m

The Lodge

12

Shorelands

W
ELLIN

G
TO

N
 PA

R
A

D
E

22

Shingle

1

White
Lodge

Summerfield

Arrowe

1b

W
INCHESTER M

EW
S

The Mill Inn

1

50

2

38

46
48

1

81

24

5

39

51

and Social Institute

TCB

14

6

CELTIC ROAD

16

25

15

29

R
O

A
D

3.0m

FB

Stone

1

49

51

7.0m

18

101

3

22

66

60

CLIF
FO

RD

7

28.8m

70

CR

10a

47a

18a

7

8

33TE
LE

GRAPH
 R

OAD

76

1

75

47

7.9m

4

19

10

Chapman House

13

17
5

18
9

18

1

24

15a

297

23

52

31
5

3

b32
7

46

22.1m

STATION ROAD

33

42

5

10

10

5

346

340

28
1

11

17

10

10
a

30

34

4

22

5

FS

Clare Court Lodge

17.2m

Stone

6

3

5

Woodhelven

Oakleigh

70

1

5a

32

Mea
do

w

Glen

1

POETS

17 4

4.7m

GREE
NACRE 

DRIV
E

10

16

The Old Vicarage

67

23.9m

12

Little Gothic

El

24

33

2

28

40

5

47

22

14

88

M
EN

ZI
ES

 A
VE

NU
E

YORK AND

Pond

13

12
a

1

SALISBURY ROAD

20
3

37

23

1a

3

150

44

26

DO
W

NS
 R

OAD

Rab
an

d

208

OWEN SQUARE

19
9

7

10

86

76

29

CO
UR

T 
RO

AD

43

81

7a

6.4m

43

126.4m

1

12
a

Mews

Green Shutters

56

El Sub Sta

7

8

7

2a

35.2m

20

2

13

Osborne House

LB

DO
VE

R 
RO

AD

9

Shaftesbury

42
3

15a

Tanglewood

1

17

Stone

Coppice

1

5

7

3a

Channel Lea

1

10

28

13 356

2

20

13

Walmer Nursery

Holmeswood

LIVER
PO

O
L R

O
A

D

Stone

The

9a

Conifers

3

6

3

Path (um)

7

9

21

DO
W

EL
L

5

8

7

WARWICK ROAD

Pa
rk

14

2

HERSCHELL ROAD EAST

21

Stone

2a

Flats

13

Pine Timbers

13

8

130

Sub Sta

6.8m

Kerbela

114

EDWARD
Lodge

3

Dawn

1

TCB

Tre
miss

ary

Lainghaven

16

The Stables

Stone

51

43

War Memorial

5.8m

TH
E B

EA
C

H

LB

Courtyard

Glen Lodge

56

Arosa

Northgate

Stone

Hilbre

38

4

View

Flats

12

42

47

18

ARCHERY SQUARE

49

Stone

Hawks Hill Cottage

5.8m

Stone

5.5m

30

Southleaze

Ha
wk

ha
rro

w

Path (um
)

Haven

Kittyhawk

Path

The Coach House

Pa
th

69

PH

South

18

Stoneycroft

Cliff Cottage

39

Clim
bury

CECIL ROAD

16

Groyne

44

105

44

W
ELLING

TO
N PARADE

1

76

4

House

1

8

137

Pinewood

Seacroft

105

9

7to10

DRUM M
AJO

R D
RIVE

16

70 112

1

7

117

57

2

11

COWDRAY SQUARE

10

23.6m

24

51

60

1

48

2

14 to 22

6

40

5

18

32

64

FORELANDS SQUARE

78

26

206

8

42

20

136

71

43

9

20

4a

18
a

2

Stone

Hilmor

5.8m

Wild Rose Cottage

2

Primary School

23

31

Inn
isf

re
e

1

CORNW
ALL ROAD

24

29

10

86

Pavilion

68

91

10

62

76

SY
DNEY

 R
OAD

21

GARDENS

41

11

2

12

58

18

War
d B

dy

24

95

10

Courtyard

Farmhouse

38

a

17

19

86

16

82

TCB

6

1 to 18

49

JA
MES H

ALL
 G

ARDENS

Sub Sta

1

M
ean Low

 W
ater

8.5m

41

50

23

Shingle

85

M
ean Low

 W
ater

FREEMEN'S WAY

Shingle
14

Shingle

Pittock House

MILLERS ROAD

So
m

er
se

t C
ou

rt

W
ellington Parade

Forelands House

Penbury

21
1

1 to 6

18

9a

26

W
ellington Parade

29
3

30
9

8

64

27

d

32
9

Tudor Lodge

1

334

e

17

23

10

29
1

35

El Sub Sta

HI
LL

CR
ES

T 
GAR

DE
NS

17a

9

35

1

Stones

19

234

Russ-Leigh

29

Bracklyn

6

TH
E 

SH
RUBBER

Y

14

9

8

24

37

18

9.8m

Annesy

1

11

65

Stone

69

12

13

The C
hurch

 of J
es

us C
hris

t

Stone

Pentlands

Stone

Sub Sta

7

290

STR
EET

CHURCH STREET

2

30

GREEN LANE

Old

2

27

4

12

of St Mary

Childrens

225

The Downs Church of England Primary School
19

3

28

Moreton Court

16
9

7.2m

9 to 16

AV
EN

UE

DO
W

NS
 R

OAD

198

LB

27

30

Ward Bdy

91.529

El Sub Sta

Def

19

PW

1

116

1

9

Court

Po
nd

Burial Ground

Dorset

58

14

Sub

55

48

3.0m

16

13a

3

13

K
N

O
LL

 P
LA

C
E

188

Play Area

Th
e

3

House

11a

1

1

13

13

HA
LL

ID
AY

 D
RI

VE

Beacon

7

31

33

7

1a

7

JUBILEE DRIVE

1

23

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

32

12

6.2m

13

PH

23

15

21

17

THE STRAND

1

20

13

17Stones

CANADA ROAD
PH

20

K
IN

G
SD

O
W

N
 R

O
A

D

17
a

11

6.1m

6

CLARENCE ROAD

Lifeboat House

Path (um)

30a

Deal House

Path (um)

Path

Greensleeves

Palmerston
Court

85

Meadowside

Path (um)

40
1

51

202

60

5

22

50

17

1

66

25

23

2

3

50

17

13

43

38

52

10

6

14

52

37

139

12

10
a

2

Merryfield

Stones Throw

10

CH

Gree
ns

ide

Downs Sailing Club

5

14

7

3

Cottage

A to
 D

30

10

2

6

23

27

DO
VE

R 
RO

AD

(Caravan Site)

22

1 to 26

Sports Pavilion

King Charles Court

M
ean High W

ater

M
ean H

igh W
ater

Shingle

Sh
in

gl
e

Shingle

Lodge

W
ellington Parade

43

AW2 - Walmer,
Wellington

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: AW2 - Walmer, Wellington Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.2 0 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.80.1
KilometersPage 13

44



7.0m

6

30

8

Church of England

1

Deal Parochial

45

47

46

15

Pond

49

28

2

Denmor

9

51

38

6.7m

25

HERSCHELL SQUARE

Sub Sta

28b

El

2

32

11

2

14

48

HERSCHELL SQUARE

28a

46

21

19

Primary School

11

33

56

52

LB

4

16

31

39

FS

El

35

25

33

W
EL

LE
SL

EY
 A

VE
NU

E

6

39

70

55

47

CURZON CLOSE

Sub
Sta

26

65

53

HERSCHELL ROAD WEST

DO
W

NS
 R

OAD

16

24

47

49

8.8m

1

14

7

52

70

13

51

2

Hougoumont

8

PALMERSTON AVENUE

53

2

27

North Barrack

1

64

67

44

36

Co
ve

nt
ry

 C
ou

rt

3

6 to 11

65

76

House

74

PH

17

CO
VE

NT
RY

 G
AR

DE
NS

The Coach House

75

1

1

69

Stone

35

Napier House

5.4m

40

ADMIRALTY MEWS

Stones

6 to 11

37

20

10

122

32

1 to 5

82

83

23

11 to 13

87

31

48

3

38

Shelter

105

26

24

1

34

Stone

GLA
DS

TO
NE

 R
OAD

St
on

e

1

109

12

1

BAMFORD WAY

68

5.9m

5

13

WOODSTOCK ROAD

2

1

10
4

7 
to

 1
2

11
8

24 to 29

6.0m

16

33

M
AX

W
EL

L 
PL

AC
E

Pool

15

9

11
8b

2

18 to 23

Bur
ial

 G
ro

un
d

24 to 29

MP

13

10 to 15

1

25
 to

 3
0

38

18

21

1 to 6

84

21

57

13

82

1

Wardens House

14

Und

45

Stone

Stone

15

11
8a

7.4m

59

CORNW
ALL ROAD

1b

67

6.3m

2

11

24

BA
LF

OUR
 R

OAD

HAMILTON ROAD

21

61

529

7.3m

10

14

Place

7.0m

10

15

ST
O

CK
DA

LE
 G

AR
DE

NS

77

4.9m

96

Pump

52

38

30

52

Stone

14

53

4.6m

The Old

5

13

The Lodge

6.1m

22

27

11

2

67

10

56

148

W
alm

er G
reenHA

RV
EY

 A
VE

NU
E

46

DO
VE

R 
RO

AD

142

19
 to

 21

23

7.3m

28

1a

12
1

Cottage

7

2

1

11
1

Fn

5

7.0m

8

Yard

8

7.3m

18

1

4

10
8

15

2

4

6

Ol
d 

Gy
m

na
si

um

80

Posts

6

MEW
S

6.7m

62

3

Cambridge

Be
rri

es

11

17

LB

Ra
m

se
y H

ou
se

5

Mou
nt

ba
tte

n 
Ho

us
e

9

3

27

Church

6.7m

20

11

1

11

11

31

Mews

6.1m

Lodge

17

5

86

25

21

1

ALEXANDRA ROAD6.7m

TCB

14

9

34

9a

23

13

35

2

19

6

LI
VE

RP
OO

L 
RO

AD

LB

14

Fishermans

1

JA
MES H

ALL
 G

ARDENS

6.4m

1

1

16

1

9

1

9

36

154

6.7m

50

HARVEY AVENUE

FS

21

11

27

KELVEDON ROAD

Ca
st

all
a C

ot
ta

ge
s

1

6.4m

23

15

CAVALRY COURT

D Fn

25

6.6m

3 
2

NORTH BARRACKS

CAMBRIDGE ROAD

25

32

72

29

35

6.1m

6.5m

Victoria

16

6.5m

5.7m

32

HA
LL

ID
AY

 D
RI

VE

8

DE
VO

N 
AV

EN
UE

6.7m

44

TH
E 

ST
R

A
N

D

17

95

2

Be
rry

2

3

6

2

55

Co
tta

ge

NORTH BARRACK ROAD

19

Kings Court

41

LOWER WALMER
14

5.9m

36

Wolfe Court

ARCHERY SQUARE

The

1

Ca
na

da
 M

ew
s

5

46

El

1

20

Stone

15
2

12

The

8

13
4

60

7

GLADSTONE ROAD

DRILL
 C

OURT

1

13

42

14

6.6m

4

14

13

Mews

19

25

Green

10

Court

4

1

House

Beach Court

1

1to6

23

Fa
ct

or
y

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

Und

H
ou

se

6.4m

41

Court

Stone

Argyll

40

El Sub Sta

56

14

5

91.5

7to12

7t
o1

2

120

40

27

16

43

2

16
a

45

15

8

4a

12

1b

26

El Sub Sta

35

1

11

1

32

65

19

50

54

2

70

64

29

ST
OCKDALE

 G
ARDEN

S

Brunswick

1

15

8

2

ARDENT AVENUE

9

Burial Ground

6

(Bandstand)

YO
R

K
 R

O
A

D

1

1a

35

Dorset

22

90

28a

50

36

Posts

80

6.7m

48

Rose

93

Allotment Gardens

Play Area

Cott

AR
DE

NT
 A

VE
NU

E

6.3m

Th
e

1

61

17
0

3

39

Shelter

83

15
6

20

6.4m

193

House

31

19

109

22

14
6

GLA
DST

ONE 
ROAD

27

11a

6.8m

15
0

37

52

1

LOWER

12

Cottage

1

Stone

WOLLASTON ROAD

Shelter

5

The

8

30

Court

Ri
si

ng
 B

ol
la

rd
s

13

203

St
on

e

31

M
A

R
IN

E 
R

O
A

D

Strand

87

48

13

All Angels Church

Ash

Stone

6.2m

PH

HA
LL

ID
AY

 D
RI

VE

St
on

e

33

CR

C
A

M
PB

EL
L 

R
O

A
D

26

Sh
el

te
r

1to6

Stone

24

Castleaton

5.6m

The Deal Memorial

7to12

57

CHERITON ROAD

2

14

1t
o6

28

16

6.1m

Club

22

12

24

31

45

56

11

DO
VE

R 
RO

AD

67

Meml

49

21

Bollard

2
54

6.7m

51

1

66

Putting

15

PH

4

39

SHEFFIELD GARDENS

63

5.6m

20

TH
E STR

A
N

D

17

38

6.1m

The Coach House

22

Church

LB

5.8m

Bollard

19

Parkview

79

6

40

5.4m

43

Beacon

10

1 
to

 5

Stone

7

7

71

6.5m

1 
to

 1
2 

14
 to

 2
0

24

31

3

St Michael and

KING STREET

Green

Shrimp Cottage

33

4

183

1

67
d

18

7

10
2

View

4

Old Grave Yard

25

1a

8

Tennis Centre

Sub Sta

40

67
a

10

7

19

Th
e O

ld

4

4

7

GR
OV

E 
RO

AD

D
or

se
t C

ou
rt

20

51

10

2

5

3

D Fn

19
a

6

25

St Saviour's

JUBILEE DRIVE

Club

2

6

Lifeboat Station

5

Club

31

Memorial

8

52a

TR
AF

AL
GA

R 
DR

IV
E

7

4

1

68

62

47

15

23

19

33

6

3

Garden

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

26

WILKINSON DRIVE

Stone

24

30

9

3

32

2

20

9

64

57

48

4

12

3

12

47

29
27

4 to 5

18

14

29

3

11

6.2m

Gr
an

vi
lle

 H
ou

se

26

PC

36

28

1

13

9

15

4

El Sub Sta

76

El Sub Sta

PH

4a

15

Sports Pavilion

M
ea

n 
Lo

w
 W

at
er

14

9

Carter Court

Sports Pavilion

1 to 3

Beacon

The Officer's

8

69
a

Stables

1 
to

 6

Court

Ga
ol

2a

Guilford

1

16

M
ean H

igh W
ater

5

1a

1 to 4

14

6

10
 1

1

The Well House

17

23

5 to 8

15

1 t
o 4

3

Health Centre

51

21

PC

18

7

17

TR
AF

AL
GA

R 
DR

IV
E

M
ean H

igh
W

ater

7.0m

2b

W
ellington Parade

12

THE STRAND

W
ell

in
gt

on
 C

ou
rt

18

11

Walmer

13

14

2

Health Centre

CR

1

Post Room

Middleton

House

Elizabeth

1

48

10a

2

12a

2

47a

20

8

WALMER

33

13

76

67

17

47

46

M
P 

91
.2

5

4

CANADA ROAD

Stones

Neptune

19

CANADA ROAD
PH

10

1

Paddling

10

20

26

8

14

War

39

C
H

ER
ITO

N
 PLA

C
E

View

28

12 to 17

11

DR
EW

 L
AN

E

6.1m

22

6

7

Retreat

CLARENCE ROAD

23

3

Ps

CHATER COURT

20

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

5

1

2

9

3

12
0

64
 6

5

10
0

78

66

11

12

4

2

49

22

25

Downs Sailing Club

23

30

1a

2

6.4m

23

Sports Pavilion

El Sub Sta

12

M
ean H

igh W
ater

6.4m

1

20

28

Walmer Nursery

LIVER
PO

O
L R

O
A

D

The

9a

6

3

7

21

DO
W

EL
L

5

8

7

WARWICK ROAD

Pa
rk

14

2

HERSCHELL ROAD EAST

21

Stone

2a

Flats

13

13

130

6.8m

114

3

1

TCB

Lookout

95

49

37

Green

46

16

Mar
in

e T
er

ra
ce

62

10

9

39

Channel

38

93

55

48

52b

51

14
8

18

6.4m

3

23

TH
E B

EA
C

H

Courtyard

1

66

30

FS

25

4

Flats

42

18

ARCHERY SQUARE

CR

Ward Bdy

49

1

1

7

46

50

5

2

53

2

65

The Old

M
ean

Low
W

ater

M
ean Low

 W
ater

W
ellington Parade

AW3 - Walmer,
St Saviour's

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: AW3 - Walmer, St Saviour's Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.1 0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.40.05
KilometersPage 14

45



Church of England

51

35 36

70

Co
ve

nt
ry

 C
ou

rt

Deal Parochial

Primary School

7.0m

Pond

6 to 11

61a

Hougoumont

House

56

Skateboard Park

65

76

1 to 5

FS

47

61

North Barrack

38

17

The Coach House

39

63

CO
VE

NT
RY

 G
AR

DE
NS

34

63a

67

69

Paddling

1

68

Napier House

6 to 11

3

134

26

24 to 29

40

10

PH

74

75
20

Stones

5.4m

14

32

83

82

31

Stone

C
H

ER
ITO

N
 PLA

C
E

Pool

122

3

24

ADMIRALTY MEWS

62

72

23

Bonningbrook

26

St
on

e

12 to 17

37

87

12 to 17

18 to 23

GLA
DS

TO
NE

 R
OAD

5.9m

11 to 13

DR
EW

 L
AN

E

Shelter

1

23

10
4

22

11

25
 to

 3
0

Stone

48

1
6.0m

12

105

FINCH MEWS

7

1 to 6

5

Victoria Park

109

13

BAMFORD WAY

3

7

1

Und

71

7 
to

 1
2

14

20

2

2

33

WOODSTOCK ROAD

9

1 to 6

9

12
0

11
8a

15

11
8

16

MP

11

53

Bur
ial

 G
ro

un
d

M
AX

W
EL

L 
PL

AC
E

21

11
8b

8

4

13

14

24 to 29

2

MEW
S

22

84

18

4.9m

65

10 to 15

SP

The Old

C
la

nw
ill

ia
m

 H
ou

se

6.4m

82

21

7.3m

9

7.0m

21

1

Place

1

1

Fn

1

7.0m

Wardens House

9a

Be
rri

es

Stone

80

TH
E 

ST
R

A
N

D

67

6
5

1

9

11

Stone

DO
W

EL
L

62

1

10

HA
LL

ID
AY

 D
RI

VE

5

4

8

ST
O

CK
DA

LE
 G

AR
DE

NS

The

14

Victoria

Green

2

52

61

15
2

9

8

23

Ol
d 

Gy
m

na
si

um

42

1

LOWER WALMER

2a

41

Be
rry

3

1

56

Court

Mou
nt

ba
tte

n 
Ho

us
e

6

Co
tta

ge

Wolfe Court

1to6

40

27

20

1

11

25

16
a

Court

6.4m

TCB

7

CAVALRY COURT

43

1b

3 
2

40

Ca
na

da
 M

ew
s

12

Lookout

32

13

8

The

Mews

5

11 House

95

Und

16

4a

DRILL
 C

OURT

50

Stone

8

13

49

Shelter

Brunswick

54W
ar

d 
Bd

y

35

7to12

37

6

Ri
si

ng
 B

ol
la

rd
s

1

Argyll

29

Green

15

90

Strand

9

7t
o1

2
1a

26

80

46

Stone

45

8

36

16

AR
DE

NT
 A

VE
NU

E

CR

64

1

Cott

Mar
in

e T
er

ra
ce

31

1to6

YO
R

K
 R

O
A

D

ARDENT AVENUE

19

61

62

7to12

27

28a

35

70

10

1t
o6

83

52

93

193

15

LOWER

9

39

12

109

50

5

(Bandstand)

15
6

39

M
A

R
IN

E 
R

O
A

D

St
on

e

11

22

14
6

Channel

Rose

Ash

21

Posts

All Angels Church

Cottage

38

Shelter

33

66

St
on

e

The

Allotment Gardens

93

Court

Stone

19

SHEFFIELD GARDENS

6.3m

56

Sh
el

te
r

15
0

5.9m

17
55

2

17
0

Stone

5.6m

6.4m

Putting

The Deal Memorial

5.8m

48

CHERITON ROAD

GLA
DST

ONE 
ROAD

39

203

28

5.4m

52b

6.7m

37

TH
E STR

A
N

D

24

Stone

67

7.0m

51

22

1

71

14
8

87

Bollard

18

7

WOLLASTON ROAD

St Michael and

40

6.4m

6.2m

183

5.6m

3

30

1 
to

 5

C
A

M
PB

EL
L 

R
O

A
D

NORTH BARRACKS

View

6.1m

23

1
to

 1
2 

14
 to

 2
0

24

Castleaton

67
a

Shrimp Cottage

10
6

4

2

57

DEAL CASTLE ROAD

1

16

2

66

The Queens

31

Club

67
d

The Old Cottage

31

Lodge

8

26

Meml

3.1m

30

St Saviour's

Bollard

45

32

14

14

61

49

FS

51

3

54

1

15

H
O

PE
 R

O
A

D

Deal Bowling

25

PH

31

63

2

RANELAGH ROAD

5

20

4

38

6

Church

LOWER MILL LANE

50

4

79

52a

Chapel

40

7

6.7m

10

67

4

24

El Sub Sta

1

62

10
0

19

6.2m

14

106

19

Gate

13
3

Stone

28

1

12a

38

Green

May Lodge

20

Walnut

1

Alm
sh

ouse
s

11

58

18

72

Court

11

Old Grave Yard

12

PARK AVENUE

41

3

4.9m

CR

18

21

SP

D Fn

122

30
a

Und

8

Cottage

2

13

4a

74a

CR

RAVENSCOURT ROAD

1

30

LB

6.5m

6

30

72a

24

74

The Mews

1

1

73

3

Court

28

18

128

33

25

5.2m

Club

11

72

57

Leisure Centre

11

9a

44

3.0m

Q
uinton

10
3

Downs Cottage

PR
IN

C
E 

O
F 

W
A

LE
S 

TE
R

R
A

C
E

PC

Tennis Courts

10

43

51

10a

48

Douglas

62

37

16

24

Presbytery

C
R

4.9m

30

28

N
O

R
TH

C
O

TE R
O

A
D

Club

52

BLENHEIM
 RO

AD

73

LB

16

72
a

Allotment Gardens

Gymnastic Club

9

46

96

34

3.5m

58

12

7

Bowling Green

of St Thomas

GLA
DST

ONE 
ROAD

14

78

61

59

Tennis

22

54

7

4.9m

87

Shelvey

2

Allotment

3.6m

16

1

Stone

118

3

5.2m

21

M
P 

91

94

2

Betty

Gardens

1

7a

Victoria Park

PH

TH
E STR

A
N

D

FS

6

Sports Courts

15

5.7m

6.2m

14

BEACONSFIELD ROAD

70

Play Area

120

21

LB

5

C
R

38

6

22

10

20

28

Old Coach

23

1

FS

SD

4.9m

11

3.9m

56

20

House

1

TCBs

GILFORD ROAD

2

16

Community

8

El Sub Sta

29

9

55

CR

20

1

STANLEY ROAD

17

38

Four Walls

Ward Bdy

Orc
ha

rd

22

66

2

Th
e O

ld

49

59

Vi
ct

or
ia

 P
ar

ad
e

of Canterbury

10

5

1

39

9

115

Club

46

7

51

6.3m

Club

13

46

50

Def

7

TR
AF

AL
GA

R 
DR

IV
E

M
A

R
IN

E 
R

O
A

D

1

10

40

HOPE ROAD

20

6.1m

2

Def

5.9m

3

2

43

4

53

FW

73

FW

Mew
s

WILKINSON DRIVE

67

19

4

24

64

2

25

The Bungalow

10
2

5.0m

29

10

65

1

48

Church

74

48

8

FB

55

Nursing Home

43

The Old

6.3
m

51

5

5

Lifeboat Station

13

47

6

6

Memorial

2

29

10

1 to 52

20

36

Deal Castle

6

8

8

3

1

7

Terrace

4

Cottage

Mews

72

THE DRIVE

18

9

2

LB

M
ean H

igh W
ater

1

69
a

47

1 to 4

57

Norman Tailyour

3 
4

8a

Ga
ol

18

5 to 8

1

8

1

6.1m

58

El Sub Sta

Nursery

Linwood Te
rra

ce

6

68

1 to 11

6

57

5.7m

80

10

33

FW

H
ealth C

entre

1

8

Meml

M
ea

n 
Lo

w
 W

at
er

14

Garden

El Sub Sta

26

30

59

Beacon

Sports Pavilion

M
ean H

igh W
ater

14

9

Northcote

Und

10
 1

1

95

28

Carter Court

1 to 24

NORTH BARRACK ROAD

76

5

132

60

36

The Officer's

MILL ROAD

10

1 t
o 4

Stables

3

Stone

2a

18

16

13
4

TR
AF

AL
GA

R 
DR

IV
E

GLADSTONE ROAD

The Well House

14

2b

Health Centre

19

Health Centre

PC

7

1

Post Room

W
ell

in
gt

on
 C

ou
rt

M
ean Low

 W
ater

Elizabeth

Fa
ct

or
y

13

31

12a

91.5

El Sub Sta

Th
e

11a

1

Beacon

1

12

6.2m

PH

23

THE STRAND

Walmer

2

1

Middleton

House

1

48

2

2

20

WALMER

13

67

17

46

M
P 

91
.2

5

CANADA ROAD

Stones

Neptune

CANADA ROAD
PH

1

10

20

8

War

39

View

28

6.1m

Retreat

Old

1

9a

CLANWILLIAM ROAD

VIC
TO

R
IA R

O
A

D

4

9

Court

13
1

14
3

18

W
ar

d 
B

dy

CP

76

Garage

GRANVILLE STREET

89

36

2

10

14

34

53

48

41 FW

Deal Castle

69

4

2

6

Beachlands Court

23

Ps

CHATER COURT

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

W
ar

d B
dy

8

64
 6

5

10
0

7

78

66

12

78

53

2

49

25

Downs Sailing Club

El Sub Sta

House

AW4N -
North Deal,
Gladstone

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: AW4N - North Deal, Gladstone Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.1 0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.40.05
KilometersPage 15

46



Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: BC1 - Buckland, North
Dover District Council
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
Dover
CT16 3PJ

Und

El

1

5

Pond

CR

View Wood

Sta
Sub

6

1 to 5

7

PILGRIMS WAY

1 to 8

4

Pond

FB

El Sub Sta

St
an

d

19

Mill House

KING
STO

N CLO
SE

1

Junction

MILL RACE

4

SP

19.9m

5

1

1

7

26

18

29

48.0m

5

SR

5

51.9m

Oldpark Hill

9

1

16

1

24

29

Stone

2

FB

ED & Ward Bdy

Old Park Wood

64.6m

7

R
O

M
A

N

CF

CR

9

32

Stone

MILL CLOSE

CR

32

29

2

15

26.7m

ED & Ward Bdy

22

2

River Court

9

29.9m

32

24

36.0m

42

54.2m

6

CRABBLE
 LA

NE

OLD CHARLTON ROAD

21

28

12

25

Charlton Cemetery

St James's Cemetery

FF

2

39.3m

MANSION GARDENS

34

30

DA
NE

S 
CO

UR
T

Un
d

War Memorial

FRIARS WAY

PALMERSTON ROAD

27

46.1m

63

Living

R
O

A
D

95.5m

14

23

106.6m

Stone

27

3

10

17

Church

33

3

57.9m

36.5m

19

Play Area

3

2

1

Def

26.9m

23

41.5m

13

148

CF

25

Cottage

20.9m

Well

20

11

65.0m

Public Waste Disposal Site

9

ED
 &

 W
ar

d 
B

dy

1

9

ET
L

OLD

The Cricketers

2

OLD

ROAD

150

Path (um)

27.6m

ED
 &

 W
ar

d 
Bd

y

MP 76

65

Tank

1

CR

Greenacres

CRABBLE HILL

CRABBLE

40

Und

CF

D
ef

Lodge

LONDON ROAD

El Sub Sta

1

21

Sandwich Hole

Home

C Tu
nn

el

15

ED & Ward Bdy

R
O

M
AN

 R
O

AD

6

ED & Ward Bdy

Depot

PARK AVENUE

Tr
ac

k

(PH)

112.0m

BS

74

55

152

32.0m

ET
L

(c
ou

rs
e 

of
)

6

SL

Und

20

77.7m

Post

MP 98

ET
L

Chestnut

16

Groundsmans

17

ESS

57Astley Court

ET
L

Nursing

1

20.1m

73

8

De
f

59

11

Signal Post

Ward
 Bdy

MAYFIELD AVENUE

59

58

31.7m

94

10
4

TCB

Def

18

86

74

11
0

10
5

13

1 t
o 6

61.5m

MP 76.25

CF

LB

5

Mast (Telecommunication)

5

CW

8

1

52

25

6

24

Court

56

El Sub Sta

13

14

Sta

26

CR

COURT

45

46

Ward Bdy

2

64

6a

32

SP

29

WAY

72.1m

Def

Villas

85

1

21

93

6

27

Br
oo

kl
an

ds

The Buckland Yew

54.0m

34

HILLSIDE ROAD

1

5

12

9

34

8

13

SP

1

1

23
.8m

81

41
El Sub Sta

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

Kingswood

54.8m

St Andrew Terrace

17

15

PARDONERS

Stone

River Dour

7 t
o 12

18.5m

16

10

9

Stand

Ward Bdy

7

PILGRIMS WAY

7

77

1

6

15

2

13

61

Minn
is 

Te
rra

ce

MP 
98

.75

BB

2

RUTLAND ROAD

14

MP 99

13

Garage

75

Dodds

27

CR

24

38

SQUIRES

16

35

15

WAY

12

25

27

2

26

117

2

38

16a

71.0m

1

94

21

27

1

2

29

3

32.6m

15

8

73.0m

LB

14

76

KNIGHTS WAY

7

9

WEAVERS WAY

MONKS WAY

1

10

CR
ES

CE
NT

1

7

12

61

13

59

40

2

21

PI
O

NE
ER

 R
O

AD

61.6m

24

28

CARLSDEN CLOSE

W
AS

HI
NG

TO
N

25

15

19

DO
DD

'S
 L

AN
E

7

ROAD
49

43.0m

TCB

24.1m

1

1

PILGRIMS WAY

12

25

93

47

10

PH

6

2

7

136

24

13

15

64

129

Sub
El

Coleman House

7

17

139

28

OLD PARK HILL

ED & Ward Bdy

12

17

SHIPMANS WAY

15

14

20

LB

1

1

71

Shelter

4

11

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

7

2

6

24

64

El

ESS

ED & Ward Bdy

LB

59

CL
O

SE

7

24

68

Boundary

20

BROOKFIELD ROAD

37

1

10

13

72

1

13

11

1

2

17
3

79

15a

2

6

C
H

A
U

C
ER

13a

PLACE

73

Posts

DRYDEN

27
.2

m

Su
b 

St
a

O
LD

 P
A

R
K

 H
IL

L

El Sub Sta

MARLOWE ROAD

16
1

El Sub Sta

5

17
9

OLD PARK HILL

37

11a

164a

MANGERS PLACE

1

1

52

6

136

29

21

38

26

13

24.1m

29

17
2

21

38

G
LE

N
FI

EL
D

 R
O

A
D

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

10

47

8

ST ANDREWS GARDENS

B
R

U
N

SW
IC

K
 G

A
R

D
EN

S

1

58

61

13
3

41

84

25

72

5

MANGERS

The Bull

HEATHFIELD AVENUE

107

M
AN

GE
RS

 L
AN

E

32.8m

85

93

121

43

37

68

103

164

147

70

78

105

PH

10

10
4

12

125

22.8m

140

11
6

32.9m

78

1 to 8

Mayfield

152

15

BS

16
6

1 to 6

El Sub Sta

15
2

2

Sub

GRE
EN

 L
AN

E

98

Lodge

60

4

115

FB

a

11

20

15
3

5

17

HEATHFIELD AVENUE

11

WINANT WAY

89

95

9

15

139

89

106

13.8m

37.7m

FL
O

RI
DA

 C
LO

SE

1

Shelter

12

12

10
7

31

14

17to19

El Sub

168

14

34

84

1

49.0m

5a

30

1

12
1

20

M
IN

ER
VA

 A
VE

NU
E

12

62

SP
RI

NG
FI

EL
D 

RO
AD

38

72
6

10

83

77

17

6

ROOSEVELT ROAD

1

Chaffinch

M
AI

NE
 C

LO
SE

14

24

7

TCB

16

CLOSE

Allotment Gardens

15

8

24

MAYFIELD AVENUE

13

CL
EV

EL
AN

D 
CL

O
SE

40.9m

Sta

5

El

94

1

8

13

18

1

7

28

14
3

73

SL
24

42

84

96

19

14

7

BUCKLAND VALLEY

14

83

128

2a

Shelter

24

BOSTON

31

53

5

20

Fitz
walt

er 
Court

Conqueror

House

21

1a

25

9

13

29

Gardens

34

Car

4

4

BY
RO

N 
CR

ES
CE

NT

6

7

2b

BUCKLAND

47

26

12

29

8
2

20

1

47.2m

14.8m

Sub

SHERIDAN ROAD

34

27

16
5

Ingledene

15

56.7m

25

53

Brookfield

34

Bridge

38

Ce
nt

re

51

El

43.2m

61

CRABBLE MEADOWS

14

19
4

23

13

59

Osprey

CO
LO

RA
DO

 C
LO

SE

38

1

18
0

50.2m

7

58

14

30

1

7

Shelter

26

17

65

CRABBLE HILL

Sta

Sta

10

5

17.4m

2

40

25

3

GR
EE

N 
LA

NE

20

1 to 10

33

El

29

Sub Sta

BUCKLAND AVENUE

PA
RK

 R
OA

D

29

House

LB

9

12

Wheelwrights

St Andrew's

7

7a

Park

Twyford

8a

14.4m

Inglemount

1

14.6m

2

Sh
el

te
r

CRABBLE HILL

Lodge

2

1

Garage

1

W
HI

TF
IE

LD
 A

VE
NU

E

4

4

River

Buckland

21

23

17

1

O
LD

 P
AR

K 
RO

AD

22

57

14

44

2

37

Court

2

15

52

11
 to

 17

BROOKFIELD AVENUE

5

Dour

13

18.5m

1

13

22.2m

CHRISTCHURCH WAY

House

K
IM

B
ER

LE
Y

2

42

20

31

35

1

12

1

5

2

5

1

1

12

3

24

El Sub Sta

2

11

18 to 27

31

6

28

46

3

22

12

MELBOURNE AVENUE

14.9m

27

78

10

7

1 to 11

6

26

26

CL
O

SE

4

25

13

2

1

43

34

22

47

1

66.9m

SELKIRK ROAD

Perth W
ay

36

1

2

6

85.1m

21

24

Church

80a

W
IN

NIP
EG C

L

8

13

Bo
tto

m

55.6m

Lych

34

7

14

8

16

72

Heron

21

17

15

El

52

ALBERTA CLOSE

Ca
st

le

43

12

39

27

1 to 11

86

70

MONTREAL CLOSE

66

37

77.6m

51

26

7

7

9

35

10

7

24

OTTAWA CRESCENT

7

Green Lane Hill

30 Play Area

TCB

2

13

1

42

35

1

54

9

24

M
EL

BO
UR

NE
 A

VE
NU

E

26

30

1

78

13

TO
R

O
N

TO
 C

LO
SE

Green Lane Hill

76

55

23

31

12

25

40

29

69
AU

CK
LA

ND
 C

RE
SC

EN
T

22

5

Buckland

LB

29

64

36

12

LB

1

80

47

Shelter

2

13

11

Bleriot

25

96.4m

N
A

PIER
 R

O
A

D

DUNEDIN DRIVE

Path

12

8

15

23

Court

74

16

HUDSON CLOSE

25

1

63

12

41

FF

VANCOUVER ROAD

19

NAPIER ROAD

2

27

50

6

7

20

U
nd

88

33

13

BLE
NHEI

M D
RIV

E

53

Sta

110.3m

92

37

4

74.0m

10

El
Sub

40

Shelter

11

60

110.6m

ELYSIUM
 PARK CLO

SE

30

88

1

Sub Sta

56

1

18

21

25

21

23

1

ED
 &

 W
ar

d 
Bd

y

34

57

91

14

88

44a

7

10
7

5

115.1m

ED & Ward Bdy

79

Old Park Hill

57

2

8

103.2m

2

94

WYCHERLEY

Court

PARK CLOSE

35

93

2

121.3m

4

14

45

35

MILTON ROAD

116.6m

2

60

25

3

18

M
ELBO

URNE AVENUE

19

1 to 11

El

24

90

24

8

10

Posts

HOBART CRESCENT

12

14 to 24

112

to

34

48

Mast

11

60

OLD

18

11

to

11

2 to 12

MILTON

114.5m

57.5m

26

112.0m

66.1m

36

38

Pond

THE LINCES

4

50 to

Und

38

21

2

27

10

TH
E 

LI
NC

ES

90

PARK CLOSE

36

9a

JOHANNESBURG

8

16

2

48

1

COLTON CRESCENT

17

PEVER
ELL

2

Posts

10

2

Kingdom

25

28

85 to 95

18

Area

46

60

15

GREEN C
LO

SE

18

97

10

Bus Depot

11

13

G
re

en
 L

an
e

Shelter

74

11

127.3m

24

Preschool

2

El

6 to 11

9

39

Sub

167

Sta

Old Park Lodge

51

44

121.8m

86.2m

42

Play

91

2

49 to 59

57

12 to 17

49

32

61

26

HIRST CLOSE

81

FULBERT ROAD

9

Travelling Crane

40

Area

90

7

Shelter

49

50

15

26

14

El Sub Sta

5

RH

26

1

173

115.8m

8

2

Und

29

9b

124.0m

14
6

9

11

69

6

8

KINSON WAY

ASPEN DRIVE

71

to

29

22

36

119.9m

LB

2

42

Un
d

37

4

2

7

ROKESLEY ROAD

99

BS

57 to 67

119.1m

70

ED & W
ard Bdy

Frith Farm

9

MENZIES ROAD

ET
L

42

Pond

Shelter

16

MELBOURNE AVENUE

ET
L

125.3m

1

Rosedene

2

55

Stone

ED & Ward Bdy

SR

1

Lyndhurst

19 to 35

17

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

24

120.2m

43

75.5m

60

45 to 55

Track

52

38

13

High View

31

The Danes

42

OLD
 C

HARLT
ON R

OAD

69 to 79

28

37

71
.3m

33

4

53

Dover Christ Church Academy

Knapp

11

123.3m

15

FF

26

Path (um)

BS

Byways

El Sub Sta

Gas Gov

FF

L Twr

LB

25

Shaft

33

CRABBLE ROAD

Def

ST MARTIN'S ROAD

Frith

Sub Sta

125.1m

Path (um)

121.3m

Play Area

Station

106

TCB

Pumping

FOCAL P
OIN

T R
OAD

Arleigh

34

Masts

D
O

VER
 R

O
A

D

Erebus

Shatterlocks

BURGOYNE

Lodge

1

Lodge

2a

Rosy

Tarik

39

CHERRY TREE MEWS

BS

Path (um)

St Nicholas Church

Sumar

Klein Holland

Un
d

Pa
th

123.4m

Tu
nn

el

Jack Hewitt Hall

118.8m

Caponier

Phoenix Railway Club

Moko

Ward Bdy

Busters Gym

Windy Ridge

Bridgeway

Astley Avenue Allotment Site

Und

Left Flank

Shaft

Play Area

1

28

Copthorne

House

Left

2

Kingdom Hall

Stand

House

Path (um)

26

Path (um
)

W
ar

d B
dy

Ward Bdy

FW

Caponier

17.6m

10

Cottage

D
ef

NATAL ROAD

El

Ridges

Cranbrook

24

Mast (telecommunication)

D
ef

3

Larch

29

Track

8 to 27

Bay

11

Tree

24

2

Long Hill

St
an

d

L Twr

33

Path (um)

Day Nursery

13

Tank

Umbrella Nursery

L Twr

7

Arcadia

St
 B

ud
ea

ux

Path
 (u

m)

2

16

12

Choochoos

Play Area

Subway

126

50

Community Centre

19

Ward Bdy

Gateway Bowls Club

Garage

Facility

17

124

Tu
nn

el

Infant And Nursery School

ED
 &

 W
ar

d 
Bd

y

15

53

Mast (Telecommunication)

Ward Bdy

House

43

Kidease Nursery

Ward Bdy

19

17

104

23

15

Mast

1

7

De
f

L Twr

21

Def

Saxon

Stand

9

9
22

20 16

Sports

8

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

6

Und

4

27

99

27

80

20

23

8

17

43

42

Buckland

18

25

53

18

1

20

48

26

14

42

ED
 &

 W
ar

d 
B

dy

113

41

14

23

20

51

16

101

41

20

13

6

57

7

2

24

1

23

4

21

94

23

10

41

11

37

10

49

33

9

6

111

9

8

18

12

24

44

23

4

52

25

37

21
37

1

59

39

92

10

4

10

21

16

7

15

36

47

19

119

5

96

24

20

21

3

105

13

20

39

9

12

47

21

51

47

35

25

11

18

17

8

2

24

39

27

6

13

18

109

33

21

22

1

34

15

6

45

23 25 27

31

15

11

14

57

12

163

4

9

15

2

45

2

(Sports Facility)

11

61

11

107

7

22

15

61
63

8

21

9

26

19

Shelter

29

4
55

17

1 to 12

Paper Mill

14

ESS

31

43

Clocktower Lofts

19

55

32

1

Track

14

Crabble

19

13

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

42

26

Sports Pavilion

65

151

22

Waterloo

DOWN'S GATE

5

Buckland and Whitfield

1 to 14

41

(Football Ground)

St
 A

nn
e's

 C
ou

rt

1 to 47

56

Rugby Pitches

Paper Mill

O
ttaw

a W
ay

Tr
ac

k

115

Path (um)

1 to 12

4

Lodge

46

11

35

Track

Jones

ESS

103

15

1

18

15
0a

O
ntario W

ay

Aspen 2 Unit

15

1 to 8

1 to 40

1 to 8

31

44

Trefor

Childrens Centre

29

Sports Pavilion

Prioress Walk

Sub Sta

3

28

Court

Deal

62

40

58

El Sub Sta

K
im

berley W
alk

21

Riverside

1 to 8

153

30

Magpie

3

Armourers

1

House

Crabble Athletic Ground

1 to 6

Track

House

ESS

Waterwheel

10

(Rugby Ground)

Mast (Telecommunication)

Sports Pavilion

3

7

9

Ward Bdy

El Sub Sta

13 to 24

1 to 27

1 to 6

1 to
 32

ED Bdy

Tank

CR

15
4

2

69.0m

15

River Dour

Sluice

18

Egerton House

MP 97.75

The

9

DANES

10

31

62

7

44

St Georges

CRABBLE AVENUE

81

1

Court

7

PARSONS W
AY

1

50

97

19

32

24

1

16

91

105

122

106

20

39

12

52

71

13

7

15

13

35

10

12

6

72.3m

Stone

Buckland Junction
61

(PH)

73

49

78

MAYFIELD GARDENS

109

178

192

Court

Path (um)

19

MP 98.5

24

TH
E 

LI
N

C
ES

Posts

Wellington

74

37

1

36.9m

12

36.0m

Shelter

Court

1to42

25

M
ed

ic
al

BROOKFIELD PLACE

1

13

14

49

MARESFIELD CLOSE

2

PARFITT W
AY

Gate

3

LB

El

18

22

3

55.9m

25

30

Sub Sta

19

25

14

27

4

13 to 23

23

21

33

19

74

Stone

22

23

9

30

EVISON CLOSE

Green Park Community
 Prim

ary School

44

104

15

117.4m

ROAD

1

D
U

R
B

A
N

 C
R

ES
C

EN
T

17

31

19

RO
AD

CLOSE

CRESCENT

56

1

37 to 47

26

1

58

56

WILLINGDON ROAD

1

175

Play

64

10 to 26

30 to 40

84

37 to 47

15

82

14

D
ef

Lodges

Frith Close

BS

C 
Tu

nn
el

Path
 (u

m)

Ridgeways

88.3m

Downs Gate

Path

Cath
oli

c C
hu

rch

82

Danes Recreation Ground

Our
 La

dy
 O

f D
ov

er

Play Area

92.6m

Thistley Hill

Dover Transport Museum

Aspen Drive

ED Bdy

12
155

3

9

18

33

18

45

17

3

18

28 to 37

49

117

90

44

35

43

10

16

10

5

23

35

4

59

165

46

Watermark

17

8

3

Ppg Sta

Walk

Armourers Walk

Crabble Meadows

BC1 -
Buckland

North

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.1 0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.40.05
Kilometers

Page 16

47



Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: BC2 - Buckland, South
Dover District Council
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
Dover
CT16 3PJ

2

El

121

24

White Cliff
s Prim

ary College fo
r th

e Arts

LB

119

DWs

43.0m

34.1m

129

125

Stone

53

Villette

139

Sub Sta

49

29.9m

Peverill House

26

Stone

CR

CR

22.5m

29

PC

39.3m

LB

Playground

St Mary's Cemetery

29.9m

15

Play Area

DA
NE

S 
CO

UR
T

39

37

25

River Dour

32

R
O

A
D

Stone

MP 97.75

1

FB

2

15

1

33

Depot

24

23

47

14

27

26.9m

PC

54.2m

FB

37

9

148

Und

30

28

OLD

26

ROAD 11

27

27.6m

9

CRABBLE HILL

The Cricketers

AS
TL

EY
 A

VE
NU

E

34

CF

PARK AVENUE

ST
AN

HO
PE

 R
O

AD

Depot

1b

War Memorial

2

DANES

14

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

MP 76

10

SL

42

25

93

CRABBLE

17.0m

Nursing

31

74

55

150

61.5m

62

75

14.9m

1

38

19

1

2

7

Home

24

95

Astley Court

21

61

50

77.7m

26.7m

38
26

20

48

5

LI
M

ES
 R

O
AD

21.6m

37

8

13

26

36

NI
GH

TI
NG

AL
E 

RO
AD

31

St Edmunds Lodge

15.8m

16

1

32

25

44

107

13

57

18.6m

6

St Georges

59

MAYFIELD AVENUE

13

47

8

14.1m

CRABBLE AVENUE

TCB

38

45

17

31.7m

26

47

58

El Sub Sta

13

2

2

81

BARTON ROAD

25

COURT

86

9

77

THE GROVE

1

14

1

32

83

26

50

39

8

Court

MP 98

Mast (Telecommunication)

11

SP

1

56

ESS

7

25

74

Kingswood

1a

11

6a

94

93

St Andrew Terrace

14

38.7m

5

River Dour

1

35

11
0

Signal Post

2

8

Stand

32

14

MP 76.25

23
.8m

13

38

6

CF

24

1

7 t
o 12

10
4

64

Dodds

52

Court

1

1

16

Br
oo

kl
an

ds

2

26

91

Stone

Minn
is 

Te
rra

ce

8

7

13

105

10
5

7

HILLSIDE ROAD

MP 99

15

122

45

5

21

1

CR

2

106

SP

24

25

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

1

35

Villas

1

The Buckland Yew

9

Sta

28

18.5m

15

24.1m7

32.6m

93

7

21

CHARLTON

9

27

136

LB

13

1

PILGRIMS WAY

Sub

25

27

47

13

10

1

Weir

21

61

7

MILLAIS ROAD

KNIGHTS WAY

14

MP 
98

.75

SHIPMANS WAY

El Sub

Garage

PI
O

NE
ER

 R
O

AD

LB

10

3

91

28

16

DO
DD

'S
 L

AN
E

to

67

ST ALPHEGE ROAD

59

12

1

House

2

CARLSDEN CLOSE

10.4m

2

TCB

68

92

79

80

PH

129

25

74

117

111

Riverside Cottages

El

139

40

22

1

94

18

Sta

24

12

94

AVENUE ROAD

Shelter

Sed
gem

ea
d

49
25

4

BE
AC

O
NS

FI
EL

D 
AV

EN
UE

7

20

103

2

64

64

Balfour

52

6

30

CL
O

SE

17

Dour M
ews

LB

13

71

20

24

29

BROOKFIELD ROAD

CH
AR

LT
O

N 
AV

EN
UE

13

1

72

House

River Dour

73

28

2

24

OLD PARK HILL

14

15

5

13

59

7

62

37

2

27
.2

m

2

37

15

52

El Sub Sta

2

PLACE

12

13

10

24.1m

10

147a

43

25

1

12

6

M
AN

GE
RS

 L
AN

E

2

Court

4

Churchill

12

MANGERS PLACE

29

1

19

14

11

14

6

Shelter

3

21

35

5

8

1

2

M
AGDALA ROAD

17.5m

21

10

31

38

27Court

46

13

13

3

47

8

23

Court

24

W
AS

HI
NG

TO
N

3

G
LE

N
FI

EL
D

 R
O

A
D

Sh
elt

er

1

1 to 6

53

147b

25.0m

1

54

B
R

U
N

SW
IC

K
 G

A
R

D
EN

S

25

Buckland Junction

Area

6

LONDON ROAD
20

2

4

41

34

15
4

MANGERS

21.2m

15

27

32.8m

20

6

OLD PARK HILL

13

89

73

1

8

71

41

Weir

22

33

7

6

WOOD'S PLACE

84

1

4

The Bull

ESS

5

10

30

69

67

SP

St
 R

ad
ig

un
ds

12

11

18

17
2

96

50.5m

57

9

9

9

20
9

ST RADIGUND'S ROAD

147

19
8

7

1

20
8a

1

10

79

6

22

29

1

1

8

55

16

39

60

19
4

18
5

Castleview

Co
ur

t

19
5

20

1

130

Knights

12
1

9

ST ANDREWS GARDENS

OSWALD PLACE

27

14a

MP 76.5

HI
LL

 R
O

AD

103

58

26a

BUNKERS HILL AVENUE

SB
14

4

18

35

1 to 5

37

40

14

View

190

1

PH

30

61

2

28

17

61

Stone

45

78

14
3

2

1

24

5

River Dour

1

14

(PH)

BU
NK

ER
S

14
8

Dour

42.2m

9

213

134

1

131

212

11
7

85

19.5m

20
8

to

Mill Side

10

ERIC ROAD

BUNKER'S HILL

1a

24

2

73

79

146

1
142

5

49

36

3

LUKES CLOSE

15

LB

3a

BARTON ROAD

15

26

Su
b 

St
a

Waterside House

57

58

47

23

78

25

36

84

164

MAYFIELD GARDENS

2

2

13

33

El Sub StaPH

143

48

37

48

LB

17

37

219

2

105

17
9

32.9m

8

109

137

125

72

12
6

98

118

1

11
6

OSWALD ROAD

18

152

37

Endeavour

Mayfield

28

ALFRED ROAD

6 to 10

150

HEATHFIELD AVENUE

1

46

38

11

1

15

93

2

60

16
6

1

178

7

103

15
3

16

2

Garage

192

12.5m

Lodge

95

14

25

11

35

13.8m

8

Court

a

10
4

11

10
7

SP

12

FB

140

139

9

Cottages

84

1 to 8

34

The Old

1

12
1

St Martin's Yard

17
LO

RN
E 

RO
AD

62

14

2

164a

HEATHFIELD AVENUE

12

19

SP
RI

NG
FI

EL
D 

RO
AD

128

1

1

89

MP 98.5

22

River

11b

13

M
IN

ER
VA

 A
VE

NU
E

138

74

136

77

73

113

11a

37

Chaffinch

26

42

109

12

El Sub

83

13

1

7

11c

168

12

MAYFIELD AVENUE

14

36.9m

21

15

94

10

49.0m

47

31

12

SL

14
3

M
AI

NE
 C

LO
SE

38

29

36.0m

153

28

Allotment Gardens

96

Sub

19

26

24

53

Shelter

20

128

18

El

43.2m

21

1to42

2

13
68

24

25

CO
LO

RA
DO

 C
LO

SE

25

26

3

38

29

Conqueror

50.2m

M
ed

ic
al

34

17.4m

22.8m

4

14

Car
BROOKFIELD PLACE

17

27

1

135

BUCKLAND

1 to 10

61

16

House

15

ParkBridge

15
2

59

PA
RK

 R
OA

D

13

8

14

7

6

1

14

14.8m

14.6m

1

Osprey

115

O
LD

 P
AR

K 
RO

AD

16
5

1

Sta

18
0

23

Court

49

2

Brookfield

89

7a

CRABBLE HILL

Dour
11

 to
 17

19
4

MARESFIELD CLOSE

House

13

Twyford

106

1

Sh
el

te
r

12

2

30

32

W
HI

TF
IE

LD
 A

VE
NU

E

PARFITT W
AY

14

MELBOURNE AVENUE

Gate

13.2m

21

65

GR
EE

N 
LA

NE

14

5

BROOKFIELD AVENUE

3

7

22.2m

BUCKLAND AVENUE

25

14.9m

Flour Mill

7

LB

35

26

14.4m

20

5

2

16

43

El

CRABBLE HILL

29

30

11

22

Garage

3

St Andrew's

55.9m

18 to 27

El

1

Buckland

84

Inglemount

46

25

Church

Lodge

83

CHRISTCHURCH WAY

21

Lych

53

24

ALBERTA CLOSE

19

Heron

31

Sub Sta

13

12

Contex House

MONTREAL CLOSE

54

20

26

26

19

6

Shelter

23

47

25

30

13

Shelter

36

Perth W
ay

14

55

6

10

24

47

12

4

13

17

11

25

25

RADIGUND'S

39

13 to 23

ST

23

12

33

HUDSON CLOSE

8

33

35

27

12

11

63

ESS

22

8a

N
A

PIER
 R

O
A

D

NAPIER ROAD

30

14 to 16

1

5

23

27

1

Court

2

2

4

Shelter

21

River

House

16

24

14

1

22

2

15

37

EDGAR ROAD

25

13

2

12

19

BLE
NHEI

M D
RIV

E

40

23

18.5m

1

4

29

6

9

10

80

40

88

25

53

Rose

ALE
XANDRA P

LA
CE

Construction

1a

PRIMROSE PLACE

37

30

Builders Merchants

1to5

1

Leighton

44

25

EVISON CLOSE

Kingfisher

4

40

2

SELKIRK
ROAD

5

BALFOUR ROAD

83

2

Alex
an

dr
a

21

11.8m

70

15
9

45

1

1 to 11

18

8

1

14

Court

HOBART CRESCENT

12.6m

86

110

Cottages

Mast

93 Alexandra

3

11.8m14.8m

11

2

22
8

2

LB

Shelter

El S
ub Sta

26

Kingsford Court

87

6

Tank

8

29 17

23
6

84

1

2

12

1

14.6m

23

House

CR

42

13

3

96

22

7

12
1

DUNEDIN DRIVE

BARTON VIEW TERRACE

D
ov

er
 G

ra
m

m
ar

 S
ch

oo
l

11

Victoria
Mews

Lodge

36

10.6m

15

74

PH

St
 B

ud
ea

ux

Shelter

53

9

53

El Sub Sta

Catholic School

41

Superstore

Step-a-Side

Play Area

Charlton
1a

2

50

85a

106

1

80

HERBERT STREET

ERITH
 STR

EET

20

Shatterlocks

Path (um
)

Charlton Church

Church Of England

11

2

C
H

ER
RY

 T
R

EE
 A

VE
N

U
E

23
5

Ward Bdy

17.6m

ESS

1

Builders

78

Erith

Und

Choochoos

24

23.6m

1a

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

13

Infant And Nursery School

73

9

LB

16

Ward Bdy

PO

1

FR
IT

H
 R

O
A

D

9

1

19

4

Garage

Ward Bdy

8

Lodge

92

15.6m

7

Ward Bdy
48

30
 to

 3
5

Rosy

12

4

20

Cath
oli

c C
hu

rch

23
2

Path (um)

LONDON ROAD

23

15

82

Phoenix Railway Club

Charles Lister Court

2

18

6

Qube

96

23

Our
 La

dy
 O

f D
ov

er

26

Car Park

36

21

Dov
er 

And
 D

ist
ric

t

Astley Avenue Allotment Site

42

17

20

Wor
kin

g M
en

's 
Club

 And
 In

sti
tut

e

1

94

Ward Bdy

1

Primary School

27

33

19
7

Aviary

9

88

14

23

12

12

35

116

W
ar

d B
dy

18

50

fo
r G

irl
s

21

23

19
6

8

Mill Stream

17

Cadet Centre

17

10

Long Hill

13

9

17

20

Felbrigg House

(Sports Facility)

1 to 47

1a

1

2

St Peter And St Paul

Path
 (u

m)

14

1

4

3

24

18

2
19

45 43

61

21

FB

Factory

28 to 37

22

1 to 12

Subway

44

Day Nursery

ESS

90

9

2

124

16

1a

Trefor

Track

44

104

65

3

Arcadia

1 to 4

35

CR

1 to 29

Ppg

11

Ward Bdy

Hall

1 to 12

16

Prioress Walk

1 to 14

42

Jones

18

Und

Paper Mill

115

34

10

CR

24
2

4 and 6 to 20

20

1 to 8

Watermark

10

15
0a

1b

Junior School

7

17

6

23

Court

Barton

24

El Sub Sta

4

52

1 to 8

8

63

1

7

2 
to

 6

24

Paper Mill

Magpie

5

9

Ppg Sta

Clocktower Lofts

6

Stone

11

14

2

15

19

Walk

Factory

St
 A

nn
e's

 C
ou

rt

2

7

Armourers Walk

Tr
ac

k

Barton Path

92

1 to 32

8

Lodge

Crabble Meadows

Sub Sta

8

4

62

Armourers

18

R
O

M
A

N

Crabble Athletic Ground

1 to 6

House

22

Waterwheel

Mast (Telecommunication)

36.5m

3

9

13 to 24

1 to 27

13

Lodge

1

62

Barton Path

25

St Radigunds Walk

65

1 to 55

40

1 to 6

14

1

25

49

21

59

6

(PH)

32.0m

Post

73

59

18

1 t
o 6

LB

CW

6

1

6

54.0m

12

34

13

81

Ward Bdy

Sluice

21 to 29

1

8

14

34

15

1

30

45

15

2

RUTLAND ROAD

2

76

1

7

43.0m

10

24

Coleman House

1

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

15

Play

7 t
o 1

1

27a

13

29

23

19
2

El

68

42

8

15
9

54.5m

90

17
3

Posts

13.7m

49

8

6

5

16
1

1

10

1

Ca
ws

ey
 C

ot
ta

ge
s

38

13.0m

165

29

48

22
6

1

13
3

Tk

30

107

121

13

70

12

78

1

BS

GRE
EN

 L
AN

E

FB

5

WINANT WAY

20

72

6

24

8

1

Shelter

House

4

47

2

34

Ingledene

25

34

Ce
nt

re

CRABBLE MEADOWS

38

58

7

Sta

2

1

15

20

1

12

22

1 to 11

66.9m

W
IN

NIP
EG C

L

27

7

31

22

29

109

COOMBE VALLEY ROAD

El Sub Sta

PRIMROSE ROAD

28.4m

12

7

33

37

60
56

1b

54

71

25
4

72

26

Cott
ag

e

25
0

20.6m

17.0m

VICTORIA STREET

LISTER

24

Garage

CLOSE

Yard

32

The Forge

13

37 to 41

Path (um)

Joint

Breakwater Brewery

St Edmund's

24a

126

House

Ward Bdy

2

10

10

20

12

18

21 12

11

15

19

26

5

46

15

29

Sta

House

Track

El Sub Sta

BC2 -
Buckland

South

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.1 0 0.1 0.19 0.29 0.380.05
Kilometers

Page 17

48



8

49 to 59

19

2 to 12

Path

to

14 to 24

to

10

RO
AD

50

48

FF

26

60

112.0m

CRESCENT

38

28

WYCHERLEY

37 to 47

2

PEVER
ELL

Shelter

9

49

Def

17

1 to 11

185

BS

85 to 95

61

195

10

127.3m

to

MELBOURNE AVENUEShelter

FULBERT ROAD

8

1

36

11 to 16

2

1

Area

173

4

COLTON CRESCENT

Play

175

5 to 10

40

2

22

12

Shelter

El Sub Sta

7

11

WHYTE CLOSE

1

15

24

33

37

to

38

ASPEN DRIVE

HIRST CLOSE

121.3m

167

27

LB

11

120.2m

90

33

El Sub Sta

Shelter

TCB

8

18

D
ef

10 to 26

45 to 55

1

1

11

50

43

D
ef

30 to 40

44

RH

163

3

84

7

2

58

37 to 47

15

31

52

2

153

9

15

28

69 to 79

11

ED Bdy

82

ED
 &

 W
ar

d 
B

dy

33

14

41

18

11

Aspen 2 Unit

9

Ward Bdy

18

43

Play Area

De
f

128.7m

Aspen Drive

42

Def

ED Bdy

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

35

26

45

28

40

29

5

30

165

20

46

71

3

Un
d

ROKESLEY ROAD

57 to 67

2

19 to 35

17

60

13

Dover Christ Church Academy

Play Area

70

ED
 &

 W
ar

d 
Bd

y

42

125.3m

151

47

56

1

15

13

BCW1 -
Whitfield
Rokesley

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: BCW1 - Whitfield Rokesley Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.05 0 0.05 0.1 0.15 0.20.03
KilometersPage 18

49



Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: BME - Maxton and Elms Vale
Dover District Council
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
Dover
CT16 3PJ

BME - Maxton
and Elms Vale

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.2 0 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.80.1
Kilometers

Page 19

50



Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: BR1 - St Radigund's, West
Dover District Council
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
Dover
CT16 3PJ

BS

8

80

65.6m

89

32

10

ETL

13

QUEENS AVENUE

220

Drain

14

157

3

8

71

15

FF

14

Sleed Wood

1

Path (um)

141

BS

RE
AD

IN
G

 R
O

AD

60.8m

13

17

1

Ward Bdy

2

MARKLAND ROAD

ETL

187

114

7

67

25

173

Long Wood

37.4m

232

66

19

12

80

142

25

45.2m

116

56.6m

GARDENS

2

47.2m

169

47.2m

5

6

MARLBOROUGH ROAD

203

FF

105

1

3

4

154

FF

215

ELM

121

LB

166

ELMS VALE ROAD

2

51.4m

9

COOMBE ROAD

2

1

The Cottage

POULTON CLOSE

22

Def

Ward Bdy

5

C Tk

34.9m

11

FF

ETL

16

32

El Sub Sta

MILL RACE

Sta

4

16

Ward
 B

dy

ESS

El

7

44.9m

Tr
ac

k

1

Track

ETL

13

COOMBE 
ROAD

1 to 5

127

48.6m

25

45.1m

51

B

Valetta

15

Enterprise

237

4

Sub

36

39.2m

28

46.2m

RIVER MEADOW

6

10

1

Industrial Estate

42

Pond

1

2

BEAUFOY TERRACE

1 to 8

249

7

12

Bowling Green

14

80

Mill House

19

Pond

61

7

19.9m

LEWISHAM ROAD

26

33

Car Park

12

68

FF

74
FB

Und

39

4

29

FW

2

Sta

10

31

7

PC

FF

3a

32

CR

24

22

1

30

THE RIDGEWAY

9

6

3

CRABBLE

1

9

Und

7

1

13

32

9

10

FW

1

River Court

23

35

1

2

FF

1

25

2

22

3

21

CR

2

42

2

FB

7

53

11

62

Ward Bdy

29

2

5

MILL CLOSE

32

31.4m

LEWISHAM

Richmond

RIVER D
RIVE

26.7m

Area

LB

26

11

Stone

Shelter

Gas Gov

45

6

10

12

ED & Ward Bdy

Play

Sub

The Common

LYNDHURST ROAD

CR

48

St
an

d

1

1

2

Wood

5

20

34

5

47

ORCHARD DRIVE

Limekiln Wood

48

Delphi

6

CRABBLE
 LA

NE

Kanawha

Grange

4

CRABBLE LANE

9

Stone

34

65

COWPER ROAD

1

88

133.8m

14

BRIA
R C

LOSE

6a

Stone

River Down Wood
CRABBLE CLOSE

C
LO

SE

8a

130.5m

5

58

15

51

59

12

6

27

Limekiln

12

3

14

13

1

Leigh

77.5m

66.5m

Oristana

LYNDHURST

4

54

13

Frandham

14

8

108.4m

12

39a

El Sub Sta

128.7m

15

THE RIDGEWAY

CF

1

ASH C
LO

SE

31

HAZELDOW
N CLOSE

MINNIS LANE

22

CF

1

2

37

ABBEY ROAD

Wood

3a

COW
PER ROAD

26

31

34

Sta

23

Bob's Dean Wood

Roundways

4

W
OODLA

ND C
LO

SE

ROAD

12

10

30

11

COWPER ROAD

70

Kentfield

1

DE
AN

W
OOD 

RO
AD

22

SPINNEY

7

2

2

41

2

HAZELDOWN CLOSE
El

69

56

1a

W
IN

G
R

O
VE

21

32

47

60

HAWTHORN CLOSE

33

73

23

11
a

13

14

50

33

1

LUCKHURST ROAD

18

25

6

38

27

23

1

St Edmonds

Long Wood

2

1

42

THE

1

43

W
ES

TD
EA

N

Post

River Bottom Wood

42

3

28

39

Makalla

7

54

41

15

52

40

24

58

14

COWPER ROAD

56

21

Path (um)

ESS

Sub

38

Ward Bdy

34a

Ward Bdy

Post

9

36

A

ESS

27

21

12

68.2m

Path (um)

13

Ppg Sta

12

32

CR

114.4m

18

ED & Ward Bdy

60

45.7m

5

Industrial Estate

16

16

17

CRABBLE LANE

DEANWOOD ROAD

POULTON CLOSE

96.2m

42

52

1

ABBEY ROAD

44.0m

72

61.3m

El Sub Sta

6

ABBEY ROAD

46

Business

11

HOLMESTONE ROAD

37

82.7m

39

20

63.6m

74

27

69

54

46.5m

303

28

Hammond House

285

Und

7

1

64

60

8

34.2m

Castle View

50

ABBEY ROAD

273

Stone

2

261

70

1

1to6

Industrial

2

16

48

C Tk

229

231

17

Park

71

90

90

ED & W
ard Bdy

20.1m

Poulton Close

1 t
o 3

21

Forge

Sub

1a

Estate

17

BARWICK ROAD

1

223

100

224

Und

El

W
HINLESS ROAD

El Sub Sta

97

48.5m

5

1a

CLARENDON

18

26

23
8

Ferrybridge

31.6m

82

251

98.1m

87

1

93

15

118

Shelter

86

BELG
RAVE RO

AD

97

32

96

167

24

10

301

60

Sta

House

24

Hollow Wood

34

57.0m

28

135

88

M
O

N
IN

S R
O

A
D

73

30

14

Winchelsea Terrace

16.0m

Sta

178

24.0m

128.4m

151

Posts

56

Villie
rs

32

4

Sweetpea

2

30

3

House

14to25

185

FOLKESTONE ROAD

237

COOMBE VALLEY ROAD

48

Mews

St Monicas

House

29

158

Captain Webbs

2

4

CH

67.1m

House

Priory

16

CW

Greville

Depot

22

22.4m

1a

36

2

TCB

114

9

21

WINCHELSEA STREET

2

Sub

12

18

28

Gordon Lodge

1

203

20.5m

98

Gordon Bennett

1

30

D
ef

ELMS VALE ROAD

180

Winchelsea Court

TC

2a

El Sub Sta

142

46

2

32
4

170

130

14

2b

19.9m

3

30

168

1

1

Shelter

45

2

27

33.2m

6

37

34.2m

44

1

Surgery

12

12

4

El

53

28

6

25

31

3

14

GG

Stone

Cen
tre

10
1

44

144

LB

9.5m

13

11

College Row

142

8

57

Selborne

53

1 t
o 1

4

7

41

HIGH STREET

Shelter

15

15

67

Chapel

UNDERDO
W

N
RO

AD

School

7 to 13

66

MS

4a

73

26

17.6m

108

38.5m

CR

PH

19.8m

54

91

CF

El

42

29.8m

1

OAKVALE CLOSE

239-241

82

MARKLAND ROAD

29

88

15

22.8m

46

74 to 94

5

11

128

2

7

1

225

70

Charl
ton

18.8m

26

237

53

Sub

8

41

16

2

El

13

A
STO

R
 AVEN

U
E

56

118

C
F

164

16

11
4

8.0m

5

5 to 7

Sub Sta

10
9

EATO
N

 R
O

A
D

87
a

LB

1

9

201

120

1

148a

12

1

69

23

19

The Lodge

11

25.3m

VA
LE VIEW

 R
O

A
D

52

60

Percival Terrace

122 to 126

48

46

14

6

Winchelsea Works

26

93

21

7

1

6

5

37

16

CR

22

50

63

Tennis Court

45

PH

27.1m

G
LEN G

RO
VE

32

1

83

8

13

31.0m

2

23.3m

10

35

76

14

73

17

33

KI
NG

S 
RO

AD

26

85

2

7

36

17

16

56

The High

41.7m

178

27

1

35.1m

3

25

2

25

Depot

23

COW LANE

1a

76

87

38

2

4

1

116

K
IT

C
H

EN
ER

 R
O

A
D

22

39

11

93

Def

36

St
 M

ar
tin

's
 C

hu
rc

h

32

202

Shelter

28

Sta

32

122

11

86

13

FB

132

9

13

91

60

22 4

112

70a

Kingly Way

65

9 t
o 1

0

HARBOUR VIEW ROAD

4

90

69

53

Ward Bdy

31

22

45

134

110

143

43.2m

23

25

27

73

16

Stone

3

62

43

32

1

109

11

74

66

100

148

13

54

49

NOAH'S ARK ROAD

61

42

U
nd

49

48

13

33

52.6m 14

86

62

58.4m

95

TCB

44

41

1

42.8m

ELMS VALE

131

73

12

ELMS VALE ROAD

Gov

37

50

CH
UR

CH
 R

O
AD

83

DEVONSHIRE ROAD

Sceptre

110

Gas

Shelter

13

1

Stone

16a

164a

60

8

1

61

1

10

31

2

105

2

20

36.4m

26

49

Tallis Court

12

40

52

66

LB

Path (um)

26

2

Conrad House

42

21a

2

35

55

10

32.0m

NOAH'S ARK ROAD

WYNDHAM ROAD

79

31

7

El Sub Sta

70

31

166

27

34.7m

49

1

and

42

1

21

Hyde Court

28

4

Sta

(PH)

14

64

39

18

17.3m

87

Shelter

32

131

40.5m

1

DW

79

35

13

28

1

190

25

149

25

57

Stone

1

29

42

2

13

85

LB

BIRCHWOOD RISE

37

56

30

N
EW

B
U

RY
 C

LO
SE

62

65

FOLKESTONE ROAD

39

2

RO
AD

2

89

St Martin's

137

54

ST JO
HN'S

DOUGLAS ROAD

45.9m

50

LOWTHER ROAD

Stones

19

20

14

55

2

70

1 to 6

Stone

21

1

Ward Bdy

16

1 to 12

13

5

TOWER HAMLETS

96

66

34

63

House

Stone

Tennis Court

RO
AD

24

42

GG

35.4m

47

HAMILTON ROAD

2

6

14

17

38

26

38.8m

61

56

61

7

82.7m

77

24

36.2m

9

17

Heathwood

Medical

44

CHAMBERLAIN
 R

OAD

61

5

13 to 24

White

28.8m

70

2

11

35

20

127

53

49

53

MALVERN ROAD

38

Shelter

8

133

El Sub Sta

14.1m

50

Noah's Ark Terrace

Sub
El

37

42

81

SM

64

43

SM

19

47.5m

38

CLA
RENDON R

OAD

61

Remus

50

39

13

26

DW

1

36

49

1 to 6

Harbour Tunnel

42

37

Bartholomews

30.2m

1

44

Centre

St

TCB

76a

26

2a

93

68

26.2m

DW

110

50

14.5m

15

80

1

89

9

18.3m

98

25

LB

77

76

36

1a1b

(remains of)

35

14

PH

St Martin's

39

2

33

NOAH'S ARK ROAD

CLARENDON STREET

31

7

20

63

27

14

14

13

28

25

3

2

81

2

58.4m

16

a

8

Updike

39

THE ABBOTS

25

7

37

1 to 10

24

98

2

Melville House

AUDEN WAY

75

78

Sub Sta

12
1

34.1m

36

Stone

41

2b

5

ETL

57

CLARENDON PLACE

91

43

10

78.5m

27

67

49

26

39

Gate House

25

41

Garage

33

Cedar

78

44

Shamar

48

23

1t
o6

60

37

1

a

SOUTH ROAD

CR Tower Court

57

Court

Ward Bdy

38

9

40

13

MP

PH

61

72

73

14.7m

38

21

39

28

ETHELBERT RD

49

42

Tower

42

EAST STREET

56

50

PRIORY HILL

10

40

14

34

28

11

10

26

44

4

2

29

18

DW

76

97

2

71

DW

12

1

70

15

PRIORY GROVE

1

15

51

Dover Grammar School for Boys

37

26

Priory

54

105

1a

71

NORTH ROAD

81

CR ST BARTHO
LEM

EW
S CLO

SE

2

20

20

TO
W

ER HILL

Def

12

36

EDRED ROAD

1
El

1

36.4m

13

93.5m

65

Gregory

34.2m

12
9

Stevens

5

39.4m

19

84

CR

CR

White Cliff
s Prim

ary College fo
r th

e Arts

House

FW

26

52

White Cliffs
 Court

16

1

TOWER STREET

36

77

TCBs

204

32

El Sub Sta

TOWER HAMLETS STREET

1

20

44

39.3m

DICKSON

34.1m

6

26

17

2

48

23

19

11

44

49

139

House

35

Garage

31

56

31

36 to 44

6

2

BEAUFOY TERRACE

Astor College For the Arts

G
eoffs Place

(PH)

22

53

Stable Court

151

46

DW

HAMILT
ON R

OAD

Hotel

19

Post

ANSE
LM

 R
OAD

Chapel

11

77

33

Def

34

LB

W
est Cottage

Beech

15

6

233

W
EST STREET

14

1

51

(Telecom
m

unication)

20

12

17

10

9

1

36

27

10

CW

Navara

53

45

1

TO
W

ER
 H

AM
LE

TS
 R

OA
D

1to3

15

1

Priory

23

TCB

12

DW

Mast

2

SM

39

Rectory

65

ESS

Aspen

31

20.3m

2

34

25

House

2

Priory Tunnel

52

1

14

14

House

23.5m

14

222

LB

1

House

12

90

16

TEMPLAR STREET

26

175

1 to 6

Home

1

House

24

12

White Cliffs
 Lodge

12

LI
M

ES
 R

O
AD

PH

118

34

1

LAMBTON

15.8m

EDRED ROAD

5 to 12

11

35

1

13

1

3

59

59

TOWER HILL

El

1

45

Sloping m
asonry

11

Yard

ST RADIGUND'S ROAD

58

3

Whitehall

Robson's

16

(private)

PRIMROSE ROAD

BARTON ROAD

30

7

11

78

39

ROAD

30

8

121

THE GROVE

119

1

15

Court

84

50

194

71

223

15

CLOSE

10

61

11

83

2

149

Coombe

60

20

74

187

1

94

1

14

42

163

60

COOMBE VALLEY ROAD

St Barts

Split House

71

2

43

14

5

3

Court

91

54

17 to 20

MACDONALD ROAD

Acre

18

Tank

41.4m

1

6

27

Shelter

TCB

64

1

11

148

CR

2

21

Tank

Dalmatia Court

11

26.6m

15

Sub Sta

(restored)

The Cricketers

CF

MARJAN

River Dour

2

42.0m

House

52

Depot

55.9m

Sluice

51

Whitehall

5

13

14

BEAUFOY ROAD

18

68

75

93

1
45

130

17

13

1

14

17

55

SP

COOMBE

6

14

Villas

75

21

The Buckland Yew

13.5m

37

5

CF

95

27.1m

W
IDRED RO

AD

26

9

26

1 to 4

20.9m

18.8m

18.5m

MP 76

16

13

ROAD

7

18

31

43.0m

13

1b

CRABBLE

25

32

AS
TL

EY
 A

VE
NU

E

42

44.8m

5

74

19

ST
AN

HO
PE

 R
O

AD

51

20

1

21

114a

14.1m

29

10

61

38

54

Playground

26

PARK G
ARDENS

20

37

77

31

14

26

1

MP 98

62

1

27.6m

8

18

7

10

47

57

PH

8

50

59

8

20

31.7m

CARLSDEN CLOSE

2

11

TCB

BRANCH

El Sub Sta

2

PH

DW

ESS

El

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

FB

86

44

20.1m

12a

25

LB

11

6

83

14.9m

7

9

26

Sta

STREET

Mast (Telecommunication)

40.6m

2

94

1

AVENUE ROAD

MATTHEW
'S PLACE19

2

Astley Court

38.7m

Superstore

26

7

182

48

BE
AC

O
NS

FI
EL

D 
AV

EN
UE

2

11
0

1

212

6

36

103

MP 76.25

St Georges

71

25

107

1a

30

1

MAYFIELD AVENUE

CRABBLE AVENUE

58

Court

11

TCB

35

47

1

13

13 to 16

81

38

14

House

13

10

1

64

2

2

7.9m

11

Court

Br
oo

kl
an

ds

35

56

13

7

8.7m

Stone

1

13

1

BR
ID

G
E 

ST
RE

ET

LB

162

HILLSIDE ROAD

14

16

32.6m

1

CR

13

1

LB

61

16

6a

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

10
4

CH
AR

LT
O

N 
AV

EN
UE

91

24.6m

93

61

15

26

28

10
5

5

14

14

9

9

8

105

7 to 12

Cottage

5

37

23
.8m

122

129

PI
O

NE
ER

 R
O

AD

Bartholomew

24

7 t
o 12

13

106

211

DO
DD

'S
 L

AN
E

14

1

Sta

1

1

GRANVILLE

TCB

2

Ward Bdy

MANGERS PLACE

Minn
is 

Te
rra

ce

CHARLTON

129

Works

21

MP 99

21

30

Und

38

11

28

35 to 40

27

8

Car Wash

LEIGHTON ROAD

1

CR

MP 
98

.75

Sh
elt

er

75

2

House

18
Depot

SL

Garage

68

147b

1

47

80

Chestnut

16

MILLAIS ROAD

Area

13

12

STREET

Nursing

SUFFOLK

34

8.3m

7

45

117

El Sub

21.2m

98

25

94

20

LB

38

94

40

91

Posts

9

69

to

1

ST ALPHEGE ROAD

24

77

49

2

Balfour

CHARLTON

33

73

GREEN

26.7m

25

Dour M
ews

74

The Bull

House

1

7

25

96

9.1m

5

9

5

8

79

29

64

1

20
8a

2

NI
GH

TI
NG

AL
E 

RO
AD

Shelter

River Dour
111

17

10

1

20

24

25

BROOKFIELD ROAD

18

20

60

52

PH

13

13

22

2

Co
ur

t

PLACE

Sed
gem

ea
d

1

55

147a

38

Sorting Office

OSWALD PLACE

7

2

Court

9.9m

103

El Sub Sta

15

43

11

BEACONSFIELD R
OAD

15

18

62

2

17.5m

1

190

12

32

23

1

6

2

30

14

1 to 6

29

1

1

PAUL'S PLACE

25

2

45

31

4

G
LE

N
FI

EL
D

 R
O

A
D

El Sub Sta

Bea
co

nsfi
eld

6

B
R

U
N

SW
IC

K
G

A
R

D
EN

S

15
4

3

1

41

1

LB

11

14
8

MANGERS

8

1

6

10

24

ERIC ROAD

27

1

39

1

72

15

13

8

15

Waterside House

6

10

SP

2

OLD PARK HILL

24

5

164

17
2

27
.2

m

Kingswood

53

ST RADIGUND'S ROAD

20
9

6

10

PH

St Andrew Terrace

16

Buckland Junction

LB

7

32.9m

River Dour

25

Castleview

ESS

1

13

152

Stand

M
AN

GE
RS

 L
AN

E

11

9

28

41

1

6

9

58

Churchill

38

18
5

84

7

12
1

Dodds

69

35

60

18

MP 76.5

14

21

22

15
3

57

PH

3

14

19
8

25

95

Knights

17
5

79

24.1m

78

14

13.8m

BUNKERS HILL AVENUE

21

55

93

14

2

10
7

136

40

9

20

84

Court

11
7

27

Stone

28

12
1

19.5m

26a

Sub

Court

24

2

BUNKER'S HILL

SP
RI

NG
FI

EL
D 

RO
AD

1 to 5

1

42.2m

Weir

146

River Dour

22

61

25.0m

212

GREEN

LUKES CLOSE

134

26

LONDON ROAD

10

14
3

20
8

77

34

36

79

27

24

(PH)

Chaffinch

36

2

5

213

20

73

11c

Su
b 

St
a

48

3a

Def

61

Weir

15

2

219

58

Mill Side

3

137

48

48

WOOD'S PLACE

84

67

Endeavour

73

17
9

18

1

30

12
6

33

43.2m

House

49

2

OSWALD ROAD

2

SP

10.4m

Garage

BARTON ROAD

6 to 10

72

50.2m

12.5m

St
 R

ad
ig

un
ds

47

50.5m

147

1

14

10

4

78

15

House

a

92

Park

MAYFIELD GARDENS

1

Superstore

8

9

7

O
LD

 P
AR

K 
RO

AD

143

130

37

Court

14a

Riverside Cottages

37

HEATHFIELD AVENUE

Dour

22

SB

109

1

37

14

House

118

12

ALFRED ROAD

1

93

1

14

19

103

M
IN

ER
VA

 A
VE

NU
E

14.9m

Weir

1

1

11

113

26

178

12

109

192

10
4

8

140

83

Court

SP

43

4

1 to 8

BU
NK

ER
S

Cottages

64

7

22

17

131

FB

St Martin's Yard

1

MAYFIELD AVENUE

to

164a

73

1

2

The Old

94

2

1

Church

OLD
PARK HILL

128

19

14
3

3

River

37

MP 98.5

96

Lych

74

52

15

Heron

11b

136

128

23

26

El Sub Sta

24.1m

2

Allotment Gardens

13

17

36.9m

3

21

18

12

8

12

61

12

47

4

1

59

153

19

36.0m

24

98

Rose

35

68

1

Conqueror

Gas Holder

18

Car

38

BUCKLAND

M
AGDALA ROAD

PRIMROSE PLACE

7a

22.8m

46

150

ETL

8

135

Twyford

1to42

47

1

14.8m

Sh
el

te
r

25

3

11

106

16

W
HI

TF
IE

LD
 A

VE
NU

E

M
ed

ic
al

54

16
5

21

54

15
2

BROOKFIELD PLACE

1

13

20
2

Brookfield

6

1

16

14

4

19
4

13

25

BROOKFIELD AVENUE

89

115

2

30

18

22.2m

14

HOBART CRESCENT

89

22

35

12

65

49

Mast

2

106

4

34

11

MARESFIELD CLOSE

11

5

67

12

LO
RN

E 
RO

AD

2

18 to 27

26

20

12

HEATHFIELD AVENUE

PARFITT W
AY

46

32

House

14

9

Gate
89

29

BARTON VIEW TERRACE

13.2m

1

3

53

138

LB

Flour Mill

29

El

St Andrew's

60

Inglemount

39

11a

5

Superstore

RADIGUND'S

19
4

ST

12

Lodge

84

85a

Depot

19
5

83

65

ST ANDREWS GARDENS

168

ANSTEE ROAD

53

RANDOLPH

HI
LL

 R
O

AD

C
H

ER
RY

 T
R

EE
 A

VE
N

U
E

4 to 7

4

1

Court

29

23

Ward Bdy

78

4

20.5m

Depot

15

Shelter

10

N
A

PIER
 R

O
A

D

5

1a

Bridge

View

67

25

4

1

1

14

23

1

33

Osprey

61

16

9

12

5

16a

18
0

1

8a

64

Dour

42

19

11

CRABBLE HILL

1

30
 to

 3
5

19

GR
EE

N 
LA

NE

6

2

70

46

BUCKLAND AVENUE

85

23
2

88

12

River

30

7

53

1a

14

EDGAR ROAD

22

14.4m

Charles Lister Court

1a

142

29

15

37

CRABBLE HILL

Leighton

LB

15

21

57

18.5m

25

Garage

25

40

1

Depot

13

2

Buckland

Alex
an

dr
a

BLE
NHEI

M D
RIV

E

Builders

1

1

37

4

17

14

105

40

23

Tank

Cottages

9

9

Alexandra

25

125

30

1to5

MASONS ROAD

EVISON CLOSE

2

11
6

Kingfisher

88

11

Shelter

7

Mayfield

27

83

1

BALFOUR ROAD

6

46

ESS

LONDON ROAD

54

20

70

16
6

38

23
6

15

14 to 16

Court

8

12

24

W
eir

1

2

2

3

54

13

45

28

DUNEDIN DRIVE

Lodge

43

W
arden Court

El S
ub Sta

74

8

35

28

11

41

59

87

19

22.3m

27
2

S Gantry

50

139

84

2

Charlton Tunnel

CH

86

20

1

24

24.5m

1 to 12

11.8m

28
8

14.6m

2

73

30
8

MP 76.75

SHOOTER'S

32
0

PH

22
8

31
4

13

12.1m

29

9.8m

Mill Stream

40

11

27
0

20

29

23

1

80

96

22

29

245 to 249

24

Victoria

Construction

24

1

18

27

28
4

12

Builders Merchants

36

73

1 
to

PH

14

Sub

25

53

Path (um)

Gorse Hill

PO

53

5

2

57

BS

El

Whinless Down

26
3

Garage

ERITH
 STR

EET

25

1a

23
5

Def

TCB

13

9

8

Builders

Path (um)

HERBERT STREET

Yard

47

7

Path
 (u

m)

Path
 (u

m)

12

Path (um)

12.6m

Path (um)

Depot

Path (um
)

Allotment Gardens

621

26

LB

Oak Cottage

93

Path
 (u

m)

LONDON ROAD

Mast (telecommunication)

10

17.4m

45 43

2

2

2

House

1 to 10

Kingsford Court

Car Park

17

Subway

PA
RK

 R
OAD

2

Und

Community

14.6m

15.6m

42

9

Childrens

1

12

FR
IT

H
 R

O
A

D

Path (um
)

Ruin

23

St
 B

ud
ea

ux

2

29

Mews

Wingfield

20

FF

11
 to

 17

1

4

13

Nursery

1

20

School

Path (um)

CF

18a

30
6

28

30
7

CHURCHILL STREET

19

Mast

1

Redstones

Community Centre

Contex House

Head

30
4

L Twr

ED & W
ard

Bdy

PROSPECT PLACE

15

Stand

26

Path (um
)

124

Sloping masonry

72

21

4

Shelter

104

LONDON ROAD

41

Castleton Retail Park

20

Headquaters

Hall

19

82

Christian Centre

ED
 &

 W
ar

d 
B

dy

Down

Ward Bdy

1

Catholic School

De
f

Shelter

Und

Gorse Hill

Path (um)

COOMBE ROAD

8.5m

Path (u
m)

15

CR

Charlton

18

17

W
hin

les
s D

ow
n

36

80

Play Area

17

DE BURGH HILL

Church Of England

22

L Twr

Path (um)

18

Path

ROSEWOOD HEIGHTS

47

ESS

River

13

HIGH MEADOW

Path (um)

25

13

11

Erith

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

8

4

Boar's

ST MARTINS

Def

Path (um)

New Pharos

63

Masts

(1 to 10)

42

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

Industrial Estate

CH

43

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

Path (um)

40

1

23

Path (um)

Recreation Ground

Path (um)

Happy Feet

71

Elms Vale

NAPIER ROAD

(um)

Curzon Hall

16

TCB

2

27

Play Area

10th Dover Scouts

Stand

121.4m

34

Shelter

62

82

D
rain

42

1

Path (um)

Path (um)

House

22

W
INCHELSEA ROAD

17

Dov
er 

And
 D

ist
ric

t

TCB

72

LB

Stone

Headquaters

Wor
kin

g M
en

's 
Club

 And
 In

sti
tut

e

10

Stone

1

Vale View

Primary School

17

53

9 to 11

13

Christian Fellowship

The Buttercup

ALE
XANDRA P

LA
CE

Centre

18

9

Charlton Green

37

17.6m

65

33

Path (um)

Vale View

CF

44

Elms

4

14

CF

Childrens Centre

29b

El Sub Sta

Cadet Centre

45

Phoenix Railway Club

FF

Play Area

41

2

22

Qube

Felbrigg House

Ward Bdy

St
an

d

2

St Peter And St Paul

L Twr

12

15

Path (um)

Kings Hall

29a

11.8m

22 to 24

15

FB

92

Astley Avenue Allotment Site

Recreation Ground

5

Day Nursery

9

47

142

Scout

3

1a

Primary School

4

47

Allotment Gardens

Choochoos

GARDENS

1

51

96

Infant And Nursery School

CR

W
ard B

dy

Crabble Athletic Ground

75

110

Ward Bdy

Ward Bdy

6

Harmonia

8

8 to 27

Ward Bdy

58

7

14.8m

1 to 6

3

11

19

11

DW

19
6

Ward Bdy

7

Shelter

37

2

6

10

Ward Bdy

22

12

117 to

55

8

6

W
ard Bdy

1a

40

House

1

27

14

Ward Bdy

8

12

Waterwheel

17

7

Ward Bdy

Christian Centre

59

28 to 37

36

CR

Def

25

20

91

6

7

21

9

90

15

11

11

38

9

Priory Fields School

44

ESS

8

63

144b

9

35

D
ef

60

2

10.6m

85

Mast (Telecommunication)

77

Shelter

10

76

9

6

18

30
7a

Manor

1

57

33

3

42

24

25

7

7 19

115

Sports Pavilion

34.1m

44

1 to 47

56

Equestrian

23

Templar

3

Frandham

1b

21

41

Court

Belle Vue

11

25

23

SB

8

29

D
ef

13 to 24

10

FB

33

13

55

1 to 27

49

D
ef

128

53

17

2

14 to 25

1

18

5

Path (um
)

DW

39

60

Play Area

1 to 14

Watermark

28

36

Priory

Fiveways

94

41

(Stables)

30

19

1

19
7

1 to 12

25

29

Path (um)

35

19

30

Path

122

57

31

153

Sports Pavilion

Barton Path

Whinless

12

3

15

19

13 to 16

19

Path
 (u

m)

Factory

26

St Radigunds Walk

Dover

40

FF

2

1 to 55

28

58

Big Offices

1 to 6

37

Tumuli

26

39

35

BOW
MAN COURT

16

22

Trefor

Boston

CRABBLE ROAD

24

16

145

Childrens Nursery

House

Path (u
m)

Childcare

Farm

15

El Sub Sta

29

1 to 9

Frandham

2 
to

 6

11
a

1

Ppg Sta

1 to 4

Junior School

31

1 to 15
Tumuli

8

Barton

1 to 5

144a

4

House

4 and 6 to 20

63

to

Tr
ac

k

144c

Village

St Radigunds

16

(Station)

65

Car Park

31

63
 to

 67

Motocross

Ppg

Bluebell Terrace

Windsong

El S
ub Sta

55

Crabble Meadows

35
 to

 4
1

119

Depot

Paper Mill

73

Clocktower Lofts

1

92

Path (um)

155

and

Brambley Hedge

1 to 32

Frandham Kennels

27

1 to 14

36 to 38

Pre-school

Paper Mill

Ward Bdy

2

Sub Sta

Allotment Gardens

24
2

3

62

Dover College

Path (um)

Crabble

Club

CURZON ROAD

Riverside

4

Play Area

1 
to

 1
6

Track

106

6

1 to 6

Shatterlocks

143

32
3

35

Factory

146

House

Ward Bdy

St
 A

nn
e's

 C
ou

rt

Charlton Church

2

1 to 6

ESS

Dover Prep School

14

Ward Bdy

1 to 6

124

Ward Bdy

PRIORY STATION

Und

House

APPROACH ROAD

28

Barton Path

1 to 4

26

Priory Court

HOLLOW WOOD ROAD

10

24

46.6m

15
0a

Lodge

5

89

1 to 25

20

12

5

5

4

Stuart Court

78

73

Sports Pavilion

24

1 to 8

7

13

Court

El Sub Sta

KING
STO

N CLO
SE

18

Priory House

48

School House

1 to 8

84

Magpie

2

5

27

24

20

21

21

El

27

23

20

16

116

12

51.6m

144d

9

(Sports Facility)39.7m

61

10

53

9

to

1 to 8

111 to 115

1 to 12

ESS

1a

Beacon Church

Cottage
ROAD

Path (u
m)

Path (um)

Track

Waterloo

House

(Football Ground)

5

Rugby Pitches

120.7m

El Sub Sta

132.4m

Kaleidascope

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

Factory

1 to 29

1a

1 to 12

7

Jones

1 to 6

7

17

1 to 8

16

7

El Sub Sta

77

39

2

76.1m

26

51

HI
LL

57

59

9

41
a

Hunger Down

13

25

COW
PER RD

53

10

Coombe Down

CR

House

7

Holmstone Wood

ST RADIGUND'S ROAD

BARWICK ROAD

299

72

Posts

98

29.9m

4

7to12

144

109

121
108

Court

150

106

Station

1

TCB

162

19

23

24

215

Cottage

LB

3a

13

8

1

1

1

68

25.2m

CH

PETER STREET

Anglo-Saxon Burial Ground

89

32
2

Street Surgery

35

Pete
r S

tre
et

1

216

Stone

C
H

EV
A

LI
ER

 R
O

A
D

18

a

117

Crown

44

153

150

Stone

51

QUEENS AVENUE

62

3

El Sub Sta

Pond

30

8

AV
EN

UE

33

ASTOR AVENUE

31.8m

TCB

NO
RT

HB
O

UR
NE

23

52

G
O

SCHEN RO
AD

28

47

2

10

59.2m

Shelter

Cliffs

14

37

13

95

121

79

38

1

129

Stone

NO
RT

H 
MIL

ITA
RY

 R
OA

D

74

14

22.0m

High View

141

30

15

Place

22

SO
UTH

48

28

64

7

13

20

4

1

31.5m

14

52

26

2

40

Mast

Chy

El Sub Sta

43

17

Def

DW

35

House

PRIO
RY G

ATE RO
AD

1

22

22

9

25

41

63

15

119

13

Car Park

1t
o3

2

13

DE BURGH STREET

ODO ROAD

ROAD

29

10

3

23

1

29

3

1

3

13

4 to 9

1

160

4

CLOSE

2

125

45.3m

70

86

16

Works

2

199

172

14

1

51.1m

23

Cottage

Public Waste Disposal Site

13

62

25

65

14

1

25

49

21

59

El Sub Sta

23

15

4

6

(PH)

32.0m

Post

73

59

18

1 t
o 6

LB

CW

34

13

81

Ward Bdy

Sluice

71

21 to 29

1
1

BARTHOLOMEW STREET

16

8

14

34

15

1

12

30

6

45

15

2

RUTLAND ROAD

2

7

10

24

Coleman House

1

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

15

Play

7 t
o 1

1

27a

13

29

23

19
2

El

68

42

8

15
9

54.5m

90

17
3

Posts

13.7m

49

8

6

5

16
1

1

10

CF

1

Ca
ws

ey
 C

ot
ta

ge
s

38

13.0m

165

29

48

22
6

1

13
3

Tk

30

107

121

13

70

12

78

1

BS

FB

5

8

1

Shelter

House

4

47

2

34

Ingledene

25

34

Ce
nt

re

CRABBLE MEADOWS

38

58

7

Sta

29

109

COOMBE VALLEY ROAD

El Sub Sta

23

36

PRIMROSE ROAD

28.4m

ROAD

12

7

33

37

60
56

1b

54

27
7

71

25
4

72

GEORGE STREET

26

Cott
ag

e

HILL

25
0

296

20.6m

17.0m

VICTORIA STREET

LISTER

24

Garage

CLOSE

Yard

13

Def

C
R

9 
to

 2
3

31

26 to 39

4

(PH)

(Telecommunication)

1b

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

CP

FW

Path (um)

CRABBLE LANE

37 to 41

Path (um)

Recreation Ground
Sports Facility

L Twr

Path (um)

Nursery

Poltons Family Centre

Gateway

Track

The Ark

Joint

Breakwater Brewery

St Edmund's

24a

126

House

Ward Bdy

20

56

25

38

14

74

4

87

14

45
39

10

1

13

43

8

38

62

46

37

15

59

11

Sta

34

10

House

1 to 9

Centre

35

9

6

Track

Elkington

Buckland Hospital

Circuit

ESS

Abbey

(Rugby Ground)

Factory

Sports Pavilion

El Sub Sta

1 to 21

BR1 - St
Radigunds

West

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.15 0 0.15 0.3 0.45 0.60.07
Kilometers

Page 20

51



Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: BR2 - St Radigund's, East
Dover District Council
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
Dover
CT16 3PJ

26.6m

2

121

118

43.0m

1 to 6

White
Cliff

s Prim
ary College fo

r th
e Arts

71White Cliffs
 Lodge

PRIMROSE ROAD

51

White Cliffs
 Court

El

18

1

29

34.1m

Whitehall

FB

1

139

160

Playground

119

14

LB

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

125

37

84

17.0m

162

Works

26

14.9m

61

9

13

2

14

24.6m

AS
TL

EY
 A

VE
NU

E

LI
M

ES
 R

O
AD

62

Astley Court

Cottage

93

ST
AN

HO
PE

 R
O

AD

25

15.8m

48

129

55

DANES

65

10

75

13

31

36

14

95

62

59

38

1

107

26

7

45

25

MAYFIELD AVENUE

13

24

50

58

42

TCB

49

31

26.7m

21.6m

13

32

BARTON ROAD

5

14

21

71

6

THE GROVE

8

8

59

St Edmunds Lodge

MACDONALD ROAD

50

El Sub Sta

14.1m

NI
GH

TI
NG

AL
E 

RO
AD

44

130

56

11

23

26

7

21

8.7m

25

74

15

77

STREET

1b

BR
ID

G
E 

ST
RE

ET

13

Superstore

14
42

59

38

7 t
o 12

14
74

2

MP 99

4

El Sub Sta

1

2

8

LB

COURT

St Georges

32.0m

61

14

Posts

32

PH

47

6

73

20

to

PAUL'S PLACE

7.0m

Court

El Sub Sta1

56

2

CHARLTON

59

58

Tank

30

BRANCH

11

1 t
o 6

GREEN

52

35 to 40

39

ESS

Sluice

The Buckland Yew

1

LEIGHTON ROAD

94

71

Weir

79

12a

House

21 to 29

38.7m

GREEN

6

111

14

Depot

Sta

1
34

18

7 to 12

1 AVENUE ROAD

Sed
gem

ea
d

Bartholomew

20

1

MILLAIS ROAD

BE
AC

O
NS

FI
EL

D 
AV

EN
UE

14

Sorting Office

61

8.3m

BARTHOLOMEW STREET

103

3

GRANVILLE

9.9m

El Sub

16

30

48

WorksBEACONSFIELD R
OAD

91

28

58

8

67

1

1

1

ST ALPHEGE ROAD

14

18

House

2

34

House

2

7.9m

18

CHARLTON

15

10.4m

Bea
co

nsfi
eld

68

13

74

1

4

80

16

Churchill

5

12

92

1

14

30

1

Superstore

STREET

Shelter

3

6

Riverside Cottages

CH
AR

LT
O

N 
AV

EN
UE

8

45

5

45

22

Sh
elt

er

10

15

25

21

19

147b

27

15

Weir

Court

147a

Area

13

12

Play

24

Court

Court

4

34

7 t
o 1

1

53

1

27a

21.2m

11

Buckland Junction

19

25.0m

17.5m

13

13

35

20

LONDON ROAD

23

29

41

M
AGDALA ROAD

1

27

1 to 6

84

46

23

25

73

19
2

69

47

4

Weir

33

18

15
4

WOOD'S PLACE

El

3

The Bull

30

57

6

68

54

96

SP

19
8

1

42

9

20
2

St
 R

ad
ig

un
ds

10

8

79

89

20
8a

50.5m

17
2

22

55

1

20
9

15
9

147

4

20

1

60

67

27

1

10

54.5m

Co
ur

t

26a

12

90

1

18
5

8

1 to 5

9

12
1

130

OSWALD PLACE

17
3

61

1

MP 76.5

14a

29

14
3

14

SB

103

Posts

37
39

(PH)

14

18

1

213

19
4

13.7m

2

190

BU
NK

ER
S

Def

19
5

49

30

131

Stone

Mill Side

ST ANDREWS GARDENS

8

to

2

45

HI
LL

 R
O

AD

2

6

1

49

3

4

14
8

BARTON ROAD

River Dour

5

15

1

Ward Bdy
47

134

16
1

23

ERIC ROAD
View

78

20
8

1

1

El Sub Sta

1

143

10

24

15

61

17

37

CF

8

109

5

Dour

1

Waterside House

Ca
ws

ey
 C

ot
ta

ge
s

1a

98

118

3a

PH

38

142

ALFRED ROAD

18

LB

58

13.0m

1

LB

150

32.9m

84

165

57

FB

11

28

33

25

29

2

The Old

1

13

48

38

72

M
ed

ic
al

22
6

37

16

1

BROOKFIELD PLACE

Tk

25

105

60

37

30

12

125

HEATHFIELD AVENUE

95

Gate

34

11
6

13

103

3

13.8m

46

LO
RN

E 
RO

AD

70

11

10
72

5

89

12

10
4

4

35

138

84

78

17

16

11a

12
1

2

1

64

Bridge

SP
RI

NG
FI

EL
D 

RO
AD

128

House

19

19

BUCKLAND AVENUE

22

46

Contex House

Buckland

11b

77

11c
12

Car

PROSPECT PLACE

27

15

EDGAR ROAD

8

Sloping masonry

ESS

Park

14.8m

4 15

2

14 to 16

1

41

Depot

Brookfield

34

24

14.9m

82

65

1

St Andrew's

17

2

Shelter

Ce
nt

re

Shelter

26

4 to 7

BALFOUR ROAD

15

Court

CRABBLE MEADOWS

54

16

54

22

Shelter

20.5m

58

57

70

House

28

Church

67

29

Court

8

LB

Lych

109

1

12

43
3

COOMBE VALLEY ROAD

16a

ALE
XANDRA P

LA
CE

El Sub Sta

59

El S
ub Sta

1

37

42

23

87

Rose

44

22.3m70

36

Gas Holder

El Sub Sta

84

2

30

PRIMROSE ROAD

149

2

PRIMROSE PLACE

2

1

11.8m

80

28.4m

ETL

14.6m

9

14

Construction

PH

1

ROAD

1

29

Builders Merchants

106

27
0

1b

1to5

110
25

54

96

Kingfisher

54

14.8m

5

13

1

27
7

83

Shelter

26
3

8

12

LONDON ROAD

House

71

8

1

36

15

47

BARTON VIEW TERRACE

14

25
4

45

53

12.6m

CR

94
53

8

72

60

7

62

2

27
2

COOMBE VALLEY ROAD

Superstore

93

GEORGE STREET

11

2

ERITH
 STR

EET

85a

15

26

86

Kingsford Court

2

23
5

ANSTEE ROAD

17

10.6m

11.8m

Cott
ag

e

Builders

2

C
H

ER
RY

 T
R

EE
 A

VE
N

U
E

MP 76.75

Shelter

Yard

HILL
42

78

22
8

30
7a

25
0

12

29

1a

25

296

1
34.1m

Mews

23

20.6m

Templar

1

17.0m

Court

22

9

VICTORIA STREET

LB

Fulmar
11

14 to 25
LISTER

Victoria

10

11 to 12

30
 to

 3
5

28

24
PH

1

23
2

30

Garage

Charles Lister Court

7.0m

31.7m

El Sub Sta

CLOSE

21

15.6m

57

2

65

Yard

1

8

16

1a

86

Builders

House
FF

HERBERT STREET

CRAFFORD STREET

15

83

House

106

CF

1 
to

 4

9

66

31

18a

32

45

MATTHEW
'S PLACE

35

88

Step-a-Side

1

28

7

The Forge

146 1

1 to 11

6

13

Charlton Church

26

2

25

W
eir

1

Def

19

18

Tennis Courts

35

8.5m

38

27

23.6m

C
R

17

New Pharos

20

9 
to

 2
3

64

fo
r G

irl
s

DE BURGH HILL

9

21

31

82

HIGH MEADOW

21

HILLSIDE ROAD

W
arden Court

26 to 39

FR
IT

H
 R

O
A

D

11

Path (um)

27

11

28

29

4

9 to 11

Dov
er 

And
 D

ist
ric

t

16

Car Wash

19

116

4

Ward Bdy

Wor
kin

g M
en

's 
Club

 And
 In

sti
tut

e

75

37 to 41

144d

Charlton Tunnel

W
ard Bdy

69

1

61

24.5m

Primary School

Ward Bdy

Joint

Balfour

20

53

32
0

Charlton Green

Ward Bdy

Dour M
ews

CHURCHILL STREET

to

31
4

Path (um)

Breakwater Brewery

19
7

St Edmund's

25

12

Mill Stream

21

ESS

30

24a

9.1m

1a

27

20 Beacon Church

31

29

8

Path
 (u

m)

House

Qube

26

5

River Dour

20

45 43

13

24

37

Kaleidascope

7 
to

 1
0

PH

House

39

22

Factory

7

Kings Hall

43

16

1 to 29

18

15

142

104

298

24

Allotment Gardens

Castleton Retail Park

38

62

144a

19

Ward Bdy

Hall

37

12

23

144c

11

CR

6

65

11

Ppg

29

29

Sta

10

42

Bluebell Terrace

34

35
 to

 4
1

8

49

17

17

6

1 to 9

18

17

24
2

DW

5

Elkington

19

9

ST RADIGUND'S ROAD

1

Buckland Hospital

Barn

35

33

House

El Sub Sta

6

15

Factory

14

Childcare

16

14

Castleview

28

2 
to

 6

9

45

16

58

1 to 21

35

5 to 6

15

PH

11

47

17

11
a

63
 to

 67

Harmonia

78

Junior School

1 to 6

14

Barton

DW

63

9

Sub Sta

Christian Centre

Village

11
7

31

Whitehall

10

19.5m

55

BUNKER'S HILL

3 and75

146

2

LUKES CLOSE

1

3

19

26

Path (um)

36

4

Barton Path

2

6

St Radigunds Walk

48

Factory

1 to 55

219

2

137

21

Endeavour

1 to 6

1

Barton Path

38

2

37

Garage

1 to 4

1

12.5m

a

14

18.6m

12

1

M
IN

ER
VA

 A
VE

NU
E

47

113

109

83

94

96

2

2

25

3

9

46

1

RADIGUND'S

26

ST

1

Depot

1a

65

13

RANDOLPH

1

2

Depot

1a

Leighton

13

40

LB

Alex
an

dr
a

13

1

26

14

Cottages

Alexandra

94

2

9

7

77

6

73

23
6

12

House

5

51

2

10

3

20

D
ov

er
 G

ra
m

m
ar

 S
ch

oo
l

Lodge

55

S Gantry

CH

1 to 12

2

30
8

43

9.8m

2

20

1

24

18

1 
to

25

14

9

1

Ruin

Wingfield

2

Catholic School

31

Path (um)

11

Charlton

9

80

7

Church Of England

22

Path (um)

ESS

Erith

Knights

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

BUNKERS HILL AVENUE

4

40

29b

28

41

24

22

15

29a

6

42.2m

7

19
6

10

212

14

10

25

79

9

36

144b

1

Su
b 

St
a

7

2

5

Chitty's

48

1

19

17
9

Factory

12
6

2

OSWALD ROAD

1 to 4

6 to 10

15

4 and 6 to 20

7

14

8

SP

Cottages

St Martin's Yard

1

River

26

13

21

47

153

68

38

22.8m

135

16

6

115

106

32

13.2m

Flour Mill

5

10

8a

Tank

9

MASONS ROAD

11

1

20

38

8 28
8

SHOOTER'S

12.1m

11

1

24

28
4

73 PO

Garage

TCB

7

12

Depot

1

LONDON ROAD

2

Car Park

64

20

1

23

30
6

30
7

Redstones

30
4

Path (um
)

Shelter

LONDON ROAD

18

22

ROSEWOOD HEIGHTS

13

Cadet Centre

Felbrigg House

St Peter And St Paul

Path (um)

FB

1a

CR

115

1b

23
13

2

39

41

25

19

12

40

BOW
MAN COURT

92

1 to 32

36 to 38

BR2 - St
Radigunds
East

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.1 0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.40.05
Kilometers

Page 21

52



Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: BR3 - St Radigund's, Town
Dover District Council
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
Dover
CT16 3PJ

73 to 95

47

FB

34 to 48

FB 38 to 44

46 to 62

18 to 32

74 to 94

HAROLD STREET

1
17.6m

PETER STREET

51

5 to 7

10
1

25

10
9

El Sub Sta

9.5m

PH

Sta

332
4

27
to3

1

87
a

57

8.5m

44

1

Depot

Sub

67

120

23.3m

45

87

9

4a

El

33

6

W
OOD 

ST
RE

ET

4 116

118

108

a

Car Park
11

36

The High

11
4

7

Surgery

13

48

32

VICTORIA

Charl
ton

21

7

35.4m

23

1

18

2

13

Cen
tre

Oak
lan

ds
 C

ot
ta

ge

14

1

20

11

14

22

21

42

9 t
o 1

0

44

26.2m

6

Shelter

8.0m

2b

8

TCB

7

1

1 t
o 1

4

PH

HIGH STREET

35

2a

11

43

HEWITT

21
31

15

26

42

13

53

22

49

25

Shamar

36

71

39

1a

SOUTH ROAD

50

20

63

13

57

77

55

68

61

55

27

19

38

24

2

33

89

5
34

31

48

41

36

49

76
Charlton House

ROAD

a

39

56

a

El

71

24

40

Cobham

2

1 t
o 7

3

78

DOUR STREET

Car Park

House

Ward Bdy
21

16

57

50

FW
Car Park

CR

A256

GODWYNE CLOSE

2

38

21 to 31

FW

3

6.3m

67

(remains of)

73

TCB

28

6

MAI
SO

N 
DI

EU
 P

LA
CE

River

93

Poli
ce

42

1 to14

7t
o9

14

PARK M
EWS

6.8m

44

3

2

17
 to

 25

PA
RK S

TR
EET

81 9

Riverside

62

FB

Ladywell House

Electricity

15

THE PADDOCK

Bigg
in 

Hall

16

FW

Dour

1

B22
45

GOODFELLOW

6

El Sub Sta

17

19

49 to 71

PH
26

86

Sub Sta

103

8 t
o 1

6

7

1

19
b

5.7m6

Ladywell

Distribution

Roy
al 

Vi
cto

ria
 P

lac
e

34 to 54

ESS

2

104

6

War
d B

dy

Site

Stat
ion

5

El4

60

Dep
ot

PH

House

6.8
m

House

Sta

HIGH STREET

The

LA
DYW

ELL

Beech

6.4m

52

Car Park

(Telecom
m

unication)

13

FF

1

CW

FB

14

100

36

12

House

1to3

House

PA
RK P

LA
CE

TOWER HAMLETS STREET

25 to 47

36 to 44

15

5

Cedar

Stable Court

DICKSON

1

DW

17

1t
o6

1

19a

19

Post

Navara

14

Rectory

35

77

6

W
est Cottage

13.5m

TO
W

ER
 H

AM
LE

TS
 R

OA
D

Tower Court

W
EST STREET

46

20.3m

TCB

20

W
IDRED RO

AD

Sub

39

Priory Tunnel

40

18.8m

11
9

23.5m

18

15

MP

31

17

Aspen

12

10

2

25

36

House

26

14.7m

1

1

5

45

14

ETHELBERT RD

23

12
14

20

34

2

11
65

3

1

39

2

LB

EAST STREET

16

10

10

1

52

TEMPLAR STREET

54

Court

Mast

House

71

1

Pond

26

47

18

14

2

PH House

1

15

12

House

18

EDRED ROAD

1

20

26

Shelter

24

35

1

LB

54

Anniversary

3

11

12

71

39

1

James House

Stone

Anglo-Saxon Burial Ground

16

20

Stone

Brambles

Yard

30

55

1

CASTLE AVENUE

63

1 to 2

8

Robson's

Gregory

Holly Tree

20

53

11

Stone

8

Stevens

11

El Sub Sta

Peverill House

29.9m

15

49

DW

Castle Rise

Fountain

9

10

12

22.5m

Inwood

Jonathan

19

Holm Oak

60
CONNAUGHT ROAD

37

St Barts

Elizabeth

55

The24

31

5

GODWYNE ROAD

Stone

21

20

El

1

Acre

PC

Villette

St Richard's

18.6m

13

Tennis

Tank

Catholic Primary School

26

51

1

LB

Ward Bdy

13

Sub

Play Area

16.5m

33.1m

CR

House

2

12

7

House

15

PC

22

13

STREET

34

Court

2

39

House

LB

37

Superstore

Sta

El S
ub Sta

4

14

94

44.7m

3

47

2

32

93

9

CHARLTON

37.1m

41

95

30

42

CASTLEMOUNT ROAD

Whispins

35 to 40

1 to 4

26

77

24

LEIGHTON ROAD

SM

Courts

31

8

House

Fern

73

17

83

32

PAUL'S PLACE

Depot

21.9m

House

MATTHEW
'S PLACE

1

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

El Sub Sta

5

MILLAIS ROAD

17.0m

6

7
58

2

8.3m

14.9m

LI
M

ES
 R

O
AD

6

10

11

El Sub

36

77

15.8m

11

20

91

Weir

107

8

BARTON ROAD

Car Wash

55

ST ALPHEGE ROAD

GREEN

75

8.7m

2

34

69

PH

20

THE GROVE

BR
ID

G
E 

ST
RE

ET

CHARLTON

43

Balfour

61

7.0m

14

2

74

2

3

Dour M
ews

56

LB

1

6

25

5

BRANCH

48

Posts

14

9.1m

1

to

1

1
29

14

Shelter

2

River Dour

2

67

7 to 12

Tank

Shelter

24

GREEN

31

12a

Bartholomew

PH

BALFOUR ROAD

1

14

6

2218

54

79

GRANVILLE

1

7

Sta

River

House

111

15

70

AVENUE ROAD

Works

13

62

10.4m

18

Court

BE
AC

O
NS

FI
EL

D 
AV

EN
UE

5

28

12

Sed
gem

ea
d

4

103

1

6

28
8

Sorting Office

92

3

30

29

SHOOTER'S

Superstore

9.9m

El S
ub Sta

2

87

12.1m

2

Riverside Cottages

58

18

BEACONSFIELD R
OAD

11

84

22

Garage

1

68

1

1

1

House

80

19

109

2

STREET

24

14.6m

Weir

Bea
co

nsfi
eld

3

7.9m

28
4

PH

Dour

45

27
0

13

1a

73

23

25

96

PO

1a

Shelter

16

17

1

Garage

LB

1

Leighton

8

1to5

53

1

TCB

CH
AR

LT
O

N 
AV

EN
UE

40

Kingfisher

ERITH
 STR

EET

ALE
XANDRA P

LA
CE

LONDON ROAD

Alex
an

dr
a

80

69a

37

23
5

Builders Merchants

83

1to18

1

44

25

LONDON ROAD

Waterside House

14

House

5Cottages

Richmond

15

64

26
3

El Sub Sta

59

Alexandra

15

8

45

2

2

15

BARTON VIEW TERRACE

8

1 to 11

27
2

4

47

86

2

Court

9

11.8m

12.6m

6

11.8m

6.6m

PH

PARK AVENUE

53

62

9

23
6

57

13

93

20

60

1

HERBERT STREET

2

LB

2

1

1 to 18

Superstore

110

1 
to

 4

Allotment

Court

23

45

36

1

10

Shelter

85a

29

69

15

Bertram

1

8

29

1 to 11

30
6

Fulmar

15.6m

ANSTEE ROAD

Gardens

Godwyn
e

30
7

11 to 12

51

C
H

ER
RY

 T
R

EE
 A

VE
N

U
E

16

52

2

Redstones

4

Tennis Courts

78

30
4

23.6m

44

FF

9

Lonsdale

1a

10

FR
IT

H
 R

O
A

D

CF

Path (um
) Court

7.0m

29

18a

ALB
ERT R

OAD

1

Shelter

28

3

CR

65

4

23
2

LONDON ROAD

1

D
ov

er
 G

ra
m

m
ar

 S
ch

oo
l

Court

Eleanor Court

MAISON DIEU ROAD

Lodge

7

Castlemount Court

1

1 to 6

14 to 19

11

74

S Gantry

15

20

15

House

CH

73

9

CHURCHILL STREET

2

1 to 12

79

19

Step-a-Side

5

10.6m

30
8

77

55

16

1

Shelter

10.4m

9.8m

House
17

30
7a

Lodge

20

8.5m

Laureston

4

SALISBURY ROAD

25

HAROLD STREET

17

Castle Lea

24

St James'

66

36

34.1m

1

Sloping m
asonry

18

DE BURGH HILL

69

D Fn

Templar

1 
to 2

HIGH MEADOW

87

31

11

Ps

Court

18

8182

88

14 to 25

Castle

32

Stone

7 to 12

El Sub Sta

Ps

LEYBURNE ROAD

35

14

Crundall

1

DW

9

28

W
eir

75

17

Dover Baptist

817

Fort

fo
r G

irl
s

Lan Glee

W
arden Court

TA
SWELL

 S
TR

EET

Church

1

DW

20

28

3

28

Burgoyne

Resource

22 86

3

19

5

56.6m

Dover

Stone

Taymouth

New Pharos

Charlton Tunnel

Stone

10

Stone

Christian Fellowship

24.5m

The Well

House

Stone

Kings Hall

Health Centre

1

1

TASWELL CLOSE

39

2

El Sub Sta

12

15

32
0

Citizens Advice Bureau

2

TCB

Salem

24

to

31
4

Dov
er 

And
 D

ist
ric

t

36

9

Dover Bowling Club

Pumping Station

DW

Wor
kin

g M
en

's 
Club

 And
 In

sti
tut

e

27

25

1

CONNAUGHT

Centre

9 to 11

Primary School

Dover

El Sub Sta

10

15

LB

Charlton Green

Centre

Hall

8

108

24

22

Cadet Centre

8

30

W
ard Bdy

30

11

22

House

Felbrigg House

Ward Bdy

MONASTERY AVENUE

6

Surgery

36

Vicarage

St Peter And St Paul

43

Cottage

1a

ROAD

38

Church

34

6

Stone

Ward Bdy

72

33

25

Job Centre

7

11

23

20

8

10

Maison Dieu Gardens

21

25

73

44

17

Dover

Path (um)

13

11

Outreach

18

(dis)

Charlton

19

47

Church Of England

41

72 to 75

49

35

20

Castleton Retail Park

Path (um)

St Paul's

Hall

15

23

37

28

Catholic

7

38

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

16

35

11

4

4

CR

Erith

16

15

Charlton Church

12

72

Ward Bdy

5

9
40

Ward Bdy

50

11
a

28

23

21

35

17

14

13

42

18

Junior School

10

44

2

42

40

12

14

48

19

39

and

41

30

31

46

9

25

8

18

31

2

29

15

3

3

27

4

19

4
20

2

6

7 
to

 1
0

21

29b

15

18

26

(1 to
 7)

7
1

12

12

24

37

124

21

40

19

42

39

5

27

23

16

1 to 10

41

16

Bomford Place

17

4
10

68

22

92

6

29

29

56

9

Haro
ld 

Pas
sa

ge

3

17

52

1

15

9

1 to 32

Beacon Church

33

64

Brambley Hedge

29a

36 to 38

38

24
2

11

78

14

5

3

6

Barn

2

Kaleidascope

NORFOLK TOW
ERS WAY

Quee
n Vict

oria
 Row

7

Factory

Path

45

1 
to

 1
6

32
3

10

1 to 6

El Sub Sta

House

5 to 6

14

1 to 6

Godwyne Path

25

4

Childcare

47

1 t
o 3

3

60

2 
to

 6

80

Park

PHAROS DRIVE

70

to

1 to 9

House

42

76

64 to 120

6

89

5

63
 to

 67

Christian Centre

1

1

Chitty's

Dov
er

1 
& 

2

32
2

3

19

30

1

Street Surgery

Lodge

1 to 4

35

Fiveways

66

CRESCENT

122

13

12

Barton Path

11

Roof

Pete
r S

tre
et

19

22

48

28

20

1

31.5m

52

40

70

45

57

33 to 43

77
45 to 55

Annexe

1

4

14

MAISON DIEU ROAD

WAY

Maison Dieu

FB

5.5m

Centre

6.5m

FB

El Sub Sta

25

Dour

1t
o3

2

13

DE BURGH STREET

ODO ROAD

ROAD

29

10

3

23

1

29

3

1

3

13

4 to 9

Aviary

Stone

10a

D Fn

Connaught Park

10

PARK AVENUE

8

43

1to11

1 to 6

2

11

85

13

14

El Sub Sta

23

15
59

4

Sluice

71

21 to 29

1
1

BARTHOLOMEW STREET

16

8

14

34

15

1

12

30

6

45

15

CF

1

1b

54

27
7

71

25
4

72

GEORGE STREET

26

Cott
ag

e

HILL

25
0

296

20.6m

Garage

Shelter

DOFR
AS 

PL
ACE

CRAFFORD STREET

24

40

16

12.7m

79

9.3m

32

1

The Forge

13

Def

C
R

9 
to

 2
3

31

26 to 39

4

57

71

Castle Mount

107

to

SAMPHIRE COURT

21.2m

46.9m

Knoll

2

12

34 32

Gateway

Joint

House

CP

CR

CR

13

22

32

45

25

26

12

8

13

8

43

8

38

37

11

10

1 to 9

5

1 to 24

1

Fir
e S

tat
ion

Elkington

9

Und

20

1 to 8

1 to 12

1 to
 12

1 to 21

6

BR3 - St
Radigunds

Town

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.1 0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.40.05
Kilometers

Page 22

53



Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: BT1 - Town and Castle, Priory
Dover District Council
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
Dover
CT16 3PJ

8

19 to 20

11 to 18

5

Car Park

to

Bank

Court

1

Roman Bath House

7

10

1

2

25 to 28

13

14
1

Bandstand

4

Church

ST
EM

BR
O

O
K

Post

FS

5.8m

Sl
ip

 Q
ua

y

Bo
lla

rd
s

Post

66

11

(site of)

Bo
lla

rd
s

Bo
lla

rd
s

CHURCH STREET

W
at

er
lo

o 
M

an
si

on
s

12

Post

Skate Park

Post

Bollards

56

28
 to

 3
7

8-
9

Office

C
ro

ss
 W

al
l

Pontoons

Post

61

Pontoons

Post

St Mary's

55

Pencester Gardens

Post

Po
st

14
to

15

28

Post

1 
to

 2

Marina

Stembrook

Crane

Post

Bollard

Shelter

Shelters

to

SM

Post

Post

18
 to

 2
7

Yacht Hoist

Pontoons

Wellington Dock

Bollards

PostB
ollards

Post

Post

Post

Winch

to

to

Bols

El Sub

Marina

65

Post

SM

Post

Post

Marina

PostPost

SN
AR

GAT
E 

ST
RE

ET

Ppg Sta

Custom

60

L Twr

Post

10
6

100.8m

House

PostPost

Pontoons

35

Post

13
4

SM

LB

(Swing-Bridge)

50

11
5

HEIGHTS

El Sub

Post

Capstan

Sta

Pontoons

Stone

L Twr

127

Pontoon

1

DW

Post

12
9

DW

Post

12
8

Sta

Ditc
h

8

DW

DR
O

P 
RE

DO
UB

T

Capstan

DW

Pontoons

25

Knights Templars

Moat

HEIGHTS TERRACE

Post

Stone

9

13

22

North Centre Bastion

DW

12
1

Bollards

Car Park

88.1m

BASTION ROAD

Posts

ROAD

Post

28

1

1to6

Stone

34

Captain Webbs

Bollard

122

LB

Post

Slipway

30

121

149

98

WESTERN

Quay

32

Greville

Winchelsea Court

PH

90

123

Bastion

14to25

142

UNION STREET

114

St Monicas

146

B
ollards

37.9m

DW

166

134

1

Ditc
h

Bo
lla

rd
s

130

149

182

House

18

DW

17
30

22

CITA
DEL

20.1m

Ditch

Depot

DW

(site
 of)

2

El

1a

Stones

RO
AD

Sub

84.8m

Sub

Stone

Path (um)

House

95.4m

100

18

LB

2a

5.9m

202

DW

Shelter

Drop Redoubt

(remains of)

44

Selborne

12

5

KNIG
HTS TEMPLARS

28

Pharos

32

DW

Chapel

27

TC

25

Bo
lla

rd
s

PH

7to12

2

2b

14

6

Tank

DW

144

144

168

Ditch

Roman

Pos
ts

Allotment

11

Allotment Gardens

2

96

1a

109

48

CR

135

18

33.2m

CF

53

121

16.0m

251

44

82

41

151

108

1

23

88

15

155
174

12

77

46

38.5m

22.4m

Court

161

Draw
brid

ge

29.8m

150

3

4

7

CLARENDON

Sta

185

82

177

50

34

1

175

118

13

106

239-241

180

11

137

1

Station

15

House

171

18.8m

BELG
RAVE RO

AD

167

5
4

24

1

8

191

28

Priory

14

(Site of)

36

(disused)

5

26

Sta

14
8

LONGFIELD ROAD

1

A
STO

R
 AVEN

U
E

Ditch

10 to
 20

190

24

275

29

ADRIAN STREET

16
6-

16
7

28

M
O

N
IN

S R
O

A
D

The Lodge
16

DW

TCB

15
7

VA
LE VIEW

 R
O

A
D

LB

UNDERDO
W

N RO
AD

Maritime

178

201

162

86

10

ALBANY PLACE

56

1

13

19

60

3

DW

2

122 to 126

23

FOLKESTONE ROAD

66

TCB

76

Winchelsea Works

24

17.6m

63

12

4

6

54

30

Caponier

42

158

12

8

215

Upwall G
ate

98

16

20.5m

Cottage

42

Vent

22

1a

ELMS VALE ROAD

128

LB

Gardens

21

G
LEN G

RO
VE

170

225

91

10

Gordon Lodge

13

3

97

48

1

Winchelsea Terrace

56

45

35

Allotment

108

9

Sub Sta

Def

45

17

31

24.0m

EATO
N

 R
O

A
D

36

2

5

19

Sweetpea

39.3m

25.3m

Gordon Bennett

48

25.3m

a

3a

16

27

Percival Terrace

Stone

74

D
ef

7

109

2

26

3

Depot

VICTORIA

5

13

2

Posts

36

58

8

22.4m

Harbour Tunnel

32

WESTBURY ROAD

1

WINCHELSEA STREET

11

8.5m

21

1

23.3m

10
1

6

33

203

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

1

31

21

Cy
cl

e 
W

ay

Gardens

1

40.0m

10
2

15

WESTBURY

3

DW

1

30

2

36

41

2

11

68

College Row
19.9m

7

24

13

21

1

51

31

7

299

55

Path (um)

CRESCENT

4

Shelter

ROAD

60.4m

SHAKESPEARE

NO
RTH STREET

MS

1 29

80

50

6

PH

50.5m

77

27

23

37

26

118

ROAD

56.7m

El

15

85

15

25.2m

44

53

HARDWIC
KE R

OAD

1

Sceptre

59

50.3m

Path (um)

116

22.8m

1

5

CH

WESTBURY

70

1

36.4m

DW

Anglo-Saxon Burial Ground

2

GG

Ward Bdy

237

DW

2

41

41

79

134

Kingly Way

2

1

(PH)

4

315

27

18

Shelter

43

C
F

110

Cliff

29

18
2

148

CHESTNUT ROAD

32

17

19

Playing Field

42

216

6

42

331

48

a

11

70.1m

35

65

Posts

41

2

1a

DROP REDOUBT ROAD

29

CRESCENT

CH
UR

CH
 R

O
AD

70

38

DROP 
REDOUBT R

OAD

MALMAINS ROAD

110

12

53

21

Depot

28.3m

25

16

100

54

16a

31

21

Shelters

34

ELMS VALE ROAD

228

DW

26

14

80

13

23

12

Sub Sta

14

7to12

Vicarage

33

2

9

73

60

45

Chalkwell Court

12

148a

13

MAXTON ROAD

1

Track

1

Path (um)

Path

2

LASCELLES ROAD

42

A8

2

LONGFIELD ROAD

2

69

13to18

1

40

El

Shelter

11

Garage

11

55

21

Maxton

21

68

Tennis Court

2to8

16

Depot

61

27

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

1to7

31

Stone

24

1

27.1m

22

CHAMBERLAIN
 R

OAD

2

15

8

35.3m

70

14

22

1

A6

6

49

12

32

1a

1to6

17

27

and

65

8

1

1

25

10to16

K
IT

C
H

EN
ER

 R
O

A
D

Stone

17

Court

63

61

C
H

EV
A

LI
ER

 R
O

A
D

194

A2

St
 M

ar
tin

's
 C

hu
rc

h

21a

36

42

CH
UR

CH
IL

L 
RO

AD

33.9m

337

37

14

28

190

MANOR R
OAD

St Martin's

Centre

5

218

32

18

87

17

122

9to15

13

a

77

El Sub Sta

4

13

93

Crown

APPROACH ROAD

58

22

20

60

44

27

53

14.5m

387

21

2

150

LB

Works

The Courty
ard

Stone

Bluebird Court

389

25
6

9

5

1

36

51

399

50

DW

Stone

365

83

76

32

Court

38.8m

48

10

51

319

359

B
ol

la
rd

s

30.9m

36.2m

3

73

27

1

57

28

21

44

7

31

81

238

25

43.2m

11

39

2

16

23

2

Shelter

2

Swallow House

1

2

Stone

22

El Sub Sta

78

19

El Sub Sta

61

70

23

Sub

34.1m

206

1

96

SM

12

37

42

CLARENDON PLACE

73

CLA
RENDON R

OAD

83

38

67

62

DW

77

25

Farthingloe

11

Harbour Tunnel

Medical

86

78

74

91

White

1

49

23

127

70a

33

76a

133

53

42.8m

110

Stone

14.1m

1

WYNDHAM ROAD

97

109

42

DEVONSHIRE ROAD

Court

Ruins

18.3m

66

64

Path (um)

PH

Stone

70

54

19

42

1a

LB

CG

50

10

14

13

1

48

29

CLARENDON STREET

7

Sta

49

Beechcroft

71

58.4m

17.3m

26

34.7m

71.1m

Updike

50

DW

Hyde Court

DW

51

1a

37

98

39

20

1b

35

13

Melville House

31.1m

1

25

26

PH

2b

24
0

1

1

Ditch

12

Stone

1

85

20

26

Cameron Court

48

Path (um)

49

LB

Garage

2

86

62

14

109

16

37

47

31

1 to 10

SOUTH
ROAD

RO
AD

44

137

Astor College For the Arts

9

AUDEN WAY

Path (um)

ST JO
HN'S

1 to 6

22

13

73

Stones

1 to 12

HAMILT
ON R

OAD

38

Stone

Stone

11

27

Shelter

Stone

1

TOWER HAMLETS

2

33

GG

8

48

12

RO
AD

17

75

10

7

14

Dover Grammar School for Boys

57

22

Tallis Court

9

56

73

1

Def

Conrad House

13 to 24

17

14

32.0m

ANSE
LM

 R
OAD

37

28.8m

61

Residences

49

Def

53

26

2

4

The

36

50

78

37

87

16

El

81

The

38

79

50

PRINCES STREET

Cornwall

CR

39

TCB

House

27.4m

30.2m

AV
EN

UE

8 t
o 2

14 to 21

26.2m

6

36

3

33

13

1

The

14

W
indsor

39

ASTOR AVENUE

77

25

Car Park

House

LOWTHER ROAD

31.8m

7

35

8.2m

30 to 37

NO
RT

HB
O

UR
NE

9

55

20

2

1 to 8

22

1

22 to 29

23

12

House

77

TCBs

Warehouse

Tennis Court

45

Church

1

Court

24

4

32

8

YORK STREET

26

17

G
O

SCHEN RO
AD

65

PR
IO

RY 
ST

REE
T

Sub Sta

82.7m

19

Stone

Mount Pleasant

11

80

47

46

Queens

78.5m

Play Area

47

38 to 41

Sta

67

3to
5

39

2

16

ESS

LB

Chapel

Courtyard

Shelter

7.6m

16

Christchurch Court

QUEEN'S GARDENS

1

Cliffs

9 to 16

El Sub Sta

42

Priory

9 t
o 1

4

14

St Martin's le Grand

16.9m

37

Lodge

1 t
o 8

NEW STREET

Stone

28 to 30

31.4m

13

York House

10

10

16

95

FW

24

Club

11

DOVER

14

60

2

34

17

20

Ladywell

121

1

7

Exchange

27

(remains of)

13

1 to 6

79

MAI
SO

N 
DI

EU
PL

AC
E

31

Dep
ot

El

44

38

2

82

Maybrook

HILL

LA
DYW

ELL

1

Biggin Gate

18

1

129

Stone

Effingham

18

BIGGIN STREET

9

55

Riverside

NO
RT

H 
MIL

ITA
RY

 R
OA

D

1 to 12

St Martin's Gate

13

5

74

17 to 24

72

13

6

Stone

Car Park

7

PA
RK P

LA
CE

17

14

10

(site of)

1

2

22.0m

Exchange

13 to 18

35

MILITA
RY ROAD

19a

River Dour

26

Shelters
PH

Hobday

1

TCB

12

PH

Bigg
in 

Hall

PLACE

Wellington Bridge

76

8

3

War
d B

dy

24

75

2

(rems of)

51

El Sub Sta

Cottage

Cow Gate

5

21

G
orely House

High View

NORTH
 M

ILI
TA

RY R
OAD

PH

Stones

Sh
elt

er
s

141

(site of)

EFFING
HAM

 STREET

19
b

Stone

TCBs

30 SAXON STREET

House

ESS

TCBs

ESS

11

15

23

Un
ita

ria
n

Bowling Green Terrace

59

18

Place

(remains of)

House

G
eoffs Place

TOWER HILL

The

13 to 24

DW

7

Stone

Stone

Sloping m
asonry

Chapel

NORMAN STREET

CR

(private)

House

34

FW

1 to14

111

24.5m

6

TOWER STREET

5

30

El Sub Sta

Ston
e

El Sub Sta

White Ho

51

15

8

3

39.3m

34 to 54

22

Car Park

6

10

26

Telephone

SO
UTH

Car Park

27

2

23

28

7.6m

53

3

LB

64

44

Priory

Stat
ion

56

7

7t
o9

HIGH STREET

SM

6.8
m

13

FF

2

2

13

193

6.4m

1

1
53

DW

8

2

DW

60

20

1

Post

Hotel

PRIORY GROVE

91

3

Priory

4

House

1

DW

ST BARTHO
LEM

EW
S CLO

SE

39

1

DW

DW

DW

5

SM

80

12

BENCH ST

26

LB

Sub

1

LB

40

CHAPEL

65

(remains of)

4

Chy

Ch
ur

ch

12
9

St Martin's

LB

CA
M

BR
ID

GE
 R

OA
D

El Sub Sta

Albany

7

84

PH

43

TCBs

1

(site of)

(restored)

Shelter

30

TCBs

72

9

Caves

House

8

10

39

Atina

14

DW

27

60

Tower

PH

14

3

12

Metropole

PRIORY HILL

St Barts

13

10

34

Ba
lla

st
 Q

ua
y

3

17

25 to 32

11

9

Bo
lla

rd
s

THE ABBOTS

TCB

Tank

TCB

DURHAM

1

98

39

Sub

El

64

12
1

Post

2

7 to 12

5

Car Park

W
est Cottage

54

31

1

10

W
EST STREET

DW

28

48

10

20

1

Gate House Bingo

1

10

35

18

5

14

65

4

8

Yard

18

11.2m

76

20

2

Robson's

8

3

1

10

11

52

33

7.8m

51

105

2

DW

PRIORY ROAD

House

7

53

13.8m

El

2

46

Post

43

4

TCBs

6.4m

112

Castle Inn

Bollards

11

DW

DURHAM CLOSE

8.4m

6

a

9

Harold Cottage

ED
W

AR
DS

 R
OA

D

24

DW

16

1

21

2

FOLKESTONE ROAD

7

QUEEN STREET

Victoria Cottage

10

27
 to

 29

1

1

El Sub Sta

7

5.6m

4

9

FB

100

24

DOLPHIN PASSAGE

CA
M

DE
N

103

MAISON DIEU ROAD

9

LB

Th
e C

hu
rc

hi
ll

5.7m

1 to 8

104

Tower Court

5

5

St Martin's Priory

Shelter

5

to

1 t
o 1

6

Annexe

Memorial

40

7

52

1

House

1 
to

 1
1

9

36

SM

11

Yacht Club

4

EAST STREET

TOWER HAMLETS STREET

Ports

Walter

DICKSON

Ch
ar

te
r H

ou
se

14

18

17

Granville Gardens

3

2

14

Taymouth

PH

House

54

Maison Dieu

6.4m

SM

TASWELL CLOSE71

FB

Ho
te

l

Pro
tea

 H
ou

se

12

Sh
in

gl
e

17

5.5m

WATERLOO

New Bridge

2

Posts

Memorials

Centre

36

CRESCENT
Post

FISHMONGER'S LANE

Car Park

45

W
at

er
lo

o

El Sub Sta

10.4m

20

1

Statue

9

St James

4

1

St James'

26 to 38

Gregory

ASHEN TREE LANE

Path (um)

Head

8

34 to 36

Telephone

Path (um)

4

5.9m

Old

CASTLE STREET

6

FB

Eastbrook Place

Castle View

15
0

El Sub Sta

Subway

Prince

Boar's

Ri
ve

r D
ou

r

LB

(Bus Station)

RUSSELL STREET

to

1 to 20

Cinque

Eastbrook

Masts

4

DW

Sunny Bank

to

Path (um)

CRESCENT

19

Path (um
)

Path (um)

35

12

1

Car Park

Post

Path (um
)

House

8

Cr
es

ce
nt

 H
ou

se

TA
SWELL

 S
TR

EET

Path (um)

Pontoons

5

36

Cam
bridge Terrace

8

DW

72

1

PRIO
RY G

ATE RO
AD

12 to 25

St Mary's C of E

10th Dover Scouts

Technical College

1

Royal

Parish Centre

Path
 (u

m)

149a

Ambulance

House

Su
bw

ay

22

St John

House

L Twr

PH

22

Church

22 to 24

17

25

1

9

Masonic Hall

Nursery

Headquaters

Headquaters

110

HAROLD STREET

25

Recreation Ground

Vale View

1

21

Resource

Dover Pencester Road

41

60

Post

St Marys

Dover

23

Sa
nd

 a
nd

Retail Park

Post

63

LB

Memorial

13
1 1

33

Dour

15

Yard

5

Maison Dieu Gardens

Vale View

WAT
ERLO

OScout

of Wales House

Path (um)

No
rth

am
pt

on
 Q

ua
y

Church Hall

3

De Bradelei

Tunnel

Wharf

168 to
 172

W
ate

rlo
o M

an
sio

ns

Path (um
)

Path (um)

Centre

ST MARTINS

Co
m

m
er

cia
l Q

ua
y

9 t
o 1

1

Path (um)

Path (u
m)

(1 to 10)

Primary School

Camden Cresent Car Park

CRESCENT

1

Filling Station

Ward Bdy

St Martin's

Hostel

22

DW

New Bridge

The Well

119

52

Primary School

14

Library

13

Vicarage

Ward Bdy

LB

6

TCB

13

Ward Bdy

108

House

73

Car Park

Surgery

(1 to 39)

72

Citizens Advice Bureau

19

3

FB

85

19

Outreach

W
ard B

dy

14

77

Print

8

9

The Oddfellows Club

20

Curzon Hall

Roundhouse

44

Post

Woodlands

Discovery Centre

St Paul's

9

9 to 10

21 to 35

Play Area

Path (um)

3

18

PH

245 to 249

10

12

Path (um
)

Dover

68

3

21

Path (um)

L Twr

CF

25

15

10

Catholic

Path (um)

Dour

FF

Allotment Gardens

Allotment Gardens

5

22

ROAD

Ward Bdy

Dover College

29

57

2
4

CURZON ROAD

Post

Path
 (u

m)

Post

50

Tunnel (dis)

7

Theatre

15

17

32

DW

44

4

Clarendon And Westbury

3

24

1

64

5

2

1

8

Hall

Post

20

21

3

89

12

41

Post

91

13

Cullin's

20

Unitarian

38

58

47

8

Community Centre

11

DIEU STONE LANE

51

Discovery

4

55

75

L Twrs

11
9

Sta

63

Place

6

Alma

Post

7

53
Pe

nc
es

te
r C

ou
rt

8

Ward Bdy

19

Posts

13

66

Post

Post

2

11

2

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

46

14

St Martin's Battery

29

18

78

19

18

CURVE ROAD

21

1

5

76

Post

1

3

12

42

165

Post

Brambley Hedge

11

19

15

P

38

48

Post

9

Post

5

9

42

74

10

31

Post

18

43

11

M
HW

 &
 M

LW

6

4

14

1

37

(site of)

116

78

56

40

Posts

Grand Shaft

18

Victoria House

62

26

13

FB

6

5

1 
to

 5

8

60

Snar Gate

Post

New Bridge

10

65

FB

Union Quay

Post

7 
to

 9

28

Post

FB

Quee
n Vict

oria
 Row

Post

40

Post

29

73

3
11

War Memorial

66

PRIORY STATION

1

Post

21

153

APPROACH ROAD

119

Post

55 to
 69

Dover

Shingle

24

16
0

Post

Groyne

FB

Priory Court

El Sub

16

Priory Fields School

M
ea

n 
Hi

gh
 W

at
er

27

6

Post

1 to 25

Ps

145

71

19

Post

The Roman

33 to 34

5.9m

27

FB

20
5

61

M
ILL LANE

Post

D
ef

Ward Bdy

4

107

to

Stuart Court

81

(PH)

2

Shingle

19

Priory House

Priory Place

Hillside

Post

1

School House

33

Boldmare Gate

(Telecommunication)

Sports Pavilion

Post

1

70

Filling Station

13

P

NEW MARINA

143

62 to 64

G
aol Lane

Battle of Britain Homes

1b

St
 M

ar
tin

's 
Pa

th

Posts

1 to 8

El Sub Sta

War

St Mary's Passage

6

Memorial

111 to 115

117 to

Subway

War

TCBs

34 32

Po
nt

oo
n

FB

1 to 15

Dover Prep School

Post

Path (um)

1 to 6

Lodge

D
ef

Dov
er

FB

Path (um)

7

1 to 30

Subway

Priory

1 to 5

ESS

38

to

1 to 7

D
ef

Groyne

Path (um)

14

Duckworth

59

Town Hall

20

57

Cycle Hire Station

1 to 10

Shingle

70

Shingle

Shingle

L Twr

1 to 24

1 
& 

2

Haro
ld 

Pas
sa

ge

1 to 4

Health Centre

Sports Pavilion

Church Hall

Pre-school

1 to 6
PC

13
6

Nursery

The Old

Centre

Dolphin House

30

Post

1 to 3
Childrens Nursery

Poltons Family Centre

SB

El

Posts

Belgrave Pre-School

Centre

Rising Bollards

Menzies

1 to 14

Sta

Dover Museum

St Martins

The

PH

TCB

1 to 9

Dover

13
0

Information

1 to 12

Dieu
 Stone L

an
e

Brewery

1 to 6

Post

Billiard Room

Chapel Lane

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

Market Square

Hall

Cinema
FLYING HORSE LANE

Effingham Passage

Path (um)

ES
PL

AN
AD

E

37

1 t
o 3

3

13

CP

KING
 STREET

CR

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

CR

Church of the

12

CE
NT

RE
 R

O
AD

TCBs

74

D
itc

h

4

Detached

87

33

16

MHW and MLW

26

1

29

14

160

97

24

House

2

Post

88

80

Villie
rs

28

23

El

45
39

42.8m

3

10

193

3

2

1

House

17

Mews

58

Car Park

54

Stones

Post

SN
AR

GA
TE

 S
TR

EE
T

DW

Ps

21

DW

Posts

10

Cowgate Cemetery

Fir
e S

tat
ion

161

35

SM

9

6

CH

10

22

CW

Groyne

36
2

Shingle

1

7

287

71

1

72

180

4a

46

1 to 8

14

El Sub Sta

Sub

1 to 8

24.0m

Post

1 Information

34.2m

St M
art

in'
s S

tep
s

Priory

4

Subway

7 to 12

44

142

15

7 to 13

26

30.1m

19.8m

311

263

26

OAKVALE CLOSE

29

Shakespeare Court

2527
to3

1

14

23

Oak
lan

ds
 C

ot
ta

ge

Ps

(um)

52

133

19a

27

Stone

Westbury Heights

119

34

90

CR

45

27

5

KI
NG

S 
RO

AD

30

COW LANE

39

42

132

112

90

9

13

22

3

58.4m

32

2

18

357

26

43

39

A4

1

24
8

Gov
Gas

60

31

20

26

35

El Sub Sta

27

21

64

131

149

42

BIRCHWOOD RISE

FOLKESTONE ROAD

89

50
2

13
15.8m

63

2

61

Heathwood

5MALVERN ROAD

El

Stone

SM

47.5m

Remus

1 to 6

BartholomewsSt

2a

15

25

33
31

2

25

41

49

41

44

60

CR

32

LANCASTER ROAD

House

18

1 to 13

56

11

26

71

Bank

Sub Sta

21

15

25

PENCESTE
R R

OAD

37

20

WORTHINGTON STREET

17

58

Lancaster House

Edinburgh

Stone

12

6

EFFINGHAM CRESCENT

FB

6

Poli
ce

THE PADDOCK

Roy
al 

Vi
cto

ria
 P

lac
e

PH

COWGATE HILL
2

15

NORTH ROAD

TO
W

ER HILL

36.4m

34.2m

19

16

32

20

6

7

11

Garage

(PH)

14.1m

DW

Car Park

1

12

5

Sta

6

The

DW

20.3m

Priory Tunnel

23.5m

39

16

26

1

55
 to

 61

5

1

(PH)

56

Dunkirk

4

W
ELLESLEY ROAD

River

1

Posts

Shelter

5

6.3m
Slipway

TCB

19

House

Laureston

1

Cinema

18

9

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

D
rain

Path (um)

DW

W
INCHELSEA ROAD

Maison Dieu

Community Association

29

1

Dover Bowling Club

Centre

Dover

Centre

Dover

Sea Sports

GARDENS

FW

Ward Bdy

Ward Bdy

163

7

to

M
HW

19

4

82

12
0

59

15
8

6

38

9

27

79

6

36

8

P

Post

A20

(Heritage Centre)
Painted House

(site of)

Boston
House

FB

9

31

19

13
5

4

(Station)

MHW

M
ea

n 
Lo

w 
W

at
er

6

68

1 to 16

68

1 to 12

Next Steps

Sir Robert

St E
dmunds

Walk

1 to 6

Tourist

CANNON STREET

1 
to

 2
0

BT1 - Town and
Castle, Priory

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.15 0 0.15 0.3 0.45 0.60.07
Kilometers

Page 23

54



Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: BT2 - Town and Castle, Castle
Dover District Council
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
Dover
CT16 3PJ

BT2 - Town and
Castle, Castle

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.3 0 0.3 0.6 0.9 1.20.15
Kilometers

Page 24

55



Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: BT3 - Town and Castle, Aycliffe
Dover District Council
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
Dover
CT16 3PJ

BT3 - Town
and Castle,

Aycliffe

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.25 0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.13
Kilometers

Page 25

56



Path (um)

Allotment Gardens

MP 76

Shakespeare Tunnel

8

Shakespeare Cliff

Path
 (u

m)

to1

5

Car Park

11 to 18

Bank

Roman Bath House

10

1

7

2

Bandstand

DW

ST
EM

BR
O

O
K

13

4

Shelter

Shelter

Church

FS

CHURCH STREET

5.8m

St Mary's

Sports Court

17

8-
9

Masts (Telecommunication)

(site of)

DW

66

14
to

15

26

DW

Pencester Gardens

Skate Park

11

Chy

1 
to

 2

19

WESTERN

Stone

Shelters

52.7m

4

SOUTH MILITARY ROAD

Stembrook

ARCHCLIFFE

G
LO

STER W
AY

Path (um)

Customs Building

CLARENCE PLACE

43.1m

Subway
6

17

28

HEIGHTS

ROUNDABOUT

2

Clarence Yard

Bo
lla

rd
s

1

Archcliffe Fort

GLOSTER ROPEWALK

ROUNDABOUT

House

Pontoons

Emmaus

30

DW

116.0m

ELIZABETH STREET

42

Po
nt

oo
n

Cycle Lane

PH

Post

Stone

Pum
ping Station

2

Cr
os

s 
W

al
l

Post

SL

BULLW
ARK

Posts

STREET

16

Tanks

Tank

STREET

6.6m

CH
AN

NE
L 

VI
EW

 R
OAD

MP 76.5

Posts

AR
CH

CL
IF

FE
 R

OA
D

Golden Arrow

Tank

1

Pontoon

Shelter

15

LIMEKILN

5

5.1m

AYCLIFF

1

L Twr

TCB

3

Post

20

KINGS ROPEWALK

4

1

M
LW

68.5m

House

4

36

ESS

38.4m

14
1

Subway

Viaduct

46

THE VIADUCT

45

SL

Post

L Twr

El Sub Sta

L Twr

Post

24

Co
nv

ey
or

s

Sl
ip

 Q
ua

y

Tank

Navigation Light

Warehouse

Car Park

30

Bo
lla

rd
s

DW

SM

L Twr

6

Path (um
)

Post

Gates

Posts

SL

18
 to

 2
7

Post

Bollard

Post

6

Bo
lla

rd
s

Landing Stage

MP 76.25

Post

Bo
lla

rd
s

Post

Bollard

56

El Sub Sta

1

Lifeboat Station

50

Post

Post

61

W
at

er
lo

o 
M

an
si

on
s

Beach Street Compound

Capstan

Post

Post

28

Bollards

Post

Mount Court

Pontoons

C
ro

ss
 W

al
l

Office

Post

Crane

Pontoons

SM

PostPost

Post

Post

to

Pontoons

Post

Pontoons

Winch

Post

Post

Post

Post

to

Bols

55

Capstan

Post

Post

65

Marina

SM

Post

TCB

Bollards

4.8m

Marina

Post

Custom

Capstan
Bollard

60

Bollards

Post

L Twr

House

L

13
4

Po
st

Marina

B
ol

la
rd

s

Post

11
5

Mean High and Mean Low Water

Shelter

Bollard

Slipway

Navigation Light

Post

Post

FB

El Sub

Quay

Post

Post
Pontoons

Yacht Hoist

PH
127

19 to 20

(Swing-Bridge)

Wellington Dock

Pontoon

B
ollards

UNION STREET

12
8

Twr

Sta

Post

Capstan

B
ollards

Bollard

El Sub

Post

to

Post

Bollards

L Twr

Post

Post

Bollards

Ruin

Post

L Twr

Post

Bo
lla

rd
s

Post

Post

Ppg Sta

8

12
9

SN
AR

GAT
E 

ST
RE

ET

Bollard

Dornack

Post

DR
O

P 
RE

DO
UB

T

Tr
ac

k

10
6

Sta

Post

Post

L Twr

LB

100.8m

CITA
DEL

Pontoons

Post

Post

Post

35

84.8m

25

Post

Pontoons

Pontoons

18

L Twr

Knights Templars

SO
UT

H 
M

IL
IT

AR
Y 

RO
AD

Stone

111.2m

Cita
del 

Heig
hts

SM

House

13
DW

Cross Wall

9

L Twr

88.1m

8

Ditc
h

1

WESTERN

Draw
brid

ge

HEIGHTS

12
1

DW

Gov

22

Bastion

CLARENDON

Captain Webbs

HEIGHTS TERRACE

DW

Stone

Bo
lla

rd
s

CITADEL

82

Ditc
h

DW

Posts

121

1

1

118

(remains of)

CRESCENT

Stone

Greville

DW
BASTION ROAD

137

DW

Warehouse

1to6

W
ES

TE
RN

 C
LO

SE

Moat

123

ROAD

171

LB

DW

North Centre Bastion

27

114

34

167

149

Car Park

DW

2

30

191

90

166

6

RO
AD

32

DW

Sta

146

182

14to25

Pos
ts

18

7

95.4m

190

St Monicas

1

34 to 48

96

DW

17.6m

28

135

20.1m

134

28

22

1a

122

149

16.0m

KNIG
HTS TEMPLARS

73 to 95

House

98

Sub

151

DW

Ditch

18 to 32

17

155

7to12

Depot

100

DW

2

(site
 of)

Winchelsea Court

202

144

Sub

161

Caponier

142

47

Stones

109

46 to 62

37.9m

4

HAROLD STREET

Upwall G
ate

121

Path (um)

51

130

185

44

Vent

108

2a

House

175

30

Gardens

5.9m

32

180

10

Shelter

Drop Redoubt

174

El

Winchelsea Terrace

Bo
lla

rd
s

House

5

12

9

Stone

4

6

Court

Pharos

Priory

LB

Ditch

150

TC

38 to 44

SelborneSweetpea

Allotment

2b

48

(disused)

Sta

28

Chapel

Ditch

2

1a

168

ADRIAN STREET

25

177

FB

2

15
7

14

18

106

PH

22.4m

Maritime

144

251

Station

Tank

WINCHELSEA STREET

ALBANY PLACE

11

44

203

1

48

Roman DW

Gardens77

FB

Allotment Gardens

WESTBURY

3

(Site of)

TCB

22.4m

CR

14
8

50

15

CF

42

1

10 to
 20

2

13

20.5m

38.5m

18.8m

1

29.8m

8

ELMS VALE ROAD
19.9m

11

34

UNDERDO
W

N RO
AD

16
6-

16
7

239-241

10

170

BELG
RAVE RO

AD

1

1

TCB

60

24

3

275

14

162

28

The Lodge

26

17.6m

1

24

NO
RTH STREET

VA
LE VIEW

 R
O

A
D

30

54

29

86

Court

215

31

8

16

40.0m

42

Cottage

25 to 28

11

122 to 126

36

201

LB

LONGFIELD ROAD

Winchelsea Works

128

70

2

24

6

11

178

91

12

56

College Row

48

225

GG

13

Allotment

10
1

FOLKESTONE ROAD

98

45

Shelter

36

97

9.5m

22

MS

63

39.3m

Sub Sta

45

G
LEN G

RO
VE

PH

3a

57

158

Def

El

67

35

Sta

19

1

4a

17

25.3m

1

1a

13

21

108

Percival Terrace

9

22.8m

Gordon Lodge

2

11

5

8

4

13

1

58

a

1

Charl
ton

237

WESTBURY ROAD

16

7

108

2

PH

41

74

VICTORIA

31

15

109

20

8.5m

13

1

23.3m

8.0m

C
F

14

3

Gordon Bennett

33

C
yc

le
 W

ay

Depot

TCB

The High

O
ld Harbour Station

5 to 7

87

(flashing white)

21

El Sub Sta

Cliff

10
9

116

ROAD

Posts

36

25.2m

Harbour Tunnel

32
4

32

1

59

87
a

7

18

44

70.1m

CH

11 1

45

120

1a

PETER STREET

Shelter

9 t
o 1

0

6

38

11

Depot

Anglo-Saxon Burial Ground

W
OOD 

ST
RE

ET

13

Surgery

Car Park

42

29

L Twr

7

6.5m

89

Car Park

77

Lord Warden

Tank

32
2

Cen
tre

48

LI
M

EK
IL

N 
ST

RE
ET

DW

10
1

Street Surgery

21

South

St Martins

Sub Sta

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

35

8

CRESCENT

SL

Path (um)

Posts

Shelter

FW

12

DROP REDOUBT ROAD

1 t
o 1

4

Sunny

41

ST DAVIDS AVENUE

HIGH STREET

3

68

13

CI
TA

DE
L 

CR
ES

CE
NT

Cy
cl

e 
W

ay

36

30

DROP 
REDOUBT R

OAD

40

10
2

Roof

DW

1

2

Depot

39

ST GILES ROAD

Pete
r S

tre
et

2

41

ST GEORGES CRESCENT

50.5m

9

19

55

14

24

10

73

3

16

60.4m

Townsend Terrace
85

CRESCENT

El Sub Sta

Path

80

7to12

22

L Twr

DW

HARBOUR VIEW ROAD

WESTBURY

8

39.9m

El

31

DW

14

House

19

DW

DW

Track

10

17

15

61

South Ditch

5

Depot

4

28

30

25

4.7m

OLD FOLKESTONE ROAD

51

61

Cordelia Lodge

Stone

6

49

21a

70

1

122.7m

NOAH'S ARK ROAD

1

40.6m

El Sub Sta

ST GILES CLOSE

20

1

12

44

32

37

49

DW

47

83

15
35

38

1

45.9m

7

8

ST MARTIN'S CLOSE

20

Noah's Ark Terrace

21

43

LB

49

5

61

45

Gov

52

47

26

Gas

42

23

12

36

St Giles

WYNDHAM ROAD

38.8m

73

37

1to6

Corner

Ruins

36.2m

62

25

28

14

44

11

70

Centre

1

18

74
11

1

CG

5

93

50

NOAH'S ARK ROAD

40.5m

1

Court

14.5m

Shelter

83

33

30

Sta

9

28

El Sub Sta

57

37

73

8

2

Sub

DW

7

DEVONSHIRE ROAD

17.3m

SM

76

2

41.7m

ASTOR AVENUE

51

Path (um)

CLA
RENDON R

OAD

DW

DOUGLAS ROAD

27

31.8m

Stone

DW

19

35

2

LB

22

25

Harbour Tunnel

32

28

70

10

1

86

TCB

1

81

85

7

91

16

76a

39

34.7m
62

96

70a

110

Hyde Court

RO
AD

53

42

2

97

ST JO
HN'S

18.3m

39

52

Stone

Stone

1a

Stones

1

6

G
O

SCHEN RO
AD

14

109

78

1

Stone

CLARENDON STREET

28

66

Stone

38

34.1m

Stone

58.4m

54

77

47

CLARENDON PLACE

GG

LB

Updike

Medical

48

67

37

White

25

17

Beechcroft

Melville House

109

78

127

10

47

2b

23

71.1m

137

7

133

43

1 to 6

DW

9

14.1m

26

Shelter

Ward Bdy

12

13 to 24

86

42

44

1 to 12

28.8m

64

Cliffs

Garage

19

Path (um)

1

TOWER HAMLETS

35

13

14

RO
AD

53

Shamar

73

49

37

35.4m

50

37

26

Court

Stone

14

13

81

SOUTH ROAD

50

Shelter

PH

8

56

95

9

50

10

98

121

17

1

Tallis Court

21

13

TCB

79

Conrad House

61

38

68

61

1

42

1b

89

32.0m

38

129

50

2

PH

Stone

29

NO
RT

H 
MIL

ITA
RY

 R
OA

D

36

71

37

Ditch

74

49

1

39

Stone

20

31

56

1a

38

14

14

Path (um)

40

20

39

49

25

22.0m

11

2

EDRED ROAD

42a

4

High View

16

7

30.2m

87

2

13

1 to 10 79

141

44

24

Residences

AUDEN WAY

25

30

26.2m

36

Courtyard

The

13

15

1

57

1

30

16

Place

77

2

27

39

Cornwall

22

Warehouse

39.4m

LOWTHER ROAD

SO
UTH

33

Court

1 to 8

7

26

55

48

YORK STREET

48

77

1

12

1 to 6

19

28

1

a

Church

El

34

9 to 16

64

57

26

4

HILL

House

St Martin's le Grand

7

NEW STREET

BIGGIN STREET

65

78

38

80

13

York House

5

47

20

Club

73

Queens

The

67

72

4

34

3to
5

28

Chapel

7

PRINCES STREET

1

82

LB

(site of)

42

QUEEN'S GARDENS

27.4m

31.5m

42

14

13 to 18

14

16

9

44

28 to 30

14 to 21

35

MILITA
RY ROAD

16

52

3

9 t
o 1

4

PH

97

1

W
indsor

60

26

TCB

PH

70

1 t
o 8

20

Car Park

2

76

75

37

5

40

10

81

8.2m

27

24

Stones

2

24

Shelter

9

(site of)

31

51

14
House

Caves20

Maybrook

21

1

8 t
o 2

House

22

18

27

6

13

Sh
elt

er
s

22 to 29

23

Metropole

TCBs

TCBs

(remains of)

44

The

25 to 32

1

Effingham

TCBs

The

Biggin Gate

DURHAM

House

32

Bowling Green Terrace

Stone

1 to 12

Sub

18

17

30 to 37

13 to 24

7 to 12

55

House

11

Ward Bdy

2

NORMAN STREET

31

24.5m

St Martin's Gate

1

48

Play Area

Ston
e

77

17 to 24

HEWITT

Bingo

CR

Car Park

45

14

5

Sta

10

22

11.2m

8

Shelters

ESS

3

55

PR
IO

RY 
ST

REE
T

8

33

Christchurch Court

Mount Pleasant

White Ho

(rems of)

19

PRIORY ROAD

NORTH
 M

ILI
TA

RY R
OAD

1 t
o 7

46

5

EFFING
HAM

 STREET

El

Priory

16

SAXON STREET
38 to 41

76

FW

GODWYNE CLOSE

11

Lodge

16

Cobham

TCBs

6.3m

18

31.4m

93

7.6m

DURHAM CLOSE

3

6.8m

Stone

PARK M
EWS

24

El Sub Sta

6

16.9m

Car Park

31

FB

Charlton House

ED
W

AR
DS

 R
OA

D

Stone

Car Park

1

71

ROAD

Dour

10

3

DOUR STREET

FOLKESTONE ROAD

River

11

2

86

50

17

1

House

7t
o9

6

9

Ladywell House

21 to 31

FW

3

2

9

LB

9

16

DOVER
2

Electricity

St Martin's Priory

17

TCB

Stat
ion

70

River Dour

2

FW

1 to14

45

6.8
m

17
 to

 25

B22
45

(remains of)

62

6.4m

57

Bigg
in 

Hall

CHAPEL

FB

1

MAI
SO

N 
DI

EU
 P

LA
CE

1

3

33 to 43

DW

Sub Sta

2

El Sub Sta

Ch
ur

ch

El Sub Sta

DW

77

1

Ladywell

8

Albany

PRIORY GROVE

PH

Exchange

45 to 55

(site of)

1

Riverside

Priory

19
b

6

34 to 54

72

15

Annexe

ESS

Dep
ot

Telephone

ST BARTHO
LEM

EW
S CLO

SE

39

6

Tower

7.6m

12

Un
ita

ria
n

1

LA
DYW

ELL

17

1

4

11

PRIORY HILL

13

Exchange65

HIGH STREET 4

13

26

34

12
9

FF

14

House

7

28

84

PA
RK P

LA
CE

2

MAISON DIEU ROAD

Distribution

10

WAY

1

Post

1

War
d B

dy

4

Maison Dieu

76

15

1

TCBs

51

7

Cottage

FB

8

105

19a

Cow Gate

3

5.5m

CR

G
orely House

13.8m

DW

Centre

1

Hobday

4

Stone

FW

3

TOWER STREET

DW

ESS

10

DW

6.5m

DW

59

El Sub Sta

Ba
lla

st
 Q

ua
y

12

Telephone
80

QUEEN STREET

TOWER HILL

39.3m

11

7

LB

PLACE

26

Sloping m
asonry

9

FB

(remains of)

24

2

23

1

(private)

St Martin's

G
eoffs Place

7

FB

El Sub Sta

44

DW

49 to 71

14

11

House

Chapel

LB

56

3

36 to 44

103

30

DW

13

34

THE ABBOTS

Stable Court

5.7m

15

35

53

98

6

104

Post

2

House

Hotel

5

51

1

12
1

PRIO
RY G

ATE RO
AD

77

House

10

60

39

W
est Cottage

5

1

27

52

W
EST STREET

91

53

DW

36

10

22

DW

20

Priory

SM

TOWER HAMLETS STREET

22

DW

9

DW

SM

(restored)

9

Sub

10

9

Gate House

2

DICKSON

25

4

Atina

1

5

17

41

193

CA
M

BR
ID

GE
 R

OA
D

PH

23

19

18

63

13

8

2

TCBs

35

8

15

1

65

El

2

a

House

119

17
16

6

House

52

Beech

2

13

46

House

5

6

Bo
lla

rd
s

House

14

11

BENCH ST

Car Park

TCB

10

12

15

LB

3

1

El

17

19

Sub

Navara

El Sub Sta

36

Sta

8

Aspen

45

Car Park

100

TO
W

ER
 H

AM
LE

TS
 R

OA
D

LB

PH

House

House

1

TCB

12

68

14

25 to 47

5

39

Mast

21

15

Cedar

LB

1

31

14

15

GODWYNE ROAD

39

1t
o6

13.5m

TEMPLAR STREET

Dour

2

1

W
IDRED RO

AD

1t
o3

Tower Court

8

House

1

13

18.8m

2

40

PH

PH

14

18

7

13

7.0m

EDRED ROAD

16

MP

25

STREET

5

56

DE BURGH STREET

14.7m

1

1

Superstore

BRANCH

ODO ROAD

20

ETHELBERT RD

12

11

ROAD

2

10

EAST STREET

1

16

54

29

10

35

30

14

26

10

18

1 to 18

3

1

2

8

3

Def

15

23

18

45

15

1

26

10

8

1

69

Yard

54

20

1 to 11

60

29

Robson's

71

11

Godwyn
e

20 St Barts

Richmond

3

29

5

El Sub Sta

1

59

4

1

Acre

3

DW

1

15

4

Tank

Gregory

13

20

4

32

Stevens

4 to 9

Court

CHURCHILL STREET

9

Bollards

El S
ub Sta

17

6.6m

Fern

6

13

Mean High and Mean Low Water

3

2

6

21.9m

FF

CASTLEMOUNT ROAD

Tower

1

11

ROAD

8.7m

CF

Gate

Tank

85

PAUL'S PLACE

BR
ID

G
E 

ST
RE

ET

23

18a

108.9m

El Sub Sta

41

28

El Sub Sta

1

14

Stone

23

MATTHEW
'S PLACE

ETL

Mean High and Mean Low Water

58

15

7

2

LB

11

59

6

Eleanor Court

Lighting Tower

28.0m

4

25

5.8m

Allotment

Ward Bdy

Stone

1

LB

CF

SALISBURY ROAD

6.4m

Bertram

68.5m

66

Stone

2

Gardens

69

Tower

8.4m

11 to 12

Court

52

Ashen Tree

31

4

Shelter

ASHEN TREE LANE

Lonsdale

Harold Cottage

36

10

DOFR
AS 

PL
ACE

CASTLE HILL RO
AD

7.0m

ALB
ERT R

OAD

CRAFFORD STREET

24

15

W
eir

65

Castle Hill

24

21

30
7a

29

W
arden Court

Court

5.9m

40

7

25

5128

Eastbrook Place

MAISON DIEU ROAD

44

1

16

34.1m

1 to 6

19

LB

Court

6

17

12.7m

Templar

Charlton Tunnel

S Gantry

23.4m

DE BURGH HILL

16

79

Court
24.5m

CH

HIGH MEADOW

to

The G
atehouse

14 to 25

9.3m

32
0

1 to 12

11

FB

Def

DOLPHIN PASSAGE

30
8

31
4

5.8m

C
R

Hotel

Tower

4

9.8m

5.8m

9 
to

 2
3

5.9m

Prince of Wales Pier Lighthouse

20

Lighting

19

Lighting

Bollards

31

5.8m

King's

24

Bollards

Gate

1

26 to 39

5

18

Constable's

Shelter

SM

98.9m

Sl
op

in
g 

m
as

on
ry

1 
to

Hillstone Court

34 to 36

Treasurer's

4

LB

SM

4

Lodge

D
W

DW

MLW

Castle Inn

6

SM

W
EST NORMAN

Stone

SM

Bollards

Stone

Bollards

DW

Stone

55

Barbican

64

White

Stone
CASTLE STREET

14 to 19

Stone

5.8m

2

TCB

CASTLE HILL RO
AD

Ri
ve

r D
ou

r

54

10

SM

SM

MAISON DIEU ROAD

Bollard

CANONS GATE ROAD

Eastbrook

55.4m

56.0m

4

5.8m

Stone

LAURESTON PLACE

18

DW

Stone

79

7.8m

to

58

10

77

9

Works

2

1 t
o 3

Bollards

Walter

13

5

53

12

Granville Gardens

Navigation Lights

9

43

DIEU STONE LANE

to

PH

5.8m

8

7

11

7

House

6.3m

Cr
es

ce
nt

 H
ou

se

5

46

2

9

34.8m

1

112

Victoria Cottage

Gardens

SM

5.6m

11

17.1m

11

(site of)

9

110

Pro
tea

 H
ou

se

(remains of)

Place
Shelter

52 to 64

5

8

78 to 89

3

Cam
bridge Terrace

TCB

60

Pe
nc

es
te

r C
ou

rt

14

6

El Sub Sta

El Sub Sta

New Bridge

Sa
nd

 a
nd

VICTORIA PARK

6.4m

27
 to

 29

5.9m

168 to 185

81

SM

4

17

12 to 25

Sh
in

gl
e

LB

Post

Shelter

LEYBURNE ROAD

5

Royal

1 to 8

Memorials

2

FISHMONGER'S LANE

28

House

38

Shelter

1

Navigation Marks

Queen

BOL

PH

9

Memorial

25

MARINE PARADE

Tower

1

LB

Peverell's

MLW

Bollards

31

96.6m

Bollard

Navigation Lights

Tower

18

8

10.4m

Bollards

Bollards

6

26

Posts

102 to 11
4

(fixed green)

82

4

60.4m

LB

Bollards

116

7 to 12

Bollard

Lodge

St James'

Posts

Dour

1

Navigation Light

CA
M

DE
N

Victoria House

TCBs

HAROLD STREET

WAT
ERLO

O

House

Th
e C

hu
rc

hi
ll

14

6.6m

H
ER

IT
A

G
E 

G
A

R
D

EN
S

64a

Moat's Bulwark

W
ate

rlo
o M

an
sio

ns

The Gateway

Marine Parade

75

36

PH

9 t
o 1

1

SM

TOWNWALL STREET

204 to 221

Ship Passenger Terminal

104.2m

Ashford

6.9m

Ho
te

l

LB

5

Bollard

East Ditch

Bollards

65 to 77

1 t
o 1

6

MARINE PARADE

14

57

Canon's

CRESCENT

TOWNWALL STREET

Navigation Lights

Shelter

17 to 19

1 
to

 1
1

New Bridge

71

FB

186 to 203

Yacht Club

Casemates

14

Stone

CRESCENT

L Twr

WATERLOO

Ports

59

W
at

er
lo

o

Say's

Posts

Corner

(fixed red)

LB

100.0m

Ch
ar

te
r H

ou
se

Double Wall

150 to 167

17

Stone

104.1m

Post

DOURO PLACE

Gate

21

Averanches

Hurst's

(two fixed red)

Statue

108

Taymouth

Tower

26 to 38

D
IT

C
H

SM

MLW

30

Stone

Cinque

Dover

El Sub Sta

SM

Surgery

Hudson's

16

CRESCENT

9

SM

64

115 to 127

House

Car Park

8

61.1m

EAST CLIFF

Battery

Constable's Bastion

90 to 101

20

90.6m

TASWELL CLOSE

Tower

22

Tower

Gate

Stone

El Sub Sta

Posts

St Helen's Gate

Lan Glee

58

12

Hellfire

DW

1 
to

 5

2

Averanches

East Caponier

TA
SWELL

 S
TR

EET

to

East Casemates

New Bridge

LB

Castle

THE PHAROS

1

Penchester

Stone

7 
to

 9

(ROMAN LIGHTHOUSE)

KNIG
HT'S RO

AD

39 to 51

67.8m

111.2m

2

War Memorial

28

Spur Casemates

104.3m
KNIG

HT'S RO
AD

Rokesley's

Norfolk Towers

5

83.2m

7.0m

DW

Crevecoeur's

Stone

5.9m

Godsfoe's

DW

Passage

Posts

Spur Caponier

1 to 6

61

M
ILL LANE

EA
ST

DW

86

RO
M

AN

82.7m

20

Ps

Palace Gate

Lower Flank

Mary's

108.3m

Ps

FS
78.4m

Gatton's

25

Hotel

Hudson's Bastion

8

17

53.2m

101.2m

Flank

Avranches

3

33.9m

Bulwark

of Dover's

DW

Memorial

FB

DW

Castle Mount

Old Burial Ground

99.7m

ST
 JA

MES
 S

TR
EE

T

Print

1

Old

107

Stone

MORTIMER

Castle View

DW

Woodlands

Arthur's Hall

4

Dover

Prince

DW

to

21 to 35

Pencestres

DW

10

1 to 20

Retail Park

SAMPHIRE COURT

245 to 249

Stone

101.2m

Colton's Gate

Path (um)

Memorial

21.2m

Fitzwilliam Gate

(covered)

Path (um)

Path (um)

SM

Statue

67.1m

Path (um)

56

15
0

Crundall

Lorry Park

Fulbert

Allotment Gardens

Travelling Crane

North East Ditch

CONSTABLE'S ROAD

15

RUSSELL STREET

(te
lec

ommunica
tio

n)

29

13
1 1

33

St Mary's Church

St John's Tower

22

Mas
t

11

Castle

MONASTERY AVENUE

Tower

Sunny Bank

15

Pa
th

 (u
m)

4

Beacon

5

1

Path
 (u

m)

Pumping Station

Upper Flank

2

DW

Reservoir

Theatre

Shot-Yard

Car Park

Gallery

Clarendon And Westbury

Path (um)

71.0m

65

Path (um
)

Hotel

TCB

149a

North

5 to 7

Path
 (u

m)

House

St James

Hall

36

Cottage

3

St John

W
OOLCOMBER STREET

Tower

Dover

Path (um)

Dover Baptist

17

8

Path (um
)

Cullin's

Path (um)

of Wales House

Church

DW

6

Unitarian

68.1m

Tunnel

Masonic Hall

1

DW

3

Path (um)

82.2m

Vale View

Community Centre

DW

Subway

Resource

Path (um)

Mews

Tower

Discovery

St Marys

Path (um)

Su
bw

ay

Redan

9 to 11

Regan

L Twrs

DW

Church

Dover

Subway

76.2m

(dis)

Cycle Way

DW

(Bus Station)

5

St Mary's C of E

72

DW

TCB

Parish Centre

Castleton Retail Park

New Pharos

Christian Fellowship

2

Technical College

Su
bw

ay

1

Castle

Filling Station

Vale View

12

The Citadel

DW

Alma

The Well

Ambulance

Posts

Wharf

4

8

Library

Path

Job Centre

22 to 24

Centre

Nursery

Ward Bdy

L Twr

Camden Cresent Car Park

Health Centre

House

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

Hostel

Hillside

21

House

25

Primary School

48

Dover

W
ard B

dy

Citizens Advice Bureau

18

Vicarage

168 to
 172

20

13

Dover Pencester Road

14

21

TCB

Co
m

m
er

cia
l Q

ua
y

50

2

44

1b

165

Primary School

23

Happy Feet

9 to 10

73

48

War

Yard

Hall

24

Curzon Hall

42

Maison Dieu Gardens

Path (um)

Charles Rolls

19

18

Discovery Centre

No
rth

am
pt

on
 Q

ua
y

1

Statue of

Outreach

1

Christian Centre

The Oddfellows Club

34 32

Roundhouse

40

39

72 to 75

Ward Bdy

De Bradelei

62

12

St Paul's

Ward Bdy

Path (um)

Path (um)

Path (um)

(1 to 39)

Post

3

Path (um)

Path (um)

W
ard Bdy

24

Post

DW

Pre-school

20

9

46

17

(disused)

Subway

27

Dover

43

Post

Path (um
)

24

ST MARTINS

Ash
en

 Tr
ee

85

Dover

MHW & MLW

10

L Twr

(1 to 10)

House

CF

11

Catholic

24

38

MHW

FF

15

Town Hall

Allotment Gardens

27

77

Ward Bdy

21

Dover College

L Twr

9

2

22

MHW

CURZON ROAD

MHW & MLW

16

Church Hall

8

15

91

Nursery

22

52

1

30

23

Poltons Family Centre

Admiralty Lookout and

36

Post

13
38

22

Belgrave Pre-School

Matthew Webb

6

72

Ps

16
0

33

Post

10

Tunnel (dis)

Gateway

18

46

22

The

9

2

DW

11

16

Ward Bdy

Post
20

M
LW

6

Dover

5

71

4

14

40

25

Brewery

32

20

52

4

10

1

63

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

to

89

44

25

2

8

The Ark

7

20

13

12

49

1

Cinema

19

50

2

4

L Twr

6

ES
PL

AN
AD

E

6

23

78

56

11
9

3

13

5

Woolcomber Street Car Park

7

66

5

75

2

Port War Signal Station

2

9

26

12

11

Broadlees Car Park

34

5 to 6

6

17

Post

19

37

19

8

Mean High Water & Mean Low Water

10

7
5

76

CP

80

14

Post

Post

CR

15

18

Post

Post

28

CR

Post

L Twr

35

Navigation Light

MHW

4

42

44

70

P

14

46

12

15

3

72

Post

42

29

74

Post

64

4

1

13

20

L Twr

18

3

78

76

4

11

8

Mean High Water

14

19

22

Post

5

48

Post

56

31

32

Posts

9

Sta

Post

18

14

(flashing red)

10

A20

4

70

26
29

87

Post

Bollards

21

Tank

3

10

Post

16

NEW MARINA

28

11

74

13

Post

MHW and MLW

18

40

60

M
HW

 &
 M

LW

Post

29

Posts

65

Post

(site of)

73

Posts

6

29b

45

M
HW

 &
 M

LW

Navigation Light

Posts

117 to

12

10

14

5

1

21

Post

Mean High W
ater & Mean Low W

ater

MoP

24

24

FB

Post

9

L Twr

25

Tank

El Sub

Mean High Water &
 Mean Low Water

29a

Mean High Water & Mean Low Water

Posts

26

64

Post

Dov
er

11

Posts

12

Post

Post

Post

ESS

Post

119

Post

D
ef

8

Post

Post

Post

FB

Post

59

2

Post

68

9

Post

78

20

Post

Post

Dolphin

Post

27

A20

Mooring Post

Path (um)

Posts

56

80

19

Post

A20

Mean High and Mean Low Water

Post

Post
Mean High Water & Mean Low Water

28

Bollards

52

East Norm
an Road

27

55 to
 69

25

Bollards

Mean High Water

Post

Post

61

Su
bw

ay

23

Grand Shaft

Mean Low Water

Post

Ward Bdy

Post

3

Post

60

3

Bell Battery

Marina

Mean High Water

Mea
n 

Hi
gh

 W
at

er
 &

 M
ea

n 
Lo

w W
at

er

Path (um)

10

St Martin's Battery

Priory Place

Stone

3

Bollards

Mean High Water & Mean Low Water

Priory Fields School

Admiralty Pier Extension

FB

(fixed green)

Boulders and Shingle

Boldmare Gate

1

Shingle

PHAROS DRIVE

Snar Gate

L Twr

P

17

Shingle

Boulders and Shingle

58

CURVE ROAD

Shingle

M
HW

Ps

1 to 8

Posts

54

The Roman

L Twr

Groyne

1

MHW

111 to 115

8

L Twr

Brambley Hedge

Shingle

Tower

L Twr

Health Centre

L Twr

L Twr

6

SM

2

PC

MHW
 & MLW

Post

Gate

Mean High Water & Mean Low Water

Co
 C

on
st

 B
dy

Po
nt

oo
n

WB

8

64 to 120

Post

Mea
n 

Lo
w W

at
er

Post

30

L Twr

Union Quay

FB

Posts

Weighbridges

3

Mea
n High W

ate
r

Bulwark Rock

D
ef

Dover Western Docks

Post

7

FB

1

SB

Navigation Beacons

81

38

Posts

Quee
n Vict

oria
 Row

Filling Station

Mean High and Mean Low Water

FB

19

Path (um)

143

DW

FB

32
3

El Sub Sta

Air Shaft

33

Tide Gauge

SM

29

Battle of Britain Homes

D
ef

Ps

Path (um)

Air

Boulders

66

5

El Sub Sta

3

21

Boulders

Rising Bollards

153

El Sub Sta

Shaft

Conveyor

Mooring Posts

The Hardw
ay

MHW & MLW

1 to 14

Boulders
 an

d Shingle

FB

L Twr

TCBs

M
ea

n 
Lo

w
 W

at
er

Shingle

Posts

PRIORY STATION

Path (um
)

Fiveways

Priory

Dover Prep School

Admiralty Pier

10

APPROACH ROAD

Sand

TCB

SM

1 to 6

Shingle

Shingle

5

Dover

1 to 12

Shingle

(1 to
 7)

1 to 4

Priory Court

1 to 30

Mean Low Water

122

Groyne

1 to 24

Dolphin House

124

Groyne

1 to 6

Shingle

57

Duckworth

Admiralty Pier

1

M
LW

Tunnel

SM

Groyne

1 to 10

Mean Low Water

Billiard Room

Boulders

FB

SM

Haro
ld 

Pas
sa

ge

Factory

M
ea

n 
Hi

gh
 W

at
er

1 to 25

Fir
e S

tat
ion

Mean Low Water

33 to 34

El Sub Sta

The Old

35

1 to 3

FLYING HORSE LANE

9

Victoria Park Mews

70

6

5

Shingle

El

1 
& 

2

10

1 to 22

4

Sta

18

1 to 6

145

Stuart Court

PH

Factory

22

62 to 64

Priory House

Shaft

Information

Air

Memorial

Wellard's Way

1 to 6

Boulders and Shingle

School House

War

Centre

Chapel Lane

1

Childrens Nursery

Market Square

1 to 8

Shingle

1

G
aol Lane

Menzies

Effingham Passage

PC

Light

St
 M

ar
tin

's 
Pa

th

St Martins

1 t
o 3

3

3

M
HW

1 to 15

St Mary's Passage

1 to 9

Lodge

Groyne

KING
 STREET

Shingle

Dieu
 Stone L

an
e

1 
to

 4

House

7

Hall

TCBs

1 to 5

Dover Promenade

Shingle

Subway

Boundary G
royne

Landing Stage

SL

Park

71

66

to

FB

Channel House

Mean High Water

14

Channel

72

Cycle Hire Station

4a

1 to 8

1 to 9

Centre

Filling Station

El Sub Sta

Dover Museum

House

Sub

St Emmaus

20to

1 to 8

HAWKESBURY

Post

LORD WARDEN SQUARE

Information

TCB

St M
art

in'
s S

tep
s

KING
 LEAR'S W

AY

1 to 12

St Giles W
alk

Priory

1 to
 12

1 to 21

Subway

Stone

DW

West Roman Ditch

L Twr

Posts

LB

CHANNEL VIEW ROAD

28
 to

 3
7

B
ol

la
rd

s

Bollard

Wellington Bridge

Post

Post

Navigation Light

Bollard

Bollards

Post

Post

Pontoons

Post

Post

Post

Post

13
6

Post

Post

Posts

13
0

Post

Post

Path (um)

13

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

Church of the

CE
NT

RE
 R

O
AD

D
itc

h

9

Detached

33

Citadel Heights

Gas

26

160

97

House

88

Villie
rs

El

42.8m

193

2

House

Mews

Car Park

Stones

SN
AR

GA
TE

 S
TR

EE
T

DW

Cowgate Cemetery

161

SM

CH

1

287

1

180

14

1

34.2m

4

142

15

26

30.1m

19.8m

263

26

29

74 to 94

2527
to3

1

Sub
El

118

11
4

14

23

Oak
lan

ds
 C

ot
ta

ge

22

6

7

PierWorks

Dunkirk Crossing

Ta
nk

STRO
ND STREET

Training Centre

Ps

(um)

27

Stone

Westbury Heights

119

59

8

62

36.0m

35

60

31

40

26

35

El Sub Sta

27

21

64

131

149

42

BIRCHWOOD RISE

FOLKESTONE ROAD

89

50
2

13

15.8m

63

2

61

Heathwood

5MALVERN ROAD

El

Stone

SM

47.5m

Remus

1 to 6

BartholomewsSt

2a

15

25

33
31

63

13

2

8

25

75

41

91

49

32

LANCASTER ROAD

House

18

1 to 13

56

11

26

71

Bank

Sub Sta

21

15

25

PENCESTE
R R

OAD

37

20

WORTHINGTON STREET

17

58

Lancaster House

Edinburgh

Stone

12

6

EFFINGHAM CRESCENT

El

78

21

A256

FB

67

6

Poli
ce

PA
RK S

TR
EET

THE PADDOCK

GOODFELLOW

19

8 t
o 1

6

Roy
al 

Vi
cto

ria
 P

lac
e

Site

PH

COWGATE HILL
2

15

NORTH ROAD

TO
W

ER HILL

36.4m

34.2m

19

16

32

20

6

7

11

Garage

(PH)

14.1m

DW

Car Park

1

12

5

Sta

6

The

(Telecom
m

unication)

CW

1to3

DW

Rectory

20.3m

Priory Tunnel

23.5m

12

26

12

34

11

3

39

1

Court

11

9

13

2

13

LB

11

69a
1to18

64

15

1 to 11

Court

PARK AVENUE

30
6

30
7

Redstones

30
4

Path (um
)

Shelter

LONDON ROAD

MH and MLW

SM

SM

R
O

A
D

16.4m

(PH)
Horse

41.9m

12.9m

Sub Sta
El

16

26

1

55
 to

 61

5

1

(PH)

Shoulder of Mutton's Battery

St James's Church

56

(three fixed green)

Dunkirk

1

DW

Prince of Wales Pier

Castlemount Court

74

73

Un
d

(two fixed green)

Inner Harbour

Posts

4

W
ELLESLEY ROAD

River

1

Jetty

Posts

Shelter

5

6.3m
Slipway

TCB

19

16

House

Laureston

Castle Lea

1

87
HAROLD'S ROAD

LB

91.5m

QUEEN ELIZABETH ROAD

DW

Tudor

Stone

Four Gun Battery

Tower

ROAD

GODWIN ROAD

57

Stone

Tower

CASTLE HILL ROAD

Dover Castle

5

Stone

Stone

El Sub Sta

Bleriot

Cinema

18

9

Cy
cl

e 
W

ay

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

Path (um)

D
rain

Path (um)

DW

W
INCHELSEA ROAD

12
8 

to
 1

49

Subway

Maison Dieu

Community Association

29

1

Salem

Dover Bowling Club

Centre

Dover

Dover

Centre

Dover

Path (um)

Groyne

Sea Sports

Statue of

Keep

Path

GARDENS

FW

Ward Bdy

Ward Bdy

163

7

to

7

M
HW

19

42

4

21

28

11

82

12
0

47

54

41

15
8

20

37

6

38

50

9

27

79

44

11

21

16

12

6

36

23

8

Marina

7

Po
st

s

Post

Posts

L Twr

Post

P

Post

Post
A20

Horse Shoe
Bastion

(Heritage Centre)
Painted House

Mooring Posts

Moo
rin

g 
Po

st
s

(site of)

L Twr

Boston
House

And

Constable's

Bomford Place

FB

9

31

13
5

4

Tank

Saltmarsh

Boulders and Shingle

SM

(Station)

Navigation

MHW

M
ea

n 
Lo

w 
W

at
er

6

Shingle

Shingle

Mean Low Water

Factory

68

68

1 to 12

Sir Robert

1 
to

 1
6

St E
dmunds

Walk

1 to 6

Tourist

CANNON STREET

Godwyne Path

Hubert Passage

1 
to

 2
0

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: BT4 - Town and Castle, Redoubt Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.25 0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.13
Kilometers

BT4 - Town and Castle, 
Redoubt

Page 26
57



Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling Districts: BTH1 - Tower Hamlets, West
& BTH2 - Tower Hamlets, East Dover District Council

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
Dover
CT16 3PJ

Und

1

30

73

224

72

C Tk

1

229

34.2m

Posts

48.5m

71

16

COOMBE VALLEY ROAD

Posts

2

17

29

31.6m

237

29.9m

231

82

93

67.1m

114

20.1m

10

106

18

Sta

1a

21

22

St Monicas

28

28

9

W
HINLESS ROAD

Station

Depot

100

Winchelsea Terrace

25

Winchelsea Court

48

24

23

22.4m

House

24

M
O

N
IN

S R
O

A
D

14

30

2

WINCHELSEA STREET

88

3a

El

56

30

Sub

CH

LB

13

TC

1

16

CW

53

8

21

CR

37

36

Gordon Lodge

2

33.2m

Gordon Bennett

53
41

1
3

CF

1

D
ef

46

El Sub Sta

10
1

13

1

15

32
4

54

25.2m

9.5m

44

8

38.5m

42

34.2m

29.8m

CH

45

128

57

EATO
N

 R
O

A
D

The Lodge

6

PETER STREET

19

44

26

VA
LE VIEW

 R
O

A
D

67

Surgery

Anglo-Saxon Burial Ground

25.3m

122 to 126

29

7

A
STO

R
 AVEN

U
E

4a

Percival Terrace

42

Winchelsea Works

74 to 94

26

Def

Cen
tre

89

108

6

25

Sta

PH

21

32
2

1

Street Surgery

11

35

8

13

9

8.5m

CRESCENT

4

22

Charl
ton

a

23.3m

1 t
o 1

4

27
to3

1

7

12

G
LEN G

RO
VE

2

33

HIGH STREET

VICTORIA

13

Sub

The High

20

Roof

73

13
El

8.0m
118

Pete
r S

tre
et

35

14

21

11
4

11

TCB

19

17

148a

14

ELMS VALE

13

16

11

23

50

1

Stone

1

164

Oak
lan

ds
 C

ot
ta

ge

21

164a

11

C
H

EV
A

LI
ER

 R
O

A
D

3

22

1

1

16

12

Depot

105

6

Shelter

117

1

60

7

36.4m

87

11

150

CR

2

2

14

116

13

Stone

45

79

14

1

36

25

QUEENS AVENUE

166

31.0m

50

1a

3283

3

32

10

93

30

190

73

18

KI
NG

S 
RO

AD
49

7

22

8

29

1

178

ELMS VALE ROAD

41.7m

HARBOUR VIEW ROAD

AV
EN

UE

14

9 t
o 1

0

25

13202

31

66

33

Ward Bdy

23

61

134

43.2m

ASTOR AVENUE

132

12

43

2

HAMILTON ROAD

16

148

31.8m

22

2

1

61

42

TCB

31

13

22

32

24

NO
RT

HB
O

UR
NE

131

61

143

86

CHAMBERLAIN
 R

OAD

28

23

16a

18

70

52

58.4m

91

20

26

G
O

SCHEN RO
AD

52.6m

49

109

40.5m

1

Path (um)

Gov

38

66

28

28

8

12

54

21a

Gas

57

Noah's Ark Terrace

83

44

NOAH'S ARK ROAD

47

60

43

1

2

1

1

2

14

61

Shelter

10

2

32

31

56
26

8

59.2m

2

36

13

49

20

10

Shelter

DOUGLAS ROAD

37

45.9m

52

40

Tallis Court

Cliffs

Centre

19

93

26

42

70

14.5m

35

Conrad House

20

9

16

14

WYNDHAM ROAD

96

21

El Sub Sta

42

13

6

32.0m

5

1

27

31

76

95

47

38

51

21

Sta

49

38.8m

64

36.2m

121

17.3m

27

77

131

4

44

79

DW

28

Medical

1

11

35

149

87

White

129

53

1

79

39

127

Stone

Shelter

FOLKESTONE ROAD

RO
AD

25

2

133

ST JO
HN'S

El Sub Sta

78

13

14

89

14.1m

Stone

Sub

30

25

Stone

42

22.0m

13

SM

39

23

63

1b141

GG

LOWTHER ROAD

CLA
RENDON R

OAD

1

2

17

30

55

DW

Court

1

2

5

34

15

1

7

16

PH
MALVERN ROAD

76a

9

21

18.3m

42

House

13 to 24

El

1a

50

Place

28.8m

SM

Tennis Court

Updike

29

35

223

24

2271

47.5m

1

26

53

37

1a

SO
UTH

1 to 10

82.7m

50

Remus

20

Melville House

80

AUDEN WAY

81

1 to 6

EDRED ROAD

48

2b

50

36

13

9 t
o 1

4

Bartholomews

28

43

57

39.4m

1

St

64

26

7

27

2a

26

13

33

15

1 t
o 8

TCB

20

77

48

25

10

68

1

33

Garage

89

a

48

Shamar

4

31

14

36

49

57

1

37

31

1

Astor College For the Arts

31.5m

SOUTH ROAD

38

22

39

63

14

9

14

52

13

73

HAMILT
ON R

OAD

Car Park

13

25

2

26

28

ANSE
LM

 R
OAD

NORTH
 M

ILI
TA

RY R
OAD

61

a

8 2

42

Def

EFFING
HAM

 STREET

38

7

14

24

Sub Sta

Stone

25

49

40

SAXON STREET

44

56

ETL

27.4m

11

Mast

18

75

3

Stone

78.5m

40

41

Charlton House

Chy

39

91

11

71

97

Car Park

El Sub Sta

1 to 6

49

8.2m

DOUR STREET

43

97

2

9

41

ESS

50

17

12

44

70

Christchurch Court

Def

72

21 to 31

Dover Grammar School for Boys

60

37

Priory

1 to14

7

CR

CR

Lodge

81

7 to 12

62

2

31.4m

PRIORY ROAD

13 to 18

8

Def

Ward Bdy

36

24

1

PH

DURHAM
CLOSE

31

El

34 to 54

Cornwall
House

TCBs

93.5m

ROAD

1

Telephone

1 to 8

Bowling Green Terrace

FOLKESTONE ROAD

7.6m

CR

2

71

4

1

Chapel

House

13 to 24

17

9

HIGH STREET

18

(remains of)

NORMAN STREET

Effingham

Edinburgh

9

1

77

2

MAI
SO

N 
DI

EU
 P

LA
CE

1 to 12

5

Stone

DW

St Martin's Priory

2

PARK M
EWS

12

1

Mount Pleasant

6

70

80

White Ho

EFFINGHAM CRESCENT

15

2

16.9m

45

LB

67

6

1 t
o 7

Stone

17
 to

 25

57

17

6

16

(remains of)

10

Bigg
in 

Hall

33 to 43

Exchange

6.3m

Poli
ce

11

St Martin's

3

26

El Sub Sta

7

45 to 55

PH

17

PA
RK S

TR
EET

FB

14

Annexe

19
b

3

GOODFELLOW

Stone

Ladywell House

Dour

1

THE ABBOTS

59

11

16

19

2

CR

98

TOWER HILL

4

17

8 t
o 1

6

LB

Roy
al 

Vi
cto

ria
 P

lac
e

14

FW

Sloping m
asonry

12
1

Ladywell

PH

WAY

TOWER STREET

6

(private)

5

El Sub Sta

15

Maison Dieu

11

LA
DYW

ELL

10

Stat
ion

39.3m

NORTH ROAD

13

DW

30

26

6.8
m

6.5m

TO
W

ER HILL

13

15

PA
RK P

LA
CE

FB

23

36.4m

1

Gate House

44

El Sub Sta

34.2m

6.4m

2

56

Cedar

19

DW

1

13

1t
o6

35

1

15

16

53

DW

House

Tower Court

60

32

19a

DW

Hotel

PRIO
RY G

ATE RO
AD

PRIORY GROVE

91

39

1

2

40

20

DW

Priory

DW

22

G
eoffs Place

MP

Beech

6

DW

ST BARTHO
LEM

EW
S CLO

SE

22

DW

7

14

(restored)

14.7m

12

9

Chapel

House

11

12

1

25

34

41

6

65

ETHELBERT RD

Garage

12
9

EAST STREET

5

84

(PH)

51

1

1

10

14.1m

14

63

1

TCBs

10

26

13.5m

15

DW

8

Navara

W
IDRED RO

AD

18

27

119

(Telecom
m

unication)

DW

TO
W

ER
 H

AM
LE

TS
 R

OA
D

13

2

TCB

18.8m

House

53

CW

15

39

6

18

26

36 to 44

Priory

31

Car Park

54

25

Stable Court

1to3

2

1t
o3

Post

5

71

SM

2

DW

77

20

1

Aspen

13

20

10

Rectory

14

House

W
est Cottage

DE BURGH STREET

1

54

20.3m

14

W
EST STREET

ODO ROAD

Gregory

14

16

Priory Tunnel

Stevens

ROAD

1

1

LB

20

23.5m

White Cliffs
 Court

29

18

TEMPLAR STREET

12

9

204

8

House

12

1

10

10

20

44

PH

26

11

EDRED ROAD

3

1

35

12

El Sub Sta

2

1

23

3

23

34

DW

11

31

1

1

2

11

FB

3

16

65

BEAUFOY TERRACE

Yard

26

29

2

39

30

151

52

Robson's

1

40.6m

3

8

House

19

19
2

78

Court

1

15

House

33

182

71

3

10

212

13

1 to 6

60

83

71

94

4 to 9

LB

White Cliffs
 Lodge

187

St Barts

11

LAMBTON

1

COOMBE VALLEY ROAD

5

10

160

42

1

12

17 to 20

Acre

11

4

71

Whitehall

1

162

CLOSE

Dalmatia Court

61

Tank

7

2

42.0m

MACDONALD ROAD

24.6m

Whitehall

84

9

41.4m

75

Cottage

CLOSE

6

70

2

64

17

Coombe

211

26.6m

1

21

COOMBE

1

51

16

MARJAN

Split House

68

TCB

Tank

Works

54

1 to 2

55.9m

17

2

13

12a

6

199

BEAUFOY ROAD

2

37

6

5

20

130

13

172

31

27.1m

58

House

1 to 4

1

PAUL'S PLACE

LB

16

8

14

House

El Sub Sta

51

51

7.9m

58

PH

1

10

16.5m

29

7.0m

16

11

51.1m

House

34

20

56

1

MATTHEW
'S PLACE

8.7m

Gas Holder

55

7

BRANCH

BR
ID

G
E 

ST
RE

ET

1

14

6

ETL

20

MASONS ROAD

Car Wash

7 to 12

61

PARK AVENUE

11

25

14

48

Bartholomew

43

1

9.1m

23
8

GRANVILLE

18

LB

20

PH

1 to 6
Works

4

El Sub Sta

106

22

Posts

Superstore

23

38

54

2

19

7

15

GREEN

13

8

18

Weir

Depot

59

60

1

STREET

Ward Bdy

65

ANSTEE ROAD

4

Sorting Office

28
8

45SHOOTER'S

RANDOLPH

1

PROSPECT PLACE

BEACONSFIELD R
OAD

12.1m

1

BARTHOLOMEW STREET

67

1

Sloping masonry

1

28
4

16

4

42

Eleanor Court

TCB

7

Bea
co

nsfi
eld

41

70

House

Depot

24

2

82

30

6

17

29

1

15

SALISBURY ROAD

Court

CF

2

LONDON ROAD

66

69a

El Sub Sta

23

31

54

1to18

2

8

36

32

36

Gardens

64

27
2

28

15

W
eir

ROAD

ALB
ERT R

OAD

15

MP 76.75

29

27
7

51

1 to 11

W
arden Court

43

GEORGE STREET

15

1 to 18

28

59

HILL

S Gantry

29

19

22.3m

2

CH

30
6

296

1 
to

 4

47

30
7a

Charlton Tunnel

1 to 12

30
7

Shelter

45

62

25

24.5m

30
8

Allotment

Redstones

32
0

DOFR
AS 

PL
ACE

9.8m

1

30
4

31
4

69

20

34.1m

Path (um
)

CRAFFORD STREET

Bertram

Woodlands

Shelter

24

1 to 11

24

Templar

Fulmar

LONDON ROAD

27

18

40

29

Court

11 to 12

18

1 
to

Path (um)

22

14 to 25

12.7m

4

BS

House

Path (um
)

ROSEWOOD HEIGHTS

1

Path (um
)

28

7.0m

25

13

1

20

Path (um)

65

30

9

D
rain

Def

CHURCHILL STREET

MAISON DIEU ROAD

Path (u
m)

C
R

Hall

Cottage

W
INCHELSEA ROAD

Head

9 
to

 2
3

1

Und

Stone

1 to 6

Community Centre

31

Castle View

8

26 to 39

21

Stone

Ruin

House

(dis)

4

TCB

8.5m

CF

20

Castleton Retail Park

73

(PH)

17

Church

Maison Dieu

Crundall

Alma

72 to 75

Hillside

Path (um)

72

DE BURGH HILL

(Telecommunication)

10th Dover Scouts

Path (um)

Ward Bdy

HIGH MEADOW

Salem

1b

Pre-school

11

Ambulance

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

Allotment Gardens

Dover Bowling Club

St John

War

Boar's

42

Job Centre

Centre

Dover College

Masts

34 32

Dover Baptist

43

Headquaters

Path (um)

CURZON ROAD

Sunny Bank

Town Hall

Path (um)

35

Vale View

Path (um)

Christian Centre

GARDENS

40

TCB

Nursery

146

Resource

Ward Bdy

36

Poltons Family Centre

15

Path (um)

Dover

Ward Bdy

7

9 to 11

Gateway

1

Path (um)

Christian Fellowship

5

22 to 24

Track

71

ST MARTINS

59

89

Recreation Ground

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

2

20

20

Dover

Ward Bdy

Vale View

The Ark

17

Primary School

6

78

22

Kings Hall

12

37

38

Hall

9

72

142

5

33

10

Allotment Gardens

Ward Bdy

9

14

53

CR

4

CR

Ward Bdy

14

W
ard Bdy

79

85

74

45

13

Hostel

11

77

78

5 to 6

13

10

W
ard B

dy

12

47

4

9

73

18

12

6

4

25

24

24

Harmonia

91
87

18

56

65

11

57

2

23

14

1 to 6

4

63

27

13

9

DW

29b

2

8

20

53

7

21

45

6

76

2

22

39

15

44

39

11

117 to

21

3

29a

41

10

10

41

Christian Centre

25
27 6

1

17

8

Dov
er

23

7

57

13

55

18

ESS

16

10

43

12

D
ef

60

10

58

8

30

55

36

3

62

31

14

19

30

Boston

37

3

144d

35

25

SB

House

59

26

53

9

15

Fiveways

4

34

37

to

10

28

1 to 12

(Station)

1 to 9

1 to 8

Priory Fields School

26

122

Fir
e S

tat
ion

111 to 115

35

22

68

144b

Beacon Church

9

16

16

36 to 38

1

6

13 to 16

38

24

Sir Robert

7

10

Path (um)

Village

Elkington

5

D
ef

1 
to

 1
6

29

31

Buckland Hospital

81

55

Factory

1

119

Kaleidascope

St E
dmunds

19

and

1 to 12

Factory

144a

Walk

19

D
ef

87

Priory

1 to 6

144c

Ward Bdy

5

Shelter

Effingham Passage

Bluebell Terrace

Chitty's

1 to 21

3

1 to 6

Priory

1 t
o 3

3

35
 to

 4
1

Path (um)

70

1

1 
& 

2

96

Brambley Hedge

4

House

Quee
n Vict

oria
 Row

Sports Pavilion

6

32
3

16.0m

Childrens Nursery

143

House

151

14

Menzies

PRIORY STATION

Dover Prep School

St Martins

APPROACH ROAD

1 to 6

Hall

124

Priory Court

Duckworth

1 to 25

Stuart Court

4

1 to 4

1 to 8

Priory House

House

School House

Priory

12

Park

27

1

31

PH

41

C
F

5 to 7

10
9

87
a

120

W
OOD 

ST
RE

ET

Car Park

48

37

Tennis Court

26

17

27

38

K
IT

C
H

EN
ER

 R
O

A
D

65

69

45

23

73

62

11

74

NOAH'S ARK ROAD

33

42.8m

37

DEVONSHIRE ROAD

LB

10

7

1

Stone

LB

47

137

1 to 6

Ward Bdy

1 to 12

TOWER HAMLETS

RO
AD

35.4m

14

56

17

61

2

37

38

39

42

30.2m

44

26.2m

1

77

35

2NOAH'S ARK ROAD

82

MILITA
RY ROAD

1

75

Stones

(remains of)

The

Stone

House

24.5m

Ston
e

HEWITT

55

19

5

3
Car Park

3

River

7t
o9

3

9

B22
45

72

39

Tower

PRIORY HILL

34

28

10

4

76

1

51

105

13.8m

4

DW

DW

5

House

52

36

TOWER HAMLETS STREET

DICKSON

17

19

35

6

46

11

15

17

36

45

1

Mast

ESS

34

222

90
175

118

5 to 12

ST RADIGUND'S ROAD

PRIMROSE ROAD

ROAD

194

61

20

163

43

Court

18

Shelter

47

55

Jonathan

Elizabeth

7

STREET

Superstore

2

35 to 40

LEIGHTON ROAD

House

Depot

8.3m

CHARLTON

5

Def

64

19

46

12

15

Depot

117

Shelter
54

1

PH27
0

15

4

9

6.6m

13

10

16

FF

CF

18a

28

1

Memorial

26

19

3

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

New Pharos

Filling Station

The Well

House

14

Happy Feet

Curzon Hall

Play Area

Path (um)

Charlton Green

Path (um)

CF

FF

Ward Bdy

22

6

47

23

51

7

75

8

4

3

21

11

37

12
8

20

7 
to

 1
0

18

24

19

23

21

25

29

FB

49

DW

153

Barn

Dover

El Sub Sta

145

Childcare

1 to 15

Lodge

to

BTH1 - Tower
Hamlets West BTH2 - Tower

Hamlets East

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.1 0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.40.05
Kilometers

Page 27

58



Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: PAK - Alkham
Dover District Council
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
Dover
CT16 3PJ

PAK - Alkham

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.25 0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.13
Kilometers

Page 28

59



PAY -
Aylesham

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: PAY - Aylesham Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.25 0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.13
KilometersPage 29

60



Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: PCF - Capel-Le-Ferne
Dover District Council
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
Dover
CT16 3PJ

PCF -
Capel-Le-Ferne

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.35 0 0.35 0.7 1.05 1.40.17
Kilometers

Page 30

61



PDD - Denton

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: PDD - Denton Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.25 0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.13
KilometersPage 31

62



PDW - Wootton

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: PDW - Wootton Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.5 0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25
KilometersPage 32

63



PEA - Eastry

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: PEA - Eastry Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.5 0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25
KilometersPage 33

64



Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling Districts: PEX1 - Eythorne , PEX2 - Barfestone & PEX3 - Elvington
Dover District Council
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
Dover
CT16 3PJ

PEX1 -
Eythorne

PEX3 -
Elvington

PEX2 -
Barfrestone

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.25 0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.13
Kilometers

Page 34

65



35.0m

CR

Rose Garden

Un
d

Path (um)

GP

22.5m

Def

Stone

31.2m

Und

Stone

Cottages

Viewside

Pit

Broad

Well

CR

Apple Cottage

NORTHBOURNE ROAD

Cottage

Bonner's Field

Pond

Stone

16.9m

Beaconhill

29.8m

(disused)

ELLENS ROAD

Barn

Bonners Paddock

Cottage

CH

8.3m

Stone

COLL
IERS WAY

Bonner's

32.0m

El Sub Sta

15.9m

Path (um)

ED
 &

 W
ar

d 
Bd

y

Def
Tr

ac
k

The Park

St
M

ild
re

ds

FW

Path (um)

Raspberry Cottage

21

ED &
 W

ard
 B

dy

BB

49

12.7m

Und

Di
ke

Track

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

11.6m

Cottage

Little Coogee

April

The Firs

35.7m

Abbey Gardens

La
ns

do
wn

e

Ripple View

FW

Def

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

CH

10

CR

Easterleigh

13.4m

3

16

Path
 (u

m)

Dairy

17

ED & W
ard

 Bdy

4

6

16.1m

1

5

395a

Cottages

39
7

Horseshoe

44
1

CR

12

1a

29
9

1

11
2

300

Mews

5

AVENUE

412

31
7

398

13.9m

19

18
0

2

354

47

22.8m

105

LB

7

20

37

14

52

ST G
R

EG
O

RY'S C
LO

SE

15

17

ESS

21.2m

1

16
0

ST FRANCIS

170

1

390

ROAD

ST RICHARD'S ROAD

8

M
ARTIN'S

ST AUGUSTINE'S ROAD

57

22

2

366

31
3

298

19

60

9

120

16

40
7

49

11

31

1

151

65

7

ST

109

30

ELIZABETH

CLOSE

24

392

40

344

147

10

27

19.4m

15

148

Def

Garage

385

5.5m

142

(PH)

MONGEHAM ROAD

395

145

36

85

46

10
7

ROAD

127

25

68

1

6.0m

125

113

FW

36

44

69

111

ST RICHARD'S ROAD

CP

404

ED & W
ard

 Bdy

41
3

57

141

ELLENS ROAD

Dr
ai

n

LB

11.0m

El Sub Sta

40
9

Def

84

41

115

CW

1 to 81

115

Mongeham View

95

LB

94

ED & W
ard Bdy

15

63

75

143

The Dairy

7

7

117

CF

ED & Ward Bdy

Lych Gate

81

SHOLDEN BANK

11

Old Rectory House

Path (um)

72

Bottle

BB

Garlinge Farm House

Mast

Sea View Cottages

31

Path (um
)

Track

House

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

St Mary's

Leather

107

Church

Track

17

Larkwood

Path (um)

32

Glen Farm

1

Pond

Church

Orchard

81

SD

14.6m

3

Def

ST NICHOLAS CLOSE

10

CHERRY LANE

378

Greystones

Cottages

Def

BB

Burgess

97

Barton

CHERRY LANE

13

Def

26.2m

Farm

St Martins

SU
NN

YS
ID

E 
CL

OS
E

Cottages

1

De
f

72

TB

Cottage

32.9m

Farm

Path (um
)

56

Elder

96

Ina Lodge

Fairfield

TCB

The Grange

177

CH

15
4

Carlton Lodge

Alic
e

157

BB

Church Farm

ELLEN'S HILL

Path (um
)

6.4m

11.0m

Def

5.9m

Colnbrook

1

Cherysantyn

Mongeham

22
2

Tree

Path (um)

Lynwood

(Telecommunication)

Fair

Farm

1

CR

7.5m

105

New Gates

House

Pond

Parish Hall

Path (um)

Nevin

2

Northfield

2

177a

Conveyor

Abbot's

167

Lit
tle

Willow

14.6m

10.4m

M
O

NG
EH

AM
 R

O
AD

The Cottage

Field

Cottage

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

4

15.5m

CHURCH C
LO

SE

Pixhill

Cot
tag

e

Path (um
)

Judges Gate

21
0

Th
re

ew
ay

s

Man
or

 C
ot

tag
e

Tr
ou

va
ille

M
O

N
G

EH
A

M
 R

O
A

D

Old Rectory

30.2m

16
8

PI
XW

EL
L

Holl
iba

nk

Cottage

Path (um
)

Wells End

18
2

Lodge

Cottage

150

12.3m

House

Stone Hall

Den
bu

ry

2
3

4

24.8m

Lodge

Laburnum

Malthouse

MANTLES HILL

Hou
se

CH
UR

CH
 L

AN
E

Fair Meadow

18.5m

Hillside

The Old

So
ut

he
rn

 V
iew

30.9m
Ch

er
ry

 C
ot

ta
ge

4

Church Farm

St Martin's Church

House

Cr
ay

fo
rd

Cottage

LB

20
6

Cottage

LB

LA
NE

Pipp
in

WILLOW

Church

Ruins

1

Brecon

Silv
er 

Hill

Sparrow

4

The Haven

Wals
tea

d

1

Br
an

do
ux

Sunnydene

Mundels

28.8m

ASHTON CLOSE

4

1

Holmleigh

Path (um)

GP

CR

HillBay
 Vi

ew

9.2m

Cottages

Sunnybank

Def

Clar
ks

31.5m

Ruins

1

The Drove

Hollaway
34.8m

Hedgebank

House

Rem
em

bran
ce

Ye
w

 C
ot

ta
ge

36

2

Ivy

179

Pa
rk

na
sil

la

7

Cot
tag

e

44.0m

181

35

Mea
do

w V
iew

2

35.8m

Meadow

Great Mongeham

Biwandi

7 
to

 2
3

Hilli
ers

6

8.4m

Cotta
ges

W
ard Bdy

1

M
ilford

Hillside

Milfo
rd

 B
ar

n

CD

La
ng

do
n H

ou
se

C
R

Pegasus

Mongeham

Lych Gate

Nor
mar

y

1

Walnut

Tra
ck

Orchard

Linden Lea

Great Mongeham

17.6m

Brewery

Beacon Hill House

2

7

Black Hill

Great Mongeham

Pond

45

10

19
9

4

Path (um)

Lodge

33

COLMANTON GROVE

1

39.9m

MONGEH
AM

18 33

SHOLDEN DRIVE

LB

30.4m

34

Def
22

Und

Tantallon

La
ns

da
le

WAY

5

0.46m RH

ED & W
ard Bdy

Pixwell Point

Glendower

Lodge

23

11

9

Ly
nw

oo
d

5

Granary

6

25

Hill 
Cres

t

Sholden Downs

House

N
O

R
M

A
N

 P
LA

C
E

1

House

Play Area

Farm

13

5

Mea
do

w

Paddock

2

17

Beech Tree Avenue

32.6m

Chapter

ANGLERS DRIVE

ROAD

CRIOL WAY

4

Mer
lei

gh

Fairli
ght

Def

ELLIOT

Se
afo

rth

19

8

House

14

30
El Sub Sta

Rowanlea

1

BB

2

7to13

55

Sholden

22

21

1

15

12

20

7

Namirembe

21

29

5

Und

5

1

53

34

11.9m

NICHOLAS WAY

Drain

3

28

20

3

15

Track

Aspen

2

The Manor

House

GP

Hammond

1

Granroy

12

Coachmans

18

16

35

2

Greetings

The Poplars

11

38

30 to 46

1

8

PADDOCK

10

Morben

BS

18a

17.6m

Nursery

2

New

The Post
House

Ingleside

0.61m RH

TCB

2

Hazeldene

22

HALL

Fairlight

16.4m

Def

1

Sholden Downs

Wealden

Cattle Grid

30

De W
alden

Northbourne Court

Bungalow

24

Cottages

The W
hite

4

18.8m

LB

Sunnyside

Hull Place

Sholden C of E

Path (um)

CLOSE

Sholden

Mongeham

Def

6

8

BB

Primary School

7

0.9
1m

 RH

21

Beech Tree Avenue

3

13

153 155

11

Ryvoan

2

22a
22

Genesta

11

Graden

20

Trystar

2

14

Pond

40

Ward Bdy

10

NORTHBOURNE ROAD

Tra
ck

CS

Drain

Ward Bdy

Und

Und

Def

FB

Dike

4

SB

FB

Ward Bdy

Pond
Bro

ad

Drain

Beacon Hill

Drain

St Martins

Issues

Fairview

Acre

Beacon Hill

Path

Cottage

Barnside

Solar Panels

Well

Cattle Grid

She
lte

r

Bankside

Vale

Lugano

Great

Homeside Farm

Church Hill

Orchard

Four

Track

Track

El

Ward Bdy

Cattle Grid

Kimben

Cherry

Green

M
inim

us

W
ard Bdy

Cottages

Burghwallis

31

Westering

ED & Ward Bdy

Sewage Pumping Station

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

Stables

19

Wals
tea

d

House

ED & Ward Bdy

12

Crayford Cottages

Thorndale

20

Mtepatepa

Yorkletts

Def

The Terrace

2

Pond

18

Fair Mead

Tr
ac

k

Marsie Lodge

11

Fie
ldf

ar
e

Medusa

Def

(PH)

Champlains

2

CH

Eastwood

1

CD

Athena

21
4

FB

Hillbrow

Baptist Church

Pump

29

Sub Sta

Path (um)

Greenleaze

1 
to

 8

Horse Shoes

Path

Path (um
)

Mongeham Road

Pilg
rim

s W
ay

Path

19
.6m

12

MAYNARD MEADOWS

Country Ways

Path (um)

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

Sluice

Tra
ck

Church Path

Drai
n

6

22
0a

Northbourne

Ashlea

Ward Bdy

Flodden Road (Path)

1

13

Beverley

Cambrian

CH

Midwater

Ppg Sta

3

Path (u
m)

The R
etr

ea
t

107

Whitebeam

83

Pond

Pilg
rim

s

1

109

122

410

42

28

28

2

51

9

CARTER

54

18

294

MONGEHAM ROAD

ST EDMUND'S

431

14

419

149

62

3

67

17.6m

103

91

CW

Caesar Court

The Minns

Ripple House

Ripple

1

Glen

Lodge

Valeside Lodge

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

De
f

School

Farm

Cottage

6.9m

152

Tk

28.1m

Mongeham

House

Red Gables

Lodge

The

Farm

Rectory

Cop
se

 V
iew

Cottage

Che
ve

re
lle

Hilldene

22
8

TB

TB

Owen
so

un
d

Court

Tra
ck

Little

Freshfields

0.
91

m
 R

H

1

21

10

5

ED & Ward Bdy

0.46m RH

31
26

1

23

3 32

Shelt
er

14

SHOLDEN NEW ROAD

Chandos

1

Gaagrec

The Grove

Chapter

Cottages

8

Cricket Ground

El Sub Sta

Pond

Pond

Issues

0.9
1m

 R
H

CD

Brimsdale Lodge

Aquajoy

Path (um)

Track

The Woodpeckers

17

21
2

30

Ann
ex

e

1

The Waters

155a

87

71

Three

Rest

PGM - Great
Mongeham

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: PGM - Great Mongeham Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.25 0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.13
KilometersPage 35

66



PGS - Guston

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: PGS - Guston Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.25 0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.13
KilometersPage 36

67



PHM -
Hougham
Without

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: PHM - Hougham Without Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.5 0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25
KilometersPage 37

68



Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: PLG - Langdon
Dover District Council
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
Dover
CT16 3PJ

PLG - Langdon

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.5 0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25
Kilometers

Page 38

69



Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: PLN - Lydden
Dover District Council
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
Dover
CT16 3PJ

PLN - Lydden

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.25 0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.13
Kilometers

Page 39

70



PNN -
Nonington

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: PNN - Nonington Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.5 0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25
KilometersPage 40

71



PNR -
Northbourne

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: PNR - Northbourne Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.5 0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25
KilometersPage 41

72



PRG -
Ringwould

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: PRG - Ringwould Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.25 0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.13
KilometersPage 42

73



PRK -
Kingsdown

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: PRK - Kingsdown Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.25 0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.13
KilometersPage 43

74



PRP - Ripple

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: PRP - Ripple Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.35 0 0.35 0.7 1.05 1.40.17
KilometersPage 44

75



Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: PRV - River 
Dover District Council
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
Dover
CT16 3PJ

Stonyhill

Und

Pond

Tr
ac

k

Ghost Hill

Chilton Farm

Und

Dra
in

MINNIS LANE

Wood

133.2m

Gorsehill Wood

Bushy

0.91m RH

Pond

Tr
ac

k

Track

Drain

Chilton

ALKHAM ROAD

Wayside

Track

Ward Bdy

Wood

133.2m

37.2m

0.91m FF

133.8m

Track

132.9m

Path (um)

Def

CH

Charters Copse

Nursery

Path (um)

134.4m

Heights

2

Sunshine

CH

Bradsole

FB

Ruff

Wayside

0.91m RH

Bungalow

25

1

Drain

135.6m

237

41.6m

St Radigund's Abbey

134.1m

28

Valetta

Tank

The Old

3

Ward Bdy

WHITFIELD HILL

42

ED & Ward Bdy

Cattle Grid

Box

CR

249

45

ROAD

6a

56.8m

46.6m

55

51

132.9m

7

74.8m

to

ABBEY

212b

BEAUFOY TERRACE

65

LONDON ROAD

Farm Cottages

4

View Wood

Sta

Pond

1 to 12

to

St Radigund's Abbey

Farm Cottages

4

PILGRIMS WAY

CR

Letter

6b

15

WHITFIELD HILL

56.5m

Pond

36

5

LOW
ER ROAD

6

61

16

Wood

7

20.4m

1

Pond

1

8

Old Park

El

1

El

KING
STO

N CLO
SE

ESS

4

Oldpark Hill

14

1

Bowling Green

Sub

1 to 8

8

13

26

SP

Mill House

LEWISHAM ROAD

12

33

3

El Sub Sta

49

44

Und

39

4

51

6

68

37

4

Sub Sta

Oldpark Hill

Junction

MP 75.75

2

24a

to

FB

14

DALE

SIDE

MILL RACE

26a

80

CLOSE

24

26

7

Path

45

18

Deal

Weir

39

46

7

Crabble

53

SP

1

35

2

13

26

21

84

29

74

RIVER

10

5

17

47

10

PC

FB

Ward Bdy

11

26

22

VALLEY ROAD

24

5

48.0m

THE RIDGEWAY

CF

45a

51

3

1

24

FF

28

1

51.9m

13

CR

Stone

35

FW

1

1

6

1

CRABBLE

7

El

3

ED & Ward Bdy

16

6

10

53

20

10

1

24

12

9

3a

FF

5

35

51.6m

22.7m

CR

7

29

1

LEWISHAM

River Dour

32

9

55

RIVER D
RIVE

2

LB

22

River Court

25

11

39.7m

25

14a

10

DOUR

9

1

2

25

FB

1a

Riverside

7

42

10

27

20

Ward Bdy

61

BERESFORD ROAD

LB

11

Lachine

33

ROAD

LYNDHURST ROAD

31.4m

49

FF

LB

Gas Gov

Area

VALLEY ROAD

Margaret Villa

2

30

Shelter

Und

Royal Oak

34

13

Sta

26

48

Sub

6

38

68

32

28

St
an

d

CRABBLE
 LA

NE

Primary

22

83

31.8m

1

83

High Grace House

30

(PH)

13

5

145

9

Shelter

15

22

36

MEADWAY

23

117

5

to

140

38

157

141

CRABBLE LANE

2

4

66a

107

M
IN

NI
S 

LA
NE

85

2

1

RIVER STREET

CO
MMON

 L
AN

E

1

31

102

62

62

7

19

76

River

BRIA
R C

LOSE

32

Castle View

MP 75.5

60

Shelter

26

74

11

CRABBLE CLOSE

17

129

TCB

6

6

23.4m

The Laurels

River Dour

5

20

12

31

95

Cottage

ALKHAM VALLEY ROAD

68

9

LOWER ROAD

69

21

72

94

22

99

162

to

86

1

Ba
rn

10

172

13

5

22.9m

15

66

47

Aloha

27

7

60

92

CHISNALL ROAD

Bramcote

27.8m

River Dour

1bAmbleside

105b

34

8

30.6m

86

M
IN

NI
S 

LA
NE

23

42

Pendorric

School

6

Uplands

62

LEWISHAM ROAD

56

29

13

106

W
ard Bdy

37

49

12
9

River

5

9

Und

Quelque Chose

3

124

19

40

109

Weir

19

192

1a

14

46

Track

3

BYL
LA

N R
OAD

1

Linden

165

18a

113

59.3m

118

34.1m

66

13

LB

1

63

14

1

9a

11

22

9a

to

Pond

1

Sta

21

15

136

El Sub

Rivington

FF

Bramber

CW

2a

27.6m

Shelters

CW

Limekiln

Gut
hr

ie 
Gar

de
ns

Logan berry Farm

Richmond

Fountain

Th
e 

O
ld

77.5m

Und

Temple House

24

TB

FB

Frandham Wood

120

23

Def

Hillmere

38

W
ingate

Cheviot

1

Wood

1a

Bydand

Stone

The M
agpies

ABBEY RO
AD

24a

150

4

The Gables

LOWER ROAD

55

Cottage

Limekiln Wood

ED & Ward Bdy

Frandham

Pantiles

18b

54

Waterfall

120.7m

49

Cairn Ryan

2

128.7m

17Track

6

105b

Und

KEARSNEY COURT

to

Plantation

8

6

LABURNUM CLOSE

Glenelg

12

MINNIS LANE

Coxhill Mount

East Wood

49.7m

Un
d

Def

ALKHAM ROAD

SCOTLAND COMMON

Wayside

Und

132.4m

House

24

7

ABBEY ROAD

Shelter

Lake

42

BS

Ward
 Bdy

60

ED & Ward Bdy

30.7m

BP

(PH)

W
ard Bdy

85

Mast (Telecommunication)

Un
d

Karnak

118

Track

CR

Cottage

CR

87
a

Mast

De
f

Stone

ALKHAM ROAD

T Slope

House

1

Oristana

Bourne

Ward Bdy

FF

Cottages

11

2

108.4m

WOODSIDE CLOSE

LB

Kanawha

6

Surgery

112

1

62.3m

38

Stone

10
5a

38.3m

13

10
3

5

Summerhill Lodge

MEADOW

CHILTON AVENUE

96

Kearsney

56.2m

Beechwood

19

CF

SL

The

96b

154

Court

CF

96a

WHITFIELD HILL

133.8m

5

136

35

Mast

95

Stone

MP 75.25

1

KEARSNEY

Und

8

7

11

50

15

7

1 to 9

89

45.3m

Compton Lodge

SP

1

Cottage

23

10 to 18

COURTLAND DRIVE

3

Silverley

40

Hamilton

FS

ALK
HAM R

OAD

89
a

21

15

Court Hill

Lebanon

1

87

4

10
1

92

2

29.2m

El Sub

Bowling Green

Chicester Ct

Anton

El

WHITFIELD HILL

Abbey

LO
W

ER
 R

OA
D

35.0m

31.8m

1

2

Courtland

48

144

Def

ESS

94

10
5

29.5m

1

Und

62

1

Leahurst Court

D
our

20

FB

FB

6

5

102

Lake

ORCHARD DRIVE

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

8

Def

9

The Common

PAVILION

Delphi

1a

CR

67.8m

House

COWPER ROAD

4

17

7

47

Roundways

88

29

LONDON ROAD

7

Grange

65

6a

10

LONDON ROAD

KEARSNEY AVENUE

1

14

17

Kentfield

34

8a

Abbey

Def

C
LO

SE

2

16

51

59

48

Glen

60

7

58

12

66.5m

152

LO
W

ER RO
AD

LUCKHURST ROAD

27

54

El Sub Sta

14

4

1

Fn

13

El Sub Sta

5

THE RIDGEWAY

LYNDHURST

THE

12

31

22

Mews

Post

3

77

Cedar

Sta

Kingdom

1

15

Leigh

39

of

W
OODLA

ND C
LO

SE

Wood

39a

13

56

2

23

30

12

1

29.4m

Sub

76.1m

3a

70

9

2

ASH C
LO

SE

34

1

2

27

31

Campbells

26

4

23

41

13

11

COW
PER ROAD

22

1

56

60

DE
AN

W
OOD 

RO
AD

Bob's Dean Wood

23

1a

47

CRABBLE LANE

2

12

51

42

73

SPINNEY

42

33

14

HI
LL

1

HAZELDOWN CLOSE

27

7

57

25

32

1

39

40

59

River Bottom Wood

69

W
ES

TD
EA

N

27

11
a

21

9

39

21

3

7
18

38

El

41
a

39.2m

15

St Edmonds

Stone

Hunger Down

9

41

2

Makalla

33

River Dour

2

13

63

24

55

132

50

67

Post

25

16

34

38

24

21

14

56

37

1

COW
PER RD

93

53

43

32

Track

61.6m

8

28

10

5

El

MINNIS LANE

1

107

52

2

Nirvana

91

DEANWOOD ROAD

COWPER ROAD

6

31

13

19

11

ESS

Stone

52

BADGERS RISE

65

24

Pp
g 

St
a

34a

18

CRESCENT

46

Sub Sta

69

Weir

CO
XHILL

Karma

20

9

2

14

6

28

74

109

17

12

Ward Bdy

Aliva

Castle View

SANCTUARY

46

23

Ward Bdy

CR

COXHILL GARDENS

Indebe

CLOSE

Foxdale

GA
RD

EN
S

A

Industrial Estate

Minnis Mount

3

68.2m

72

10

18

HOLMESTONE ROAD

Applecroft

12

ESS

Derwent

69

1

45.7m

ED & W
ard Bdy

17

Path (um)

38

Hammond House

Coombe Down

61.3m

108

1 t
o 3

114.4m

18

64

Business

CR

43.9m

16

1

42

50

105

House

15

ABBEY ROAD

37

7

El Sub Sta

70

1

7

86

303

63.6m

18

58.3m

Holmstone Wood

17

86

46.5m

8

(Nursing Home)

SCOTLAND COMMON

ST RADIGUND'S ROAD

33

301

16

ABBEY ROAD

78.9m

Bayze

Hollow Wood

Kearsney

96.2m

Westlea

Nyali

BARWICK ROAD

44.0m

Cardrona

299

Cottage

Und

6

SCOTLAND COMMON House

5

11

10
9

Kenyon

Ferrybridge

54

ROAD

ESS

261

House

98.1m

2

34

48

Malvern Cottages

1

15

14

Park

222

32

Poulton Close

FB

4

90

60

Forge

49.4m

57.0m

175

Estate

14

24

1

128.4m

White Cliff
s Prim

ary College fo
r th

e Arts

LB

118

1

Playing Field

White Cliffs
 Court

160

26

5 to 12

4

12

40.6mCLOSE

204

19
2

Grooms

Surgery

223

4

182

2

ST RADIGUND'S ROAD

44

149

212

PRIMROSE ROAD

125

94

111

71

ROAD

45.3m

34.1m

Redvers

COOMBE VALLEY ROAD

194

11

EGERTON

17 to 20

78

13 to 16

61

2

70

10

121

1

20

139

86

11

11

31

71

Woodside View

Dalmatia Court

BEAUFOY TERRACE

83

16

Sub Sta

163

162

187

151

42.0m

Works

43

42

19

61

Whitehall

Court

2

71

33

24.6m

75

LB

17

18

3

233

Shelter

1

199

9

COOMBE

12

Tank

10

172

TCB

MACDONALD ROAD

14

CR

19

1

2

Cottage

41.4m

51.1m

15
4

Def

64

Living

26.6m

106.6m

2

CF

2

129

3

69.0m

2

21

2

15

1

211

FRIARS WAY

MARJAN

51

River Dour

MP 76

25

TCB

68

55.9m

CRABBLE

Sluice

14

Well

65.0m

BEAUFOY ROAD

13

18

3

El Sub Sta

130

1

36.5m

17

St Georges

13

150

21

OLD

23

6

CRABBLE AVENUE

9

10
4

Cottage

5

Tank

1

21

47

26

Public Waste Disposal Site

27.1m

Und

MANSION GARDENS

CF

81

10
5

6

1 to 4

1

Un
d

15

1

16

5

PARK AVENUE

63

24

(PH)

152

43.0m

Court

Home

17

Sta

SL

44.8m

7

CF

32.0m

3

Ward Bdy

51

PARSONS W
AY

Post

52

41.5m

Def

13

21

Chestnut

20.9m

45

ROAD

73

29

Nursing

59

1

18

SP

50

1 t
o 6

Playground

De
f

Villas

25

Church

97

LB

39

27

The Buckland Yew

Play Area

CW

35

19

SP

13

1

6

32

20

9

38

9

24

Kingswood

1

64

9

18.5m

14

Br
oo

kl
an

ds

St Andrew Terrace

1

OLD

Stone

41

River Dour

16

46

7

27.6m

HILLSIDE ROAD

Stand

54.8m

91

13

29

1

6

PARDONERS

105

72.1m

14

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

75

10

CRABBLE HILL

PILGRIMS WAY

24

BB

122

1

15

Dodds

106

25

6

9

MP 
98

.75

54.0m

38

Garage

16a

12

15

1

LONDON ROAD

26

16

34

CR

77

71.0m

6a

13

2

93

12

81

8

5

14

7

8

61

117

23
.8m

13

Stone

21

94

27

7 t
o 12

7

Ward Bdy

25

SQUIRES

10

1

15

Minn
is 

Te
rra

ce

9

24.1m

59

27

MP 99

13

CR
ES

CE
NT

CARLSDEN CLOSE

93

21

CR

2

35

TCB

WAY

KNIGHTS WAY

136

29

10

2

PH

2

PI
O

NE
ER

 R
O

AD

Sub

12

DO
DD

'S
 L

AN
E

El

ED & Ward Bdy

1

6

38

1

1

72.3m

27

6

7

15

14

15

Stone

4

73.0m

11

OLD PARK HILL

Weir

8

61.6m

WEAVERS WAY

10

20

1

2

71

15

53

7

43.0m

129

Buckland Junction

10

139

24

Boundary

1

28

Shelter

Knights

Coleman House

7

1

BUNKERS HILL AVENUE

ED & Ward Bdy

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

73

PILGRIMS WAY

El Sub Sta

47

O
LD

 P
A

R
K

 H
IL

L

5

7 t
o 1

1

OLD PARK HILL

C
H

A
U

C
ER

13

MANGERS PLACE

42.2m

37

7

21

10

SHIPMANS WAY

LB

54.5m

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

8

2

13

19

Sh
elt

er

6

B
R

U
N

SW
IC

K
 G

A
R

D
EN

S

24

34

5

41

3

1to42

MANGERS

7

2

22

14

9

4

SP

Gate

9

Co
ur

t

35

CRABBLE MEADOWS

1

109

5

1

39

29

14

4

HI
LL

 R
O

AD

16

10

1

64

25

46

M
AN

GE
RS

 L
AN

E

House

River

28.4m

LUKES CLOSE

Depot

36

21

Dour

18.5m

2

Court

ED
 &

 W
ar

d 
Bd

y

Tank

48

1

OLD

9

26

25.0m

Church

2

10

MASONS ROAD

1

39

27

Lych

1

CG

Contex House

Farm

FW

PRIMROSE PLACE

4

41

106

COOMBE ROAD

St
 R

ad
ig

un
ds

82

54

Path (um)

RADIGUND'S

50.5m

9

Sta

Play Area

El

ST

U
nd

86.2m

Sub

SB

CRABBLE LANE

Path

12

42

1

37

Path (um)

River

65

13

Church

1

Garage

15

BU
NK

ER
S

Studios

St Paul's

7

Old Park Lodge

St Peter

1

34

Depot

and

Gorse Hill

L Twr

El

Cath
oli

c C
hu

rch

Tr
ac

k

Our
 La

dy
 O

f D
ov

er

House

ED Bdy

ELYSIUM
 PARK CLO

SE

Tank

CRABBLE HILL

PARK CLOSE

CH

Def

Ward Bdy

ED
 &

 W
ar

d 
Bd

y

LB

Preschool

Path (um)

20

Recreation Ground

Chilton

ED Bdy

South Lodge

56

121.4m

ED & W
ard Bdy

Path
 (u

m)

Path
 (u

m)

ED
 &

 W
ar

d 
Bd

y

House

25

Village Hall

Subway

38

Path (um)

14

Pre-school

Club

FF

14
12

1a

Gorse Hill

54

CRABBLE ROAD

113

Hall

15

Hall

28

5

51

Gateway Bowls Club

43

Church

3

101

59

Path (um)

Track

24

SCOTLAND COMMON

33

3

22.3m

Chilton Farm

FB

Day Nursery

28 to 37

59

Abbey

Und

Path (um)

ED & W
ard Bdy

47

49

The Minnis

17

Path (um
)

18

Ward Bdy

Windsong

Oak Cottage

39

58

117

19

Methodist

45

7
13

146

Mast (telecommunication)

22

2

ED Bdy

4

Ruin

Ward Bdy

55

St
 B

ud
ea

ux

6

62

Und

5

8

103

2728

56

Old Park Hill

Wingfield

25

43

26

1

Mast

6

Kingdom

21

River

10

59

35

L Twr

10

24

Stand

7

Bus Depot

24

25.0m

4

29

57

4

23

Sluice

16

25

55

45

27

34

59
61

53

62

22

Stand

53

2

16

WB

FB

57

115

41

1

17.6m

FB

(Kearsney Abbey)

19

4

20
18

(Russell Gardens)

6

1

St
an

d

Play Area

51

58

Bushy Ruff

FB

2

23

House

L Twr

107

Bushy Ruff House

Watermark

BOW
MAN COURT

105

Villas

Ruin

Stables

21

River

Dublin Mews

Centre

4

The Lodestone

5b

3

55

Bushy Ruff

144d

(Stables)

Cottage

FB

6

Choochoos

Buckland Hospital

(Sports Facility)

17

Lodge

Crabble Athletic Ground

36

Rosaline Villa

Circuit

9

21

1 to 21

Harmonia

5a

ESS

9

Esc
ap

e L
an

e

Court9

Abbey

8

(Rugby Ground)

PC

60

ESS

Sallygate School

Area

Ppg Sta

PC

Care Home

144b

37

Farm

Walk

Frandham

BS

111

The

Shelter

Track

Armourers Walk

1 to 12

(Station)

3

Sports Pavilion

FB

Kearsney Court

House

12

Car Park

Waterwheel

El Sub Sta

Cottage

Crabble Meadows

19

4

Motocross

7

35

El S
ub Sta

Def

Path (u
m)

Depot

Equestrian

109

Abbey

15

Frandham

Farm

Waterloo

24

Riverside

Manor
House

Belle Vue

11

Armourers

10

(Football Ground)

North Lodge

1

Kearsney Pond

31

1 to 6

Path (um)

Rugby Pitches

1

1

8

FB

13 to 16

Woodside

46.9m

144a

Kearsney

144c

3

1

Frandham

7 to 14

3

The Presbytery

Def

Path (um)

31

Erinndale

Redlands

132.9m

Kearsney Park

16

Kearsney Park

1 to 4

1 to 14

Abbey

Def

Def

Kearsney

Prioress Walk

Track

ESS

ED & Ward Bdy

9

63

4
5

12a

6

15
0a

to

Sports Pavilion

1

1 to 8

1 to 5

33

M
ANNERING

El Sub Sta

Mill

RIVER MEADOW

9

12

19

19.9m

12

Mill Pond

Car Park

Water M
ill

Crabble

31

29

9

Und

FW

2

21

7

2

MILL CLOSE

26.7m

45

Play

23

71

2a

St Meryl

1

26.1m

47.1m

126

10

24b

FB

153

105

1a

105a

12

53

DOVE LEA GARDENS

182

169

23.0m

73

81

177

Orchard Villas

Doveleas

152

CF

Und

Varchel

Coxhill Mount

Bushy Ruff

Tank

River Down Wood

48

Bushy Ruff

Palmtree Hill

130.5m

The Railway Bell

FF

RH

91

85a

95
a

5

Swiss

Villas

TCB

1

33

Kingswood

158

8

156

Garage

25

Pav
ilio

n

Sta

CW

GP

The Fold

Sub Sta
LB

R
iver

15

6

14

1

4

8

15

HAZELDOW
N CLOSE

37

26

ROAD

COWPER ROAD

7

El

W
IN

G
R

O
VE

HAWTHORN CLOSE

13

6

2

54

58

Path (um) 36

13

CHILTON WAY

25

Sub Sta

26

62

COXHILL

98

75

1

CHILTON WAY

3

Ppg Sta

ED & Ward Bdy

17

POULTON CLOSE

ABBEY ROAD

El Sub Sta

82.7m

74

285

60

273

Industrial

44

Cottages

1 to 6

White Cliffs
 Lodge

LAMBTON

1

El

Whitehall

7

119

84

CLOSE

Coombe

1

Split House

54

PALMERSTON ROAD
95.5m

27

57.9m

2

148

11

The Cricketers

ED
 &

 W
ar

d 
Bd

y

ESS

20.1m

11

94

38.7m

11
0

MP 76.25

1

Court

26

2

WAY

85

34

El Sub Sta

17

16

7

15

2

35

1

32.6m

LB

MONKS WAY

61

19

17

24

7

BROOKFIELD ROAD

13

2
PLACE

11

23

1 to 6

4

1

1

2

Stone

Conqueror

29

St Andrew's

67

16a

42

70

30

14

14

24

8

PARK CLOSE

25

14

11

FB

Track

Cottage

L Twr

Def

Sub Sta

FOCAL P
OIN

T R
OAD

El Sub Sta

Pre-school
River

River

Phoenix Railway Club

142

8 to 27

11

2

40

53

60

23

36

99

43

57

49119

26

47

22

5

1 to 2

5

Village

Play

FB
Pond

Paper Mill

Path
 (u

m)

1

60

Frandham Kennels

River Minnis

Crabble

Club

Factory2

1 to 4

PRV - River

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.25 0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.13
Kilometers

Page 45

76



PSHE - Eastry
Rural, Sholden

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: PSHE - Eastry Rural, Sholden Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.25 0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.13
KilometersPage 46

77



21

37

25

13

43

CORNFIELD ROW

20

51

18

28

6to16

45

48
86

30

49

66

5.2m

HYTON DRIVE

50

1 to 1196

73

23

32

33

23

61

99

62

CRESCENT

12

60

35

57
SWIFT

20

4

House

111

BIRDWOOD AVENUE

50 to 60

51

74 13 to 18

80

13

29

2

1

74

1 t
o 6

76

67

4

11

2

22

43

13

18

10

65

31

44

Edinburgh House

13
 to

 18

46

55

DELANE ROAD

13

14

34

6 1

Stuart

16

64

W
indsor House

16

2

31

26

Cornwall House

12

27

1

30a

6

1

32

GRANTHAM AVENUE

Tudor H
ouse

10

1

Lancaster House

59

302

18

16

18

66

29

7

236

24

W
ALK

DIANA GARDENS

24
a

125

276

3

7 to 12

41

14

8

BIRDWOOD AVENUE

10

15

1

9

32a

23

2

20

7

8
1

11

HUNTERS

9

49

30

1

16

6.8m

14

LB

254

6

282

3

1

27

1

7

42

14

1

17

18
8

81

38

13

FENTON

28

5

5.7m

1a

229

12

TIMPERLEY CLOSE

Cou
rt 

Lo
dg

e

26

31

6.9m

27

215

21

1

2

45 15

46

Sutto
n Row

13

36

37

ORCHARD AVENUE

37

91

79

58a

3

1

47

30

75

8

FLETCHERS W
AY

4

11

61

62

13

2

103

8

26

100

6

21

57

40

4

29

8

2

41

86

55

60

59

6

HYTON DRIVE

58

CHURCH LANE

2

6.3m

29

9a

17a

31

14
6

GARDEN CLOSE

16a

39

16

13

23

140

El Sub Sta

14

Play Area

4.8m
71

Posts

FOX ROAD

TRAVERS ROAD

22

64

Def

71

CHURCH MEADOW
S

Ward Bdy

35

11

42

38

12

Def

85

33

18

43

8

44

5

28

48

81

10

70

1

24

2

2

2

11

26

46

6

1

Path

50

71

8

Ward Bdy

66

HANCOCKS FIELD

68

11

9

91

12

17
10

30

3

6

20

15

6

5.5m

32

14

4
6

Allotment Gardens

72

13

1

18

El

62

20

75

9

4.0m

17

4

16

23

73

7 t
o 1

2

2

60

27

1

16

Row

18

44

14

25

W
YSE C

LO
SE

58

31

Dra
in

49a

Grace W
alk

69

51
53

CO
UR

T 
CL

OSE

Church Lane

1 to 6

Issues

Play Area

39

1

1

14

1

Shelter

DIANA GARDENS

Sub

1 
to

 5

56

111

30

1

2

8

2

217

43

7

COURT

1

EMPORIA CLOSE

7

16

33

4

1

14

71

101

58

17

Gas
Gov

Path

242

22

72

8

7

1

4

2

33

Sta

Grace W
alk

Sutto
n

PSHM - Middle
Deal, Hyton

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: PSHM - Middle Deal, Hyton Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.05 0 0.05 0.1 0.15 0.20.03
KilometersPage 47

78



FB

Lydden Valley

Dr
ai

n

Betteshanger Park

MP 88.5

Pond

1.5m

Drain

Dr
ai

n

New North Stream

CD

Dr
ai

n

Dra
in

Ring Sew
er

Drain

Dr
ai

n

MP

Pond

Platform

Dra
in

Path (um)

Dr
ai

n Drain

D
rain

Dra
in

88.75

Path (um)

Drain

Drain

Drain

Drain

Dr
ain

Drain

Dr
ain

Old North Stream

Pond

FBs

Drain

CD

Drain

Drain

Pond

Dra
in

Drain

Dr
ai

n

Drain

Drain

Drain

Dr
ai

n

Ring Sewer

Drain

Drain

7

MP 89

Track

Pond

Dra
in

6

Observation

Pond

Drain

Dr
ai

n

3

Drain

Drain

110

13

Dr
ai

n

1

Dam

Ponds

Def

Pond

Dra
in

61

Dr
ain

VLISSINGEN

Pond

Drain

Dr
ai

n

4

Dra
in

Drain

77

Dr
ai

n

14

Dr
ai

n

15
7

Drain

1.0m

0.9m

2

50

1a

19

FB

5 
to

 8

17
1

2

1a
3

3

47

1

7

HAROLD ROAD

911

10

5

Drain

8

3

5

GODWYN ROAD
52

196

Def

VER
N

O
N

 PLA
C

E

13

4

10

29

Drain

16
5

6

6a

26

7

2

7

Drain

2.7m

3

41 to 52

54

SO
UBERG

 CLO
SE

2

106

2.9m

Signal Post

14

LB

CD

17

9

14

12

1

DRIVE

9

11

4

Drain

16

Stone

B
ETH

A
N

Y C
LO

SE

W
ard Bdy

1

Drai
n

Drain
5

3.2m

54

W
AL

CH
ER

EN

Drain

CR

1

6

Drain

House

1

Pow
der

10

2.8m

9

NORTHWALL ROAD

Drai
n

12

3

12

5a

Dane

9

Drain

Drain

Sandown Farm

7

Dra
in

K
IN

G
 ED

W
A

R
D

 R
O

A
D

FB

46

2

50

CD

18

CD

29

1

Def

104a

Drai
n

1

36

1

12

1.3m

7

MP 89.75

46

Dra
in

27

3

11

1

33

69

8

38

8

W
ard Bdy

7

MP 90

6

Cottage

Dr
ain

25

21

LANGTON

47

MILLER CLOSE
Sydcot Lodge

146

104b

2.7m

ROAD

2

Sydcot H
ouse

PA
VILI

ON

81

182

7

7

8

39

CLOSE

1

LANFRANC

COURTENAY ROAD

14

15

3

16

87

8

74

18

104

6

5

7

44

6

32

B
EC

K
ET

 C
LO

SE

9

1

Drai
n

1

LIN
K

S R
O

A
D

19

134

26

21

G
O

LF R
O

A
D

9
7

6

122

52

21

25

88

158

2

170

13

Drain

90

El

18

81

15
7

11

1

31

16
9

2

85

110

Sub Sta

Court

2

4

89

SYDCOT DRIVE

152a

1

18
3

144

14

6

144a

3

14
7

1

8

31

10

12
7

1

CO
LLEG

E RO
AD

17
9

19
9

12
1

Court

152

Bede

13
7

1

(d
is

us
ed

)

77
a

Dunstan

13
1

17
7

ATHELSTAN PLACE

69

Pond

12
5

2

Ra
ilw

ay

7

38

2

Drain

16

77

16
9

1

Ol
d 

No
rth

 S
tre

am

55

0.7m

5

The Firs

1.1m

58
64

47

SP

FB

HAROLD ROAD

Drain

Deal Town Dike

16

Drai
n

14
9

19
3

Pa
th

 (u
m)

23

86

75

MP 89.5

98GOLF ROAD

M
in

er
al

D
rain

3.9m

21
5

99

Ford

Pond

78

FB

74

Drain

1.3m

4.1m

Dr
ai

n

Drain

Dr
ai

n

Drain

11

77

1.2m

9 
to

 2
0

GODWYN ROAD

Drain

New North Stream

1.4m

CD

138 17

FB

Stre
am

Drain

Old
 N

or
th

Level Crossing

SANDOWN CLOSE

Level Crossing

MP 89.25

CD

40

Drain

ROAD

SA
N

D
O

W
N

 R
O

A
D

2

Penfield Sewer

42

2

Dr
ai

n

23

26

El

21

140

SP

El

23
1

31 to 40

Drain

2

1

Sub Sta

1.7m

1

FF

32

12

22

4

Golf

Drain

Sta

ETHELBERT ROAD

2

55

13
5

9

4

38

12

136

19

12

5

6

16

8

20
5

36

Shingle

ETHELBERT ROAD

20
3

3.8m

44

3.2m

38

13

32

Drain

40

De
f

23

FB

Track

122

1

Dr
ai

n

4.0m

22

No
rth

 S
tre

am

3.2m

48

3

REDHOUSE WALL

1

5

33

20

7

Ponds

Shingle

14

Ponds

22

Drain

Sub

CANUTE

D
rain

19

Stone

Pa
th

 (u
m)

Greenacres

18

2

Path (um)

Play Area

1 to 4

O
ld

Drain

Drai
n

WALL

15

Golf House

27

CD

3.9m

10

33

Drain

Court

Drain

D
rain

1.3m

Redhouse Wall Farm

Stone

Shingle

Drain

21 to 30

Drain

Dr
ai

n

Track

Track

45

Links Court

Stone

3.0m

Beacon

Dra
in

61

Tank

Dra
in

Drain

2.0m

57

Drain

Dra
in

Und

Drain

79

3.6m

Groyne

Stones

FB

26
9

Shingle

Drain

3.4m

Dr
ain

M
ean Low W

ater

Shingle

Track

Golf Club

Drain

Tr
ac

k

Drain

23
3

Drain

Drain

Little Acre

Barns Close

Drain

Drain

48

BLACKHORSE

Royal Cinque Ports

Reservoir

Shingle

Pond

Drain

22

5 to 15

3.6m

14

3.2m

Path

1

2.9m

Shingle

78

Pond

Shingle

3.5m

M
ean Low

 W
ater

D
ra

in

D
rain

Drain

Drain

G
O

LF RO
AD

Drain

Drain

BLA
CKHORSE W

ALL

Dr
ai

n

CD

Drain

Dr
ai

n

Drain

3.3m

Drain

FS

FB

Shingle

B Slope

3.4m
Shingle

FB

71

3.6m

FB

Ponds

Shingle

18a

Shingle

Path (um
)

Tr
ac

k

CANUTE ROAD

W
ard Bdy

Track

Shingle27
3

W
ard Bdy

73

SM

Track

Path (um)

20
9

M
ean High W

ater

5

Pond

Tr
ac

k

Pa
th

El

York

21
3

Tenants Hills

Groyne

Shingle

24

Saxons C
lose

22
3

Co Const, E
D & Ward Bdy

46

Track

Shingle

7

18

Sandwich Bay

Path

6

D
ra

in

Def

Sandwich Bay

24
7

44

Sub Sta

Track

4.0m

W
ard Bdy

Pumping

Pumping

Pond

Drain

Path (um
)

20

Station

Drain

Walnut Tree

M
ean High W

ater

Dr
ai

n

Drain

Pond

Track

D
rain

48

Path (um
)

22

Pond

Track

19
3

Tank (cov)

20a

D
rain

Sandhills Caravan Park

Ward Bdy

Track

Track

M
ean High W

ater

Cottages

Cycle Racing Facility

Co Const & ED Bdy

Pond

Tenants Hills

Ward Bdy

B Slope

W
ard Bdy

Ponds

Pond

M
ean High W

ater

8

1.2m

Path (um
)

M
ean High W

ater

Path (um
)

Mariner's

18
7

42

Sluice

90c

Tenants Hills

5

C
anute W

alk

View

LC

Sub

FB

Sandhills

Sandwich Bay

Pond

Path (um)

Station

Drain

M
ean Low

 W
ater

1.1m

M
ean Low

 W
ater

Dr
ai

n

Drain

Sandfield Farm

Sta

THE FAIRWAY

1.6m

1 
to

 1
0

Pe
nf

iel
d 

Se
we

r

1

1

1

12

Allotment Gardens

C
LO

SE

116

12

4

25

W
ES

TE
RH

OU
T 

CL
OS

E

21

34

2

1

Kennels Farm

Deal Town Dike

CLOSE

15
11

17

79

2.9m

26

4

4

37

66

10
9

3.0m

150

45

2

13
7

12
5

72

87

Drain

Drain

Drain1.5m

Drain

Drain

Def

4

3.9m

3.0m

45

46

2.9m

35

32

36

18

Path (um)

1

20

Dr
ai

n

FB

1.4m

Drain

Co
 C

on
st

, E
D 

& 
W

ar
d 

Bd
y

REDHOUSE WALL

Drain

Drain

Drain

Shingle

Shingle

Dr
ain

D
ra

in

G
O

LF RO
AD

Drain

75
77

Groyne

1

19

11

Pond

3.3m

Mary Bax's Stone

Und

El

Track

Track

Track

Farm

Sluice

22a

W
ard Bdy

19
1

18
9

Tr
ac

k

Castle Walk

1 to 8

PSHN -
North Deal,
Tenants Hill

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: PSHN - North Deal, Tenants Hill Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.2 0 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.80.1
KilometersPage 48

79



Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling Districts: PSL1 - Shepherdswell & PSL2 - Coldred
Dover District Council
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
Dover
CT16 3PJ

PSL1 -
Shepherdswell

PSL2 -
Coldred

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.5 0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25
Kilometers

Page 49

80



PSM - St
Margaret's-At-Cliffe

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: PSM - St Margaret's-at-Cliffe Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.25 0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.13
KilometersPage 50

81



PSU - Sutton

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: PSU - Sutton Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.25 0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.13
KilometersPage 51

82



Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: PTE - Temple Ewell
Dover District Council
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
Dover
CT16 3PJ

PTE -
Temple
Ewell

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.5 0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25
Kilometers

Page 52

83



PTI -
Tilmanstone

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: PTI - Tilmanstone Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.25 0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.13
KilometersPage 53

84



Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: PWH1 - Whitfield North
Dover District Council
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
Dover
CT16 3PJ

PWH1 -
Whitfield

North

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.25 0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.13
Kilometers

Page 54

85



Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: PWH2 - Whitfield South
Dover District Council
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
Dover
CT16 3PJ

El

Ward Bdy

Def
74.8m

WHITFIELD HILL

Sta

Wood

56.8m

Sub

65

ED & Ward Bdy

CR

45

WHITFIELD HILL

Old Park

El Sub Sta

55

to

51

to

37

6b

61

12b 63

Oldpark Hill

2to

KING
STO

N CLO
SE

View Wood

1

PILGRIMS WAY

5

12a

6

8

1

ESS

56.5m

11

to

1

33

SP

LOW
ER ROAD

44

33

Und

20.4m

4

8

Sub Sta

1

4

24a

3

FB

51

6

13

CLOSE

M
ANNERING

39

18

MP 75.75

Oldpark Hill

49

16

Weir Mill

SIDE

14

53

26a

35

9

Path

84 12

Crabble

17

45a

12

22.7m

26

35

26

26

47

Mill Pond

55

24

46

51.9m

Stone

Deal

6a

Water M
ill

ED & Ward Bdy

LB

25

Crabble

2

SP

7

29

Shelter

13

DOUR

38

RIVER

21

83

23

22

1

10

36

71

Ward Bdy

VALLEY ROAD

69

140

2a

22

107

CF

LONDON ROAD

1

85

St Meryl

28

13

25

CO
MMON

 L
AN

E

26.1m

1

27

7

River Dour

Royal Oak

19

47.1m

27

Margaret Villa

Castle View

6

The Laurels

Ambleside

10

6

31

23

24b

LOWER ROAD

28

83

Shelter

LEWISHAM ROAD

FB

162

145

20

to

106

153

129

172

38

19
102

RIVER STREET

River Dour

105

9

62

76

1a

86

10

72

105a

14

22.9m

60

Bramcote

12

toMP 75.5

15

34

18a

27.8m

DOVE LEA GARDENS

7

5

Aloha

13

74

86

1b

Pendorric

40

TCB

11

92

23.0m

5

46

Rivington

River Dour

62

68

59.3m

Gut
hr

ie 
Gar

de
ns

73

42

13

1

Ba
rn

81

23

56

66

3

1

136

49

19

Ward
 Bdy

Quelque Chose

165

BYL
LA

N R
OAD

105b

150

12
9

6

55

66

113

109

Orchard Villas

LB

9a

54

Doveleas

2

56.2m

to

63

14

96b

to

Sta

15

152

El Sub

Glenelg

ED & Ward Bdy

Bramber

27.6m

5

East Wood

Mast

2a

The Railway Bell
(PH)

WOODSIDE CLOSE

8

Und

Th
e 

O
ld

CR

RH
38

CR

1 to 9

2

7

24

Ward Bdy

91

19

23

112

10 to 18

120

96a

85a

21

Court Hill

1a

5

24a

92

95
a

LOWER ROAD

35

Chicester Ct

62.3m

50

5

18b

89
a

2

96

Compton Lodge

94

Mast

87

WHITFIELD HILL

Kearsney

Leahurst Court

TCB

COURTLAND DRIVE

WHITFIELD HILL

95

102

1

1

7

8

33

89

Kingdom

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

8

17

The Old

40

Old Park Wood

Cottage

House

Garage

LONDON ROAD

Silverley

6

Campsite

De
f

25

15

16

Sta

Bayze

Campbells

4

El Sub

Und

Nyali

CR

Coach House

Trees

88

1

H
EN

N
IK

ER
 C

LO
SE

3

Grooms

Stone

78.9m

1

13

10

67.8m

Def

Meads
12

1

U
nd

29

Ward Bdy

ESS

Hotel

Tank

Lousyberry Wood

KEARSNEY AVENUE

42

15
4

Suilven

FF

9

24

Mast (Telecommunication)

El Sub Sta

GR
EE

N 
LA

NE

2

ROAD

Sunningdale

69.0m

Highcroft

2

2

1 to 12

Indebe

Egerton House

29

Malvern Cottages

FRIARS WAY

Whitfield Valley

17

14

30

19

39

PARSONS W
AY

3

108.9m

Ash
Tree

27

Well

House

36.5m

House

50

Malvern Lodge

Cottages

ED
 &

 W
ar

d 
B

dy

OLD

77.8m

MALVERN MEADOW

Wood

97

Manor Farm

ET
L

Redvers

2

Whitfie
ld Valley

Estcourt
House

19

THE AVENUE

Path (um)

EGERTON

32

Living

Tank

Sylvan

Ellwin

6
24

25

106.6m

1

Woodside View

PALMERSTON ROAD

14

1

3

Playing Field

15

4

95.5m

46

39

1

PARK AVENUE

Church

12

152

65.0m

29

Play Area

Surgery

57.9m

12

4
1

72.1m

2

13

De
f

Mistral

150

71

1

20

9

Def

CF

6

9

13

ED
 &

 W
ar

d 
Bd

y

21

BB

9

Greenacres

Tr
ac

k

MANSION GARDENS

26

54.0m

38

OLD

Un
d

7

2

CRABBLE HILL

15

ET
L

12

63

LONDON ROAD

13

WAY

26

17

77.7m

ED & Ward Bdy

35

85

71.0m

3

Stone

ET
L

10

2

34

12

14

8

El Sub Sta

41.5m

Und

75

72.3m

29

7

17

24

D
ef

ET
L

16

Stone

ED & Ward Bdy

25

Sandwich Hole

76

WAY

7

1
Path (um)

R
O

M
AN

 R
O

AD

16a

15

1

2

MP 98.5

2

77

24

64

61

1

38

TH
E 

LI
N

C
ES

13

MONKS WAY

13

CL
O

SE

Posts

27

24

27

14

61.6m

20

Wellington

19

15

59

SQUIRES

15

11

74

73.0m

27

73

43.0m

WEAVERS WAY

21

GRE
EN

 L
AN

E

14

O
LD

 P
A

R
K

 H
IL

L

12

1

11

15

WINANT WAY

KNIGHTS WAY

37

OLD PARK HILL

59

28

24

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

15

15a

7

1

7

139

PILGRIMS WAY

13a

Shelter

37.7m

Shelter

Shelter

1 to 6

17to19

Court

El Sub Sta

ED & Ward Bdy

1

Sub

C
H

A
U

C
ER

18

5

62

DRYDEN

31

17

4

22

Sta

MARLOWE ROAD

34

El

3

SHIPMANS WAY

14

13

20

20

8

55.9m

LB

17

B
R

U
N

SW
IC

K
 G

A
R

D
EN

S

72

41

CLOSE

6

32.8m

6

25

CL
EV

EL
AN

D 
CL

O
SE

6

34

24

FL
O

RI
DA

 C
LO

SE

30

SL

5

El Sub Sta

7

Sub Sta

El Sub

13

BUCKLAND VALLEY

14

11a

12

5a

19

42

BOSTON

1

40

47.2m

29

25

5

14

1
1a

29

SHERIDAN ROAD

31

Gardens

9

14

12

Fitz
walt

er 
Court

43

6

27

10

27

2

9

38

49.0m

26

M
AI

NE
 C

LO
SE

4

4

BY
RO

N 
CR

ES
CE

NT

CO
LO

RA
DO

 C
LO

SE

38

7

ROOSEVELT ROAD

7

2a

16

K
IM

B
ER

LE
Y

13

13 to 23

40.9m

17 23

12

4

1

2

21

1

1

Sta

El

28

17

33

15

2

3

52

43

Sub Sta

19

19

6

13

MELBOURNE AVENUE

66

1

24

74

2

7

LB

20

20

7

1

Stone

1

25

Wheelwrights

21

7

22

12

3

2

25

78

1

55.6m

2b

31

Green Park Community
 Prim

ary School

CL
O

SE

22

54

16

26

1 to 11

28

El

34

TO
R

O
N

TO
 C

LO
SE

2

1

70

27

36

44

66.9m

23

57

7

6

80a

85.1m

29

104

44

OTTAWA CRESCENT

34

13

5

W
IN

NIP
EG C

L

15

2

13

21

1

ALBERTA CLOSE

72

42

6

MONTREAL CLOSE

117.4m

27

5

12

24

ROAD

9

CHRISTCHURCH WAY

11

1

12

30

51

31

1

1

D
U

R
B

A
N

 C
R

ES
C

EN
T

13

7

5

M
EL

BO
UR

NE
 A

VE
NU

E

25

Play Area

24

30

U
nd

17

12

55

110.3m

78

31

14

26

10

AU
CK

LA
ND

 C
RE

SC
EN

T

19

1

15

31

110.6m

64

RO
AD

47

22

39

88

LB

CLOSE

Perth W
ay

80

37

1

Shelter

CRESCENT

24

96.4m

35

56

1

Green Lane Hill

Court

1

El

Bo
tto

m

7

9

ELYSIUM
 PARK CLO

SE

37 to 47

8

8

76

Sub Sta

18

26

2

17

69

21

ED
 &

 W
ar

d 
Bd

y

1

35

52

Buckland

57

44a

58

3

10
7

79

Bleriot

56

12

2

19

94

PARK CLOSE
10

86

14

WILLINGDON ROAD

MILTON ROAD

34

26

BLE
NHEI

M D
RIV

E

60

Def

18

25

90

195

114.5m

24

112

1

14

48

175

ED & Ward Bdy

OLD

2

Shelter

to

Area

2

Path

112.0m

Play

BS

35

2 to 12

4

WHYTE CLOSE

10

16

45

36

28

FF

27

8

M
ELBO

URNE AVENUE

50

49

92

HONEYW
OOD ROAD

28

TH
E 

LI
NC

ES

El Sub Sta

24

84to114

11

2

CR

8

8

37

G
re

en
 L

an
e

17

14 to 24

16

ARDENT R
OAD

2

Preschool

10

Pond

60

27

Sta

85 to 95

MILTON

64

44

The

15

El

House

91

38

36

Shelter

ANTELOPE

ASPEN DRIVE

49

38

2

39

23

11

PARK CLOSE

45

61

91

31

Play

20

16

5

FULBERT ROAD

10

81

10

Old Park Hill

1

17

PARKWAY

Travelling Crane

WYCHERLEY

PEVER
ELL

11

7

Superstore

2

Shelter

4

Area

6 to 11

25

1 to 11

Play

12

21

5

15

WHITFIELD HILL

60

Posts

1

GALAHAD W
AY

Tel Ex

Refuse Transfer

97

to

31

GORDON ROAD

19

173

57.5m

Shelter

Shelter

ROADGas
 Gov

THE LINCES

18

2

185

21

16

Academy

Depot

127.3m

36

14

14
6

15to43

WB

24

19

Play

COLTON CRESCENT

1

Maritime

21

10 to 26

Kingdom

10

51

HUDSON CLOSE

11

9

Area

30 to 40

1

24

36to82

84

21

22

GREEN C
LO

SE

37 to 47

12

30

Oak

57

15

7

1

Bus Depot

12
2

3

HIRST CLOSE

82

6to10

29

KINSON WAY Shelter

14

90

FR
AN

CE

36

34

Filling Station

16b

El Sub Sta

11

37

26

2

8

18b

27

24

38

12

16

25

19

167

32

128.9m

Mast

Old Park

Trafalgar

MENZIES ROAD

Shelter

Area

11 to 16

Station

ARCHER'S

ET
L

42

ET
L

4

10

31

10a

House

40

13

3

34

ED & Ward Bdy

9

11

120.2m

53

10
4

31

5

22

45 to 55

El Sub Sta

The

3

31

El S
ub Sta

WHITFIELD ROUNDABOUT

11
0

26

4

28

House

16

Viking House

14

12 to 17

18

19

D
ef

20

4

14

33

Old Park Wood

Tank

21a

13

Transport Depot

18

2a

(course of)

COURT ROAD

18

Junction

14a

11a

BINDON BLOOD ROAD

Shelter

11
6

(PH)

5

Knapp

20

1

50

Path

49

1

Shelter

KHARTOUM SQUARE

8

58

14

43

Path (um)

19

Subway

NEWLANDS

115.8m

52

11

Path (um)

69 to 79

HONEYW
OOD CLOSE

Garage

Methodist

Cath
oli

c C
hu

rch

33

LB

2a

11

2

11

Our
 La

dy
 O

f D
ov

er

SA
N

D
W

IC
H

 R
O

A
D

St Nicholas Church

18

to

Play Area

120

ED & W
ard Bdy

Tu
nn

el

18a

LB

92.6m

15

BS

36

16c

Thistley Hill

PA
RK

W
AY

6

B

16

Dover Transport Museum

25

18

38

Aspen Drive

3

1

4

Path (um)

50

22

22a

RH

The

Horizon House

1

Und

33

The

32

8

69

48

ASPEN DRIVE

1

Cottage

ED Bdy

2

23

HONEYWOOD

Path (um)

2

11b

Path (um)

70

River

9

88

42

100

ED Bdy

Sports

125.3m

18

29

70

Buckland

77

33

16

C to F

NEWLANDS

14

19

Truck Park

Archer

18

20

COURTLAND AVENUE

40

15

45

127.1m

128.9m

Mast (Telecommunication)

28

D
ef

17

ESS

43

35

2

Garage

3

46

4

17

HONEYWOOD PARKWAY

18

11

Glenmore Centre

15

12
1

Dover Leisure Centre

RO
AD

R
O

M
A

N
 R

O
A

D

20

ED
 &

 W
ar

d 
B

dy

94

49

Shelter

41

118.9m

27

117

9

R
O

M
A

N
 R

O
A

D

8

NEW
LANDS

43

18

El

53

Shelter

10

4

Quantock

Path (um)

41

16
15

20

10

21

1

15

41

39

Sub Sta

20

Studios

HO
NE

YW
O

O
D

5

51

FOCAL P
OIN

T R
OAD

1

Superstore

6

23

17

Leaside

El Sub Sta

El Sub Sta

23

35

27

Umbrella Nursery

11

4

Pre-school

Tanks

23 25 27

River

9

59

31

SINGLEDGE LANE

2

River

37

14

River

Pa
th

Filling

36

Skills Centre

3

Jack Hewitt Hall

2

105

1b

Play Area

39

Community Centre

107

21

165

45

21

Facility

8

46

Maritime Skills
Academy

43

Facility

43

G

14

Garage

Dover

F

A2

13

42

41

1a

Station

47

House

1

Business Centre

2

163

Track

Kingdom Hall

Esc
ap

e L
an

e

FI
TN

ES
S 

FI
EL

DS

1 t
o 4

W
HITF

IE
LD

 C
OURT

D
ef

Ppg Sta

4

The Old Boiler House

Care Home

5b

Council Offices

D
ef

12

23

A2

Rosaline Villa

A2

18

7

Shelter

17

7

The

Ward Bdy

26

12

1

8

42

7

De
f

Tank

24

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

Def

50

Path (um)

17

37

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

35

Court

12

53

113

3

23

16

111

11

51

9

12

3

Church

101

23

Dover Trade Centre

16

2

13

31

25

99

10

El Sub Sta

Redlands

Walk

39

El Sub Sta

1 to 8

33

43

1 to 4

10

El Sub Stas

Armourers Walk

1

59

19

1 to 4

14

10

20

Prioress Walk

DALE

O
ntario W

ay

57

47

47

2

21

20

K
im

berley W
alk

109

24

49

12

4

44

18

21

39

2

16

21

119

45

22

45

3

12

9

11

47

1

15

11

31

19

18

10

34

55

1

15

48.0m

9

13

11

Tumuli

19

A2

1

House

1

Old Park

26

Woodside

Pharos

10

5

19

Gas Gov

BARLEY DRIVE

41

4

14a

Buckland and Whitfield

O
ttaw

a W
ay

White Cliffs

Riverside

103

House

Aspen 2 Unit

31

20

9

29

4

28

BERESFORD ROAD

5

40

6

30

Lachine

3

15
0a

VALLEY ROAD

8

30

1 to 40

26

68

14

Business Centre

1 to 11

7

El Sub Sta

(PH)

El Sub Sta

117

141

1 to
 32

66a

31

60

17

23.4m

95

94

99

5

CHISNALL ROAD

8

LABURNUM CLOSE

12
49.7m

24

60

85

118

87
a

House

11

Surgery

13

Kearsney

Old Park

W
HI

TF
IE

LD
 H

IL
L

Wildwood

Braeside

127.3m

Orchard House

1

4

1

10

19

Def

2

El Sub Sta

C Tu
nn

el

ED & Ward Bdy

112.0m

(c
ou

rs
e 

of
)

Def

1

1

41

54.8m
PARDONERS

10

PILGRIMS WAY

9

CR
ES

CE
NT

12

2

W
AS

HI
NG

TO
N

ROAD

6

17

20

71

Boundary

30

6

1

TCB

24

1

7

53

13

20

56.7m

51 1

42

5

El Sub Sta

3

10

4 SELKIRK ROAD

21

8

7

Ca
st

le

1 to 11

77.6m

10

TCB

35

Green Lane Hill

12

LB

Sta
Sub

34

115.1m

103.2m

93

121.3m

116.6m

El

12

11

11

66.1m

to

2

9a

48

Posts

18

18

13

El
Sub

Old Park Lodge

121.8m

128.7m

26

HONEYWOOD

HONEYWOOD PARKWAY

Play

Area

13
4

El Sub Sta

ARDENT

CLOSE

1

7to11

15

5

29

20

KEYES CLOSE

1to5

30

38

71

22

Honeywood House

HONEYW
OOD ROAD

Play Area

White Cliffs Business Park

TR
ISTR

AM W
AY

6

12

Un
d

ROKESLEY ROAD

57 to 67

16

2

19 to 35

17

60

13

18c

29

2

11

15

15

ED
 &

 W
ard B

dy

1

(course of)

Dover Christ Church Academy

Rock Rose

PARKWAY

LB

RYE LANE

Path (um)

NATAL ROAD

Village Hall

Church

3

24

Play Area

Honeywood Retail Park

Path
 (u

m)

42

ED
 &

 W
ar

d 
Bd

y

20

7

23

24

52

1

21

24

9

35

24

33

6

57

45

61

26

29

14

32

151

56

A2

A2

Powder

5a

9

Track

6

15

12

Childrens Centre

A to E

Armourers

VANCOUVER ROAD

13

74.0m

11

30

1

21

88

57

Court

Pond

Und

90

JOHANNESBURG

46

74

9

86.2m

49 to 59

9

7

26

26

9b

6

29

42

7

99

SM

ESS

9

MELBOURNE AVENUE

Cycle W
ay

Posts

55

12
8

41

41

21

28

1

1

Beechwood

38

2

5 to 10

Communication Mast

RO
AD

1

35

5

1

1

17

15

17

12

8

5

53

15

El Sub Sta

33

121.3m

TCB

16a

16a

13
a

24

10

18

82

64

(PH)

SM

18

Tank

KEDLE
STO

N

Depot

HONEYWOOD PARKWAY

Ridges
Larch

Long Hill

Pendeli

Tank

DUBRIS CLOSE

2

1a

Hall

Gateway Bowls Club

Kidease Nursery

1

44

Path (um)

Play Area

49

37

Path (um)

34

A

Saxon

Sports

Bala
ncin

g Pond

10

6

8

37

4

7

5

13

25

6

22

15

11

15

7

8

4

55

22

115

11

18

44

3

58

153

1

3

10

9

5 to 10

ED Bdy

PWH2 -
Whitfield
South

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.25 0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.13
Kilometers

Page 55

86



Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: TAS - Ash
Dover District Council
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
Dover
CT16 3PJ

TAS - Ash

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.5 0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25
Kilometers

Page 56

87



Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: TGD - Goodnestone
Dover District Council
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
Dover
CT16 3PJ

TGD -
Goodnestone

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.5 0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25
Kilometers

Page 57

88



TPR - Preston

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: TPR - Preston Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.5 0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25
KilometersPage 58

89



TSA -
Sandwich

North

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: TSA - Sandwich North Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.25 0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.13
KilometersPage 59

90



TSB -
Sandwich

South

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: TSB - Sandwich South Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.25 0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.13
KilometersPage 60

91



TSP - Staple

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: TSP - Staple Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.25 0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.13
KilometersPage 61

92



TST -
Stourmouth

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: TST - Stourmouth Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.25 0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.13
KilometersPage 62

93



TWG - Wingham

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: TWG - Wingham Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.5 0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25
KilometersPage 63

94



Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: TWN - Woodnesborough
Dover District Council
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
Dover
CT16 3PJ

TWN -
Woodnesborough

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.75 0 0.75 1.5 2.25 30.38
Kilometers

Page 64

95



Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: TWR1 - Eastry Rural, Worth Village
Dover District Council
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
Dover
CT16 3PJ

TWR1 - Eastry
Rural, Worth

Village

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.5 0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25
Kilometers

Page 65

96



TWR2 -
Sandwich,

Sandwich Bay

Year of Production: 2023

Existing Polling District: TWR2 - Sandwich, Sandwich Bay Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019780

0.5 0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25
KilometersPage 66

97



Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places in Dover District 2023 
 

The online response form for Part 1 of the Review had an optional section for suggested alternatives for polling stations / districts.  Where this section was not completed as part of the response, there will be no entry for ‘Alternative suggestions’ in the table below. 
 

Number Individual/Public Body 
making representations Area Representation received during Part 1 of the review Third party responses to representations 

received during Part 1 of the review 
ARO for the Dover / Dover & Deal Constituency & RO 

for Dover District – responses to representations 
received 

1 Nadeem Aziz, 
(Acting) Returning 
Officer for the 
current Dover 
Constituency and the 
future Dover & Deal 
Constituency, and 
Returning Officer for 
the Dover District. 

Dover District  
In response to your letter dated 2 October 2023, I would request that the 
following changes be considered as part of the Polling District Review.  
The proposed changes are in line with the Boundary Commission for 
England’s recent Parliamentary Boundary Review and to keep the polling 
places/stations within the recommended electorate thresholds from the 
Electoral Commission; the maps for the proposed polling districts can be 
viewed online at https://www.dover.gov.uk/elections   
 
In the event that the changes take place, I propose to use the indicated 
Polling Stations. 
 
Aylesham, Eythorne and Shepherdswell District Ward / Aylesham 
Parish 
 
Proposed Change 

1) Splitting Aylesham Parish into two separate polling districts, 
Aylesham East and Aylesham West, and keeping the currently used 
polling places, siting one in each polling district. 

 
Rationale behind proposal 

1) There has been a significant amount of new housing built in 
Aylesham in recent years and the Local Plan forecasts more 
housing on the way.   

2) Aylesham already needs two polling stations in order to keep under 
the maximum electorate thresholds recommended by the Electoral 
Commission. Splitting the area into two polling districts will allow 
each polling place in each polling district to have the potential to be 
split and used as a double polling station, thereby increasing the 
number of electors that can be allocated to each polling place. 

   
Proposed Polling Stations for Aylesham Parish 
Aylesham West – Aylesham Baptist Free Church, Dorman Avenue South, 
Aylesham 
Aylesham East – St Finbarr’s Church, Market Place, Aylesham 
 
 
Eastry Rural District Ward & Sandwich District Ward / Worth Parish 
 
Proposed Change 

1) The recent Parliamentary Boundary Review has moved the Worth 
Village Parish Ward / polling district part of Worth Parish into the 
Dover and Deal Constituency (formerly known as Dover 
Constituency) from the Herne Bay and Sandwich Constituency 
(formerly in the South Thanet Constituency). The Sandwich Bay 
Parish Ward / polling district part of Worth Parish will be in the newly 
formed Herne Bay and Sandwich Constituency (The South Thanet 
Constituency will be reformed and known as East Thanet. No part of 
the Dover district will be in East Thanet). 

 
Rationale behind proposal 

1) The changes are part of the recently completed Parliamentary 
Boundary Review by the Boundary Commission for England. 

 

Representation by Local Resident, Maxton: 
All voting areas and stations should be free 
of any government interference (local or 
National) and fixed in a law that can not be 
changed by the government. As all changes 
appear to be done for the government in 
power’s advantage. 
 
Representation by Martin Porter, DDC 
Councillor, Little Stour & Ashstone: Quality 
of venues are variable and as a poll clerk 
and presiding officer I have some 
experience of venues 

Polling districts, places and stations are 
reviewed and consulted on every 5 years to 
ensure that what was relevant 5 years ago is still 
relevant today.  
 
For example,  
• the buildings used as polling stations haven’t 

been demolished or changed use,  
• polling boundaries haven’t changed as part of 

a boundary review,  
• better sited polling stations haven’t been built 

/ become available,  
• an increase in electorate hasn’t rendered a 

current polling station ineligible for use, 
• a polling district boundary which previously 

ran through an empty field and now runs 
through several houses on a new housing 
estate would need adjusting.  

 
If polling districts, places and stations were fixed 
in law – and a law that cannot be altered - these 
things could not be changed or updated.  
 
The review goes to public consultation so 
electors have the opportunity to influence the 
decisions being made, should they chose to take 
part.   
 
 

98

https://www.dover.gov.uk/elections%20%20%0d
https://www.dover.gov.uk/elections%20%20%0d


Number Individual/Public Body 
making representations Area Representation received during Part 1 of the review Third party responses to representations 

received during Part 1 of the review 
ARO for the Dover / Dover & Deal Constituency & RO 

for Dover District – responses to representations 
received 

 
Proposed Polling Stations 
Worth Parish; Worth Village Parish Ward – Worth Parish Hall, The Street, 
Worth (no change) 
Worth Parish; Sandwich Bay Parish Ward – Sandwich United Reform 
Church, 12 Cattle Market, Sandwich (no change) 
 
Little Stour and Ashstone District Ward / Ash Parish 
 
Proposed Change 

1) The polling station in Ash is very close to the threshold of electorate 
recommended by the Electoral Commission. It is proposed that we 
use the main hall of the village hall (instead of the library which has 
been used on previous occasions) and split the existing polling 
station into two polling stations in the same hall.  

 
Rationale behind proposal 

1) A new polling district is not necessary as splitting the area between 
two polling stations in the same polling place would ensure no 
confusion amongst electors who have traditionally voted at the 
village hall. 

 
 
Proposed Polling Stations 
Ash Parish - Ash Village Hall (Main Hall), Queens Road, Ash to be used 
as a double polling station 
 
 
Buckland District Ward / Dover Town Council, Buckland Ward 
 
Proposal 
To leave polling districts BC1 and BC2 unchanged, and if the electorate 
figures for polling station voters increase to above recommended levels, 
to make a double polling station in the same polling place. 
 
 
Rationale behind proposal 

1) A new polling district is not necessary as splitting each polling place 
into two polling stations would ensure no confusion amongst 
electors. There are also very limited choices for new polling stations 
in those areas, so if the polling district was split, electors could then 
be forced outside of their own polling district to vote in what would 
have been the original polling place. 

 
 
Proposed Polling Stations 
BC1 Buckland North - Buckland Community Centre, Roosevelt Road, 
Dover (no change) 
BC2 Buckland South - The Phoenix Railway Social Club, Crabble Road, 
Dover (no change) 
 
I recommend that all other polling districts, places and stations remain 
unchanged as there are no current issues with them.  
 

2 Local Resident, 
Tilmanstone 

Tilmanstone / 
Tilmanstone Village 
Hall 

Reduce need for Polling Stations in rural areas by promoting postal 
voting.  
Alternatives suggested: Much better promotion of Postal Voting would 
substantially reduce the need for expensive Polling Stations in rural 

 There will always be a need for polling stations in 
rural areas because not everybody wants to vote 
by post and electors must be given the option of 
a polling station in their area.  

99



Number Individual/Public Body 
making representations Area Representation received during Part 1 of the review Third party responses to representations 

received during Part 1 of the review 
ARO for the Dover / Dover & Deal Constituency & RO 

for Dover District – responses to representations 
received 

areas. The cost to parish councils is substantial and impacts council tax 
payers by increases to parish council precepts. I have conducted a bit of 
a straw poll among the elderly in Tilmanstone , many of whom are not 
internet savvy , and did not know how simple postal voting is ! If I had not 
been a subscriber to Keep me Posted I would have been unaware of this 
consultation. 
 

 
Changes to postal vote applications will come 
into force on 31 October 2023, and anyone with 
an existing postal vote will need to reapply within 
a set timeframe. There will be a national 
campaign by the Electoral Commission and 
DLUHC and DDC will advertise locally as well. 
This should help to raise awareness of postal 
voting, although the option to choose to vote by 
post is given to new electors when they register 
to vote and existing electors on their annual 
canvass form, and is on every polling station poll 
card so the options are already made available 
to everyone. 
 
The polling district review was posted on parish 
noticeboards throughout the district, as well as 
sent out on Keep Me Posted, social media posts 
and a press release. More responses from the 
general public have been received this year than 
on any previous polling district reviews, so the 
methods of advertising the consultation have 
been successful.  

3 Local Resident, 
Shepherdswell 

Shepherdswell with 
Coldred / 
Shepherdswell 
Village Hall 

Venue seems adequate. 
Alternatives suggested: 

Representation by a Local Resident, 
Shepherdswell: The current arrangement 
for using the Shepherdswell Village Hall is 
ideal. We have several new builds here and 
more to come it would appear; so coupling 
us with Coldred is ideal and keeps Coldred 
within this area. Not sure why we appear to 
be lumped with Aylesham. 
 
Representation by a Local Resident, 
Shepherdswell: Current arrangement for 
Shepherdswell polling station is ideal. 
Shepherdswell looks like it’s being 
swallowed by Aylesham. Keep our villages 
at Coldred and Shepherdswell independent 
from Aylesham. So many villages and 
Hamlets are being lost through boundary 
changes. English Heritage ought to be 
involved. 

The polling district review can only amend polling 
districts, and not parish boundaries, parish wards 
or district wards. Each parish must be its own 
polling district, so Shepherdswell could not be 
merged with Aylesham under this review as they 
are different parishes.  
 
Parish boundaries can only be changed as part 
of a Community Governance Review (CGR) run 
by the local authority or as part of a district wide 
boundary review run by the Local Government 
Boundary Commission (LGBC). The next CGR is 
due to start mid 2025 and our most recent 
boundary review run by LGBC was completed in 
2019. Parishes would only be merged as part of 
a CGR if enough people suggested / agreed with 
it. There are currently no plans to merge any 
parishes. 

4 Local Resident, 
Whitfield 

Whitfield (North) / 
Whitfield Village 
Hall 

Perfect size and run well. Ideal distance to walk to. 
Alternatives suggested: 

Representation by a Local Resident, 
Whitfield: No comment to make 

No further comment. 

5 Local Resident, 
Sandwich 

Sandwich (South) / 
Jubilee Centre 

Works fine, access to it is a little tight but realistically aren’t many viable 
alternatives. 
Alternatives suggested: 

 No further comment. 

6 Local Resident, 
Dover 

Buckland (South) / 
Phoenix Railway 
Social Club 

With postal voting I haven’t used a polling station for years. I didn’t even 
realise my old one at Shatterlocks school wasn’t even used anymore as 
it’s not on above list.  
Alternatives suggested: Advertise postal voting particularly to people 
who complain about having to produce ID at a face to face polling station, 
it’s so much easier. 

 Shatterlocks has not been a polling station for 
several years; the use of schools as polling 
stations is avoided wherever possible as it is too 
disruptive to the school. Changes to postal vote 
applications will come into force on 31 October 
2023, and anyone with an existing postal vote 
will need to reapply within a set timeframe. There 
will be a national campaign by the Electoral 
Commission and DLUHC and DDC will advertise 
locally as well. This should help to raise 

100



Number Individual/Public Body 
making representations Area Representation received during Part 1 of the review Third party responses to representations 

received during Part 1 of the review 
ARO for the Dover / Dover & Deal Constituency & RO 

for Dover District – responses to representations 
received 

awareness of postal voting, although the option 
to choose to vote by post is given to new 
electors when they register to vote and existing 
electors on their annual canvass form, and is 
also on every polling station poll card, so the 
options are already made available to everyone. 

7 Local Resident, 
Nonington 

Nonington / 
Nonington Village 
Hall 

Perfect location as the village hall is in the centre of the village and well 
accessible by everyone. There is parking available and no problems for 
disabled access.  
Alternatives suggested: The existing village hall is perfect, there are no 
other suitable alternatives in the village. 

 No further comment. 

8 Local Resident, Deal North Deal 
(Victoria) / 
Salvation Army 
Hall, West Street 

This venue makes a lot more sense for North Deal residents than the 
previous venue at Victoria Baptist/Community Church.  
Alternatives suggested: No alternative to suggest. 

 No further comment. 

9 Local Resident, 
Sandwich 

Sandwich (North) / 
United Reform 
Church 

Alternatives suggested: All via Guildhall.  Unfortunately, the previous room used at the 
Guildhall is no longer available for use as a 
polling station, and the alternative rooms offered 
were not suitable. The United Reform Church is 
in the same area as the original station so easy 
to find and meets the requirements for use as a 
polling station. 

10 Roger Loukes, 
Parish Councillor, 
Staple Parish 
Council 

Staple / Staple 
Village Hall 

A good site, no changes are required. Plenty of parking and the Hall is 
perfectly adequate.  
Alternatives suggested: 

Representation by Lynne Ewart, Parish 
Councillor for Staple: I agree the present 
hall is a good size, has plenty of parking 
and is well lit on darker evenings. Perhaps 
more publicity regarding postal votes would 
be helpful for residents without transport. 

No further comment. 

11 Local Resident, Deal North Deal 
(Sandown) / Golf 
Road Centre 

Easy access for disabled; spacious hall well laid out for voting and always 
a friendly greeting. 
Alternatives suggested: 

 No further comment. 

12 Local Resident, Deal All areas Alternatives suggested: To increase the uptake of our younger 
generation to vote, maybe looking at an alternative or an additional venue 
where there is more footfall, such as a supermarket? A social media 
platform could be considered? 

Representation by Local Resident, Walmer: 
Can only speak for St. Saviours church 
polling station. Good access, good 
administration. Blunt pencil.  

Although these are good ideas, they are not 
practical right now. It is not currently legal to vote 
in local government or Parliamentary elections or 
referendums electronically, so a social media 
platform as a method of voting cannot be 
considered at this time.  
 
Polling stations are currently run as a paper 
based administration, and in line with the law, 
people are allocated to a particular polling station 
within a polling district. A register of electors 
entitled to vote there is used to mark off electors 
as they vote, to ensure they only vote once. 
Although it is possible to use a supermarket as a 
polling station, only people allowed to vote at 
that particular polling station would be able to 
enter, as entry to a polling station is restricted to 
the Returning Officer’s staff and people casting 
their vote. Unfortunately, portacabins in a 
supermarket car park do not fit the criteria for a 
polling station as they have no toilet facilities for 
staff who cannot leave the polling station during 
their 16 hour shift and do not fit with the new 
Elections Act requirements for being disabled 
access friendly.  

13 Local Resident, 
Sandwich 

Sandwich (North)/ 
United Reform 

This is a convenient location, but it is not as accessible for disabled 
people as the previous polling station in the Guildhall.  

 As mentioned above, the previous room used at 
the Guildhall is no longer available for use as a 

101



Number Individual/Public Body 
making representations Area Representation received during Part 1 of the review Third party responses to representations 

received during Part 1 of the review 
ARO for the Dover / Dover & Deal Constituency & RO 

for Dover District – responses to representations 
received 

Church Alternatives suggested: Guildhall - in the previous location. polling station, and the alternative rooms offered 
were not suitable. The United Reform Church 
was the best alternative in the area. 

14 Local Resident, 
Dover 

St Radigund’s 
Town (Baptist 
Church Hall) & 
Tower Hamlets 
West (One Church, 
Noah’s Ark Road) 

Both venues are easily accessible with sufficient parking and access for 
all. 
Facilities are good for both voters and the teams running the polling 
stations. 
Plenty of room, not overlooked or at risk of anyone feeling viewed during 
the process. 
Would recommend both for continued use. 
Alternatives suggested: I don’t think there are any better options than 
those already in use 

 No further comment. 

15 Local Resident, 
Lydden 

Lydden / Lydden 
Village Hall 

This is an excellent location for a Polling Station for those with cars, it has 
parking and level access to the building although requires walking up from 
the car park which could be difficult for those with walking difficulties or in 
a wheelchair. For walkers the last part of Canterbury Road needed to 
walk along does not have a footpath on either side. Crossing from the 
side of the road where the path ends, cars travel notoriously "fast" despite 
the 30mph speed limit which starts approx. 300 yards prior to this point. 
Alternatives suggested: No, only traffic calming to the area which is 
discussed on a regular basis but so far has not come to any suitable or 
successful resolution. 

 No further comment. 

16 Local Resident, 
Dover 

Buckland (South) / 
Phoenix Railway 
Social Club 

This is far too far from my house to make voting accessible. Why can’t we 
have a polling station at Charlton School as we used to have or at least at 
a venue within 15 minutes walking distance. 
Alternatives suggested: Charlton School, St Edmunds School hall, St 
Richard’s school, Charlton church hall 

Representation by a Local Resident, 
Buckland South; As mentioned Phoenix 
Club is not user friendly for those who have 
to travel either on foot or by car in order to 
cast their vote. 
Parking is charged and access to site by 
car is dangerous due to narrow access and 
restricted view due to parked cars. Also 
same entrance/exit is used by cars and 
pedestrians. An accident waiting to happen. 
As a resident living nearer town the 
distance & access issues are enough to put 
people off voting. 
Charlton Primary, St Edmunds, Barton 
primary, Shatterlocks are ideal for access & 
locality or maybe the church hall off Frith 
road or Girls Grammar sites. 

Shatterlocks School has previously been used 
as a polling station for Buckland, but as 
mentioned previously, the use of schools is 
avoided where possible, because the schools 
find it too disruptive to be used as polling 
stations. St Richard’s School is in the Town & 
Castle Ward / polling district, and Barton 
Primary, Dover Girls Grammar School and 
Charlton Church Hall are in the St Radigund’s 
Ward / polling district, rather than Buckland, so 
they are precluded from consideration. 
Unfortunately, Buckland South is a long thin 
polling district/ward, and there are no suitable 
alternative polling stations in the middle of the 
polling district, so with an absence of other non-
school options within the polling district, the 
Phoenix Railway Club is the best option for a 
DDA compliant polling station with free parking. 

17 Local Resident, 
Wingham 

Wingham/Wingham 
Village Hall 

Good appropriate venue. 
Alternatives suggested: No 

 No further comment. 

18 Local Resident, 
Dover 

St Radigund’s 
(West)/ St 
Radigund’s 
Community Centre 

I have a postal vote. 
Alternatives suggested: Should I not have a postal vote St Radigunds 
School would be much more convenient for me. 

 As mentioned in previous responses, where 
possible, the use of schools is avoided to 
prevent disruption to children’s education. St 
Radigund’s Community Centre is the best option 
for a polling station within the St Radigund’s 
(West) polling district/ward. 

19 Local Resident, Deal Middle Deal (Park) 
/ Linwood Youth 
Centre 

Great difficulty finding it. One website showed it somewhere along Mill 
Road towards Tesco. I found it after I decided to give up and go home. As 
Conservatives were low in the polls, I thought it was a deliberate policy. 
Alternatives suggested: I am a new resident. Perhaps the name is 
wrong. You would have to be a long term resident to know where it is. 

 Victoria Park is a large site and other buildings 
share the space so an extra descriptive line on 
the poll card address could be useful for people 
who are new to the area. We will amend it to 
read ‘Dover Youth Hub, Linwood Youth Centre, 
Nr Tides Leisure Centre, Park Avenue, Deal’. 
We can supply the polling staff with more polling 
station signs as well. You do not mention which 
website you tried, but there used to be a 
Linwood Youth Club along Mill Road, so the map 

102



Number Individual/Public Body 
making representations Area Representation received during Part 1 of the review Third party responses to representations 

received during Part 1 of the review 
ARO for the Dover / Dover & Deal Constituency & RO 

for Dover District – responses to representations 
received 

used may have pointed to historical data. The 
polling stations in the Dover local authority area 
are online if you follow the ‘Where is my polling 
station?’ link on the DDC website here: 
www.dover.gov.uk/elections Another useful 
website showing where polling stations are 
situated is run by the Democracy Club -  
https://wheredoivote.co.uk/  
 

20 Local Resident, Ash Ash / Ash Village 
Hall 

Keep the Polling Station where it is, do not centralise or move. 
Alternatives suggested: No alternative. To move or close the Polling 
Station in Ash will result in inconvenience and ultimately reduce the 
number of votes cast. 

Representation by a Local Resident, Ash: It 
is important from a village perspective that 
this continues to be open to support the 
local community 

There are no plans to change from Ash Village 
Hall. 

21 Local Resident, 
Shepherdswell 

Shepherdswell with 
Coldred / 
Shepherdswell 
Village Hall 

A very suitable polling station 
Alternatives suggested: 

 No further comment. 

22 Local Resident, 
Dover 

Tower Hamlets 
(East) / Curzon Hall 

This polling station is needed because a lot of the local people are elderly 
Alternatives suggested: None because the next nearest one is up a 
steep hill 

 No further comment. 

23 Local Resident, 
River 

River / River 
Village Hall 

Always well supervised and organised for voting in all elections. 
Alternatives suggested: None 

 No further comment. 

24 Local Resident, St 
Margaret’s-at-Cliffe 

St Margaret’s-at-
Cliffe / Village Hall 

The village hall polling station has always worked well in the past and I 
see no reason to change the way it is run or the location. 
Alternatives suggested: None needed. 

Representation by a Local Resident, St 
Margaret’s-at-Cliffe: I believe it essential we 
keep the Village Hall as a polling place 
because of the proportion of elderly and 
infirm members of the village community. 
 
Representation by a Local Resident, St 
Margaret’s-at-Cliffe: The venue is centrally 
located and easily accessible and is the 
right place for a polling station. 

No further comment. 

25 Local Resident, Deal Mill Hill (South) / 
Deal Pentecostal 
Church 

I think that this hall is very well suited. It is a big enough space for there to 
be adequate room for all the desks needed and the polling booth, good 
access, with a ramp for the less able at the side. The only real challenge 
is parking nearby. 
Alternatives suggested: I think that the only realistic alternative would 
be the welfare club in Cowdray Square, where parking may be less of an 
issue. 

 No further comment. 

26 Local Resident, 
Dover 

Tower Hamlets 
(West) / One Church, 
Noah’s Ark Road 

The site is easy to reach. I use a mobility scooter and was able to get 
inside to cast my vote without getting off the scooter 
Alternatives suggested: I am happy with the venue 

 No further comment. 

27 Local Resident, 
Finglesham 

Northbourne / 
Northbourne Parish 
Hall 

Very happy with Northbourne Parish Hall. I declare an interest as I am a 
Trustee for the Parish Hall and its use for elections generates hire 
income. 
Alternatives suggested: 

 No further comment. 

28 Local Resident, 
Walmer 

Walmer (St 
Saviour’s) / St 
Saviour’s Church 

Good access. Good signing 
Alternatives suggested: 

 No further comment. 

29 Local Resident, 
Dover 

St Radigund’s 
(West) / St 
Radigund’s 
Community Centre 

Good choice for venue. Old venue was St Radigunds School which meant 
another less day of schooling for children. venue easily accessible. 
Alternatives suggested: alternative is a postal vote, which is my (and my 
household) preferred choice. In the past we were shift workers and voting 
was not always accessible to us, with a postal vote, it is not only easy but 
better for those with mobility problems. Though, as a negative, I can see it 
may be open to abuse of the system if a letter gets posted in the wrong 
letterbox. 

 No further comment. 

103

http://www.dover.gov.uk/elections
https://wheredoivote.co.uk/


Number Individual/Public Body 
making representations Area Representation received during Part 1 of the review Third party responses to representations 

received during Part 1 of the review 
ARO for the Dover / Dover & Deal Constituency & RO 

for Dover District – responses to representations 
received 

30 Local Resident, 
Sandwich (South) 

Sandwich (South) / 
Jubilee Centre 

The former Phoenix Centre is ideal for Sandwich South to use as a polling 
station, it has good disability access and toilets. It is big enough and has 
parking and easy to walk too. 
Alternatives suggested: There are no other public buildings apart from 
the junior school in St Bart's Road that could really work. 

 No further comment. 

31 Local Resident, 
Whitfield 

Whitfield (North) / 
Whitfield Village 
Hall 

Handy central location with good access and well known 
Alternatives suggested: There is no obvious place with the facilities and 
convenience of the village hall 

 No further comment. 

32 Local Resident, 
Walmer 

Walmer 
(Wellington) / 
Walmer Parish Hall 

Very convenient for my husband who is 82. I have a postal vote. 
Alternatives suggested: 

 No further comment. 

33 Local Resident, 
Eastry 

Eastry / Eastry 
Village Hall 

Perfect location 
Alternatives suggested: Parish council room if the village hall is already 
booked 

 No further comment. 

34 Local Resident, 
Preston 

Preston / Preston 
Village Hall 

I would like Preston kept please as it has great parking...I do wonder, 
being a small community, that perhaps the polling hours should be 
reduced and that if people feel they couldn't make it during the reduced 
hours then perhaps they could obtain a pass e.g. within perhaps obtaining 
a postal vote time frame, to go to another larger polling station open for 
longer hours, obviously they would have to be able to commute. At 
present with cyber crime I am not in favour of online voting. 
Alternatives suggested: See previous answer. 

Representation by a Local Resident, 
Preston; The present Village 
Hall/Community Centre is very suitable for 
electoral needs, as it has off road parking 
for disabled and easy access for all. 

Changing polling hours and online voting at local 
government and parliamentary elections and 
referendums would require a change in the law 
by Parliament and is not something an ARO, RO 
or local authority can alter. There are no plans to 
change Preston polling station as part of this 
review. 

35 Aylesham Parish 
Council, Aylesham 

Aylesham / 
Aylesham Baptist 
Free Church & St 
Finbarr’s Church 

Aylesham - Aylesham Baptist Free Church and Aylesham St Finbarr's 

Church 

Aylesham Parish Council have No further comments to make. 
Alternatives suggested: None 

 No further comment. 

36 Paul Carter, Town 
Councillor, Sandwich 
Town Council  

Sandwich (South) / 
The Jubilee Centre  

A large number of residents have said that they would prefer one voting 
poll station in Sandwich and that the two ward system is not a good idea, 
they would prefer the voting to go back to one ward. Having two polling 
stations is very confusing and a lot of voters even from the Sandwich 
South area are unaware of the Jubilee Centre especially as it was called 
the Phoenix Centre recently as well. it is also difficult for parties to travel 
or allocate tellers and candidates to both stations adequately. I think one 
central polling station would work best with lots of car parking and known 
sign posting/address. I am wondering how many residents knew where 
the new, United Reform Church was in Sandwich? 
Alternatives suggested: As stated above I would have a temporary DDA 
compliant polling station in the Guildhall car park adequately sign posted 
and allowing 20 mins free parking for voting only. Everyone knows where 
the Guildhall is, it’s the central/administrative centre and well known. 

Representation by a Local Resident, 
Sandwich (North): I agree with the sound 
points that Councillor Paul Carter has 
made. In the new constituency Sandwich 
Guildhall is the most accessible and 
popular site for a polling station 

This review cannot change town and parish 
wards, only polling districts and stations. As 
there are two wards, there are two polling 
districts and there has to be a polling station in 
each polling district, unless there are no suitable 
polling stations in the area. Both venues 
currently in use are suitable polling stations. 
Using the figures on the ‘Current Polling Stations 
and Electorate’ document, Sandwich Town 
currently consists of a total of 4,193 electors, 
3,453 of which vote at polling stations. Each 
polling station can only have a maximum of 
2,250 electors, so even if Sandwich were 
unwarded, it would need a minimum of two 
polling stations based on those figures. 
 
Jubilee Road is a short residential street with the 
Jubilee Centre, formerly the Phoenix Centre, at 
the end of it. The road name had not changed 
and anyone travelling to Jubilee Road to find the 
polling station should not have had difficulties in 
finding it, no matter the name. However, a 
descriptive line can be added onto the address 
on the poll card of ‘Formerly known as the 
Phoenix Centre’ to ensure there is no confusion. 
 
In answer to your question of how many of the 
polling station voters in Sandwich (North) ward 
knew where the new venue was, all polling 
station voters in the ward were sent a letter in 
January 2023 advising of the change of venue 

104



Number Individual/Public Body 
making representations Area Representation received during Part 1 of the review Third party responses to representations 

received during Part 1 of the review 
ARO for the Dover / Dover & Deal Constituency & RO 

for Dover District – responses to representations 
received 

from the Guildhall to the United Reform Church 
and a map was enclosed showing the location of 
the new venue, as well as a postal vote 
application form in case they wished to vote by 
post instead of visiting the new station. The full 
address would also have appeared on the poll 
card, should anyone not have received the 
January letter so the majority, if not all, polling 
station voters would have had access to the 
information of where the new station was sited. 
 
A small portacabin, (large enough for one polling 
station) was quoted at over £3,000 for one 
weeks hire (the minimum hire period) when last 
quoted in 2018. As the cost is covered by the 
Town Council for their own elections, it is not a 
justifiable cost, especially when the two venues 
we already use are much more suitable – they 
are DDA compliant, and they have toilet facilities 
inside the building for the staff who cannot leave 
the polling station during their 16 hour shift.   

37 Tricia Marshall. 
Acting Returning 
Officer for the future 
Herne Bay and 
Sandwich 
Parliamentary 
Constituency  

Herne Bay and 
Sandwich future 
Parliamentary 
Constituency 

I am happy with the proposed arrangements in respect of the areas 
that fall within the Herne Bay and Sandwich constituency.  

 No further comment. 

 

105



Electoral Commission guidance states there should be no more 
than 2,250 electors allocated to vote at each polling station

Current 
Constituency

Future 
Constituency District Ward Parish/Parish Ward

Polling 
District 
Letters 

(Current)

Polling 
District 
Letters 

(Amended)

Polling District Name(s) 
(New)

Polling Place / Polling Station used at last election    (May 
2023)

Dover Dover & Deal Alkham & Capel-le-Ferne Alkham Parish PAK PAK Alkham Alkham Village Hall, Hogbrook Hill, Alkham, Dover

Dover Dover & Deal Alkham & Capel-le-Ferne Capel-le-Ferne Parish PCF PCF Capel-le-Ferne Capel-Le-Ferne Village Hall (Small Hall), Lancaster Avenue, Capel-
Le-Ferne, Folkestone, Kent

Dover Dover & Deal Alkham & Capel-le-Ferne Hougham Without Parish PHM PHM Hougham Hougham Village Hall, West Hougham, Dover

PAY1 Aylesham (West) Aylesham Baptist Free Church, Dorman Avenue South, Aylesham 

PAY2 Aylesham (East) St Finbarr`s Church, Market Place, Aylesham, Kent 

Dover Dover & Deal Aylesham, Eythorne & Shepherdswell Eythorne Parish/Eythorne Ward / 
Barfestone Ward

PEX1, PEX2 PEX1,PEX2 Eythorne, Barfrestone Eythorne Baptist Church Hall, Chapel Hill, Eythorne, Dover, Kent

Dover Dover & Deal Aylesham, Eythorne & Shepherdswell Eythorne Parish/ Elvington Ward PEX3 PEX3 Elvington Elvington Community Centre, St John`s Road, Elvington, Dover, 
Kent

Dover Dover & Deal Aylesham, Eythorne & Shepherdswell Nonington Parish PNN PNN Nonington Nonington Village Hall, Easole Street, Nonington, Dover

Dover Dover & Deal Aylesham, Eythorne & Shepherdswell Shepherdswell with Coldred 
Parish/Shepherdswell Ward / Coldred Ward

PSL1, PSL2 PSL1,PSL2 Shepherdswell, Coldred Shepherdswell Village Hall, Coxhill, Shepherdswell

Dover Dover & Deal Buckland Dover Town/Buckland Ward BC1 BC1 Buckland (North) Buckland Community Centre, Roosevelt Road, Dover

Dover Dover & Deal Buckland Dover Town/Buckland Ward BC2 BC2 Buckland (South) The Phoenix Railway Social Club, Crabble Road, Dover

Dover Dover & Deal Dover Downs & River Denton with Wootton Parish PDD PDD Denton Denton Village Hall, The Street, Denton

Dover Dover & Deal Dover Downs & River Denton with Wootton Parish PDW PDW Wootton Wootton Village Hall, Wootton Lane, Wootton

Dover Dover & Deal Dover Downs & River Lydden Parish PLN PLN Lydden Lydden Village Hall, 83 Canterbury Road, Lydden, Dover

River Village Hall, Common Lane, River, Dover, Kent

River Village Hall, Common Lane, River, Dover, Kent

Dover Dover & Deal Dover Downs & River Temple Ewell Parish PTE PTE Temple Ewell Temple Ewell Village Hall, 187 London Road, Temple Ewell, Dover

Dover Dover & Deal Eastry Rural Eastry Parish PEA PEA Eastry Eastry Village Hall, High Street, Eastry, Sandwich, Kent

Dover Dover & Deal Eastry Rural Northbourne Parish PNR PNR Northbourne Northbourne Parish Hall, The Drove, Northbourne

Dover Dover & Deal Eastry Rural Sholden Parish/ Sholden Ward PSHE PSHE Eastry Rural (Sholden) Scout H.Q., The Street, Sholden, Deal

Dover Dover & Deal Eastry Rural Sutton Parish PSU PSU Sutton Sutton Parish Community Centre, Downs Road, East Studdal, 
Dover

Dover Dover & Deal Eastry Rural Tilmanstone Parish PTI PTI Tilmanstone Tilmanstone Village Hall, Chapel Road, Tilmanstone, Deal

Proposed Polling District / Polling Places Scheme Changes marked in red

Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places (Parliamentary Elections) Regulations 2006

PAY

PRV PRV

Dover & Deal Aylesham, Eythorne & ShepherdswellDover

Dover

Aylesham Parish

Dover & Deal Dover Downs & River River Parish River

106



Electoral Commission guidance states there should be no more 
than 2,250 electors allocated to vote at each polling station

Current 
Constituency

Future 
Constituency District Ward Parish/Parish Ward

Polling 
District 
Letters 

(Current)

Polling 
District 
Letters 

(Amended)

Polling District Name(s) 
(New)

Polling Place / Polling Station used at last election    (May 
2023)

Proposed Polling District / Polling Places Scheme Changes marked in red

Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places (Parliamentary Elections) Regulations 2006

South Thanet Dover & Deal Eastry Rural Worth Parish/Village Ward TWR1 PWR Eastry Rural (Worth Village) Worth Parish Hall, The Street, Worth, Deal

Dover Dover & Deal Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-Cliffe Great Mongeham  Parish PGM PGM Great Mongeham Great Mongeham Parish Hall, 170 Mongeham Road, Deal

Dover Dover & Deal Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-Cliffe Guston Parish PGS PGS Guston Burgoyne Heights Community Centre, Burgoyne Heights, Guston, 
Dover

Dover Dover & Deal Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-Cliffe Langdon Parish PLG PLG East Langdon East Langdon Parish Hall, The Street, East Langdon, Dover

Dover Dover & Deal Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-Cliffe Ringwould with Kingsdown Parish PRG PRG Ringwould Ringwould Village Hall, Dover Road, Ringwould, Deal

Dover Dover & Deal Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-Cliffe Ringwould with Kingsdown Parish PRK PRK Kingsdown Kingsdown & Ringwould CE School, Glen Road, Kingsdown, Deal

Dover Dover & Deal Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-Cliffe Ripple Parish PRP PRP Ripple Ripple Village Hall, Sutton Road, Ripple, Deal

Dover Dover & Deal Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-Cliffe St Margaret's-at-Cliffe Parish PSM PSM St Margaret's-at-Cliffe St Margaret`s-At-Cliffe Village Hall, Reach Road, St Margaret`s -At- 
Cliffe
St Martin`s Church Hall, Church Road, Dover

St Martin`s Church Hall, Church Road, Dover

Dover Dover & Deal Middle Deal Deal Town/Middle Deal Ward AMD1 AMD1 Middle Deal (Manor) Deal Christian Fellowship Hall, Sutherland Road, Deal

Dover Dover & Deal Middle Deal Deal Town/Middle Deal Ward AMD2 AMD2 Middle Deal (Park) Linwood Youth Centre, Victoria Park, Park Avenue, Deal

Dover Dover & Deal Middle Deal Deal Town/Middle Deal Ward AMD3 AMD3 Middle Deal (Upper) Warden House School, Birdwood Avenue, Deal

Dover Dover & Deal Middle Deal Sholden Parish/Hyton Ward PSHM PSHM Middle Deal (Hyton) Warden House School, Birdwood Avenue, Deal

Dover Dover & Deal Mill Hill Deal Town/Mill Hill Ward AMH1 AMH1 Mill Hill (South) Deal Pentecostal Church, 69 Mill Hill, Deal, Kent

Dover Dover & Deal Mill Hill Deal Town/Mill Hill Ward AMH2 AMH2 Mill Hill (North) The Godric Centre, Rear of St John`s R C Church, St Richard`s 
Road, Deal

Dover Dover & Deal Mill Hill Deal Town/Mill Hill Ward AMH3 AMH3 Mill Hill (West) The Sports Centre, Off Cavell Square, Deal

Dover Dover & Deal North Deal Deal Town/North Deal Ward / Sholden 
Parish/ Tenants Hill Ward

AN1,PSHN AN1,PSHN North Deal (Sandown), 
North Deal (Tenants Hill)

The Golf Road Centre, 28 Golf Road, Deal, Kent

Dover Dover & Deal North Deal Deal Town/North Deal Ward AN2 AN2 North Deal (St Andrews) Cleary Hall, Landmark Centre, 129 High Street, Deal

Dover Dover & Deal North Deal Deal Town/North Deal Ward AN3 AN3 North Deal (Victoria) Salvation Army Hall, 56 West Street, Deal, Kent

Dover Dover & Deal North Deal Walmer Parish/Gladstone Ward AW4N AW4N North Deal (Gladstone) Walmer Sea Scout Hall, Marine Road, Walmer, Deal, Kent

Dover Dover & Deal St Radigund's Dover Town/St Radigund's Ward BR1 BR1 St Radigund's (West) St Radigunds Community Centre, Poulton Close, Dover, Kent

BME BMEDover Dover & Deal Maxton & Elms Vale Dover Town /Maxton and Elms Vale Ward Maxton & Elms Vale

107



Electoral Commission guidance states there should be no more 
than 2,250 electors allocated to vote at each polling station

Current 
Constituency

Future 
Constituency District Ward Parish/Parish Ward

Polling 
District 
Letters 

(Current)

Polling 
District 
Letters 

(Amended)

Polling District Name(s) 
(New)

Polling Place / Polling Station used at last election    (May 
2023)

Proposed Polling District / Polling Places Scheme Changes marked in red

Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places (Parliamentary Elections) Regulations 2006

Dover Dover & Deal St Radigund's Dover Town/St Radigund's Ward BR2 BR2 St Radigund's (East) ACF Hall, London Road, Dover, Kent

Dover Dover & Deal St Radigund's Dover Town/St Radigund's Ward BR3 BR3 St Radigund's (Town) Dover Baptist Church Hall, 27-32 Maison Dieu Road, Dover

Dover Dover & Deal Tower Hamlets Dover Town/Tower Hamlets Ward BTH1 BTH1 Tower Hamlets (West) One Church, Noah`s Ark Road, Dover, Kent

Dover Dover & Deal Tower Hamlets Dover Town/Tower Hamlets Ward BTH2 BTH2 Tower Hamlets (East) Curzon Hall, Curzon Road, Dover

Dover Dover & Deal Town & Castle Dover Town/Town and Castle Ward BT1 BT1 Town & Castle (Priory) Clarendon and Westbury Community Centre, Belgrave Road, 
Dover

Dover Dover & Deal Town & Castle DoverTown /Town and Castle Ward BT2 BT2 Town & Castle (Castle) St Mary`s Parish Centre, Dieu Stone Lane, Dover

Dover Dover & Deal Town & Castle Dover Town/Town and Castle Ward BT3 BT3 Town & Castle (Aycliffe) Aycliffe Community Primary School, St Davids Avenue, Aycliffe, 
Dover

Dover Dover & Deal Town & Castle Dover Town/Town and Castle Ward BT4 BT4 Town & Castle (Redoubt) Dover Unitarian Church Hall, Adrian Street, Dover, Kent

Dover Dover & Deal Walmer Walmer Parish/Upper Walmer Ward AW1 AW1 Walmer (Upper Walmer) Walmer Chapel (Rear Hall), 30 Station Road, Walmer, Deal

Dover Dover & Deal Walmer Walmer Parish/Wellington Ward AW2 AW2 Walmer (Wellington) Walmer Parish Hall, Dover Road, Walmer, Deal

Dover Dover & Deal Walmer Walmer Parish/St Saviour's Ward AW3 AW3 Walmer (St Saviour's) St Saviour`s Church, The Strand, Walmer, Deal

Dover Dover & Deal Whitfield Dover Town/Buckland Ward BCW1 BCW1 Whitfield (Rokesley) Dover Christ Church Academy, Melbourne Avenue, Whitfield, 
Dover, Kent
Whitfield Village Hall, Sandwich Road, Whitfield, Dover

Whitfield Village Hall, Sandwich Road, Whitfield, Dover

Dover Dover & Deal Whitfield Whitfield Parish PWH2 PWH2 Whitfield (South) Dover Christ Church Academy, Melbourne Avenue, Whitfield, 
Dover, Kent
Ash Village Hall - Main Hall, Queens Road, Ash, Canterbury

Ash Village Hall - Main Hall, Queens Road, Ash, Canterbury  

South Thanet Herne Bay & 
Sandwich

Little Stour & Ashstone Goodnestone Parish TGD XGD Goodnestone Goodnestone Village Hall, The Street, Goodnestone, Canterbury

South Thanet Herne Bay & 
Sandwich

Little Stour & Ashstone Preston Parish TPR XPR Preston Preston Village Hall, Mill Lane, Preston, Canterbury

South Thanet Herne Bay & 
Sandwich

Little Stour & Ashstone Staple Parish TSP XSP Staple Staple Village Hall, Mill Road, Staple, Canterbury

South Thanet Herne Bay & 
Sandwich

Little Stour & Ashstone Stourmouth Parish TST XST Stourmouth The Rising Sun Inn, The Street, East Stourmouth

South Thanet Herne Bay & 
Sandwich

Little Stour & Ashstone Wingham Parish TWG XWG Wingham Wingham Village Hall, School Lane, Wingham, Canterbury

Dover

South Thanet TAS XAS

PWH1 PWH1

AshAsh ParishHerne Bay & 
Sandwich Little Stour & Ashstone

Dover & Deal Whitfield Whitfield Parish Whitfield (North)

108



Electoral Commission guidance states there should be no more 
than 2,250 electors allocated to vote at each polling station

Current 
Constituency

Future 
Constituency District Ward Parish/Parish Ward

Polling 
District 
Letters 

(Current)

Polling 
District 
Letters 

(Amended)

Polling District Name(s) 
(New)

Polling Place / Polling Station used at last election    (May 
2023)

Proposed Polling District / Polling Places Scheme Changes marked in red

Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places (Parliamentary Elections) Regulations 2006

South Thanet Herne Bay & 
Sandwich

Sandwich Sandwich Town/Sandwich North Ward / 
Worth Parish/Sandwich Bay Ward

TSA,TWR2 XSA,XWR Sandwich (North), Sandwich 
(Sandwich Bay)

Sandwich United Reformed Church, 12 Cattle Market, Sandwich, 
Kent

South Thanet Herne Bay & 
Sandwich

Sandwich Sandwich Town/Sandwich South Ward TSB XSB Sandwich (South) The Jubilee Centre, Jubilee Road, Sandwich

South Thanet Herne Bay & 
Sandwich

Sandwich Woodnesborough Parish TWN XWN Woodnesborough Woodnesborough Village Hall, Elmwood Park, Woodnesborough

109



Subject: CORPORATE PLAN 2023 to 2027 

Meeting and Date: Council - 29 November 2023 

Report of: Nadeem Aziz, Chief Executive 

Classification: UNRESTRICTED 

Purpose of the report: To present the Council’s revised Corporate Plan 2023 to 2027. 

Recommendation: (a) That Council approve and adopt the Council’s revised 
Corporate Plan 2023 to 2027. 

(b) That Council authorise the Head of Corporate Services and 
Democracy, in consultation with the Leader of the Council, to 
make any necessary minor textual changes following full 
Council.  

(c) That Council authorise the Head of Corporate Services and 
Democracy, in consultation with the Leader of the Council, to 
agree final design and artwork before publication.  

 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 Following the local elections, which saw a change in administration, a new Corporate Plan 

has been prepared, setting out the Council’s revised vision and priorities for the next four 
years. This has been developed based on the aspirations of the new administration for the 
district.  
 

1.2 The Corporate Plan 2023 to 2027 replaces the Corporate Plan 2020 to 2024.  
 

2. Introduction and Background 
 
2.1 The Corporate Plan (Plan) sets out the vision, aims and priorities for the district and the 

Council over the next four years. The Plan is the Council’s main strategic document, 
providing a framework for the delivery of services, and provides the context for all other 
strategies and plans that may be produced. 
 

2.2 The Plan directs and guides the development of service plans, the budget, and the 
direction of the Council and is a key component of good governance. Ensuring that efforts 
and resources are directed to the right areas is particularly important given the scale of 
financial challenge and resource restraint the Council is experiencing and the challenges 
facing the district.   
 

2.3 The Council’s vision is “Building a better and fairer future”.  To deliver this, four 
strategic themes are needed, summed up as follows:  

 
1. Improving our housing. 
2. Growing our economy. 
3. Protecting our environment. 
4. Supporting our communities. 

110

Agenda Item No 6



Dover District Council 

A fifth ambition for the Council underpins these strategic themes: Modernising 
our Council.  
 

2.4 The strategic themes are interdependent, allowing for alignment across the themes 
and ensuring that no theme operates in isolation. Under each strategic theme are 
actions that will be the focus over the term of the Plan. 

 
2.5 The Council will review its Performance Management Framework (PMF) to track 

delivery against the new Corporate Priorities. The first set of reports on these will be 
from the start of the next financial year (i.e., from April 2024 onwards). The PMF 
provides the Executive (the Cabinet), Corporate Management Team, Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, and the public with the necessary assurance that performance 
management is being undertaken rigorously and transparently, with appropriate 
oversight and reporting of performance in place.  
 

2.6 Activities within the Corporate Plan are subject to individual risk and equality impact 
assessments where applicable.   

 
2.7 The priorities outlined in this Plan deliver on the issues and challenges facing the district 

highlighted in the Dover District Profile report and cover the manifesto commitments 
made by the new administration.   

 
2.8 The Plan will be kept under review, particularly in circumstances where the Council is 

facing new challenges or opportunities, whether these are local, regional, or national. 
 
2.9 At the time of drafting the Plan, there are several external unknowns that could have a 

significant impact on local government. These unknowns include, but are not limited to, 
economic uncertainty, demand and cost pressures, review of local government finance, 
devolution, exit from the EU and measures being introduced through the Levelling Up 
and Regeneration Bill.  

 
3 Identification of Options 
 
3.1 Approve and adopt the Corporate Plan 2023 to 2027, as is, and communicate the 

priorities and actions contained. 
 
3.2 Approve and adopt the Corporate Plan 2023 to 2027, with minor changes, and 

communicate the priorities and actions contained. 
 
3.3 Not approve the Corporate Plan 2023 to 2027, leaving the Corporate Plan 2020 to 

2024, as the main Plan guiding the Council. As the Corporate Plan is an identified 
document in the Council’s Policy Framework, a new Corporate Plan would need to 
be adopted prior to the end of 2024. If Members choose not to approve the new 
Corporate Plan, it would be helpful to officers for Members to identify areas of 
concern that can be addressed. 

  

111



4 Evaluation of Options 
 
4.1 The recommended option is to approve the Corporate Plan 2023 to 2027 (as is or with 

minor changes). The Corporate Plan is important in setting out the Council’s priorities 
for the next four years and focusing our resources and energies on the right priorities. 
With the change in political leadership, there is a desire to set a new vision and priorities 
for the next four years and deliver on the pledges made to residents and the community 
in the election manifesto.  

 
4.2 Failure to approve a revised Corporate Plan would not allow clarity of priorities, nor 

would it address the current Plan being approved under the previous administration. 
The existing Corporate Plan expires in 2024, and a new Plan will be required to bring 
together the Council’s priorities and activities.  
 

5 Resource Implications 

5.1 The Corporate Plan is aligned with the forthcoming budget and the objectives and 
goals set out in the Plan will help to guide future resource allocation decisions, over 
the next four years. All financial implications of the Council’s priorities and approach 
will be considered as part of Budget discussions and decision-making. 

6 Climate Change and Environmental Implications  

6.1 The Corporate Plan is aligned with achieving net zero for council operations by 2030. 
The objectives and aims set out in the Plan will support the overall district to 
decarbonise for the 2050 net zero target. Over the next four years the plan will provide 
opportunities for collaborations to support the district moving towards a circular 
economy with higher reuse and recycling rates.  

7 Corporate Implications 
 
7.1 Comment from the Section 151 Officer: “As recognised in the Corporate Plan, all local 

authorities are under significant financial pressures with unprecedented numbers of 
s114 reports being written or considered. This is due to a combination of factors. In 
some cases, councils have made imprudent decisions. However, for the great majority 
of councils the underlying causes include inflation, increasing demand for services and 
a system of local government finance that is now volatile, incoherent, no longer 
functional and transfers the bulk of the risk onto individual councils rather than 
spreading the risks across the sector.  Dover District Council is not immune to these 
pressures. The Council continues to manage its budgets and reserves prudently but 
will have to adjust the services that it provides from the General Fund, the Housing 
Revenue Account, and the capital programme in accordance with the limitations of its 
financial resources. This will be reflected in the 2024/25 budget and the Medium-Term 
Financial Plan” (MD). 

 
7.1 Comment from the Solicitor to the Council: “The Solicitor to the Council has been 

consulted in the preparation of this report and has no further comments to make” (HR). 
 

112



7.3 Comment from the Equalities Officer: “This report seeking approval to adopt the 
Corporate Plan 2023 to 2027 does not specifically highlight any equality implications, 
however in discharging their duties members are required to comply with the public 
sector equality duty as set out in Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/section/149” (KM). 
 

8 Appendices 
Appendix 1: Corporate Plan 2023 to 2027.  

 

9 Background Papers 
 None 
 
 
Contact Officer:  Caroline Hargreaves, Leadership Support Officer. 

113

https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.legislation.gov.uk%2Fukpga%2F2010%2F15%2Fsection%2F149&data=05%7C01%7CCaroline.Hargreaves%40DOVER.GOV.UK%7C5aaed834243546decb3108dbe68101d7%7C97d0cb53199d4c70a001375e8c953735%7C0%7C0%7C638357213980311321%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=VD9u90d5urQFpGixf0mRAah6W3z1taj%2BRlNO5Snu39M%3D&reserved=0


 

 

Dover District Council Corporate Plan 2023 to 2027: 
Building a better and fairer future. 

 
A. Welcome. 
 
Welcome to our new Corporate Plan 2023 to 2027: ‘Building a better and fairer future’.  
  
Following the local elections, which saw the Labour Party take majority control over the Council for 
the first time since 1995, we have prepared a new Corporate Plan setting out our revised priorities 
for the next four years.   
  
We want to improve the quality of our housing and build new council houses for rent. We want to 
stimulate investment in the district, with vibrant town centres, enhanced green spaces and an 
inclusive local economy that delivers jobs and opportunities for everyone. We want to see our 
communities flourish, with a focus on improving health and well-being, raising skill levels, and 
supporting our most vulnerable residents. We are also responsible for future generations of the 
district’s residents, so we will reduce our carbon footprint whilst working towards becoming carbon 
neutral in our operations. We also want to make the Council more open, transparent, and inclusive.  
  
This Corporate Plan will run until 2027 and has four strategic themes, with a fifth ambition for our 
Council underpinning them.  These are:  
  

1. Improving our housing. 
2. Growing our economy. 
3. Protecting our environment. 
4. Supporting our communities. 
5. Modernising our Council.  

  
Collectively, these themes add up to building a more environmentally, socially, and economically 
sustainable district. You can learn more about these themes and the actions supporting them in the 
following pages.  
  
Our ambitions go beyond what we can deliver on our own, and we will, therefore, collaborate with 
our partners and communities to bring greater and lasting benefits to the district.  
  
Like many councils across the country, after a decade of underfunding by Central government, we 
face significant financial constraints and uncertainties from the wider economic climate and the 
impact of local government finance reforms. In addition, we know that our businesses and 
communities are also facing pressures, such as the cost-of-living crisis, the local health, social and 
economic consequences of the pandemic and deep-rooted inequalities across the district.  
  
Notwithstanding the tremendous challenges ahead, we remain committed to our values and to 
working to ensure the future prosperity of the district. We recognise that we have a crucial 
community leadership role in enabling our communities' long-term sustainability and resilience. 
 

114



 

 

Your new Labour administration is ambitious for the district’s future, and we look forward to 
delivering the best services we can to our communities and businesses and building a better and 
fairer future for us all.  
 
 
 
Cllr Kevin Mills, Leader of the Council.  

  

115



 

 

B. About our corporate plan.  

 

1. Our vision, aims, and priority activities.  
 

a) The corporate plan sets out our vision for the district and the Council over the next four years. 
It describes our aims and the priority activities we will focus on delivering.  

b) The corporate plan does not try to capture everything we do – instead, it provides a framework 
for our decisions – how we prioritise and allocate the resources we have available to achieve 
these priorities. It is the key strategy from which our budget, service plans, and individual 
objectives cascade. 

c) We have centred this corporate plan around our vision of ‘building a better and fairer future’. 
This vision recognises the many and varied strengths of the district but also that we, and our 
partners, have a role in intervening where particular challenges exist to ensure that 
individuals, businesses, and communities can reach their full potential. 

d) The strategic themes are interdependent, allowing for alignment across the themes and 
ensuring that no theme operates in isolation.  

e) By defining a clear set of ambitions and commitments, our corporate plan also helps residents 
hold us accountable for our performance and challenge us to improve. By aligning our 
resources and activities to the corporate plan, we can focus on turning public money into 
results for our communities.  

f) The corporate plan informs other key strategies and plans, whether Council documents or 
those of our partners. These documents vary widely in purpose, scope, and timescale. The 
corporate plan does not replace these other documents but should shape them whenever they 
are updated. 

g) We are committed to ensuring sound governance principles and management practices 
across all business activities to ensure we do the right things openly, honestly, and 
transparently. 

h) Although our aims will likely remain constant over the medium term, the rapidly changing 
environment within which we operate means we will review the plan annually. This review 
allows us to respond to new emerging issues and take advantage of new funding 
opportunities with new projects and programmes of work. 

i) Whilst this corporate plan focuses primarily on the next four years, we also look ahead to the 
longer term, ensuring our vision remains fit for future generations. 

j) You can find details of all our services on our website: www.dover.gov.uk.   
 

2. A sense of place. 
 
a) In addition to the aims and ambitions you would expect to see in a corporate plan, we are 

keen to extend our role as a ‘leader of place’. 
 

Our corporate plan sets the direction for Dover District Council. 
It will help us turn ambition into action and work towards our 

vision of building a better and fairer future.

116

http://www.dover.gov.uk/


 

 

b) We aspire to promote the district as a distinct location; a leading destination to live, work, visit, 
learn, and invest - with excellent services that meet local needs.  

c) We will also advocate on behalf of the district and public service provision generally, using our 
influence as a Council for the broader good of the district, its residents, visitors, businesses, 
and communities. 

d) Building a better and fairer future is the focus of our vision – one that is greener and healthier, 
where people are actively engaged in their communities and can benefit from opportunities 
that arise. 

e) All of this contributes towards the sense of place that makes the district distinct and gives 
people the confidence to say they are proud to live here, that we provide good quality 
services, offer value for money and that they are satisfied with how we run things. 

 

3. Our commitment to equality, diversity, and inclusion for all residents.  
 

a) This corporate plan is inclusive, and we want to help improve the quality of life and life 
chances for everyone in the district. We are committed to being a fair, compassionate, and 
inclusive Council that genuinely values difference and makes everyone feel safe and belong. 

b) We will demonstrate this commitment by delivering accessible, fair services as an employer, 
provider of services and community leader. By showing we value all aspects of the 
community, we are strengthening it. 

c) We celebrate diversity and the contribution different groups make to the district. This 
commitment is about everything we do and every decision we make. We do not discriminate 
against someone because of perceived differences. It also means that we take an active role 
as a leader in the community and remove barriers to participation and access for all members 
of the community. 

d) We can do this by implementing robust policies. For example: 
• Taking appropriate action when we identify unlawful discrimination. 
• Countering misinformation and rumours linked to immigration and particular groups that 

feed negative stereotypes and prejudices and reinforce hostile attitudes.  
• Consulting with community groups, such as disability awareness groups. 
• Supporting and promoting events such as Pride Month.  

  

117



 

 

C. Our strategic priorities.  
 

1. Improving our housing.   
Access to a range of decent homes that meet local needs. 

 
Access to affordable housing remains a challenge across this district and the country. We 
will facilitate quality, choice, and diversity in the housing market, assist in meeting housing 
needs and demand and deliver high-quality housing-related services. 

 
Providing decent, safe, and affordable homes for local people.  

a) Providing at least an average of 200 additional council homes (new build and acquisitions) 
each year (800 in total over the term of this plan). We will use these homes for either general 
needs or temporary accommodation purposes. 

b) Creating a long-term strategy to support the provision of affordable housing and more housing 
choice that meets the needs of our residents.  

c) Maximising external capital funding opportunities and developer contributions for affordable 
housing or social rented schemes.  

d) Promoting and enabling the Community-Led Housing Programme.  
e) Working to improve the standards in privately rented accommodation.  
f) Collaborating with partners to reduce the number of empty homes, buildings, and properties in 

the district, especially within our Town Centres (Dover, Deal and Sandwich). 
 
Supporting our tenants through a high-quality, well-managed service.  

g) Driving continuous improvement of our housing services in line with legislative reform.  
h) Undertaking refurbishments and improving the energy efficiency of our existing Council 

housing to at least decent home standard, as resources allow.   
i) Carrying out a stock condition survey and developing a new Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

Business Plan framework for long-term strategic planning, maintenance, maximising rental 
income, and investment in and increasing our housing stock.  

j) Proactively managing our neighbourhoods and supporting our tenants through community 
engagement, community safety initiatives, regulation, and enforcement.  
 
Supporting responsible development in the district. 

k) Using brownfield sites, such as council-owned garages and parking sites, to provide strategic 
housing developments, mixed-use and/or affordable homes. 

l) Identifying opportunities for low-emission and green developments.  
m) Seeking low-cost construction solutions to support the provision of housing and affordable 

homes.  
 

Preventing homelessness and use of temporary accommodation. 
n) Making the best use of government homelessness and rough sleeper grant funding 

opportunities. 
o) Increasing our number of homes for temporary accommodation to alleviate homelessness (as 

part of our overall ambition set out in a) above)  
p) Working collaboratively with other statutory and voluntary sector agencies to support 

homeless people and those facing homelessness. 

118



 

 

2. Growing our economy.  
Dover District to be a leading destination to live, work, visit, learn, and invest.   

 
We are passionate about growing an inclusive, sustainable economy that works for all, leaving 
no one behind. Placing economic opportunity at the centre of the district’s renewal and 
prosperity, we will nurture diverse, distinctive, and vibrant places – especially within our town 
centres - which widen opportunity and unlock talent.  
 
Building on the district’s strengths, we will work to stimulate new development, funding, and 
investment, bringing better, well-paid jobs and accommodation (employment space, learning 
space and housing) to the area while also upskilling the local workforce to meet the future 
needs of employers. Seeking to capitalise on innovation, digital, creative, tourism, maritime, 
and green growth potential, we will become a place of opportunity where young people can 
thrive, helping us to retain and attract young talent to the district. 
 

Promoting the district as 'open for business’ and encouraging growth, visitors, 
and inward investment.  

a) Developing an economic identity for the district capitalising on our high-speed rail connections 
to London, proximity to Europe, and gateway location.    

b) Continuing to develop the “Invest in Dover” and “White Cliffs Country” brands/websites/social 
media as critical tools for highlighting opportunities for businesses and visitors.  

c) Delivering a Local Plan that supports high-quality employment, housing, and tourism sites to 
secure investment and support infrastructure. 

d) Delivering our adopted Economic Growth Strategy and Tourism and Visitor Economy Strategy 
to directly support place, tourism, economic development, and inward investment.  

e) Focusing on regenerating Dover Town through delivering the Dover Beacon (Bench Street) 
catalyst project, a mixed-use development with a further education (digital and creative) 
campus, business, and creative centres, as well as improvements to the underpass and public 
realm. 

f) Revitalising our high streets to meet the changing needs of the communities and visitors they 
serve, including through new cultural, visitor, housing, and leisure opportunities.  

g) Providing safe, clean, well-managed town centres with appropriate facilities and 
maintenance.  

h) Working with partners to deliver a range of business support initiatives, advice, and funding 
opportunities.  

i) Maximising the social and economic impact of our procurement and spending to benefit local 
businesses, local jobs, and community development. 

j) Reviewing car parking assets and policies to enable our regeneration aspirations and be fit for 
purpose to support residents, businesses, and visitor needs.  

k) Working to secure the success of current employment sites, such as Discovery Park, Port of 
Dover, and White Cliffs Business Park, ensuring a mixed economic base, including life 
sciences, pharmaceuticals, manufacturing, digital, maritime, logistics, and green growth. 

l) Collaborating with key partners to align strategic plans to encourage further investment by 
enabling the district to be an innovation hub, delivering new initiatives and a green agenda.  

m) Supporting the rollout and take-up of new technologies, such as superfast broadband and 5G.  
n) Working with local partners, including EKC Group, to develop skills and training programmes 

linked to existing and new sectors and investments in the district. 

119



 

 

o) Keep the district moving by lobbying for significant infrastructure improvements and transport 
links such as the A2/M2/ A258, Lower Thames Crossing and parts of the A256, strategic HGV 
facilities and last-mile solutions. 

 
 

  
  

120



 

 

3. Protecting our environment.  
A cleaner and greener district for everyone to enjoy.  

 
The environment remains a national priority, and our commitment to protecting the space we 
live in, use, visit, and enjoy has never been greater. Raising awareness and reducing our 
environmental impact will play an essential role in everything we do in the future. At the latest, 
the Council aims to become a net zero carbon emitter by 2030.  
 
Recognising the importance of the environment in the decisions we make. 

a) Delivering the targets in our climate emergency action plan. 
b) Ensuring all our policies, including the Local Plan, protect and enhance our heritage and 

environment. 
c) Having robust policies to tackle environmental crimes and breaches of planning control.  
d) Making our buildings, vehicles, and other assets low-carbon or carbon-neutral and minimising 

our footprint of pollution and other emissions. 
e) Promoting and supporting the development and adoption of renewable energy sources within 

the Council and with partners, businesses, and residents. 
f) Supporting the installation of electric vehicle charging points across the district.  

 

Encouraging a clean, green, and safe place to live, work, visit, learn and invest. 
g) Seeking to introduce carbon offset schemes. 
h) Working with communities, visitors, and residents to ensure our parks and open spaces are 

vibrant, clean, easy to access, safe, and welcoming places to visit for all local people.  
i) Supporting biodiversity in our greenspaces, parkland and wider countryside and protect 

wildlife and their natural habitats. 
j) Implementing measures to improve air quality across the district, including cleaner transport 

and planting more trees.  
k) Working with partners, including Kent County Council, to develop walking and cycling 

infrastructure, secure active travel options and lobby for improvements to public transport.   
l) Working with partners to encourage greater resident and visitor use of public transport, bus 

and train, and lobby for related promotional support. 
 
Improving and enhancing our waste management services.  

m) Promoting a circular economy by designing out waste in our services. 
n) Encouraging residents to reduce the residual waste they produce, improve recycling rates, 

and tackle contamination through targeted campaigns. 
o) Reducing incidents of fly-tipping through proactive enforcement and resident education.  

 

Supporting and engaging the community to protect their environment. 
p) Encouraging residents, visitors, and businesses to be energy efficient and minimise pollution 

and carbon emissions.  
q) Addressing the incidence and effects of environmental crimes and air, land, and water 

pollution through enforcement and educational activities.  
r) Working to reduce the risks to communities and places from climate change through 

proactively strengthening flood and other defences and working with businesses and 
communities to improve resilience and mitigation.  

121



 

 

4. Supporting our communities. 
Safe and strong communities where residents live happy, healthy, and 
independent lives.  
 
We want the district to be a place where everyone can play a positive role in their community 
and be proud to call the district home. We will help our residents lead long, happy, and 
productive lives by improving their health and economic and social well-being. 
 
Encouraging residents to lead active, healthy, and fulfilling lifestyles. 

a) Working with partners, residents, and other stakeholders to reduce health inequalities by 
tackling the wider determinants of health (such as built and natural environment, education, 
income, work, crime, and social capital).    

b) Continue investing in and enhancing the district’s leisure, well-being, cultural and visitor 
facilities, and services, such as local parks, open spaces, museums, information centres and 
pier.  

c) Increasing participation in sports and physical activity by making it accessible for all.  
d) Maximising green spaces to promote health and well-being, such as installing outdoor gyms.  
e) Supporting healthy living initiatives and programmes that reduce social isolation and help 

people to stay active and independent.  
 

Supporting, strengthening, and sustaining communities.  
f) Working collaboratively across sectors to develop a district solution to address the rising cost- 

of-living and reduce poverty, specifically focusing on food, fuel, housing, and digital inclusion. 
g) Continuing to help the voluntary and community sector organisations through the grant 

process and other support to provide vital services to residents.  
h) Seeking new ways of bringing community funding into the district.  
i) Supporting local groups in delivering a range of events and activities that celebrate the 

district’s diversity, encourage cohesion, and reconnect people with their wider community.  
j) Encouraging and supporting self-help and community action.  
k) Encouraging individual and corporate volunteers to help strengthen communities.  
l) Continuing our best practice model for refugee resettlement in the district, warmly welcoming 

families and supporting integration and cohesion.  
m) Strategically enhancing the district’s public toilet provision, focusing on our town centres and 

seafronts first. 
 

Keeping the district safe.   
n) Designing out crime as part of all new developments within the district.  
o) Providing a CCTV service 24/7 to reduce the real and perceived levels of crime.  
p) Continuing to drive the Community Safety Partnership with enforcement initiatives to reduce 

anti-social behaviour, environmental crime, and fly-tipping.  
q) Protecting people, especially the most vulnerable, through initiatives to reduce domestic 

abuse, exploitation, and misuse of drugs.  
r) Improving the health, safety and welfare of people living, working, and visiting the district 

through our port health and environmental services and licensing activities.  
s) Responding early and effectively to public health risks from disease, pandemics, and other 

emergencies.  

122



 

 

5. Modernising our Council.  
A modern, innovative, and financially sustainable council that delivers efficient and 
quality services. 
 
Like all councils, we face complex financial challenges when delivering our services. We will 
be a modern, agile, and proactive council that focuses on meeting the needs of our residents. 
We will be more open and transparent so residents can hold us accountable for spending their 
money and making decisions that affect their lives. We will deliver quality services that are 
accessible and easy to use. 
 
Providing quality customer service. 

a) Developing our self-service options so customers can do business with us 24/7 to enable the 
most efficient transactions and smoother customer journeys.   

b) Collating and using data analytics to improve our services continually.  
c) Providing support for all residents, focussing on equality, understanding and respect.  
d) Improving communication with residents through all communication channels.  
e) Listening and responding to the needs and experiences of our residents.  
f) Wherever possible, resolve issues/queries the first time a customer contacts us.  

 
Delivering effective and efficient services.  

g) Managing our finances and contracts robustly to ensure the best value for money and social 
value.  

h) Developing an ongoing approach to self-evaluation and continuous improvement of our 
services to deliver year-on-year improvements focusing on our residents. 

i) Continuing to invest in technology to support digital working and service for staff, including 
mobile teams.  

j) Continuing to develop the “Dover District Council” brand, website, and social media to support 
the provision of information and quality customer service.  

k) Ensuring all our communications and publications are clear and accessible.  
l) Ensuring our decision-making is robust and led by sound data and intelligence.  
m) Improving access to council meetings, ensuring increased transparency, meaningful 

consultation, and better visibility.  
 

Maintaining financial stability.  
n) Providing a sound financial governance and control system and aligning the medium-term 

financial plan with our work plans, strategies, and major projects. 
o) Exploring opportunities to work further with stakeholders and partner organisations.  

 
  

123



 

 

D. Measuring our success.  
 

A ‘golden thread’ runs through all our policies and strategies, service planning, financial 
decision-making, programmes and projects, and business-as-usual activity - with the 
corporate plan as the central thread. Every staff member has a part to play in its successful 
delivery and will be able to recognise their contribution to the core themes. We have designed 
our corporate plan to meet the needs of the whole district, and our elected members place the 
core aims and objectives at the heart of their decision-making. 
 
We are committed to open and transparent monitoring of progress against the delivery of the 
objectives set, and we will track progress in the following ways: 

 
a) Strategic and operational performance management. 

We will measure and monitor our progress in delivering our priorities, flex our resources, and 
approach accordingly. Our Performance Management Framework drives the what and the 
how of measuring success. Our performance monitoring is also aligned with our financial 
reporting and risk management. We will report quarterly strategic performance indicators, 
aligned to each corporate priority, to our Corporate Management Team, Cabinet, and 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Each service also has operational performance indicators 
managed by the Heads of Service in conjunction with the Corporate Management Team and 
their Portfolio Holders. All council employees will have performance and development reviews, 
connecting them to delivering our corporate priorities and service plans. 
 
Strategic reviews of service areas may occasionally lead to changes in key performance 
indicators during the year. Where this is the case, we will report these as part of the regular 
quarterly reporting process and reflect them in the next refresh of the performance 
management framework.  

 
b) Outcome-based approach. 

We are committed to improving outcomes for residents, businesses, the environment, as well 
as the health and state of our district. In addition to strategic performance indicators that we 
will report progress against through our performance reports, we will seek to design and 
develop additional outcome measures over the first and second years of the plan. We will also 
explore how far we can benchmark against nationally produced indicators and data and 
supplement these with various community engagement techniques to assess community 
wellbeing. 

 
c) Review. 

We will keep our corporate plan under review, particularly when the Council faces new 
challenges or opportunities, whether nationally, regionally or within the district. 
 

d) The Medium-Term Financial Plan. 
Each year, we must produce a medium-term financial plan (MTFP) for approval by elected 
members. The MTFP sets out our spending plans in support of delivering the Corporate Plan 
objectives, presenting a balanced budget, and striving for value for money and financial 
stability and sustainability. 

 

124



 

 

e) Business and Service Plans.  
Every year, each service area across the council produces a business plan incorporated into 
an overall service plan for that area. These plans serve two purposes. Firstly, to set out 
proposed business activity in support of delivering the Corporate Plan, informed by policy 
developments, and encompassing short-, medium-, and long-term proposals. Secondly, 
business plans have an operational purpose, setting out business as usual activity and the 
resources required to deliver this. This element informs the day-to-day running of our services 
and informs individual objectives. Our Corporate Management Team is accountable to 
members for service and business plans, monitored through various aspects of our 
governance framework. 
 

f) Individual Objectives. 
For council staff, the ‘golden thread’ shows how individual work objectives contribute to the 
overall delivery of the corporate plan. Whether delivering a large and complex project like the 
Levelling Up - Dover Beacon Project, ensuring the streets are clean, carrying out our 
regulatory functions, or processing planning applications – all our staff are valued equally. 

 
g) Dover District Profile.  

This profile is our key evidence base and is available on our website. It allows us to monitor 
the effectiveness of Corporate Plan interventions designed to address issues and challenges 
identified across the district. The profile also enables us to identify emerging issues and plan 
appropriate interventions. 

  

125



 

 

E. How we work - our principles. 
 

Ensuring fairness and opportunity for all are at the core of our work. 
 

The principles guiding all our plans and actions are:  
 

• Customers first: Putting our customers at the heart of service design and delivery, we will 
seek regular feedback through consultations and resident surveys. 
 

• Digital transformation: We are modernising services and harnessing new digital technology 
to make it easier for residents to interact with us. We are improving our website, streamlining 
processes, and making more services available online. 
 

• Building self-reliance: We work with others to build the ability of individuals and communities 
to solve their problems and withstand the shocks that come their way. We will support those 
who need it – but our priority is always to help people live independently for as long as 
possible. 
 

• Getting the best value: We strive for value for money in everything we do, and we are 
focused on financial stability and delivering our Medium-Term Financial Plan. However, we 
acknowledge that the best deal is not always the cheapest – it protects people, jobs, the 
environment, and the budget. So, we are also evolving our procurement practices to enhance 
the social value in all we do. 

 
• Collaborating with others: We work closely with partners and other bodies within and 

beyond our district, increasing our collective ability to achieve our vision and improve our 
residents’ quality of life and well-being. We are building on the work done during the pandemic 
to consolidate partnerships and ensure a more robust network to support the most vulnerable. 

 
• Respect for democracy and ensuring inclusivity: Our councillors, elected by local people, 

understand the needs and expectations of their communities. This understanding informs our 
actions and helps us make balanced decisions. We will practice genuine engagement with 
those affected by our work or decisions. 

 
• Integrity and Good Governance: As community leaders, honesty, accountability, and 

transparency are at the core of everything we do. We recognise our responsibility to serve all 
the communities of our district to the best of our ability. We will treat the people we work with 
and serve with integrity, respect, and decency. We will use data and research to drive 
improvement, listening to our residents, communities, and businesses to underpin informed 
decisions. 
 

• Valuing our staff: Our staff are our biggest asset, and through their dedication and expertise, 
we can deliver the services that people rely on. Therefore, we promote our employees’ health, 
safety, and wellbeing. We support our staff in gaining new skills and qualifications throughout 
their careers, and empower them to innovate, collaborate and achieve our shared goals.  

126



URGENT BUSINESS 

 
 
To consider any other items deemed by the Chairman of the Council to be urgent in 
accordance with the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

127

Agenda Item No 7


	Agenda
	1 Apologies
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Announcements
	4 Appointment of an East Kent Joint Independent Remuneration Panel
	Appendix 1 EKJIRP - Terms of Reference

	5 Polling District Review
	Appendix 1 - Current and Proposed Polling District Scheme
	Polling Stations & Places-2023
	Proposed changes

	Appendix 2 - Proposed Changes to Polling District Boundaries
	Booklet Cover Page- proposed
	PAY1 and PAY2
	PAY1 and PAY2- further detail

	Appendix 3 - Existing Polling District Boundaries (compressed)_Part1
	AMD1
	AMD2
	AMD3
	AMH1
	AMH2
	AMH3
	AN1
	AN2
	AN3
	AW1
	AW2
	AW3
	AW4N
	BC1
	BC2
	BCW1
	BME
	BR1
	BR2
	BR3

	Appendix 3 - Existing Polling District Boundaries (compressed)_Part2
	BR3
	BT1
	BT2
	BT3
	BT4
	BTH1 & BTH2
	PAK
	PAY
	PCF
	PDD
	PDW
	PEA
	PEX1, PEX2 & PEX3
	PGM
	PGS
	PHM
	PLG
	PLN
	PNN
	PNR
	PRG
	PRK

	Appendix 4 - Responses received to the consultation
	Appendix 5 -Summary of Proposed Changes
	Proposed changes


	6 Corporate Plan
	Appendix 1 - DDC Corporate Plan 2023 to 2027 FINAL
	A.	Welcome.
	B.	About our corporate plan.
	1.	Our vision, aims, and priority activities.
	2.	A sense of place.
	3.	Our commitment to equality, diversity, and inclusion for all residents.

	C.	Our strategic priorities.
	1.	Improving our housing.
	Providing decent, safe, and affordable homes for local people.
	Supporting our tenants through a high-quality, well-managed service.
	Supporting responsible development in the district.
	Preventing homelessness and use of temporary accommodation.

	2.	Growing our economy.
	Promoting the district as 'open for business’ and encouraging growth, visitors, and inward investment.

	3.	Protecting our environment.
	Recognising the importance of the environment in the decisions we make.
	Encouraging a clean, green, and safe place to live, work, visit, learn and invest.
	Improving and enhancing our waste management services.
	Supporting and engaging the community to protect their environment.

	4.	Supporting our communities.
	Encouraging residents to lead active, healthy, and fulfilling lifestyles.
	Supporting, strengthening, and sustaining communities.
	Keeping the district safe.

	5.	Modernising our Council.
	Providing quality customer service.
	Delivering effective and efficient services.
	Maintaining financial stability.


	D.	Measuring our success.
	E.	How we work - our principles.


	7 Urgent Business Time



